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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 21 APRIL 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We are  ready to  p roceed Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   The  w i tness 

today Cha i rperson is  Pro fessor  Cec i l  Pet rus  Louwrens.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   He is  ca l led  by  the  Eskom work  s t ream 

in  regard  to  the  p re-suspens ion  le t te rs  and the  metadata  in  

re la t ion  there to  espec ia l l y  to  de termine the  au thor  and 

modi f ie r  o f  those th ree  suspens ion  l e t te rs  o f  the  

execut ives .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  P ro f  Louwrens w i l l  be  ready to  

take the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh i t  i s  P ro fessor  Louwrens is  tha t  r igh t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:  That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Pro fessor  Louwrens .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  unders tand tha t  you are  par t  o f  the 

invest iga t ion  team o f  the  commiss ion .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much fo r  coming to  ass i s t  

us  on  th is  mat te r  tha t  requ i res  I  th ink  unusua l  exper t i se  so  

he  w i l l  he lp  us  to  make sense o f  some o f  the  th ings  tha t  we 

do not  unders tand.   Okay.   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  o r  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Cec i l  Pet rus  Louwrens.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   No I  do  no t .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank –  thank you.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thanks.   May I  p roceed?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You may proceed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Have –  have you announced fo r  the  

benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  the  area on  wh ich  he  w i l l  be  g iv ing  

ev idence?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so r ry  DCJ I  was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Somebody was in te r fe r ing  w i th  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  they were  g iv ing  me not ice  tha t  P ro f  

Louwrens '  oa th  was not  captured by  the  reco rd ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We wi l l  redo tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  was say ing  –  I  was ask ing  whether  you 

have a l ready in fo rmed the  pub l i c  f o r  the i r  benef i t  on  what  10 

aspect  Pro fessor  Louwrens w i l l  be  tes t i f y ing  so  tha t  they  

can fo l low.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H is  ev idence.   I f  you  have not  done so  

p lease do so  be fo re  he  –  he  s ta r ts .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  maybe le t  us  redo the  oa th  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  was wrong  because I  do  no t  th ink  

he  was speak ing  too  so f t l y.   They jus t  d id  no t  pu t  on  the i r  20 

m i t tens.   Okay a l r igh t  le t  us  –  Reg is t ra r  le t  –  and both  

Pro fessor  Louwrens le t  us  jus t  redo the  oa th .   Hang on I  

th ink  the  techn ic ians are  mak ing  some gestures .   Okay 

a l r igh t .    

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  
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PROF LOUWRENS:   Cec i l  Pet rus  Louwrens.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   No I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  10 

he lp  me God.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Thank you Cha i r.   P ro f  Louwrens  

has been ca l led  as  an  exper t  w i tness fo r  the  mat te r  tha t  

has ar isen befo re  the  commiss ion .   That  mat te r  a rose in  

the  contex t  o f  the  a f f idav i t  p rov ided to  the  commiss ion  by  

Mr  Zethemba Khoza in  te rms o f  –  i n  wh ich  an  a l legat ion  is  

made tha t  he  had  rece ived four  le t te rs  o f  suspens ion .  

 He –  he  th inks  tha t  the  le t te rs  were  rece ived f rom 20 

Mr  Tsots i  bu t  he  does not  know how.   He has prov ided  

those le t te rs  w i th  the  metadata  re la t ing  to  each o f  those  

le t te rs  in  te rms o f  wh ich  the  au tho r  o f  the  le t te r  and o f  the  

le t te rs  and the  las t  mod i f ie r  o f  the  le t te rs  a re  ment ioned in  

the  metadata .  
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 The commiss ion  seeks to  have es tab l i shed 

independent ly  o f  what  has been prov ided to  i t  by  Mr  Khoza  

by  way o f  an  exper t  op t ing  in  o r  exper t  ev idence  whethe r  

the  au thor  o f  the  le t te r  i s  indeed the  person whose name is  

re f lec ted  on the  metadata  and whether  the  las t  mod i f ie r  o f  

the  le t te r  i s  a lso  the  person re f lec ted  in  t he  f ie ld  o r  tha t  

name in  the  metadata .  

 And Pro fessor  Louwrens is  he re  fo r  tha t  reason  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no  tha t  i s  f ine .   And as  I  unders tand  10 

the  issue h is  ev idence a lso  re la tes  to  whether  there  is  any  

bas is  on  wh ich  the  00 :07:09 sa id  tha t  somebody ou ts ide  o f  

Eskom had someth ing  to  do  w i th  those le t te rs  o f  

suspens ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P r io r  to  the  11  o f  March 2015  so  the  

ev idence reso lved around the  suspens ion  o f  the  execut ives  

and i f  so  what  i s  the  bas i s  fo r  say ing  tha t  o r  there  m ight  

no t  be  a  sc ien t i f i c  o r  t echn ica l  bas is  so  tha t  then tha t  i s  

par t  o f  what  Pro fessor  Louwrens w i l l  ass i s t  us  on .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Us ing  the  –  the  suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  

you have re fer red  to .   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   You may proceed.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   P ro f  Louwrens once aga in  

thank you fo r  you r  ava i lab i l i t y  in  ass i s t ing  the  commiss ion .   

Cou ld  you p lease by  way o f  a  background jus t  s ta te  your  

qua l i f i ca t ions and your  exper t i se  re levant  to  the  

assessment  tha t  you have been asked to  per fo rm.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Cer ta in ly.   So I  am –  I  own a  

consu l t ing  f i rm ca l led  Qu in tessence D ig i ta l  Forens ics  so  I  

have had tha t  fo r  the  past  f i ve  years  and i t  i s  bas ica l l y  why  

I  am a lso  invo l ved in  the  –  the  commiss ion  because o f  my 

invo lvement  there .  10 

 But  my background… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id  you have had the  consu l t ing  

f i rm o f  how long?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   F ive  years .  

CHAIRPERSON:   F ive  years .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Bu t  p r io r  to  tha t  I  was invo l ved in  the  

indust ry.   I  was in  the  m i l i ta ry  fo r  a  number  o f  yea rs  where  

I  have –  was in  the  m i l i ta ry  in te l l igence and a lso  d id  a  20 

compute r  fo r  –  no t  computer  fo rens ics  bu t  computer  

secur i t y  and I  then worked fo r  a  major  bank as  a  Ch ie f  

In fo rmat ion  Secur i t y  Off i cer  fo r  a  number  o f  yea rs .    In  tha t  

ro le  I  a lso  managed the  d ig i ta l  fo rens i cs  funct ion  o f  tha t  

bank and I  ho ld  the  fo l low ing qua l i f i ca t ions.   F i r s t  o f  a l l  a  
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BSC or  a  BA Mi l i ta ry  Sc ience,  a  BSCF Honours  Computer  

Sc ience.  MSC Computer  Sc ience and then a  PhD in  

compute r  sc ience .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You –  you ment ioned BA is  i t  BA Mi l i ta ry  

Sc ience or  i s  i t  BSC Mi l i ta ry  Sc ience?  I  see  in  the  

a f f idav i t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  i s  BA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  BA so  tha t  shou ld  be  cor rec ted .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Th i s  i s  –  tha t  shou ld  be  cor rec ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  w i l l  sor t  tha t .   Okay.   And your  10 

consu l t ing  f i rm is  in  what  sec tor?   What  does i t  do?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  i s  in  d ig i ta l  fo rens ics .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   So  I  do  fo rens ic  invest iga t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   And ana lys i s  o f  we l l  c r im ina l  cases,  

c iv i l  cases e t ce te ra .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Mr  Bergs you have –  oh  

Pro fessor  Bergs  you have –  oh  Louwrens you have  20 

prov ided the  commiss ion  w i th  an  a f f idav i t .   Your  a f f idav i t  

Cha i rperson is  found in  Eskom Bund le  19  page 355.   A re  

you there  Pro f  Louwrens?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  have got  i t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   The a f f idav i t  runs up  to  page  370 –  
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370.   I  saw you fo l low the  b lack  pag ina t ion  on  the  l e f t  hand 

corne r  –  top  le f t  hand corne r.    

PROF LOUWRENS:   Okay I  have got  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You speak ing  too  so f t l y  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You have –  you found the  page  –  page 

370?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The a f f idav i t  –  we l l  on  tha t  page a  

s ignature  appears  above the  name Cec i l  Pet rus  Louwrens 

you see tha t?  10 

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  

s ignature?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  19 Apr i l  2021 you  

conf i rm th is  to  be  your  a f f idav i t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  the  

contents  thereof?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  do .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Cha i rperson I  beg leave to  

have the  a f f idav i t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  tha t  you  want  to  le t  h im conf i rm 

tha t  i t  has  go t  annexures and jus t  to  ident i f y  to  say f rom 

what  page to  wha t  page the  annexures run .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  so  tha t  I  am sure  wh ich  ones are  h i s  

annexures wh ich  documents  are  no t  h is  annexures.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   P ro f  Louwrens the  

a f f idav i t  a lso  has annexures to  i t  s ta r t ing  f rom page 371 

you see tha t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And there  is  a  number  o f  annexures to  

your  a f f idav i t  up  to  page 421.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see  tha t  v i r tua l l y  i s  the  

conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  o f  one Nondumiso Z ib i ,  you see tha t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There  is  a lso  a  conf i rmato ry  a f f idav i t  on  

page 423 apparent ly  i t  i s  the  uns igned one.   We have the  

s igned one here  o f  Mr  Tshepo Moleko.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes see tha t .   Cha i rperson wh i le  we are  

there  we have the  s igned copy o f  Mr  Moleko ’s  a f f idav i t  – 

conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  wh ich  I  sha l l  beg leave to  hand up.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   To  rep lace the  uns igned one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   And so  the  las t  annexure  

Pro f  Louwrens i s  then the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  –  conf i rmatory  
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a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mo leko on page 423 .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t  so .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  tha t  cor rec t .   Thank you Cha i r  then  

Cha i rperson I  beg leave to  have th is  a f f idav i t  o f  P ro fessor  

Louwrens admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U42.1 .   Cha i r  we l l  the  reason 

I  am paus ing  is  because i t  i s  a l ready marked Exh ib i t  42  – 

U42.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh but  i t  shou ld  be  42.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   .1  yes .   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   Wel l  tha t  cor rec t ion  must  10 

be  made so  tha t  there  is  no  confus ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay the  a f f idav i t  o f  P ro fessor  Cec i l  

Pet rus  Becks Louwrens wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  page 355 is  

admi t ted  as  an  Exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  

U42.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   P ro f  Louwrens.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He has to ld  us  a l ready about  h is  20 

academic  qua l i f i ca t ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He had to ld  us  about  h is  consu l t ing  f i rm 

and what  sec tor  h is  consu l t ing  f i rm is  invo lved in .    I  th ink  

you can take  i t  f rom there  in  te rms o f  comple t ing  the  
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qua l i f i ca t ions as  an  except ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   P ro f  Louwrens  

we –  we see f rom your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you have a l so  been 

invo lved in  academics .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I  have –  I  have been invo lved a t  the  

Un ivers i t y  o f  Johannesburg  spec i f i ca l l y  lec tu r ing  d ig i ta l  

fo rens ics  a t  Honours  leve l  and a l so  computer  secur i t y,  r i sk 

management  and a  computer  p ro jec t  management .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  So your  –  your  background and I  

am ta lk ing  educa t iona l  –  f rom an educat iona l  po in t  o f  v iew 

your  career  i s  in  IT.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can you exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson  

when you ta lk ing  about  d ig i ta l  fo rens ics  what  exac t ly  does  

tha t  re fe r  to?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  i s  a  s im i la r  f ie ld  than  normal  

fo rens ics .   The same pr inc ip les  app ly  bu t  the  techn iques 

are  d i f fe ren t  and obv ious l y  we  have to  re ly  a  lo t  on  20 

techno logy and spec i f i c  too ls .   So tha t  then means tha t  you  

wou ld  invest iga te  say fo r  ins tance  a  hard  dr ive  and  tha t  i s  

a  computer  d i sc  f rom the  suspect  o r  whatever  the  case 

might  be  and the  hard  dr i ve  wou ld  then be ana lysed in  

de ta i l  as  in  te rms  o f  the  cons is tency,  the  metadata  and tha t  
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i s  the  da ta  about  da ta  so  say fo r  ins tance we have  got  a  

f i le  o r  a  word  document  –  tha t  word  document  i s  assoc ia ted  

w i th  o the r  in fo rmat ion  o r  o ther  da ta  wh ich  is  ca l led  

metadata  wh ich  in  fac t  desc r ibes tha t  document .  

 So i f  we want  to  know more  about  tha t  document  

and the  contents  how i t  was c rea ted and who created i t  the 

metadata  can ac tua l l y  p rov ide  us  w i th  some in fo rmat ion  to  

tha t  ex ten t .  

 And then i f  we have access to  a  compute r  the  who le  

d isc  you cou ld  a lso  then get  cor robora t ive  in fo rmat ion  in  10 

te rms o f  the  f i le  sys tem and you  cou ld  then see  i f  i t  i s  

cons i s ten t  and i f  tha t  i s  cons i s ten t  tha t  wou ld  lead us  to  

make cer ta in  deduct ions f rom tha t .  

 But  i t  i s  bas ica l l y  a  00 :19 :15 o f  fac ts  f rom d ig i ta l  

med ia .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes cont inue I  w i l l  come back to  th is  la te r  

bu t  I  th ink  cont inue the  qua l i f i ca t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And so  how long were  you –  were  you  

employed a t  the  Un ivers i t y?  20 

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  was employed as  a  v is i t ing  

pro fessor.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As  a  v is i t ing  p ro fessor.    

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   For  how long?  
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PROF LOUWRENS:   F i f teen years .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f rom when to  when the  f i f teen 

years?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  was f rom 1990 –  ag  2004 to 

2019.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   2004 to  2009?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   19 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh 2019.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   19  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Okay a l r igh t .   And 10 

th roughout  tha t  per iod  were  you  lec tur ing  on  compute r  

sc ience,  IT,  fo rens i cs  d ig i ta l  fo rens ics ,  fo rens i cs?   You 

were  cover ing  those?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And some o f  the  s tudents  tha t  you 

were  teach ing  were  do ing  Honours  –  were  a t  Honours  

leve l?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And any –  any s tudents  were  do ing  

Masters  and Doctora tes  tha t  you might  have superv ised  20 

and promoted?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  d id .   I  superv i sed a  few Master  

s tudents  and a  few PhD s tudents .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   A l r igh t  cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Have you –  have you yourse l f  read any  
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a r t i c les  on  the  –  on  the  –  in  the  f ie ld  D ig i ta l  Forens ics  and  

IT?  

PROF LOUWREN S:   Yes I  d id  spec i f i ca l l y  the  ar t i c l es  tha t  

were  presented a t  In te rnat iona l  conferences and  I  a lso  

cont r ibu ted  to  a  chapter  in  one o f  the  IF IP tha t  i s  

In te rnat iona l  Federa t ion  fo r  In fo rmat ion  Process ing  book.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe you  –  you can jus t  g ive  us  

the  t i t le  o f  the  book and i f  you ab le  to  and then maybe the  

t i t le  o f  the  chapte r  tha t  you wro te?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Okay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you  can remember.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  have –  I  w i l l  ge t  you the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   O therwise  you can jus t  supp ly.  

PROF LOUWREN S:   The prec i se  –  ja  i t  i s  about  the  la tes t  

deve lopments  i n  –  in to  the  fo rens ics  and the  chap ter  was  

about  the  f ramework  fo r  eva lua t ing  these 00:22:12  

fo rens ics  wr i t ten  a t  [? ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay o ther  than  the  chapter  tha t  chapter  

in  a  book in  tha t  book and papers  tha t  you de l i vered a t  

in te rna t iona l  con ferences wou ld  there  be  o the r  –  wou ld  20 

there  be  a r t i c les  tha t  you have pub l i shed in  a r t i c l es  o r  in  

journa ls  o r  –  tha t  fa l l  w i th in  the  –  the  sector  o f  fo rens ics ,  

d ig i ta l  fo rens ics ,  compute r  sc ience  and ja  le t  us  dea l .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Spec i f i ca l l y  in  computer  sc ience I  

pub l i shed an ar t i c le  on  how to  p ro tec t  a  computer  by  us ing  
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the  –  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the  b io log i ca l  mode l  fo r  computer  

secur i t y.   So tha t  enab les  the  computer  to  p ro tec t  i t se l f .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Yes Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  maybe jus t  be fore  Mr  Se leka proceeds  

jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness what  i s  the  name o f  you r  

consu l t ing  f i rm?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  i s  Qu in tessence D ig i ta l  Forens i cs .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay a l r igh t .   Cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   P ro f  Louwrens then  ta lk ing  10 

o f  d ig i ta l  fo rens ics  and wh ich  invo lves look ing  a t  the 

metadata  and mak ing  an invest iga t ion  how o f ten  wou ld  you  

have done tha t  sor t  o f  an  invest iga t ion?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Ev idence o f  metadata  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,   I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe you shou ld  jus t  cover  what  he  has 

go t  to  say under  parag raph 4  up  to  8  because i t  covers  the  

o ther  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  h is  qua l i f i ca t ion  as  an  exper t .   I  

th ink  some you may have covered but  you can jus t  check 20 

make sure  we cover  a l l  o f  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   O therwise  he  can jus t  g ive  tha t  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   P ro f  Louwrens you see –  we go back to  

page 355 f rom paragraph 4  you  ment ion  there  tha t  you 
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have more  than  41 years ’ exper ience in  secur i t y  and 

re la ted  f ie lds  in  f inanc ia l  serv ices  indust ry  and  mi l i ta ry  

compr i s ing  and then you g i ve  a  l i s t .   Le t  us  – le t  us  dea l  

w i th  secur i t y  wh ich  I  th ink  i s  what  you dea l  w i th  in  4 .1 .   

When you say  secur i t y  what  a re  you re fer r ing  to  –  

exper ience in  secur i t y?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   There  are  bas i ca l l y  th ree  types o f  

secur i t y.   The f i rs t  wou ld  be  phys i ca l  secur i t y  wh ich  we a l l  

know tha t  phys i ca l  guard ing ,  a la rm sys tems,  CCTV sys tems 

and access cont ro l .   Then there  is  the  next  one wou ld  be  10 

personne l  secur i t y  wh ich  is  sc reen ing  o f  personne l ,  mak ing  

sure  tha t  background checks a re  done and tha t  the  peop le  

are  say –  or  a re  what  they purpor t  to  be .   And the  th i rd  one 

wou ld  be  computer  secur i t y  o r  in fo rmat ion  secur i t y  in  use 

in te rchangeab ly  where  i t  goes about  the  pro tec t ion  o f  

compute rs ,  access cont ro l  to  computers  the i r  sys tems,  the  

f i le  to  be  ab le  to  mon i to r  what  happens on compute r  

sys tems and to  p ro tect  aga ins t  v i ruses and malware .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And o f  the  28  years  compared to  in  

parag raph 4 .1  how many o f  those  years  re la te  to  the  las t  20 

par t  tha t  you sa id  computers  and 00:26:51.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Computer  secur i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  was i f  in fo rmat ion  secur i t y  o f f i cer  

s ince  2010.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   2010?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   10  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

PROF LOUWREN S:   Bu t  p r io r  to  tha t  I  was a lways invo lved 

to  a  cer ta in  ex ten t  in  in fo rmat ion  secur i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then you ment ion  in  paragraph 4 .2  tha t  

you have n ine  years  in  in te l l igence and in fo rmat ion  

secur i t y  in  m i l i ta ry  env i ronment .   I  know tha t  you d id  touch 

on the  m i l i ta ry  env i ronment  cou ld  you e labora te  a  l i t t le  10 

more  what  the  i n te l l igence and in fo rmat ion  secur i t y  in  tha t  

env i ronment  wou ld  en ta i l?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  was ear l y  yea rs  in  the  m i l i ta ry  in  

te rms o f  computer  secur i t y.   Th i s  i s  a  new f ie ld .   I  jus t  

comple ted  my degree a t  S te l lenbosch Un ivers i t y  Sa ldanha 

and I  was then  requested to  wr i te  the  f i rs t  in fo rmat ion  

secur i t y  po l i cy  fo r  the  Defence secur i t y.   So I  s ta r ted  o f f  in  

the  in fo rmat ion  secur i t y  in  1986.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   19?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   86 .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  you wou ld  have then been employed 

by  the  South  A f r i can Defence Force?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Wel l  what  i s  i t  tha t  you d id  when  

we –  we ta lk ing  in te l l igence and in fo rmat ion  secur i t y?  
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PROF LOUWREN S:   In  te rms o f  in fo rmat ion  secur i t y  the 

f i rs t  job  tha t  I  had to  do  is  to  wr i te  a  po l i cy  fo r  in fo rmat ion  

secur i t y.   How to  do  i t ,  what  needs to  be  done,  what  the  

respons ib i l i t i es  a re?  Because  the  po l i cy  tha t  govern  

in fo rmat ion  secur i t y  o r  computer  secur i t y  as  i t  was  ca l led  

a t  tha t  t ime.   In  m i l i ta ry  in te l l igence bas i ca l l y  we moni to red  

o f  the  ex terna l  events  in  the  ve ts  to  the  count ry  e tce tera 

and a l so  the  computer  secur i t y  re la tes  to  tha t  because as  

we were  us ing  compute r  sys tems i t  cou ld  have  been 

th rea tened and i t  cou ld  have been abused and accessed  10 

and hacked a l though a t  tha t  t ime hack ing  was not  –  no t  a  

known te rm i t  jus t  became more  known la te r  on .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you have f i ve  years  you say in  

d ig i ta l  consu l t ing .   So you wou ld  have consu l ted  i n  D ig i ta l  

Forens ics  wh ich  you have a l ready exp la ined.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Now can you te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson  

wh ich  years  a re  those,  i f  you  can reca l l?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Which  year?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  you sa id  f i ve  years .    20 

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    From which  year  to  wh ich?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    2016.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   And in  parag raph 5  you say you 

have the  fo l low ing D ig i ta l  Fo rens ic  Cer t i f i ca tes ,  Access  
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Data ,  Cer t i f ied  Examiner  and EnCase Cer t i f ied  Examiner.    

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So th is  –  what  does th is  

cer t i f i ca te  means ,  you are  an  Examiner?  

PROF LOUWREN S :    Yes,  I  am qua l i f ied  to  be  an  Examiner  

us ing  those spec i f i c  p roducts  and those are  two  o f  the 

more  known products  in  the  d ig i ta l  fo rens ics  env i ronment .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And what  p roducts  a re  you re fer r i ng  

to?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    The f i rs t  p roduct  i s  Access Data  and  10 

the  second one is  In -Case,  EnCase Forens ics .   So the  

Access Data  Cer t i f ied  examines the  ACE qua l i f i ca t ion  and 

then the  EnCase Cer t i f ied  examines the  ENCE 

qua l i f i ca t ions.   So both  o f  those requ i re  examinat ion  and 

you can on ly  be  cer t i f ied  i f  you  pass tha t  examina t ion .   I t  

invo l ves a  prac t ica l  component  as  we l l .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    A re you ab le  to  g ive  the  Cha i rperson 

ins ide  in to  what  i s  be ing  re fe r red  to  as  Access Data? 

PROF LOUWRENS :    Access Data  is  one o f  the  lead ing  

products  in  the  d ig i ta l  fo rens i c  too ls  market .   I t  p rov ides  20 

you w i th  a  p la t fo rm or  the  ab i l i t y  to  ana lyse  data ,  hard-

dr ives ,  da ta  tha t  you capture  f rom o ther  e lec t ron ic  med ia  

and then to  ca tegor i se  i t  and to  d isp lay  i t  in  a  way  tha t  i s  

unders tandab le  and a lso  to  repor t  on  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  by  way o f  an  example ,  what  sor t  o f  
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da ta?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    So  say fo r  ins tance the re  is  a  

quest ion  about  i f  somebody d id  someth ing  on  a  compute r,  

we cou ld  then access the  logs on  tha t  computer  and  look a t  

tha t  event  and see i f  tha t  event  cor re la tes  to  the  ac t ion  

tha t  the  person is  accused o r  i s  purpo r ted  to  have done.   

We can a lso  then  d isp lay  the  ac t ions,  the  t ime,  the  spec i f i c  

t ime tha t  i t  happened.    

 We can a lso  see f rom tha t  tha t  computer  was 

connected to  any  o ther  compute r  on  the  ne twork ,  any o the r  10 

dev ice  tha t  a re  connected to  i t ,  fo r  ins tance a  USB s t i ck .   

I f  you  connect  tha t ,  i t  i s  reco rded.   So I  can show tha t  tha t  

i s  what  happened .   I  can a l so  i den t i f y  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  v ia  the  

ser ia l  number  tha t  i s  suppor ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  the  two,  i s  i t  a  so f tware  

app l i ca t ion?  

PROF LOUWREN S :    I t  i s  a  so f tware  too l .   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  

su i te  o f  p roducts .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  can –  ja .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And then the  EnCase.   I f  you  cou ld  

a lso  exp la in  what  i t  en ta i ls .  

PROF LOUWREN S :    EnCase is  s im i la r.   I t  has  go t  the  

same purpose and i t  has  go t  much o f  the  same 

funct iona l i t y.   I t  is  jus t  two d i f fe ren t  too ls .   I t  i s  l i ke  hav ing  
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two se ts  o f  spanners .   The one you use fo r  th is  and the  

o ther  fo r  the  o ther.   So the  reason why we in  the  fo rens ic  

wor ld  l i ke  to  use more  than one too l  i s  to  ver i f y  our  resu l ts  

and make su re  tha t  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  cor rec t  and i f  there  any 

anomal ies  we w i l l  be  ab le  to  exp la in  tha t .    

 So  EnCase the  same funct iona l i t y.   I t  has  some 

s t rengths  in  cer ta in  a reas and i t  i s  less  we l l -versed(?)  in  

o thers ,  fo r  ins tance.   But  i f  you  use both  o f  those too ls  you 

w i l l  ge t  to  the  cor rec t  answer.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Then regard  to  the  assessment  tha t  the 10 

Commiss ion  had requ i red  you to  do ,  d id  you have  to use  

any o f  these too ls?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes,  I  d id .   I  spec i f i ca l l y  used EnCase 

because i t  d isp layed the  in fo rmat ion  to  the  metada ta  tha t  

we needed to  look  a t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  then ready to  go  in to .   [ laughs]  

PROF LOUWRENS :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Before  –  I  guess th i s  

wou ld  be  the  r igh t  t ime fo r  me to . . .   I  see  tha t  in  you r  

a f f idav i t  foo tno te  1  you te l l  us  what  metadata  i s .   You say 20 

metadata  i s  tha t  p rov ides in fo rmat ion  about  o ther  da ta .   In  

th is  case i t  i s  da ta  about  be fore  MS Word documents  in  

quest ion .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  r igh t?  
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PROF LOUWRENS :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Now,  i f  you  are  g iven a  document  and  

you have to  es tab l i sh  in  wh ich  compute r  o r  wh ich  compute r  

was used to  type,  you r  exper t i se  enab les  you to  do  tha t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    No,  tha t  i s  no t  tha t  easy to  do .   I t  

depends on the  document  i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   So in  some cases you can?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    In  some cases you can?  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  some cases you cannot?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    In  some cases you cannot .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And –  ja ,  we  can ta lk  about  th is  case  

i f  you  want  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   So we w i l l  come to  tha t .   Ja ,  I  

th ink  tha t  i s  f ine .   Maybe –  we l l ,  le t  us  ta lk  about  th is  case 

and then we w i l l  take  i t  f rom there .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Se leka.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Yes,  Pro f  Louwrens  

you were  g i ven an emai l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  wanted to  say ea r l ie r  on  and I  d id  

no t  say  i t ,  Mr  Se leka and Pro f  Louwrens.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  I  hope Pro f  Louwrens w i l l  no t  be  

embarrassed in  any way by  th is .   I  wanted to  say:   Wel l ,  
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some o f  the  peop le  have sa id  the  Commiss ion  has go t  

some o f  the  bes t  invest iga tors  and I  jus t  wanted  to  say:   

Wel l ,  look  a t  th is  qua l i f i ca t ions,  you see why they say tha t .   

[ laughs]  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Thank you.   I t  i s  a  compl iment .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    P ro f  Louwrens .   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   [ laughs]   Yes,  thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .   P ro f  Louwrens,  you were  g iven  

then an emai l  w i t h  four  le t te rs  a t tached to  i t .    

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    The four  le t te rs  t i t led :   P re-suspens ion  

Let te rs .   

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And you were ,  together  w i th  those 

le t te rs ,  p rov ided  w i th  the  metadata  tha t  we have a lso  

rece ived w i th  the  le t te rs  f rom one o f  the  w i tnesses.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   You re fer red  to  those le t te rs  in  

parag raph 11 o f  your  a f f idav i t .   And what  I  wou ld  l i ke  you 

to  do  fo r  the  purposes o f  ev idence is  to  take  us  th rough  20 

each le t te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe before  tha t  Mr  Se leka.   I  

th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  he  dea ls  w i th  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  wh ich  

is ,  I  th ink ,  where  he  ar t i cu la tes  what  he  unders tood h i s  

mandate  to  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  te rms o f  what  he  was asked to  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you want  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  

P ro f  Louwrens,  what  you unders tood your  task  to  be?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I  w i l l ,  Cha i r.   So I  have been  tasked  

to  conduct  a  fo rens i c  assessment  o f  the  Metadata  o f  four  

Microsof t  Word  documents  tha t  were  submi t ted  in to 

ev idence in to  the  Commiss ion .   The fou r  Word  documents  

were  a t tached to  an  emai l  and I  have got  the  images o f  10 

tha t  a t tached to  Annexure  CL-1  here .    

 So as  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  the  annexure  CL-1  

conta ins  an  emai l  tha t  has been a t tached and fo rwarded.   

The second pa r t  o f  the  annexure  conta ins  the  ema i l  i t se l f .   

In  o ther  words,  the  o r ig ina l  emai l  conta ined another  emai l  

tha t  was fo rwarded as  an  a t tachment .   So i t  was an emai l  

w i th in  an  emai l .    

 And i t  was in  the  second emai l s  where  four  

documents  a t tached and those a re  the  documents  tha t  I  

have been asked to  look  a t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Take i t  f rom there ,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Le t  us  go  to  CL-1  qu ick l y  wh i le  

we a re  here  wh ich  is  on  page 371.    

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page?  371?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    371,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  Pro f  Louwrens,  you say the  four  MS 

Word documents  are  a t tached to  an  emai l ,  images o f  wh ich  

are  conta ined in  Annexure  CL-1 .   So on  tha t  page 371 is  an  

annexure  marked  CL-1 .   Do you see tha t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  th is  wha t  you are  re fer r ing  to  as  

images o f  wh ich  –  images o f  an  emai l?  

PROF LOUWREN S :    That  i s  cor rec t .   So the  top  por t ion  o f  

tha t  i s  the  image  o f  the  emai l .   That  i s  the  f i rs t  emai l  tha t  10 

conta ins  an  a t tachment .   You can see l i t t le  ye l low b lock .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And tha t  ye l low b lock  re fers  to  the  

next  page wh ich  is  372 wh ich  is  the  emai l  conta in ing  the  

four  documents .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  tha t  ye l l ow b lock  the  one t i t led 

Spec ia l?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .   Spec ia l  Docs.msg.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Msg.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sor ry.   Jus t  ca r ry  on .   You were  say ing  

the  next  page is?  

PROF LOUWREN S :    The next  page is  ac tua l l y  tha t  ye l low 

b lock .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh.  
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PROF LOUWREN S :    That  emai l  i s  conta ined in  tha t  ye l low  

b lock .   So i f  you  open tha t  ye l low b lock  you w i l l  f ind  the  

next  one on page  372.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   I  am sor ry.   Go ing  back to  

page 371,  tha t  i s  s t i l l  w i th  the  ye l low b lock .   You have got  

someth ing  wr i t ten  there .   What  i s  tha t  P ro f  Louwrens?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    We have got  the  sender  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Who is  re f lec ted  as?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    As  khozazw@eskom.co.za .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  and the  sub jec t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    The sub jec t :   Spec ia l  Docs.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  message  there?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And there  i s  a  message ID wh ich  is  a  

long s t ream o f  le t te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Which  un ique ly  ident i f ies  tha t  

message to  the  mai l  sys tem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And then i t  i s  the  to  f ie ld .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I t  i s  Veneto ,  venete@kle in inc .co .za .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .   What  do  you make o f  

tha t  in fo rmat ion  there?  What  does tha t  in fo rmat ion  mean?   

Namely,  what  appears  next  to  the  ye l low b lock  as  the  
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in fo rmat ion  underneath  tha t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I t  means tha t  an  emai l  was sent  f rom 

an emai l  box ca l l ed  khozazw@eskom.co.za  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    To  an  emai l  box  ca l led  

venete@kle in inc .co .za .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes,  cont inue  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So then you say when you c l i ck  

on  the  ye l low box  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

PROF LOUWRENS :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . i t  opens up to  what?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  i t  opens up –  you were  say ing  the  

page –  I  mean,  the  documents  f rom page 372.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And what  do  we f ind  there  in  the  ye l low 

fo lder  o r  box?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    We have  then an emai l  tha t  was  

a t tached and the  emai l  was f rom an emai l  address  ca l led  20 

se thembe@khoza  wh ich  is  then the  same address,  the  

prev ious one,  khozazw@eskom.co .za .   And then we have  

got  four  Word  documents  a t tached ,  the  l i t t le  W in  the  b lue  

boxes.   I t  i s  very  smal l  bu t  tha t  you can make i t .    

 And then i t  i s  a  Word  document .   And the  
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document ,  the  f i rs t  one i s  ca l led  pre -suspens iondm.docx.   

The second one i s  ca l led  pre-suspens ion fd .docx.   The th i rd  

one is  ca l led  pre-suspens ionkm.docx.   (p re-

suspens ionmk.docx)    

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  i t  MK? 

PROF LOUWRENS :    Sor ry,  co r rec t .   And the  th i rd  –  the  

four th  one is  p re-suspens ion tm.docx.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Th is  emai l  you are  re fe r r i ng  you,  

cou ld  you determine where  i t  came f rom o r  was the  

addressor  and the  addressee?  10 

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes,  in  the  sense tha t  we looked  

th rough the  ev idence tha t  we got  f rom the  Commiss ion ’s  

sys tems,  ev idence prev ious l y  se ized f rom Eskom.   I  cou ld  

d iscover  tha t  the  same documents  and  I  cou ld  ac tua l l y  f ind  

th is  emai l  in  the  mai lbox o f  th is  khozazw@eskom.co .za .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And who was he address ing  the  emai l  

to?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I t  was exact ly  the  same here  as  

venete@kle in inc .co .za .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  see .   Yes.   And you have a  da te  fo r  20 

th is  exchange o f  emai l?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes,  le t  me jus t  go  th rough th i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  tha t  the  14 t h?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    14 t h  o f  March  2015 a t  13 :20  but  tha t  

Un iversa l  Cent ra l  Time . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  add two hours  f rom 
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loca l  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   That  da te  –  tha t  t ime is  fo r  

what ,  fo r  the  send ing  o f  an  emai l  o r  what?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I t  was the  emai l  tha t  –  the  image here  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    . . . tha t  was sent  a t  tha t  da te  and t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  tha t  was on  the  14 t h  o f  March .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    14 t h  o f  March  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And what  t ime?  10 

PROF LOUWRENS :    13 :20 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    36 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    P lus  two hours .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  see.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    . . . in  South  A f r i can t ime i t  w i l l  be  

15 :20.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Okay a l r igh t .   Okay.   Thank  

you.   You may p roceed.   20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.   Then Pro f  Louwrens,  the  

documents  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  were  documents  you have 

ind ica ted  as  pre-suspens ions ,  FD,  MK and TM.   I f  you c l i ck  

on  tha t ,  le t  us  say the  DM one f i rs t ,  what  do  you f ind?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I t  i s  a  document  tha t  purpor ts  to  be  a  
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p re -suspens ion  document  addressed to  addressees .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  jus t  look  a t  page 373.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 373?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    373 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  there  are  th ree  suspens ion  

le t te rs .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

PROF LOUWRENS :    R igh t .   And so ,  i f  we look a t  CL-2 ,  the  

pre -suspens iondm.docx.   I t  i s  a  document  f rom repor ted l y 10 

Dan Marokane  to  Pro jec t i ve  Cap i ta l  da ted  the  

11 t h  o f  March 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You d id  say addressed to  h im,  né ,  no t  

f rom? 

PROF LOUWRENS :    Ja ,  addressed to  Dan Marokane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And the  da te  g iven is  

11 t h  o f  March 2015 on the  document?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And i t  i s  an  inv i ta t ion  to  a  pre-20 

suspens ion  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    In  a  –  two po in ts  fo l low.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  the  document ,  read ing :  
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“Dear  Mr  Marokane.   Inv i ta t ion  to  a  pre-

suspens ion  meet ing . . ”  

 Cor rec t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   For  the  sake o f  comple teness  

because I  th ink  they are  the  same,  i s  i t  no t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  le t  us  read one in to  the  reco rd .   

P ro f  Louwrens,  wou ld  you p lease jus t  read tha t  one in to  

the  record .  10 

PROF LOUWRENS :    The who le  le t te r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  one o f  Dear  Mr  Marokane.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Okay.  

“Dear  Mr  Marokane.   Inv i ta t ion  to  a  pre-

suspens ion  meet ing .  

The company is  p resent ly  conduct ing  an  

invest iga t ion  in to  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  

a l leged ly  commi t ted  by  you.  20 

The a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  wh ich  w i l l  be  

invest iga ted  re la te  to ,  amongst  o thers ,  the  

fo l low ing.  

1 .1 .  As the  Cha i rman  o f  the  Emergency  

Commi t tee ,  you have been neg l igent  in  the  
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management  o f  the  e lec t r i c i t y  sys tem dur ing  

the  t imes o f  emergency tha t  resu l ted  to  

unnecessary  load-shedd ing .  

1.2 .  You were  gross l y  neg l igent  in  

manag ing  the  B i l l  P rogramme for  Medup i  

tha t  has resu l ted  in  de lays  and cost  

over runs.  

1.3 .  You ac ted  i r regu la r ly  in  

admin is t ra t ing  and manag ing  the  coa l  

purchase cont rac ts  to  the  de t r iment  o f  10 

Eskom.  

2.  The company has not  comple ted  the i r  

invest iga t ions.   The purpose o f  the  

invest iga t ions i s  to  es tab l i sh  whether  the re  are  

grounds fo r  d isc ip l inary  ac t ion  and in  regard  to  

tha t :  

2.1 .  [ Ind is t inc t ]  o f  the  a l legat ions and  

2.2 .  The poss ib i l i t y  tha t  your  p resence 

may jeopard ise  the  invest iga t ion  in to  the  

a l leged misconduct .  20 

The company is  o f  the  v iew tha t  you shou ld  be  

suspended on fu l l  pay  pend ing  the  f ina l i sa t ion  

o f  the  invest iga t ion .  

3 .   You are  tempora r i l y  suspended unt i l  fu r ther  

no t ice .  
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4 .  You are  inv i ted  to  make a  representa t ion  to  

the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors .  

5 .  The meet ing  w i l l  be  he ld  on  12  March 2015  

a t  09 :45 .  

6 .  Dur ing  the  meet ing  you w i l l  have the  

fo l low ing r igh ts :  

6 .1 .  You a re  en t i t led  to  be  p resent  a t  the  

meet ing .  

6 .2 .  You are  en t i t led  to  be  represented  a t  

the  meet ing  by  a  fe l low employee or  an  10 

employee representa t i ve .  

6 .3 .  You are  en t i t led  to  have the  fac i l i t y  o f  

an  in te rpre te r  i f  so  requ i red .  

6 .4 .  You a re  en t i t led  to  confer  w i th  your  

rep resenta t i ve  a t  reasonab le  t imes before ,  

dur ing  and a f te r  the  meet ing .  

6 .5 .  You are  en t i t led  persona l ly  o r  th rough 

your  rep resenta t i ve  to  quest ion  us  as  to  the 

reasons why we be l ieve  tha t  you shou ld  be  

suspended.  20 

7 .   We env isaged tha t  our  invest iga t i on  shou ld 

be  comple ted  w i th in  a  pe r iod  o f  four  weeks. . . ”  

 And then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   There  is  no  name fo r  the  bu t  there  

is  a  space and then there  is  a  sentence say ing :    
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“ I ,  Dan Marokane ,  acknowledges rece ip t  o f  th is  

no t ice  in  the  suspens ion  hear ing . ”  

 And a  space i s  p rov ided fo r  h i s  s ignature  and 

date .   There  is  a  space prov ided fo r  the  s ignature  o f  the 

person serv ing  the  no t ice  bu t  those were  no t  s igned.   

Okay.   I  see  they  are  no t  exact ly  the  same in  te rms  o f  the  

a l legat ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The a l legat ions.   That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Le t  us  dea l  w i th  th is  fo r  now and 

then,  th is  one,  and then we take i t  f rom there .   Or  un less  10 

we shou ld  –  you th ink  we shou ld  dea l  w i th  a l l  o f  them and  

then you want  to  dea l  w i th  a l l  o f  them? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  th ink  so ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    On the  o thers  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Then cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then cont inue,  Mr  Se leka.   Jus t  p roceed  

as  you in tended to .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   P ro f  Louwrens,  so  tha t  wou ld  be  20 

the  f i rs t  annexure  to  the  emai l  on  page 372.   The o the r  

annexures –  the re  is  another  on  t i t led  pre-suspens ion fd .   

Look a t  page 377 .    

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  be fore  you go to  377.   Would  you  
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le t  h im te l l  me what  the  document  a t  375 represents?   

Which  comes immedia te ly  a f te r  the  le t te r  he  has jus t  read.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [Speaker  moves away f rom microphone  

–  unc lea r. ]  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Page 375,  we have got  the  metadata  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    . . .ex t rac ted  f rom tha t  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And tha t  i s  the  metadata  tha t  you 

used to  in te rp re t  and come to  ce r ta in  conc lus ions?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   That  i s  f ine .   And are  they  

a t  376 and 376?  

PROF LOUWREN S :    Yes.   What  I  d id  there  then,  we have 

got  two sys tems as –  the  one is  the  –  the  one tha t  I  have  

ex t rac ted(? )  the  EnCase.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And on 376,  i s  our  sys tem re la t i v i t y  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    . . .o f  ex t rac ted  metadata  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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PROF LOUWRENS :    And what  i s  impor tan t  there  is  tha t  

the  on  376 a t  the  bo t tom the  MD5#.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I  w i l l  exp la in  what  the  hash(# )  i s .   

The hash is  l i ke  a  f ingerpr in t  fo r  a  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I t  i s  a  un ique number  tha t  represents  

the  document .   I f  one b i t  changes in  tha t  document  then 

tha t  number  w i l l  change.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

PROF LOUWRENS :    So  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  tha t  number  i s  

the  same as the  number  tha t  –  the  document  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  

invest iga ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    So  you wou ld  see tha t  on  page 375,  

the  second l ine  o f  tha t  tab le  i s  an  MD5#.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And in  the  las t  l ine  o f  376 is  a lso  an  

MD5# and those hashes a re  exact ly  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  20 

PROF LOUWRENS :    Which  is  impor tan t  because tha t  

means tha t  I  have dea l t  w i th  exact ly  the  same document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And tha t  a lso  re fer red  to  tha t  

document  and i f  we go in to  the  ev idence la te r  on  the  o the r  
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exper t  repor t ,  they  a lso  use tha t  MD5 to  iden t i f y  the 

documents .   So  i t  i s  impor tan t  jus t  to  no te  tha t  those 

documents  are  exact ly  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   Okay.   Yes,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Cha i rpe rson,  I  th ink  we can go  

in to  the  metadata  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  us  go  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  Pro f  Louwrens,  you were  asked to  

conduct  d ig i ta l  fo rens ic  assessment  o f  the  metadata .   You 

are  say ing  a t  page 375 –  and we w i l l  dea l  w i th  each le t te r  10 

a t  one t ime –  page 375 is  the  metadata  in  re la t ion  to  the 

le t te r  p re-suspens iondm.    

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  addressed to  Mr  Dan Marokane.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  be fore  you  proceed.   Jus t  to  make  

sure  one  can fo l low.   You have  sa id  tha t  –  you have  

conf i rmed tha t  you were  asked to  conduct  a  fo rens ic  –  

d ig i ta l  fo rens ic  assessment .   I s  tha t  the  cor rec t?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   When a  person conducts  tha t  20 

assessment ,  d ig i ta l  fo rens i c  assessment ,  what  wou ld  they 

be  look ing  fo r?   You conduct  tha t  assessment  in  o rde r  to  

ge t  what?   To  ach ieve what?   What  i s  the  ou tcome o f  such  

an invest iga t ion?  

PROF LOUWREN S :    Cha i r,  in  th is  case,  I  have on ly  had 
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the  ac tua l  Word  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    And obv ious l y  the  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Okay.   So what  –  le t  us  dea l  w i th  the  

Word  documents  f i rs t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   And  you must  take  i t  tha t  I  

know noth ing  about  IT and so  on .   So do not  fee l  tha t  you 

shou ld  no t  exp la in  some o f  the  bas ic  te rms to  me.  

PROF LOUWRENS :    I  w i l l  do  tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS :    So  the  Word  documents ,  i t  i s  

Microsof t  Word .   I t  i s  a  p roduct  f rom Microsof t .   I t  i s  par t  o f  

the  Off i ce  p roduc ts ,  Mic rosof t  Of f i ce .   And i t  i s  w ide ly  used 

as  word  process ing  too l ,  ca l led  so f tware .   Now what  i s  

spec i f i c  about  the  documents  tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  here  

is  they are  docx.   I f  you  look a t  the  la t te r  par t  o f  the  name 

i t  i s  the  name o f  the  document  and then i t  has  go t  a  docx.   

That  qua l i f ies  tha t  document  as  a  ce r ta in  type o f  Word  

document .   Now docx i s  the  la tes t  s tandard  tha t  i s  used in  20 

Microsof t  Words.   And i t  a lso  then ind ica tes  tha t  i t  i s  

cer ta in  metadata ,  EXIF,  we ca l l  i t  EXIF metadata  wh ich  i s  

imbedded in  t ha t  document  wh ich  you cou ld  then  

invest iga te .   So by  us ing  d ig i ta l  fo rens ic  too l s ,  l i ke  in  Face 

fo r  ins tance,  you cou ld  then ex t rac t  tha t  in fo rmat ion .  
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 In fo rmat ion  is  a lso  v is ib le  o r  some o f  the  

in fo rmat ion  is  a l so  v is ib le  on  the  document  i t se l f  i f  you  go 

in to  the  document  and you go in to  what  we ca l l  in fo ,  f i l e  

in fo ,  i t  w i l l  d isp lay  a  page and the  page w i l l  then d isp lay  

who created the  document  and  who las t  mod i f ied  the  

document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So you use some ins t rument  to  look  a t  

the  document .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then you can see cer ta in  images  10 

and in fo rmat ion .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And tha t  in fo rmat ion  wou ld  te l l  

you  a  number  o f  th ings inc lud ing  who may have had 

someth ing  to  do  w i th  the  document  in  one way or  another.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    So  i f  you  look a t  the  tab le ,  375,  tha t  

i s  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  wou ld  then  ex t rac t  o r  cou ld  ex t rac t  

f rom the  document .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    So  I  do  no t  know i f  you want  me to  

dea l  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And us ing  what  we jus t  ta lked about  o r  

us ing  a  number  o f  ins t ruments?  
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PROF LOUWRENS:    A number  o f  ins t ruments .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWREN S:    I  use  –  normal ly  us ing  Face but ,  as  I  

sa id ,  I  ver i f y  i t  and I  ver i f y  th i s  spec i f i ca l l y  w i th  another  

too l  to  make sure  tha t  I  unders tand i t  cor rec t l y  because i t  

i s  a lso  a  b i t  open  to  in te rpre ta t ion ,  they do  not  a lways g ive  

you a l l  the  in fo rmat ion ,  maybe they –  say fo r  ins tance you 

get  a  va lue  o f  3 ,  the  quest ion  is ,  what  does i t  mean?  You 

have to  cor robora te  w i th  o ther  too ls  to  see th ree  minutes ,  

fo r  ins tance.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Cont inue,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P ro f  Louwrens,  jus t  be fore  you move 

on,  does i t  mean i f  I  do  no t  have the  NKS too l  on  my  

compute r,  I  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  genera te  th i s  in fo rmat ion  o r  

to  come up w i th  –  to  pu l l  ou t  th is  in fo rmat ion .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    No,  you cou ld  use va r ious o ther  too ls  

to  ac tua l l y  do  th is  bu t  Encase enab les  you to  do  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes –  jus t  say  tha t  –  you cou ld  what?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    You cou ld  use a  number  o f  o ther  

too ls  a lso  to  ex t rac t  o the r  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  what  I  am ask ing  you  is ,  take  my  

s tandard  lap top .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  buy  i t  f rom whichever  shop.   I  have 

the  no rmal  word  process ing ,  Microsof t ,  bu t  I  do  no t  have  
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the  too ls  you are  re fer r ing  to .   Does i t  mean w i thout  those 

too ls  I  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  he re  to  ex t rac t  th is  in fo rmat ion?  

PROF LOUWREN S:    You wou ld  be  ab le  to  ex t rac t  some o f  

the  in fo rmat ion ,  no t  a l l  o f  i t  because Word  does  ac tua l l y  

d isp lay  some o f  the  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see .   So then le t  us  go  to  –  c lear ly  in  

th is  case you are  g iven the  emai ls  and you were  g i ven the  

a t tachments  to  the  emai ls .   You are  then asked to  do  or  

conduct  d ig i ta l  fo rens i c  assessment  o f  the  metadata  in  

re la t ion  to  what  you have been g iven.   Te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson  10 

what  then –  wha t  shou ld  we unders tand you to  be  do ing  

when you conduc t  a  d ig i ta l  fo rens i c  assessment  in  re la t ion  

to  the  documents  tha t  you were  g iven,  do  you know  -  

f i rs t l y,  i s  what  we unders tand  you to  be  do ing  and  

second ly,  what  i s  the  ob jec t i ve  in  your  exe rc i se?  

PROF LOUWREN S:    In  th is  case i t  was spec i f i ca l l y  to  look  

a t  who created the  document  and  a lso  who las t  mod i f ied  

the  document  bu t  a lso ,  i f  we look a t  any ana lys i s  you  

wou ld  a lso  a lways look a t  t ime,  when i t  was done,  does i t  

make sense?  For  ins tance,  was  the  document  c rea ted  20 

before  the  emai l  was sent  because i t  i s  imposs ib le  to  have  

i t  c rea ted  and i f  i t  was crea ted a f te r  as  in  one o f  the  –  or  

some o f  th is  metadata  ind ica tes ,  you cou ld  maybe  look a t  

why the  da tes  are  incons is ten t  and then you have to  know 

a  lo t  about  the  f i le  sys tem,  how i t  ac tua l l y  c rea tes  da tes ,  
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changes dates ,  i f  you  move f i les  f rom one dr ive  to  the  

o ther  and a lso  i f  you  access the  f i le ,  how i t  i s  updated.   So 

you look a t  a l l  those th ings,  anc i l la ry  th ings as  we l l .   Bu t  

what  i s  impor tan t  to  no te  here ,  these are  the  va lues  

recorded.   How they re la te  to  rea l  l i f e  i s  someth ing  

d i f fe ren t  so  in  t h is  case the  va lues  recorded fo r  the  crea tor  

was Suzanne Dan ie ls  and the  las t  mod i f ied  f ie ld  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  was the  da te  when she crea ted 

the  document  o r  you are  s t i l l  go ing  to  come to  tha t?   I t  i s  10 

f ine  i f  you  are  s t i l l  go ing  to  come to  i t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Ja ,  I  can g i ve  i t  to  you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

PROF LOUWREN S:    I  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  say  i f  she 

crea ted the  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you can say when the  document  was 

…[ in tervenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:    I  can  g i ve  you the  crea te  da te  o f  the  

document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.  20 

PROF LOUWRENS:    So  the  crea te  da te  o f  the  document  

was 2015,  the  10  March,  16 .39  and tha t  i s  a l so  then  

un iversa l  cent ra l  t ime,  so  p lus  two  hours ,  so  i t  i s  about  –  i t  

i s  18 .39 ,  South  A f r i can t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes,  cont inue,  Mr  Se leka.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So we w i l l  come to  tha t .   Le t  us  

jus t  lay  the  g roundwork  re la t i ve  to  your  invest iga t ion  o r  

fo rens ic  assessment .   P lease go back to  page 357.  

CHAIRPERSON :    357?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    357.   So your  f i rs t  task  i s  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  ment ion ,  Mr  Se leka,  fo r  what  i t  i s  

wor th ,  we –  I  was hop ing  we wou ld  f in ish  w i th in  an  hour,  I  

w i l l  be  hav ing  the  w i tness fo r  today in  due course .   I  had 

sa id  he  shou ld  be  here  a t  ha l f  past  ten ,  so  -  bu t  i t  i s  10 

impor tan t  tha t  we  cover  th is  p roper ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  thought  I  must  jus t  ment ion  tha t  

because when we  prev ious ly  spoke ,  today was vacant .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  jus t  want  you to  know tha t  we do  

not  have a  lo t  o f  t ime but  we must  do  Pro f  Louwrens ’ 

ev idence proper ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  –  okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   P ro f  Louwrens,  page 357,  jus t  to  

lay  the  groundwork .   Paragraph 10  you have a l ready s ta ted  

what  the  f i rs t  purpose is  o r  the  f i rs t  requ i rement  to  you was 

in  regard  to  the  documenta t ion  tha t  were  g i ven to  you and 

then in  paragraph  12 you a lso  say tha t  you have a l so  been 
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asked to  exp ress  an  op in ion  on  the  fo rens ic  repor t  i ssued  

by  a  company ca l led  Cyanre .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  le t  us  go  to  paragraph  13,  we 

w i l l  come to  your  op in ion  in  regard  to  tha t  op in ion  o f  

Cyanre .   Paragraph 13 says:  

“The ev idence tha t  I  examined  was fo rens ica l l y  

acqu i red  and p rocessed. ”  

When you say fo rens ica l l y,  what  do  you mean qu ick l y  on  

tha t?  10 

PROF LOUWRENS:    What  I  mean is  tha t  we have got  a  

p r inc ip le  tha t  whenever  you acqu i re  or  source  ev idence o r  

da ta  you take  ca re  no t  to  change  anyth ing .   So when i t  i s  

then acqu i red ,  tha t  med ia  or  d i sk  or  whatever  i s  wr i te -

pro tec ted  so  tha t  you cannot  change i t .   The too l s  ac tua l l y  

enab le  you to  ve r i f y  tha t  i t  has  no t  been changed ,  so  an  

exact  copy o f  the  da ta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  th is  w i l l  be  your  aga in  computer -

re la ted  too ls?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You then say:  

“ I  have exam ined the  cha in  o f  cus tody  

documenta t ion  assoc ia ted  w i th  the  ev idence and 

found i t  in tac t . ”  

The cha in  o f  cus tody documenta t ion ,  what  does tha t  mean? 
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PROF LOUWRENS:    Cha i r  i t  means tha t  whenever  we  

se i ze  da te  or  sou rce  data  or  acqu i re  da ta  we f i l l  i n  a  fo rm 

wh ich  ex t rac ts  exact ly  who is  invo l ved,  what  the  source  o f  

tha t  da ta ,  we get  the  s ignatures ,  the  t im ing ,  the  no te ,  the 

med ia ,  the  ser ia l  numbers ,  e tce tera ,  on  tha t  fo rm and then 

tha t  documenta t ion  tha t  accompan ies  the  ev idence to  the  

po in t  where  we s ign  i t  in to  our  s to rage fac i l i t y  and we can  

then ver i f y  tha t  the  da ta  o r  th is  ev idence was not  tampered 

w i th  and we know exact ly  what  every  hand-o f f  wou ld  be  

f rom one pe rson to  anothe r.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So tha t  you conf i rm in  th is  case was 

fo l lowed and i t  was found to  be  in tac t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tu rn  to  page 358.   Pa ragraph 14 you  

say:  

“The emai l  in  quest ion  was sent  f rom the  mai lbox o f  

Khoza. ”  

You have a l ready  tes t i f ied  on  tha t .  

“…on 14…”  

Let  me read the  b rackets :  20 

“Khozazw@eskom.co.za ,  the  Khoza emai l  ma i lbox  

on  14 March 2014 a t  1 .20 .36  p .m.  UTC to  

Venete@kle in inc . co .za . ”  

Paragraph 16:  

“ I  do  no t  f ind  an  emai l  rece ived v ia  the  Khoza emai l  
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ma i lbox w i th  the  sa id  documents  a t tached to  i t  on  

the  Commiss ion ’s  eDiscovery  p la t fo rm fo r  the  

purposes o f  pe r fo rm ing my assessment . ”  

Yes,  the  quest ion  is ,  g iven what  you a re  say ing  there ,  

cou ld  you see where  d id  Mr  Khoza obta in  the  documents?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    No,  no t  f rom the  ev idence tha t  I  had,  

I  cou ld  no t  see tha t .   There  are  many o ther  ways  tha t  he  

cou ld  have got ten  tha t  o ther  than  rece iv ing  i t  th rough h is  

emai l  box l i ke  fo r  ins tance anothe r  emai l  o r  a  phys ica l  USB 

dr ive .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  are  you  say ing  there  is  no t  an  

ind ica t ion  tha t  h is  emai l  to  Ms Venete  was an emai l  he  was 

fo rward ing  f rom somewhere  e lse  and then send ing  i t  to  Ms 

Venete  K le in?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  I  cou ld  no t  f ind  any.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You cou ld  no t  f ind .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  he wou ld  have been the  crea tor  o f  

tha t  emai l  and then I  touched the  le t te rs  wh ich  were  sent  

to  Ms Venete  K le in .  20 

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  wou ld  be  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  want  to  make sure  I  unders tand  

tha t .   D id  you have access to  h is  computer  and is  tha t  what  

you wou ld  need to  have access to  to  see whether  he  had  

rece ived documents  f rom somebody e lse?  
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PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  on ly  had access  to  the 

mai lbox,  the  image tha t  we co l lec ted  f rom h is  mai lbox.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWREN S:    I f  I  had access to  h is  compute r,  I  

m igh t  f ind  more  in fo rmat ion  re levant  to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Fo r  ins tance i f  he  had o the r  emai l  

addresses.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Or  i f  tha t  document  res ides –  or  10 

those documents  res ides on  h i s  compute r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Bu t  a t  th is  s tage th is  i s  a l l  I  have,  I  

cannot  say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Yes,  okay.   And about  the  crea to r  

the  documents  you say there  is  a  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  i t  cou ld  

be  –  cou ld  have been dated in  h is  computer  bu t  you do not  

know tha t  fo r  sure .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes,  fo r  the  –  the  reason is  t ha t  the  

crea tor  and the  las t  mod i f ied  metadata  can be changed.   I t  20 

is  very  easy to  change and i f  you know what  to  do ,  you can  

ac tua l l y  change tha t .   So you cannot  re ly  on  tha t  on  i t s  

own.   You have to  have cor robora t ive  in fo rmat ion  or  

ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   But  i f  i t  has  no t  been changed  
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i t  wou ld  be  g i v ing  one in fo rmat ion  about  who crea ted i t ,  i f  

we knew tha t  i t  had not  been changed.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I f  we knew i t  was not  changed.   I t  

normal ly  p icks  up  the  user  o f  t ha t  compute r.   In  o ther  

words,  i f  you  have an account  on  tha t  computer  you have  

got  a  use r  name but  user  name is  then re f lec ted  in  those  

f ie lds  and i f  i t  no t  changed i t  i s  normal ly  the  use r  name.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  user  name wi l l  be  the  name o f  

the  pe rson who  uses tha t  computer  o r  who owns the  10 

compute r.  

PROF LOUWREN S:    No,  I  wou ld  no t  go  tha t  fa r.   I t  i s  the  

user  name tha t  was ass igned to  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see .   So my computer  cou ld  have 

SLK as the  user  name as opposed to  Pu le  as  the  user  

name.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  what  you are  say ing?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  what  I  say,  you can have 

Mickey Mouse as  the  use r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You can have Mickey Mouse as  the  

user  name.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i f  your  computer  re f lec ts  tha t  –  or  i f  

a  document  re f lec ts  tha t  –  re f lec t s  your  user  name,  le t  us  
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say  your  user  name is  Bucks(?)  tha t  does not  mean,  does 

i t ,  tha t  tha t  emai l  was necessar i l y  c rea ted i n  your  

compute r,  somebody can use another  computer  and jus t  

pu t  in  tha t  use r  name.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t ,  you cou ld  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   But  i f  tha t  user  name,  wh ich  

happens to  be  your  user  name,  i s  re f lec ted  in  re la t ion  to  a  

document  tha t  i s  found in  your  compute r,  i s  tha t  no t  

su f f i c ien t  bas is  to  say unt i l  somebody comes up w i th  

ev idence tha t  somebody e lse  in te r fe red  w i th  th is  compute r,  10 

w i th  your  computer,  you must  be  the  pe rson who created  

tha t  document .   Is  tha t  no t  a  bas is  to  say th is  document  i s  

found in  Pro f  Louwrens ’ compute r,  i t  re f lec ts  tha t  as  the  

user  name,  tha t  i s  the  use r  name tha t  Pro f  Louwrens uses,  

there fo re  un t i l  somebody te l l s  me o therwise ,  I  shou ld  take  

i t  tha t  he  crea ted  i t .   I s  tha t  –  can tha t  –  i s  tha t  someth ing  

tha t  techno log ica l l y  sound or  no t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Not  f rom a  techno log ica l  po in t  o f  v iew  

but  i t  i s  a  reasonab le  assumpt ion  i f  you  look a t ,  say  fo r  

ins tance,  i f  i t  was a  co rpora te  computer  where  the  user  20 

names were  de f ined and where  the re  are  spec i f i c  ru les  and 

po l i c ies  no t  to  share  passwords and not  to  have  who le  

access to  tha t  computer  then i t  wou ld  be  reasonab le  to  

ho ld  tha t  person respons ib le  f o r  the  ac t ions on  tha t  

compute r.   So yes in  tha t  sense.    
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 Forens ica l l y,  there  i s  no th ing  tha t  I  can te l l  o ther  

than i f  those po l i c ies  were  in  p lace .   I  cannot  say  tha t  f rom 

the  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And when you re fer  to  po l i c i es ,  tha t  i s  

the  cor robora t ive  ev idence you a re  ta lk ing  about  in  your  

op in ion  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   So you look a t  what  fo rens i cs  

prov ide  us  w i th  and you look a t  su r round ing  ev idence.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And then you use the  two and based on  

tha t  you might  be  ab le  –  you might  be  jus t i f ied  to  reach a  

cer ta in  conc lus ion .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   P ro f  Louwrens,  you 

ment ioned hav ing  access to  the  mai lbox o f  Mr  Khoza but  

you d id  no t  have access to  the  compute r.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Maybe you  need to  exp la in  to  the 20 

Cha i rperson how does tha t  work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  d i f fe rence i t  makes to  have 

access to  the  mai lbox and not  the  compute r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cha i r,  i t  makes a  huge d i f fe rence.   
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What  we got  was,  eve ry  b ig  company,  corpo ra te  

env i ronment ,  has  go  i t s  own mai l  management  sys tems,  

mai l  servers  and so  on .   So what  we have got  i s  a  copy o f  

the  mai lbox on  the  serve r,  no t  a  mai lbox on  h is  persona l  

compute r.   So I  on ly  had access to  the  mai l - re la ted  

ev idence and not  to  any o ther  sys tem-re la ted  ev idence tha t  

m ight  be  on  the  compute r.   Now on  the  computer  we  wou ld  

f ind  logs,  we wou ld  f ind  the  mas ter  f i l e  tab le .   I t  wou ld  

prov ide  us  w i th  a  l i s t  o f  documents  on  tha t  compute r,  

events ,  e tce tera ,  tha t  we can cor robora te .     10 

 We cou ld  a lso  look a t  the  spec i f i c  se tup  o f  the  

users ,  the  access r igh ts  o f  those  use rs ,  what  they cou ld  

and cou ld  no t  do .   So tha t  wou ld  make a  huge d i f fe rence in  

eva lua t ing  –  i f  any  tampered  w i th  a  document  o r  i f  

somebody c rea ted a  document .  

 We cou ld  a lso  look a t  the  templa tes  fo r  tha t  

document  i f  tha t  res ides on  tha t  compute r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  h is  mai lbox,  Mr  Khoza ’s 

mai lbox,  were  you ab le  to  access i t  f rom the  Eskom 20 

server?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    No,  i t  was ac tua l l y  se i zed  by  our  

invest iga to rs  and then subsequent ly  loaded on to  ou r  

Re la t i v i t y  da tabase o r  eDiscovery  p la t fo rm and I  cou ld  

access i t  f rom there .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    So  i t  was se ized f rom where?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    F rom Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    From Eskom? 

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  what  you are  dea l ing  w i th  

…[ in tervenes]  

PROF LOUWRENS:    In  the  cha in  o f  cus tody 

documenta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Say aga in?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    In  the  cha in  o f  cus tody 10 

documenta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  the  cha in  o f  cus tody documents .   

Page 360,  you may tu rn  there  qu ick ly,  360 f rom paragraph  

21 to  25 ,  i s  tha t  what  you are  dea l ing  w i th  there  about  

ob ta in ing  th is  –  Mr  Khoza ’s  mai lbox f rom Eskom u l t imate ly  

to  the  Commiss ion?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  in  paragraph 21:  

“ I  have loca ted an a l te rna t ive  source  o f  the  four  MS 

Word documents  in  the  emai l  ma i lbox o f  Khoza 20 

emai l  ma i lbox on  the  Commiss ion ’s  eDiscovery  

p la t fo rm,  Re la t i v i t y. ”  

So you ca l l  i t  an  a l te rna t ive  source .   Exp la in  to  the  

Cha i rperson?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cha i r,  the  p r imary  source  was 
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documents  tha t  we rece ived re la t ing  to  the  submiss ion  o f  

those fou r  documents  to  the  Commiss ion  and a l so  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  tha t  means  the  ac tua l  document  as  

prov ided by  Mr  Khoza?  

PROF LOUWREN S:    No.   Wel l ,  I  d id  no t  ge t  those  ac tua l  

documents .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I  go t  photocop ies  o f  the  documents .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  Eskom work  s t ream prov ided  10 

you w i th  those documents .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    E lec t ron ic  copy,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you a re  say ing  tha t  i s  the  pr imary  

source .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then the  a l te rna t ive  source  is  what  

you are  re fer r i ng  to  here?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you wen t  -  in  your  exerc ise ,  you 

went  –  you d id  no t  jus t  re lay  on  the  documents  g iven to  20 

you,  you took a  s tep  fu r the r.  

PROF LOUWREN S:    Yes I  d id  because in  te rms  o f  the 

e lec t ron i c  ana lys is  I  needed e lec t ron ic  cop ies  o f  those  

documents .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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PROF LOUWRENS:    And as  I  sa id  prev ious ly  Cyanre ,  the  

o ther  company,  p rov ided us  w i th  the  MD5 hashes fo r  those 

documents  so  I  cou ld  f ind  the  exact  documents ,  so  I  knew I  

was work ing  w i th  the  same documents .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So tha t  i s  r igh t .   Then 

paragraph 23 exp la ins  fu r ther :  

“The Khoza emai l  ma i lbox was subsequent ly  

fo rens ica l l y  ex t rac ted  and loaded onto  the  Re la t i v i t y  

eDiscovery  p la t fo rm. ”  

And you re fer  to  annexure  CL8.  10 

“…for  the  Re la t i v i t y  conta iner  pa th  and un ique  

ev idence number  recorded on Re la t i v i t y  as…” 

And you g i ve  the  who le  number  the re .  

“A copy o f  the  cha in  o f  cus tody document  fo r  th is  

un ique ev idence number  as  we l l  as  i t s  en t ry  in  the  

DFT d ig i ta l  ev idence reg is te r  i s  conta ined in  

annexure  CL9 here to  and re f lec t  the  fo l low ing:  

The ev idence was co l la ted  on  22 February  2019 a t  

14 .04  a .m.  f rom one Nondumiso Ub i…”  

I  have seen f rom the  conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  tha t  the  spe l l ing  20 

shou ld  be  cor rec ted .   Z ib i ,  Cha i rpe rson,  Z- i -b - i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Ch ie f  In fo rmat ion  Off i cer  and a lso  

she says she was  the  Act ing  Ch ie f  In fo rmat ion  Off i cer.   You  

saw tha t ,  P ro f  Louwrens?  
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“ . . .a t  the  Eskom head o f f i ce  by  another  DFT. . ”  

That  i s  d ig i ta l  fo rens ic  team member.  

“…Mr Tshepo Maleku.   The ev idence was e lec ted  on  

a  1  te rabyte  Western  D ig i ta l  hard  dr i ve  w i th  the  

ser ia l  number…”  

Which  you g i ve  there .  

“…see the  second page o f  annexure  CL9.   The 

ev idence was s igned in to  the  DFT Commiss ion ’s  

d ig i ta l  ev idence reg is te r  as  number  104. ”  

And you re fer  to  the  annexure .  10 

“From the  above the  COC…” 

What  does COC s tands fo r?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cha in  o f  cus tody document .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha in  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  does i t  mean?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cha in  o f  cus tody.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  re fe rs  to  the  process under taken  

to  ob ta in  the  in fo rmat ion  fo rens ica l l y,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     

“So f rom the  above,  the  COC or  cha in  o f  cus tody  

seems to  be  in tac t  and the  ev idence can be re l ied  

upon. ”  

And you a t tach  the  conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t s .   Okay.   So you 
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a re  conf ident  tha t  the  Commiss ion  can re ly  on  th is  

in fo rmat ion .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I  am conf ident  tha t  the  cha in  o f  

cus tody is  in tac t  and tha t  the  ev idence is  what  i t  purpor ts  

to  be .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  what  i t  purpor t s  to  be .   Thank you.   

So then in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  maybe you …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  remember,  Mr  Se leka,  you have got  

to  do  i t  p roper ly  so  the  in te res ts  o f  t ime must  no t  

compromise  the  …[ in tervenes]  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   P ro f  Louwrens,  le t  

us  go  to  page 358.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Paragraph 16 you  

say:  

“My examinat ion  o f  the  metadata  o f  the  four  MS 

word  documents  a t tached to  the  emai l  in  quest ion  

revea l  tha t  a l l  four  o f  the  MS Word documents  were  

crea ted f rom the  custom o f f i ce  templa tes  fo lde r  

us ing  the  le t te rhead templa te  GEN2015.EOTX 20 

templa te  on  a  computer  w i th  a  user  name 

Dan ie lsM. ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  where  are  you now,  Mr  

Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 358,  pa ragraph 16,  Cha i r.   Sor ry,  
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Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a lso  jus t  remember  to  le t  h im g ive  

the  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P ro f  Louwrens  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  a t  some s tage we were  on  the  

metadata  re la t ing  to  the  f i rs t  document .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  thought  tha t  m ight  be  qu icke r  i f  he  says 

th is  i s  what  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  has been revea led ,  th is  i s  

what  i t  means.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    About  the  f i rs t  document ,  tha t  p re -

suspens ion  le t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe wou ld  i t  no t  be  eas ie r  tha t  way?  

Pro f  Louwrens,  because as  I  unders tand i t ,  you  looked a t  20 

tha t  f i rs t  document ,  p re-suspens ion  and tha t  document  tha t  

comes a f te r  tha t  i s  the  one tha t  te l l s  you what  you f ind .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  i f  we dea l  w i th  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   You w i l l  te l l  us  what  you found and then 

we take i t  f rom there .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  le t  us  do  i t  tha t  way,  then we can 

do tha t  w i th  each  one o f  the  le t te rs .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   P ro f  Louwrens d id  no t ,  ja  because I  

thought  tha t  paragraph 16 was a lso  impor tan t  bu t  you w i l l  

add ress is  in  due  course .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You can do parag raph 16.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  jus t  exp la in  tha t .   What  you are  

say ing  there  in  paragraph 16 to  the  Cha i rperson,  jus t  

be fore  we go on to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  impor tan t  the 

templa te  tha t  was used,  i t  i s  l i ke  a  fo rmat  fo r  tha t  t ype o f  

document ,  was s to red in  a  computer  wh ich  the  username is  

Dan ie ls  M.   So tha t  i s  the  c losest  connect ion  I  can make to  

a  computer  and a  use r.  

 Obv ious l y  I  cou ld  no t  say  i f  the  user  Dan ie ls  M i s  

Susanne Dan ie ls .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   So a l l  you  can say is  your  

assessment  o r  invest iga t ion  o f  the  document  revea led  th is  

name as the  use r.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   On the  face  o f  i t ,  and you must  jus t  te l l  
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me i f  I  am put t ing  words in to  your  mouth .   On the  face  o f  i t ,  

i t  means un less  there  is  ev idence to  the  cont ra ry,  i t  one 

can read i t  to  mean i t  i s  Dan ie ls  who created i t ,  w i thout  

say ing  i t  i s  Susanne Dan ie ls  who have,  o r  you say whoever  

c rea ted i t ,  used th is  user  name,  o r  i s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

PROF LOUWREN S:   Jus t  to  be  co r rec t ,  tha t  th is  templa te  

tha t  was used . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Came f rom a  compute r  w i th  tha t  

name,  does not  mean the re  i s  no  connect ion  be tween the  10 

crea tor  and the  templa te  username.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The templa te  used . . . [ in te rvenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   To  c rea te  the  document ,  had tha t  

username.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  as  fa r  as  you can go.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  as  fa r  as  I  can go.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   So  i f  I  can  exp la in  i t  to  you,  i f  I  send  20 

you a  templa te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  templa te  wou ld  re f lec t  o r  the  

META data  wou ld  re f lec t  tha t  tha t  templa te  came f rom me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  
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PROF LOUWRENS:   I f  you  then use tha t  templa te  t o  ed i t  a  

document  o r  c rea te  another  document .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  wou ld  re f lec t  you r  name.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .   R igh t .   I f  

you  have sent  me a  templa te  re f lec t ing  your  name and I  

a l te r  i t  be fore  I  send i t  to  somebody e lse  no t  to  re f lec t  you r  

name but  to  re f lec t  Mr  Se leka ’s  name.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   On ly  on  the  crea tor  da ta  o r  the  las t  

mod i f ied  da ta .   The o ther  da te ,  the  templa te  fo lder  name is  10 

imbedded so  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot  change tha t .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   You cannot  change,  we l l  I  cannot  say  

you can never  change tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  bu t  genera l l y  speak ing .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Genera l l y  speak ing  you  cannot  

change tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  so  i f  you  have sent  me a  document  

us ing  your  templa te  re f lec t ing  your  name,  genera l l y  

speak ing  i f  I  fo rward  th is  to  somebody e lse ,  i t  wou ld  s t i l l  20 

show tha t  i t  came f rom a  templa te  w i th  your  use rname.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   Okay,  so  there fo re  i s  i t  

cor rec t  and you must  jus t  te l l  me where ,  when I  am ask ing  

you someth ing  tha t  fa l l s  ou ts ide  o f  your  exper t i se ,  
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there fo re  what  you cannot  say  i s  tha t  i t  was Pro fessor  

Louwrens who created the  document .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  you cannot  say.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  I  cannot  say.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  what  you can say is  tha t  the  templa te  

on  wh ich  i t  was c rea ted,  i f  tha t  i s  techno log ica l l y  co r rec t  to  

pu t   i t  l i ke  tha t ,  the  templa te  on  wh ich  i t  was crea ted had 

Pro fessor,  had th is  pa r t i cu la r  username.    

PROF LOUWRENS:   Ja ,  had a  par t i cu la r  username.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  and then i t  i s  up  to  somebody e lse  

to  de termine who  used,  whose username was tha t .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  someth ing  e lse .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  he lp fu l ,  ja .   

Okay,  Mr  Se leka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   The,  i s  the  templa te  

or  d id  the  templa te  in  th is  case Pro f  Louwrens,  remain  the  

same?   20 

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  i s  imposs ib le  fo r  me to  say.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  can  on ly  say  tha t  i f  you  prepare  i t  as 

to  o ther  documents  tha t  looks the  same,  no t  does not  have  

necessar i l y  the  same templa te  name,  then there  is  a  smal l  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 64 of 371 
 

d i f fe rence in  l i ke  the  address b lock  be low where  the  names 

o f  the  d i rec tors  were  re f lec ted ,  tha t  was absent  f rom the  

documents  tha t  I  looked a t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   What  was absent?  

PROF LOUWREN S:   The address b lock ,  i f  you  look  a t  the  

d i rec tors  be low,  a t  the  foo ter  o f  the  document .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   There  is  normal ly  a  l i s t  o f  d i rec tors  

and in  the  documents  tha t  I  examined,  those were  absent .   

That  i s  a l l  tha t  I  cou ld  maybe p ick  up .   I  cou ld  no t  te l l  i f  10 

tha t  was par t  o f  the  or ig ina l  document  o r  no t ,  templa te  or  

no t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cou ld  we qu ick ly  go  to  Eskom Bund le  

12  Cha i rpe rson,  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   To  exhaust  th is  po in t .   Page 50.   P ro f  

Louwrens,   I  want  to  show you someth ing  and you can 

exp la in  th is  to  the  Cha i rperson.   On Eskom Bund le  12 ,  

page 50.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Cont inue.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  the re  i s  a  document  there  P ro f  

Louwrens,  wh ich  appears  to  be  a  templa te  as  the  da te  

enqu i r ies  te l l .   I t  says  dear,  i t  i s  on  Eskom logo.   I t  says :  

 “ In ten t ion  to  suspend,  pend ing  an invest iga t ion  
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in to  a l legat ions o f  m isconduct . ”  

 And the  de ta i l s  a re  there :  

 “Eskom has rece ived in fo rmat ion  in  te rms o f  

wh ich  i t  i s  a l leged tha t  you commi t ted  var ious 

ac ts  on  misconducts .   The a l legat ions re la te  to  

the  fo l low ing. ”  

 A space is  le f t  open there  to  f i l l  i n :  

 “ In  the  l igh t  o f  the  ser ious na ture  o f  the 

a l legat ions o f  m isconduct  aga ins t  you,  I  

be l ieve  tha t  you r  p resence in  the  work  p lace 10 

w i l l  have a  negat ive  impact  on  the  organ isa t ion  

and your  cont rac tua l  du t ies .   I  have there fo re  

taken the  pre l im inary  dec i s ion  to  suspend you 

f rom work ,  w i th  fu l l  pay  pend ing  the  ou tcome 

o f  the  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing .   My  pre l im ina ry  

dec is ion  to  suspend you is  in fo rmed by  the  

fo l low ing. ”  

 Then a  space is  le f t  open to  comple te  as  we l l .   Th is  

appears  to  be  a  templa te ,  i t  goes on to  page 51 w i th  

in fo rmat ion  to  be  f i l l ed  where  the re  are  open spaces.   Now 20 

cou ld  you exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson what  were  you  ta lk ing  

about  in  regard  to  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  no t ,  o r  tha t  has  

been exc luded f rom the  pre-suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  we are  

ta lk ing  about .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Cha i r,  i f  we re fer  to  page 373 
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   O f  Eskom Bund le  19 .    

PROF LOUWRENS:   You wou ld  see tha t  there  is  an  image  

o f  the  pre-suspens ion ,  DM.docx and a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  

page,  the  bo t tom le f t  there  is  a  b lack  l ine ,  a  ver t i ca l  l i ne  

and r i gh t  next  to  i t ,  i t  i s  open space,  no th ing  there .   I f  you  

look a t  the  Eskom f i le  page 50,  the  document  handed to  

you now.  

 A t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  page . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  we are  now compar ing  the  10 

document  w i th  Eskom Bund le  19  page 373,  and the  

document  a t  Eskom Bund le  12 ,  page 50.    

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   You wou ld  see a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  

page 50 document ,  there  is  a  human resources d iv is ion  

and address,  e tce tera  and i f  you re fer  to  the  o ther  one tha t  

i s  absent  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  the  on ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   D i f fe rence.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   D i f fe rence tha t  I  can see f rom the  

templa tes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  guess tha t  i s  one  se t  o f  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  no t  there ,  bu t  o f  cou rse  the  i n fo rmat ion ,  
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the  contents  o f  the  two documents  the  way i t  i s  s t ruc tured  

does not  seem to  be  the  same.   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  the 

substance is  the  same.   

 Mr  Se leka,  I  do  no t  know i f  you have had a  chance  

to  compare  them in  te rms o f  substance.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  par t i cu la r ly  the  

r igh ts  o f  the  Employee to  be  lega l l y  represented,  to  make  

rep resenta t ions,  to  jus t  we l l  the  word ing  seems to  be  the  

same.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  the  head ing  on the  one a t  page 50 10 

is  in ten t ion  to  suspend an invest iga t ion  in to  a l lega t ions o f  

m isconduct .   The  one a t  page 373 the  head ing  i s  ind ica t ion  

to  a  pre-suspens ion  meet ing .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   A l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Cha i rperson,  you w i l l  see  what  

comes before  th is  par t i cu la r  document  i s  an  exchange 

between ce r ta in  Eskom of f i c ia ls  and the  a t to rneys 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   The document  a t  page 50.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The document  a t  page 50 is  a  

cor respondence o f  emai ls ,  s ta r t ing  on  page 43 in  Eskom 

Bund le  12 ,  where  ins t ruc t ions a re  be ing  g i ven to  Bowman 
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G i l f i l l an  and they  have requested to  be  prov ided w i th  the 

suspens ion  po l i c i es  and the  suspens ion  process.    

 Th is  i s  what  they were  p rov ided  w i th .   Amongst  

o thers  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   And what  da te  i s  tha t?   I t  i s  16  March.   I  

see  a t  page 43 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Emai l  da ted  16 March.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  suspens ion  process.   From Mr  

Neo Tso lanko to  Jer ry  Kapo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see  tha t  there  is  an  emai l  a t  page 44 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  Bund le  12 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   From LC Phu le  t o  Ph i l l i p  Mashego dated 

11 March 2015 a t  09H27 wh ich  says:  

 “P lease urgent ly  compi le  the  s tep  by  s tep  20 

process to  fo l low when suspend ing  an  

[ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   And when you tu rn  the  page to  45  you 
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see suspens ion  p rocess.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And they g i ve  the  process there .   Then  

on page 47 is  what  appears  to  be  a  templa te  o f  an  

in ten t ion  to  e f fec t  the  suspens ion  pend ing  an invest i ga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then you have  on page 48 a  no t ice  o f  

suspens ion  wh ich  is  a lso  on  the  face  o f  i t  appears  to  be  a  

templa te .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And las t l y  i s  tha t  a lso  what  appears  to  

be  a  templa te  on  page 50 wh ich  is  an  in ten t ion  to  suspend.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  these were  exchanged w i th in  Eskom 

and then u l t imate ly  w i th  the  a t to rneys Bowman Gi l f i l l an .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   P ro f  Louwrens,  le t  us  dea l  then w i th  the  

META data .   When you d id ,  when you per fo rmed the  

fo rens ic  assessment  o f  the  META data ,  and you can take  

the  Cha i rperson  to  wh ichever  re levant  page you w ish ,  20 

par t i cu la r l y  in  respect  o f  the  f i rs t  le t te r  and exp la in  your  

f ind ings in  respec t  o f  your  fo rens i c  invest iga t ion .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Thank you.   Cha i r,  i f  we tu rn  to  page  

375.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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PROF LOUWRENS:   The suspens ion  DM.docx and I  wou ld  

no t  go  th rough a l l  o f  the  META data  because a l l  o f  them 

are  no t  re levant  to  th is  case.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   So  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  what  i s  re levant  in  

my op in ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay and the  document  a t  373 to  

wh ich  the  META data  re la tes  i s  a  le t te r  addressed  to Dan  

Marokane,  Group  Execut ive ,  Group Cap i ta l .   Ja ,  okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .   So I  have dea l t  10 

w i th  the  MD5 as prev ious ly,  so  tha t  i s  jus t  to  ver i f y  tha t  I  

have been work ing  w i th  the  cor rec t  document  and i t  was 

not  changed by  anybody.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And when you say i t  i s  the  same 

document ,  tha t  i s  now the  same document  tha t  came f rom 

the  mai l  box o f  Xhosa dot  whatever.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  and a lso  the  same document  tha t  

D ihandre ,  the  o ther  fo rens i cs  company eva lua ted.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   R igh t .   We have dea l t  w i th  the  

templa te  and you  can see tha t  the  pa th  there ,  the  templa te 

pa th  i s  users  and  the  username in  th is  ins tance is  Dan ie ls  

M /  documents .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  te l l  me where  about  in  the ,  on  the  

page tha t  i s?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where  i t  says  templa tes?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Templa te  ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   A l r igh t .   

PROF LOUWREN S:   Okay.   Then i t  i s  /  users  and a f te r  tha t  

normal ly  the  username is  l i s ted ,  the  use r  tha t  i s  reg is te red 

on the  compute r.   In  th is  case the  name there  is  Dan ie ls  M 

/  documents  /  cus tom o f f i ce  templa tes  /  le t te rhead templa te  10 

Jan 2015.x .    

 Now the  .ex  i s  d i f fe ren t  than the  docx.   . x  means i t  

i s  a  templa te .   So you can use  i t  to  c rea te  your  own  

documents  bu t  us ing  tha t  templa te  as  a  f ramework .   What  

i s  a lso  impor tan t  here ,  i f  you  go down to  app l i ca t ion ,  i t  i s  

about  one,  two,  th ree ,  four  down.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  can see tha t .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   The app l i ca t ion  is  Microsof t  

Mack in tosh Word .   That  i s  impor tan t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  does app l i ca t ion  mean? 20 

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  means  tha t  the  so f tware  tha t  

c rea ted tha t  document ,  was Microsof t  Mack in tosh  Word .   

The Word  App le  compute r.   I t  runs on  an App le  compute r.   

Mack in tosh is  App le  compute r.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  you w i l l  have to  jus t  speak up a  
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l i t t l e  b i t  more  so  tha t  we hear  th i s  ve ry  impor tan t  par t  o f  

your  ev idence and i t  can be recorded proper ly.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   So  i t  means i t  was crea ted on an  

App le  compute r  o r  Mack in tosh computer  and the  

app l i ca t ion  or  the  so f tware  tha t  i s  runn ing  and crea ted tha t  

document ,  was Microsof t  Mack in tosh Word .   Why th is  i s  

impor tan t  i s  I  have looked a t  Ms Dan ie ls ’s  emai l  box and  

documents  tha t  I  found in  her  emai l  box and tha t  was  

crea ted by  Microsof t  Word  and not  Mack in tosh Word .   

 Okay,  so  the re  is  a  d i f fe rence.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  tha t  i s  the  d i f fe rence.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  i t  i s  cons is ten t  w i th  the  username.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes,  bu t  what  i t  means is  tha t  the 

documents  I  found on Ms Dan ie l s ’s  mai l  box .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Was not  c rea ted on the  same 

compute r  as  th i s .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So her  ones are  no t  Microsof t  

Mack in tosh.  20 

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And her  ones are  what?   Her  one is  

what?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Microsof t  Word  fo r  Windows.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  no t  Microsof t  Mack in tosh Word .   
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PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you say f rom tha t  the  conc lus ion  is  

what?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Wel l ,  I  can  re fer  tha t  i t  was not  

c rea ted on the  same compute r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   On the  same compute r.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   A l r igh t ,  yes  cont inue .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sor ry  Cha i r.   P ro f  Louwrens,  jus t  by  

way o f  i l l us t ra t ion .   Of  the  two d i f fe ren t  computer  p roducts .   10 

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  have an App le  computer  on  my r igh t  

and here  on  my  le f t  i s  a  Be l l  compute r.   Th is  one uses  

Microsof t  Word .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Cor rec t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  App le  compute r  uses?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Mack in tosh Word .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mack in tosh Word .   So what  you are  

say ing  to  the  Cha i rperson is  the  crea t ion  o f  the  document  

in  te rms o f  the  META data  or  jus t  be fore  tha t .   The 20 

so f tware  in  the  two are  d i f fe ren t .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Used by  two d i f fe ren t  compan ies .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And tha t  i s  why  you are  ab le  to  see tha t  
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Mack in tosh Word  you can ascr ibe  i t  to  an  App le  computer  

as  supposed to  a  normal  computer  tha t  uses the  Word  

so f tware .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  what  you are  say ing  to  the 

Cha i rperson is  accord ing  to  th is  META date  the  app l i ca t ion  

Microsof t  Mack in tosh Word ,  wh ich  shows tha t  the  le t te r  

wou ld  have been created by  an  App le  compute r.   That  

wou ld  have been a  d i f fe ren t  p roduc t  a l togethe r.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And what  you f ind  in ,  the  documents  

tha t  you f ind  in  Ms Dan ie l s ’s  compute r,  a re  f rom MS Word 

and not  an  App le  compute r.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You cou ld  no t  f ind  any documents ,  i s  

tha t  what  you a re  say ing  to  the  Cha i rperson in  her,  i s  i t  her  

compute r  o r  her  mai l  box?   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Her  mai l  box .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You cou ld  no t  f ind  any document  tha t  i s  

c rea ted on an App le  computer?  20 

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  cou ld  no t  say  tha t .   I  d id  no t  do  an  in  

exhaust ive  search  on tha t ,  I  on ly  looked fo r  s im i la r  

documents .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Now i f  I  have two or  more  computers ,  
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they  cou ld  obv ious ly  be  d i f fe ren t .   One cou ld  be  Mic rosof t ,  

Mack in tosh Word ,  another  one another  Word .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You wou ld  have to  examine mai l  boxes in  

a l l  o f  them to  exc lude me comple te ly  f rom or  to  exc lude the  

poss ib i l i t y  tha t  the  document  was crea ted in  one o f  them.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes,  I  wou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   You wou ld  have to  examine  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:   I  wou ld  have to  examine both ,  ja .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The mai l  boxes  in  a l l  o f  them.   Okay,  

a l r igh t .   R igh t ,  so  what  you are  ab le  to  see is  i f  you  have 

examined a  mai l  box i n  re la t ion  to  a  par t i cu la r  compute r,  

you are  ab le  to  say i f  there  i s  no  re la t ion  be tween  the  

words,  then i t  was not  c rea ted in  the  par t i cu la r  compute r.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  thank you.   P ro f  Louwrens,  you 

may car ry  on  in  your  exp lanat ion  o f  the  META data .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   The next  po in t  there  o f  in te res t  i s  tha t  20 

i t  says :  

 “Ti t les  o f  pa r ts . ”  

 Bas i ca l l y  the  head ing  wh ich  is  the  bus iness un i t  o r  

d iv is ion ,  tha t  i s  the  bo t tom par t  o f  tha t  document .   Jus t  the  

t i t le  o f  tha t  p lace  ho lder  and the  company tha t  th is  
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compute r  i s  be ing  reg is te red to ,  i s  Eskom.    

 Okay.   Then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  does tha t  mean?  That  the  company  

tha t  i s  reg is te red  is  Eskom.   I s  tha t  the  company  tha t  i s  

reg i s te red as  the  owner  o f  the  Microsof t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:    O f  the  so f tware ,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  the  so f tware .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  and I  take  i t  tha t  f rom tha t  you can  

sa fe l y  in fe r  o r  conc lude and you must  jus t  te l l  me i f  tha t  i s  10 

no t  jus t i f iab le .   Conc lude tha t  an  Eskom computer  was  

used or  Eskom so f tware  was used whethe r  i t  was an  Eskom 

person or  somebody f rom outs ide ,  bu t  i t  was Eskom or  can  

you not  say  tha t  in  te rms o f  techno logy?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  depends how the  so f tware  was  

reg i s te red,  bu t  when you reg is te r  you r  opera t ing  sys tem,  

the  company as  en t i t y  and as  par t  o f  the  l i cens ing  

agreement .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   So  i t  i s  reasonab le  to  assume tha t  i t  20 

was pa r t  o f  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  is  i t  reasonab le  to  in fe r  tha t  the 

document  was c rea ted us ing  an  Eskom compute r,  o r  tha t  i s  

go ing  too  fa r?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  i s  go ing  too  fa r,  because th is  
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re la tes  most ly  to  the  templa te  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

PROF LOUWREN S:   And the  so f tware  and so  on ,  bu t  the  

ja .   I  th ink  we cou ld  in fe r  tha t  i t  de f in i te ly  leans towards 

Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   Otherwise  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Because wha t  a re  the  chances tha t  

somebody . . . [ in tervenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:   You have  to  reg is te r  your  own  10 

compute r  i f  you  a re  no t  pa r t  o f  Eskom as Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So we can  say an  Eskom computer  

was used to  c rea te  i t ,  in  a l l  p robab i l i t y.   I s  tha t  fa i r  to  say?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  fa i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   P ro f  Louwrens,  I  see there  is  a  

l i t t le  b i t  o f  hes i ta t ion  there .   Le t  me ask the  quest ion  th is  

way.   You have sa id  the  templa te  I  mean the  document  

used here  as  a  templa te .   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   They wou ld  have used a  templa te  to  

c rea te  a  le t te r.   Then tha t  templa te  i s  o r  i s  i t  no t  in  an 

app l i ca t ion  tha t  i s  owned by  Eskom.   The computer  

app l i ca t ion  owned by  Eskom,  or  I  cannot  make tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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PROF LOUWRENS:   No,  you cannot  make tha t  d is t inc t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   What  normal ly  happens is  tha t  a  

company wou ld  c rea te  templa tes  fo r  use  by  i t s  s ta f f .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   And those templa tes  wou ld  then be  

s to red on the  ind i v idua l  computers .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   Fo r  use and you cou ld  then ed i t  those 

templa tes  fo r  you r  use.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

PROF LOUWRENS:   So i t  i s  no t  to  say tha t  the  person tha t  

ed i ted  the  document  was par t  o f  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see ,  okay.   I  see  what  you are  say ing .   

So are  you say ing  then,  w i th  my compute r  wh ich  i s  no t  a  

MacBook,  i t  i s  no t  an  App le  computer,  I  cou ld  have s tored 

these templa tes  and sent  i t  to  my jun io r  who has  a  Mac  

lap top  and she cou ld  then have used the  templa te  to  c rea te  

a  le t te r  and tha t  i s  why the  app l i ca t ion  wou ld  then  re f lec t  

her  compute r  app l i ca t ion  and not  m ine.   20 

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  tha t  what  happened,  what  you  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Cont inue.   
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PROF LOUWRENS:   R igh t ,  then the  f ie ld  tha t  i s  very  

impor tan t  here  is  the  crea tor  f ie ld ,  and the  va lue  in  tha t  

f ie ld  was Susanne Dan ie ls .   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  where  about  a re  you  on the  

document?    

PROF LOUWRENS:    Page 375,  the  tab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Near  the  bo t tom,  the  crea to r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The crea to r,  yes  okay.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   So tha t  was what  was reco rded as  10 

the  crea to r,  as  I  sa id  prev ious ly  i t  cou ld  have been  p icked  

up by  the  sys tem f rom the  use r,  bu t  tha t ’s  because  I  then 

ed i t ,  very  easy  to  ed i t ,  I  can  change th is  c rea tor  to  

whoever  I  want .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.    So you say tha t  par t ,  one 

cannot  re ly  a  lo t  on  i t ,  on  i t s  own.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   On i t s  own you cannot  re l y  on  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you can re l y  on  i t  together  w i th  o ther  

in fo rmat ion?  

PROF LOUWRENS :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i f  the  –  what  i f  the  –  we l l  w i th  the  

in fo rmat ion  abou t  app l i ca t ion  f rom tha t  in fo rmat ion  you 

sa id  we can say  tha t  p robab ly  the  templa te  or  the  le t te r  

tha t  was crea ted  was crea ted on  an Eskom computer,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  
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PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  then we  can say we l l  there  i s  

somebody o r  there  was somebody  ca l led  Suzanne Dan ie l s  

a t  Eskom at  the  t ime,  bu t  you a re  say ing  tha t  on  i t s  own is  

no t  te r r ib l y  he lp fu l  because somebody who is  no t  Suzanne 

Dan ie ls  i f  they  want  to  fa lse ly  imp l ica te  Suzanne Dan ie ls  

can eas i l y  tamper  w i th  the  sys tem to  make su re  tha t  i t  

re f lec t s  her  as  the  crea to r,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  somebody who 10 

does tha t  wou ld  obv ious l y  be  seek ing  to  imp l ica te  

somebody,  i f  I  c rea te  –  i f  I  in te r fe re  w i th  the  sys tem so as  

to  make sure  tha t  the  crea to r  o f  the  document  i s  Pro fessor  

Louwrens in  c i r cumstances where  i t  i s  no t ,  and I  know i t ,  I  

wou ld  be  seek ing  to  fa lse l y  imp l ica te  Pro fessor  Louwrens  

in  be ing  the  crea tor  o f  the  document ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes I  d id  rea l l y,  i f  you  do not  

unders tand how easy i t  i s  to  change tha t  f ie ld  you wou ld  be  

led  to  be l ieve  tha t  tha t  person crea ted the  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cou ld  i t  be  changed neg l igen t ly?  20 

PROF LOUWRENS:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have got  to  in ten t iona l l y  change i t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   You have go t  to  in ten t iona l l y  change  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and when  i f  you –  i f  I  change i t  I  
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have to  know wha t  i t  was before  I  changed i t ,  i sn ’ t  i t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    No,  no t  necessar i l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  m igh t  no t  know? 

PROF LOUWREN S:   I t  i s  d isp layed so  you wou ld  know in  

any case what  i t  was and then spec i f i ca l l y  on  th i s  f ie ld  

what  you wou ld  do  is  you wou ld  then add another  c rea to r,  

t ype i n  your  own name o r  somebody e lse ’s  name and then 

you wou ld  remove the  or ig ina l  name.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  but  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  i f  we go to  the  

t rue  crea tor,  the  one crea tor  o f  the  document ,  when he o r  10 

she crea tes  i t ,  i t  i s  re f lec ted  tha t  th is  i s  the  person who  

created i t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  somebody e lse  –  i f  i t  i s  sent ,  the 

document  i s  sen t  to  somebody o r  somebody e lse  comes  

and uses th is  same computer  they can change i t ,  bu t  when 

they change i t  they  know who the  crea tor  was immedia te l y  

what  i s  re f lec ted  as  immedia te l y  be fore  they change i t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  no  way  they wou ld  no t  know.  20 

PROF LOUWREN S:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  because you have to  

rep lace tha t  name or  tha t  va lue ,  you cannot  jus t  de le te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:   So you can ’ t  neg l igent ly  jus t  do  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you have go t  to  have the  in ten t ion  to  
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change i t .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   You have to  add another  one,  then 

remove the  prev ious one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  wh ich  there fo re  means tha t  I  can 

on ly  change the  or ig ina l  c rea to r  to  e f fec t i ve ly  d is to r t  the  

pos i t ion ,  o therw ise  I  have no reason to  change i t?    I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Ja,  I  wou ld  suppose tha t  i s  the  

in fe rence one can draw there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  because why change who 10 

crea ted i t?    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P ro f  Louwrens so  we have the  

templa te  and then we have the  crea t ion  o f  the  le t te rs  

themse lves.   Cou ld  i t  be  tha t  the  templa te  wou ld  show fo r  

ins tance in  th is  case Ms Dan ie ls  as  the  crea to r,  no t  o f  the 

le t te r  bu t  o f  the  templa te?  

PROF LOUWREN S:    I f  we have the  templa te ,  i f  we have 

tha t  computer  and we cou ld  access tha t  templa te  then we  

cou ld  see what  the  c rea tor  was,  so  ja ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  

bas ica l l y  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  we can say.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay so  you w i l l  need access to  the  

templa te  on  the  compute r  wh ich  has the  templa te  in  o rder  

to  de termine who  the  au thor  o f  the  templa te  i s .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  th is  case th is  au tho r  i s  the  au tho r  
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no t  o f  the  templa te ,  bu t  o f  the  le t ter  i t se l f .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  crea tor  tha t  we are  ta lk ing  

about ,  i t  i s  the  crea tor  o f  the  le t te r.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Creator  o f  the  le t te r  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  necessar i l y  o f  the  templa te .   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Anyth ing  e lse  on  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes,  the  next  jus t  be low the  crea to r  

on  the  same tab le ,  las t  mod i f ied  by  the  va lue  there  is  

Sa l im Essa.   So aga in  the  las t  mod i f ied  in fo rmat ion  is  a lso 10 

easy to  change but  you cannot  do  tha t  d i rec t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  tha t  p lease.   I t  i s  easy to  

change but?  

PROF LOUWREN S:   You cannot  do  i t  d i rec t l y,  you can – 

he  has to  go  to  anothe r  screen  to  ac tua l l y  change tha t  

va lue ,  so  you go to  an  op t ion  sc reen and you do  a  

persona l i sa t ion  o f  tha t  document  and then you can  change  

the  name.   Now the  name re f lec ted  in  the  persona l isa t ion  

op t ions is  usua l l y  the  name tha t  i s  connected to  the  use r,  

so  tha t  i s  where  i t  p icks  up  who the  use r  i s ,  so  I  can then 20 

change tha t  user  to  somebody e l se  and when I  save tha t  

and I  app ly  i t  the  next  t ime I  save tha t  document  the  las t  

mod i f ied  wou ld  t hen be re f lec ted  as  tha t  new user  tha t  I  

have fu rn ished.    

CHAIRPERSON:    So  what  do  we  -   what  do  you make o f  
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the  fac t  tha t  he re  the  in fo rmat ion  or  what  you found is  tha t  

i t  sa id  las t  mod i f ied  by  Sa l im Essa –  we l l  what  do  you  

make o f  tha t?    

ADV SELEKA SC:     Wel l  f i rs t l y  as  w i th  the  prev ious 

crea tor  you cannot  re ly  on  tha t  so le ly  because i t  can be  

changed to  any va lue  bu t  i f  the  user  was ca l led  Sa l im Essa 

on a  computer  i t  wou ld  p ick  i t  up  as  Sa l im Essa,  bu t  on  i t s  

own i t  i s  very  easy change,  bu t  tha t  i s  a l l  I  can  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    Now th is  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was 

mod i f ied  by  Sa l im Essa tha t  pa r t  o f  the  in fo rmat ion  you get  10 

by  examin ing  the  le t te r  i t se l f ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    The metadata  on  tha t  le t te r  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The metadata  on  the  le t te r?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  metadata  doesn ’ t  te l l  you  where  

or  in  what  computer  the  mod i f i ca t ion  happened? 

PROF LOUWREN S:    No i t  doesn ’ t ,  un for tunate ly  in  th is  

case we on ly  had  the  word  document  i t se l f  to  ana lyse .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

PROF LOUWREN S:    So  I  don ’ t  have tha t  much,  the  on ly  20 

re la t ionsh ip  to  the  computer  was o r  i s  the  app l i ca t ion  used,  

the  Microsof t  Mack in tosh Word .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

PROF LOUWREN S:   Which then was the  las t  app l i ca t ion  

used to  mod i fy  tha t  document .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  mod i f i ca t ion  are  you ab le  to  say 

as  you d id  w i th  regard  to  app l i ca t ion  are  you ab le  to  say 

whethe r  the  mod i f i ca t ion ,  the  las t  mod i f i ca t ion  was e f fec ted  

in  the  Microsof t  Mack in tosh Word  or  the  o the r?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Microsof t  Mack in tosh Word .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  the?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Microsof t  Mack in tosh Word .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The modi f i ca t ion  took p lace in  tha t ,  i t  

was e f fec t i ve .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Last  saved.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  does i t  mean tha t  one can in fe r  

reasonab ly  tha t  the  le t te r  was probab ly  c rea ted us ing  an  

Eskom computer  and tha t  the  las t  mod i f i ca t ion  was a lso  

e f fec ted  us ing  an  Eskom computer  o r  no t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   No,  I  wou ld  no t  say  tha t ,  the  fac t  tha t  

the  so f tware  be longs to  Eskom but  i t  cou ld  have been 

ed i ted  on  anothe r  computer  and cou ld  have been modi f ied  

and sent  so  i t  does not  mean necessar i l y  an  Eskom 

compute r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  what  wou ld  you need to  look  a t  in  20 

order  to  be  ab le  to  be  more  prec ise  on  fo r  examp le  what  

compute r  was used,  o r  i s  tha t  someth ing  tha t  you  can ’ t  –  

Eskom computer  o r  non-Eskom computer  what  wou ld  you  

need to  be  ab le  to  reach a  conc lus ion  on  tha t  o r  i s  tha t  

someth ing  tha t ’s  d i f f i cu l t  to  ach ieve?  
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PROF LOUWREN S:   I  wou ld  say the  best  op t ion  wou ld  be  

to  have access to  the  compute rs  invo lved or  seeming ly  

invo l ved,  the  ana lys i s  o f  those computers  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

PROF LOUWRENS:  Without  the  i t  i s  very  c i r cumstant ia l  in  

the  th ings tha t  can be eas i l y  changed and fo rens i ca l l y  I  

cannot  suppor t  anyth ing  more .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   I f  you  were  to  ge t  the 

compute r  tha t  –  or  computers  tha t  may be Ms Dan ie ls ’  

wh i l s t  she was a t  Eskom was us ing  hav ing  access to  those 10 

compute rs  wou ld  tha t  he lp  in  one way o r  anothe r  see ing  

tha t  she is  a l leged to  have been the  crea tor  here?  

PROF LOUWREN S:   That  wou ld  de f in i te ly  he lp .    I  can ’ t  

say  i f  i t  w i l l  de f in i t i ve ly  g ive  an  answer.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  i t  cou ld  he lp .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   I t  wou ld  he lp  de f in i te ly  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    Okay,  has tha t  been t r ied  Mr  

Se leka?   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Obta in ing  her  compute r,  I  don ’ t  know 

o f f  hand Cha i rpe rson but  I  know they have imaged her  hard  20 

dr ive ,  someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t ,  even dur ing  her  d isc ip l ina ry  

hear ing  wh ich  in fo rmat ion  has been made ava i lab le  to  the 

Commiss ion ,  I  w i l l  fo l low up w i th  the  invest iga tors  to  f ind 

ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you need the  ac tua l  compute r  o r  as  
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long as  you have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

PROF LOUWREN S:    I f  I  have a  fo rens i c  image o f  tha t  

compute r  tha t  shou ld  be  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then you shou ld  be  ab le ,  okay,  bu t  I  

th ink  tha t  shou ld  be  pursued.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   And then I  guess the  same can 

be done w i th  in  regard  to  Mr  Khosa ’s  compute r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    P ro f  Louwrens  wou ld  i t  he lp  to  f ind  ou t  

f rom Eskom whether  dur ing  th is  t ime,  2015,  March  2015,  

Eskom wou ld  have prov ided i t s  employees w i th  App le  

Computers  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes i t  wou ld .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  wou ld  he lp?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I t  wou ld  de f i n i te ly  he lp  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because  as  you say the  las t  

mod i f i ca t ion  was in  an  App le  Computer.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then you have  obv ious ly  the  las t  th ree 

co lumns,  i t  i s  about  the  da tes ,  o r  the  las t  th ree  rows,  i t  is  

about  the  da te  when the  le t te r  was las t  p r in ted ,  c rea ted 
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and mod i f ied .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  da te  o f  c rea t ion  o f  the  le t te r,  

da te  o f  mod i f i ca t ion ,  da te  o f  p r in t ing ,  how ce r ta in  can you  

be tha t  those are  the  da tes  you  g ive  or  the  da tes  tha t  

appear  he re  are  de f in i te ly  the  da tes?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I t  can  on ly  be  cer ta in  to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  the  computer ’s  c lock  was se t  cor rec t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  assuming i t  was se t  cor rec t l y  

tha t  shou ld  be  co r rec t ,  ja .  10 

 Wel l  tha t  suggests  to  me tha t  in  the  absence o f  any  

ev idence tha t  i t  was se t  inco r rec t l y  tha t  you wou ld  be  ab le  

to  say the  p robab i l i t ies  a re  tha t  the  crea t ion  and the  

mod i f i ca t ion  o f  the  le t te r  and the  p r in t ing  was on tha t  day.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes we –  probab ly  tha t ,  i f  i t  i s  a  

corpo ra te  computer  the  t imes,  the  t ime and date  se t t ings  

are  normal ly  managed cent ra l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    So  the  use r  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  

change i t  on  the i r  own,  so  i f  th is  was a  co rpora te  compute r  20 

chances are  tha t  the  da tes  a re  cor rec t ,  i f  no t  the  i t  can  be  

anyth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay so  maybe you cou ld  exp lore  

a l l  o f  those aspects  because then I  th ink  you need to  come 

back to  say I  have done th is  par t  as  we l l  and in  the  l igh t  o f  
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th is  par t  th is  i s  what  I  am ab le  to  say.  

 Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P ro f  Louwrens I  see tha t  the  las t ,  the  

t imes the re ’s  a  d iscrepancy o f  some in te res t  there  i n  

respect  o f  the  c rea t ion  da te  and  modi f i ca t ion  da te  and 

t ime.   The dates  are  the  same,  the  10 t h  o f  March 2015,  bu t  

I  see the  da tes  fo r  c rea t ion  and modi f i ca t ion ,  I  mean  the  

t imes,  I  beg our  pardon,  a re  ident ica l ,  16 :39 ,  16 :39 .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  las t  p r in t  t ime is  16 :25 .  10 

PROF LOUWRENS:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  be fore  16 :39.  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Be fore  i t  was  crea ted.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Be fore  i t  was crea ted yes.   What  do  

you say to  tha t?  

PROF LOUWREN S:     Ja ,  tha t ’s  an  anomaly  tha t  i s  w i th in  

the  Windows f i le  sys tem.    I f  you  copy a  f i le  ac ross  f rom 

one vo lume to  another,  in  o ther  words f rom one dr ive  to  

another  i t  assumes the  crea t ion  da te  o f  tha t  t ime tha t  you  

cop ied  the  f i le ,  so  the  f i le  then wou ld  have ex is ted  and a t  20 

th is  s tage been ava i lab le  to  p r in t ,  bu t  then the  f i le  was  

cop ied  ac ross to  another  d r ive  and then i t  assumed the  

new creat ion  da te ,  and tha t  exp la ins  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you say i t  is  an  anomaly?  
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PROF LOUWREN S:    I t  i s  an  anomaly,  i t ’s  a  pecu l ia r i t y,  I  

don ’ t  know how to  exp la in  tha t ,  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  you  

wou ld  expect ,  you wou ld  expect  tha t  the  crea t ion  da te  

wou ld  s tay  the  same,  bu t  i t  does  not  work  tha t  way w i th  

Microsof t  Windows.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  there  is  no th ing  s t range about  tha t?    

PROF LOUWRENS:    Noth ing  s t range here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  th ink  Mr  Se leka we shou ld  s top  

here ,  because obv ious l y  there  is  a  need fo r  Mr  Louwrens to  

come back.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we can do the  res t  when he  comes 

back,  so  then le t  us  s top  here .    How long do you  th ink  i t  

m igh t  take  you to  be  ready to  come back a f te r  do ing  the  

outs tand ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

PROF LOUWRENS:    I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  say  Cha i r  bu t  i f  I  have  

got  access to  in fo rmat ion  a  coup le  o f  weeks maybe.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i s  tha t  so?  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  maybe two weeks,  o r  maybe more  20 

than tha t?  

PROF LOUWRENS:    Maybe more  than tha t ,  because i t  

takes t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  okay le t  us  say 

as  soon as  you are  ready le t  Mr  Se leka know and  he w i l l  
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te l l  me and the  I  guess you w i l l  have prepare  an  a f f idav i t  I  

th ink  and the  we can ca l l  you ,  yes .  

PROF LOUWRENS:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  bu t  thank you very  much,  I  

w i l l  excuse you but  you w i l l  be  coming back,  thank you 

very  much.  

PROF LOUWRENS:  Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am go ing  to  ad journ  to  enab le  the  

PRASA work  s t ream to  come in  and then I  w i l l  con t inue  

w i th  them.     10 

 We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    You may be seated Mr Montana.   Good 

morning.  

ADV SONI SC:   Good morning Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  am very poor wi th  est imat ing t ime 

so I  am sorry that  I  thought we would f in ish wi thin an hour 

and we ended up taking so long.    

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  apologise for  that .   Let  us cont inue.   

Yesterday’s oath wi l l  cont inue apply today Mr Montana.  

Okay a lr ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai r.   Mr Montana I  now 

want to deal  wi th the al legat ions made by Ms Martha Ngoye 
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in her aff idavi t  of  17t h of  February 2020 that  aff idavi t  

appears in Bundle E1 as Exhibi t  SS7(b) and i t  starts  at  page 

277.  

MR MONTANA:   Through you Chai r  I  am sorry Mr Soni  I  – I  

just  decided to put  one matter on record emanat ing f rom 

yesterday Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink – I  th ink that  we deal t  wi th the issues 

of  the companies and I  kept  on referr ing to one company as 

Mashonesa that  Mr Molefe referred to as Mashonesa.   The 10 

name of  the company is Mazwe Financial  Services.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   So I  wanted to put  that  on record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And secondly Chai r  that  I  want to  put  on 

record there was a report  that  there was placed before me I  

th ink the report  was wri t ten by Mr Jabulela Majo la.   And 

Chair  I  – I  d id raise a concern wi th  one of  his conclusions.   

At  that  t ime I  d id not  know and on enqui ry I  f ind that  those – 

this was a – in fact  a junior chap who wrote that  report .   In  20 

fact  some of  the people had indicated that  the chap is not  

even capable of  wri t ing such a report .   Now i t  was placed 

before me yesterday Chai r  so I  wanted to ask the 

commission to – of  course concern the posi t ion of  th is chap 

with PRASA number 1 and conf i rm whether that  is thei r  
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report  because i f  i t  is Chai r  I  may want to – I  am consider ing 

exercising my r ights in terms of  Rule 3.4 to apply for  cross-

examinat ion for – of  the – of  I  th ink Mr Majola.   I  do not  know 

him. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  th ink that  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   From what I  could gather people said look 

there is just  no way he would have wri t ten this repor t  and so 

I  want to conf i rm that  formal ly and exerc ise.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And exercise my r ight  Chai r.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Sorry Mr Soni  I  just  wanted to do this  th ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  do not  know how much you know 

about the author of  that  report  Mr Soni  but  i f  you do not  then 

the informat ion can be obtained.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In terms of  what h is posi t ion is – is he st i l l  

at  PRASA, what was his posi t ion at  the t ime of  wri t ing the 20 

report  and any other relevant  informat ion about him.   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   We wi l l  make this inquiry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  guess another issue would be why 

would he have been ident i f ied as the person to conduct  the 

invest igat ion or to do the reports – is that  because of  the 
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posi t ion he held or why was i t?  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  informat ion can then be shared 

wi th Mr Montana.   And i t  may wel l  be that  because i t  is just  a 

report  i t  may wel l  be that  considerat ion should be g iven to 

whether he should not  be requi red to depose to an aff idavi t  

and say whether that  is h is report  and say how i t  came about 

that  he – he did that  report  of  the invest igat ion bla,  bla,  b la.   

Ja.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Of  course we with al l  of  that  in  

mind Mr Soni  there would also be the quest ion of  what the 

place and role of  that  report  is in our – in these proceedings.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or whether i t  was just  – i t  was at tached 

simply because somebody who was deposing to an aff idavi t  

had to ment ion that  there was some reports that  was put  

together and this is the report .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or whether  i t  is  going to – to be rel ied 20 

upon much or 00:06:24 on these proceedings.   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know when people do an aff idavi t  they 

can at tach a lot  of  th ings and everything they at tach is  

important  for a part icu lar proceedings.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you could ref lect  on that . .  

ADV SONI SC:   I  wi l l  Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.    

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Montana can we then go on wi th Ms 

Ngoye’s al legat ions.   I  want  to start  at  paragraph 8 which is  

on page 279.   The page numbers are on the r ight  hand side 

in red.   She says:  

“ I  have been asked by the commission to  

provide informat ion on maladminist rat ion at  10 

PRASA of  which I  am aware insofar as i t  

re lates to state capture. ”  

And then in paragraph 9 she says:  

“ In deal ing wi th these matters I  consider i t  

wi l l  be helpful  to begin wi th the fol lowing 

observat ion.  In  my respect ful  v iew 

maladminist rat ion and possibly corrupt ion 

are qui te widespread at  PRASA.  This was 

part icular ly whi le Mr Montana was the CEO.”  

You want to react  to that? 20 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  –  I  total ly re ject  that  I  th ink in effect  

she con – she starts wi th that  v iew f rom paragraph 6 of  her 

aff idavi t  – of  her aff idavi t .   I  re ject  that  Chai r  I  th ink in my 

test imony I  wi l l  show in fact  that  Ms Ngoye was hersel f  at  

the heart  of  some of  the issues that  have been made here.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And then she says – she f in ishes 

paragraph 9 saying? 

“That  there is certain ent i t ies which and 

persons who were known to be close to you. ”  

And at  paragraph 10 she says:  

“Among those are two individuals Mr Roy 

Moodley and Mr McKenza Mabunda. ”  

Like to react  to that? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  deal t  wi th  these matters yesterday 

that  ent i t ies were ident i f ied l inked to me and those that  –  10 

they were doing work for them were even appointed 

i rregular ly.    They were being championed.  So – so again 

Chair  I  wi l l  be consistent  wi th that  –  wi th that  v iew.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  am – she says:  

“The ent i t ies wi th  which Mr Moodley were – 

was al leged to be associated are Siyagena 

Technologies,  Strawberry Worx,  Royal  

Securi ty and Prodigy can we accept  that  Mr 

Moodley was associated wi th those four  

ent i t ies. ”  20 

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  do not  want – I  know that  wi th – 

wi th Royal  Secur i ty yes he was but  when I  was st i l l  at  

PRASA there was no relat ionship – I  do not  know of  any 

re lat ionship of  Mr Moodley wi th St rawberry Worx.    

I  do not  know of  any relat ionship and I  th ink I  wi l l  
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deal  wi th St rawberry Worx in much greater deta i l  Chair.   And 

I  read af ter I  have lef t  PRASA that  there was a close 

re lat ionship between Siyangena and Mr Moodley that  did not  

happen when I  was there.   I  was not  aware of  i t  at  that  point  

in t ime.   

We deal t  wi th Mr Mabunda’s Siyaya and I  th ink I  

explained that  in great  detai l  about  our relat ionship wi th the 

Germans Chai r  and i ts involved – and this involved them with 

that .   They do not  make them my – ent i t ies closer to Mr 

Montana they were appointed by PRASA and i ts board.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   And of  course Prodigy we deal t  wi th 

yesterday.  

MR MONTANA:   Yesterday indeed Chair  indeed.  

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight .   Can we look at  paragraph 11 she 

says:  

“These are ind iv iduals and ent i t ies which 

have benef i ted most  handsomely f rom 

contracts that  were dubiously awarded to 

them or implemented in  a highly dubious 

manner. ”  20 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  the most  – one of  the companies that  

benef i ted handsomely f rom PRASA was Werksmans 00:10:48 

and Ms Ngoye dispose – deposed to an aff idavi t  when she 

was aware of  the facts.   So you can see Chai r  th is  is the 

same k ind of  – of  th ings so i f  you look at  again Mr – Mr Soni  
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to go back to  paragraph 6 of  her – of  her aff idavi t .   I f  you 

read what she say in there consistent  wi th what Mr Molefe 

said consistent  wi th what Mr Dingiswayo says that  these are 

people who – who project  themselves that  is so clean who 

want to point  f ingers at  other people but  four f ingers in  fact  

point ing at  them Chai r.    

I t  is so false and I  th ink Chai r  that  that  we have to 

deal  wi th the indiv idual  contracts st i l l  I  th ink yesterday was – 

we deal t  wi th Prodigy so this broad 00:11:44 is not  going to  

help the commission to actual ly get  to the facts.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  mean just  ( ta lk ing over one another) facts 

rather than the broad branch ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no,  no we wi l l  deal  wi th i t .   Ja we wi l l  

deal  wi th them ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And then she says:  

“Most  of  these contracts are the subject  of  

l i t igat ion. ”  

Can I  just  ment ion those that  have come before the 

commission? 20 

MR MONTANA:   Of  course.  

ADV SONI SC:   And have been deal t  wi th or wi l l  be deal t  

wi th.   One is Swifambo we know.   The other is S iyagena 

which we are going to deal  wi th when we deal  wi th the rest  

of  Ms Ngoye’s aff idavi t .   Then there is Prodigy which Mr 
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Dingiswayo deal t  wi th and this – the Siyaya matters which as 

we know i t  was in your absence that  there is l i t igat ion 

between them and – between PRASA and them.  And I  can 

perhaps just  deal  wi th one matter.   You are aware that  

PRASA has refused to pay Siyaya DB and you in fact 

test i f ied at  the l iquidat ion hearings Mr Montana.  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight  can I  then ask us to go to paragraph 

14 there is  that  she is  go ing to  deal  wi th  the fol lowing 

matters oh she became – this is Ms Ngoye how she became 10 

aware of  the inf luence of  Mr Roy Moodley and her  

interact ions wi th  you as CEO and the dispute between 

Strawberry Worx and Siyaya Group.  We are not  going to  

deal  wi th the Siyaya Group here for  di fferent  reasons.   But  

these are the matters we wi l l  deal  wi th.  

MR MONTANA:   Wel l  Chai r  I  would l ike the Chai r  to  note the 

fact  that  in almost  exact ly the same formulat ion is what you 

f ind in Mr Dingiswayo’s aff idavi t .   So you could see Mr 

Molefe says – t raverse the same route.   So i t  is very 

interest ing Chai r  but  again I  th ink i t  is the focus on facts wi l l  20 

help us to … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   To deal  wi th the matters properly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No that  is f ine.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Now she says in paragraph 15 which I  
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am going to deal  wi th in some deta i l  when I  say deta i l  I  just  

want us to establ ish the extent  to  which you dispute what 

she says.   She says she f i rst  encountered St rawberry Worx 

whi lst  she was the CEO of  Intersi te.   She was in fact  the 

CEO of  Intersi te.  

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct ,  that  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   And she says:  

“ I t  came about as fol lows.   Fi rst  on about the 

23r d of  July 2011 PRASA through Intersi te  

assets investment SOC Limited which is a 10 

whol ly owned subsidiary of  PRASA and 

Umjanj i  Media concluded an advert is ing 

agreement fo l lowing an invi ta t ion for  

companies to submit  proposals for media 

broadcast ing advert is ing and broadcast ing 

serv ices in respect  of  var ious assets held by 

PRASA.”  

Do you accept  that  as a general? 

MR MONTANA:   Yes Si r.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then she says:  20 

“The agreement had commenced on the 1s t  of  

June and was for  a f ive year per iod unless 

terminated or renewed by the part ies.”  

Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  Chair.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Then she says:  

“But  on the 31s t  o f  August  2011 and I  am just  

going to  point  out  i t  is  not  in  her aff idavi t  i t  is  

about  f ive weeks af ter the contract  was 

concluded and with the consent of  PRASA 

Umjanj i  ceded por t ions of  i ts r ights under the 

advert is ing agreement St rawberry Worx.”  

And another ent i ty cal led Siyathembana – Siyathembana 

Trading are you aware of  that? 

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  was aware wi th them ceding to 10 

Strawberry Worx but  I  was not  aware I  am hearing about  

Siyathembana Trading for the f i rst  t ime.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  can we accept  that  that  may have 

happened? 

MR MONTANA:   I t  may be – i t  may be Chai r  but  I  was not  

aware.  

ADV SONI SC:   No I  understand thank you.   Then at  

paragraph 15.3 she says? 

“Al though Intersi te and not  PRASA was the 

party to the agreement dur ing the cont ract  20 

per iod we at  Inters i te received instruct ions 

f rom Montana -  Mr Montana on how to deal  

wi th the advert is ing port fo l io more 

speci f ical ly the St rawberry Worx contract . ”  

But  she is making two points there.   Fi rst ly she says that  the 
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contract  was between Umjanj i  and thereaf ter Strawberry 

Worx and Intersi te .   That  I  understand is correct .    

MR MONTANA:   I t  was between the main contract  was 

between PRASA and Umjanj i .  

ADV SONI SC:   Umjanj i  and that  that  was ceded to 

Strawberry Worx.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no part  – part  o f  that  contract .  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh sorry part  of  i t .  

MR MONTANA:   Part  of  that  the outdoor advert is ing part  of  

that  cont ract  is what was – was ceded to St rawberry Worx.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Now she says that  they received 

instruct ions f rom you how to deal  wi th the advert is ing 

port fo l io and part icular ly Strawberry Worx.  

MR MONTANA:   Wel l  Chai r  i t  was not  – I  never gave such an 

instruct ion.   There was a – there was a – there was a draf t  

that  was submit ted to me on how the relat ionship between 

Umjanj i  and Strawberry was going to be st ructured on our  

port fo l io.    

So I  had wr i t ten notes to say no,  no i t  cannot be deal t  

wi th in  that  way because we wi l l  lose money as PRASA. And 20 

chair  I  want  to make i t  c lear I  th ink that  af ter I  present  I  want 

to make a more detai led response to what Ms Ngoye say 

because the – the facts are being somehow too 00:18:33 a 

bi t  to present  a part icu lar picture.    

But  – but  I  th ink let  us dist inguish the facts f i rst  and 
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then before I  make my comments.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  guess – I  guess you wi l l  have a 

bet ter feel  Mr Soni  whether  i t  is bet ter that  he should deal  

wi th that  now or whether a l i t t le la ter.   He – he is saying at  

some stage he would l ike to  give a more substant ive 

response.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  i t  is more convenient  for him to do that  

later he wi l l  do that  later but  I  am just  saying be aware that 10 

he … 

ADV SONI SC:   No I  understand perfect ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chair  i t  may be – i t  may be bet ter to fo l low 

the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Know the extent  to which Mr Montana agrees 

wi th what … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   The disputes what Ms Ngoye is saying.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then in regard to any inferences or any 

al legat ions that  Ms Ngoye makes about impropriet ies we can 

deal  wi th that  at  the end of  what i t  has been agreed are the 

basic facts on which there is common cause.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so – so where would that  put  us at  

the end when we are done with  the aff idavi t  or at  some 

stage? 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  wi l l  be at  the end of  paragraph 15 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay al r ight  that  is f ine.   You may 

proceed.  

ADV SONI SC:   She says there at  paragraph 15.4 she was 

once summoned to a meet ing wi th representat ives of  

Strawberry Worx.   Now I  take i t  and she is not  making 

al legat ions about  you on this.   Are you aware of  th is  10 

meet ing? 

MR MONTANA:    No Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay.   But  she goes on in paragraph 15.4.  

“ I  was given inst ruct ions by representat ives 

of  St rawberry Worx on how I  ought  to  

manage the advert is ing port fo l io and how I  

was expected to take instruct ions f rom 

them.”  

Are you aware of  that? 

MR MONTANA:   No I  was not  part  of  the meet ing Chai r.  20 

ADV SONI SC:    

“ I  was even – I  was even told that  they have 

the power to remove the port fo l io f rom 

Intersi te. ”  

I  take i t  that  too you do not  know about?  Is that  correct  Mr – 
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you – are… 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  was not  part  of  the meet ing.  

ADV SONI SC:   YEs.  

MR MONTANA:   Just  looking at  i t  I  can see that  th is is – you 

know af terthought?  Ja i t  makes people draf t  th ings that  – 

but  I  was not  par t  of  the meet ing so for the record I  would 

not  conf i rm or deny.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  was not  part  of  the meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  th ink Mr Soni  you can go on wi th  10 

the paragraphs that  he – where – that  relate to  what was 

discussed at  the meet ing but  he does not  know anything 

about i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no I  understand.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  you – he can… 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is a necessary because i t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  has a consequence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine.  

ADV SONI SC:   And I  can understand why Mr Montana is 20 

saying this is a malthought[?]  because there is a thread that  

is fo l lowed through thereaf ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No that  is f ine.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then at  paragraph 15.5 she says:  

“That  she was told that  there were 



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 106 of 371 
 

instruct ions f rom Mr Montana to remove 

instruct ions we had given to  our legal  

representat ives Hogan Lovel ls who were 

represent ing PRASA in a l i t igat ion inst i tuted 

by Primedia chal lenging the advert is ing 

tender process.”  

Now I  just  want to  deal  wi th two things Mr Montana.   Did you 

give inst ruct ions – oh did you say to Strawberry Worx that  

you were going to remove Hogan Lovel ls as PRASA’s 

at torney’s of  record in the dispute wi th Pr imedia.  10 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  – Chai r  that  – that  is not  correct  but  I  

th ink she is saying i t  as – she says is st i l l  part  is at  the 

meet ing? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Which I  was never  party to.  So I  do not  

know who said that  to her  speci f ica l ly.  She does not  ment ion 

she just  ment ioned that  – she was told by a representat ive.   

She ment ioned three representat ives Mr Maraj ,  Mr Ashvier,  

Mr Selwyn Moodley those are the three people who were part  

of  the meet ing.  She does not  say so this person said this she 20 

says representat ives so i t  is a general  I  do not  even know 

but  I  never – probably at  th is t ime because she is descr ib ing 

the ear l ier per iod of  the cont ract .   I  had not  interacted wi th 

any of  these players in the indust ry 

ADV SONI SC:   I  – I  hear you Mr Montana but  I  just  want us 
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to i f  you just  bear  wi th me for a moment or two to deal  wi th 

another al legat ion and then come to the extent  to which she 

says she communicated wi th you  So let  us deal  – I  

understand you say you did not  know about th is,  you were 

not  part  of  the meet ing.  Then she says … 

MR MONTANA:   Sorry Mr Soni  I  accept  that  except  that  the – 

I  am not  saying communicated wi th  her I  am saying com – I  

have never communicated wi th Strawberry at  the t ime that  

she is descr ib ing.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  no,  no I  understand ja.   She says:  10 

“ I  was told that  Mr Montana had instructed 

that  I  terminate the mandate of  Hogan 

Lovel ls and appoint  BBM Attorneys.”  

I  take i t  you had never to ld anybody f rom St rawberry Worx 

that  that  should be done.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  had the legal  advisor who was 

deal ing wi th th is part icular matter other than the – our  Group 

Corporate Funct ion in my off ice.   I  had the legal  advisor who 

conceded qui te a number of  th ings and this was one of  the 

issues precise ly because there was a major l i t igat ion issue 20 

on this matter.   And – and probably I  would discussed with – 

but  I  can see that  my legal  advisor was not  even part  of  the 

meet ing that  was ment ioned.   So the quest ion st i l l  ar ises 

who said al l  of  those th ings to Ms  Ngoye and that  is why I  

say I  do not  know, I  was not  part  of  the meet ing but  for me i t  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 108 of 371 
 

sounds l ike a good af terthought  Chair  for the – in her  

aff idavi t .  

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight .   Now I  just  want to make this one 

point .   She says that  whether you said i t  or  not  BBM 

Attorneys were not  on PRASA’s panel  of  at torneys at  the 

t ime.  Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  would not  know.  

ADV SONI SC:   You would not  know.  

MR MONTANA:   I  would not  know.   In the same way that  the 

– I  a lso learnt  that  Werksmans were part  of  the PRASA panel  10 

and when I  checked at  the t ime they were not  so again here 

someone who – who picks up on th is one and ignores on to 

this one.   So Chai r  I  do not  deal  wi th panels – I  do not  even 

– in my ent i re per iod I  never knew who was on the panel  or  

was not .  

ADV SONI SC:   And she says at  paragraph 15.6.  

“ I  d id indicate to Mr Montana that  the move 

would amount to  wasteful  expendi ture and 

that  I  was not  wi l l ing to account for  that  and 

further that  i t  was not  possible to  appoint  a 20 

f i rm that  was not  on the panel . ”  

Now is that  correct  or not? 

MR MONTANA:   No Mr Soni .   You know Chai r  I  d id  Bantu 

Educat ion as wel l  but  somet imes the style of  wri t ing 

becomes very important  so that  you fol low a sequence.   This 
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person is to ld by someone at  a meet ing but  in paragraph 

15/16 i t  say he indicate to  Mr Montana who was never  party  

– party to th is meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  I  not ice that  Mr Montana that  we 

were – we were – she was tel l ing us in a few paragraphs 

about the discussion at  the meet ing and she did not  include 

you as one of  the people who were in that  meet ing and as 

you pointed out  she did not  say who among the people who 

were at  the meet ing told her  that  you had instructed that  she 

should terminate the mandate of  Hogan Lovel ls and appoint  10 

BBM Attorneys and then in  the next  paragraph 15.6 she says 

– she did indicate to you that  the move would amount to 

wasteful  expendi ture but  she does not  say when in  relat ion 

to the meet ing but  in the – in the paragraph that  comes af ter 

that  she is ta lk ing about  what  happened af ter  the meet ing.   

So I  do not  know whether i t  is  just  a quest ion of  the 

arrangement of  paragraphs or whether i t  is something else.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  th ink i f  you look at  the – the 

previous paragraph there they underly ing message is that  

the f i rm was appointed outside of  the panel .   I  th ink the 20 

quest ion wi l l  come who appoint  people to  the panel ,  how 

they 00:28:45.  In al l  of  that .    

I  was not  – I  mean that  is why I  was checking my 

legal  advisor i f  she was part  of  the meet ing I  would have 

said maybe she ref lected discussion she had with me but  she 
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was also not  party  to the meet ing.    

And I  would not  say what the other people sa id at  the 

meet ing speci f ic she also does not  also speci fy who said and 

unless i f  the commission is provided wi th perhaps a record 

of  that  meet ing an actual  record you know of  that  meet ing so 

that  we can – you should know. So there are three people 

and i t ’s her,  i t  is Mr Holele who was Mr Holele ’s what was his  

ro le in the meet ing?  You know al l  of  those things Chair  that  

I  th ink that  raised a lot  of  quest ions and answers as i t  were 

but  Chair  there was never even subsequent to whatever  10 

meet ings that  were held any d iscussion about wasteful  

expendi ture that  is not  consistent  wi th my own narrat ive 

which I  wi l l  present  af ter Mr Soni  had deal t  wi th paragraph 

15.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   A l r ight .   Mr Montana can we just  now – I  just  

want to put  a quest ion di rect ly to you.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Did she speak to  you about there  was a  

suggest ion  tha t  Hogan Love l l s  be  removed as  PRASA’s  20 

a t to rneys o f  record .  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  my lega l  adv isor  had la te r  –  a t  a  

la te r  s tage d id ,  when we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  –  what  i s  i t  
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ca l led  –  Pr imed ia ’s  rev iew app l i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   When you say the  on ly  -  

adv isor  d id .   You  mean d id  ta lk  to  you?  D id  ta lk  to  her,  

Ms Ngoye?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r.   D id  ta lk  to  me,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    About?  

MR MONTANA :    About  the  -  our  team in  respect  o f  the  

l i t iga t ion  tha t  we were  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . invo l ved w i th  Pr imed ia .   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    And I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  separa te  mat te r  to  

th is  Cha i r.   And tha t  i s  why . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i ssues are  be ing  –  because 

somebody is  in  the  organ isa t ion .   She is  aware  o f  what  i s  

happen ing  but  she s t ruc tures  th is  th ing  in  a  way tha t  

suppor ts  –  so  tha t  i s  why i t  does not  speak to  each o the r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  issue Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .when I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   But  I  th ink  what  you a re  

say ing  is  tha t  there  was a  t ime when –  in  connect ion  w i th  

the  l i t iga t ion  re la t ing  to  Pr imed ia  when your  lega l  adv isor  

in  your  o f f i ce  spoke about  chang ing  the  law f i rm 

rep resenta t i ves .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  you a re  say ing .   Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Wel l ,  no t  on ly  spoke about  i t  bu t  a  10 

dec is ion  was ac tua l l y  made and imp lemented to  remove  

Hogan Love l l s  as  PRASA’s  a t to rneys o f  record .   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  so .   I  d id  no t  know who was  

u l t imate ly  our  team there  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  tha t  dec i s ion  was 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Was made.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .was taken and i t  en joyed my fu l l  

suppor t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA :    And I  w i l l  exp la in  why.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    She says then a t  the  end o f  

parag raph 15.6 . . .   Oh,  sor ry.   Your  lega l  adv isor  i s  

Ms Malan i (? )  Na idoo.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now Mr  Montana,  jus t  –  and you must  

accept  tha t  we t r ied  to  keep in  our  m inds a l l  the  go ings-on.   

When you made app l i ca t ion  to  the  Secre tary  o f  the 

Commiss ion  to  b r ing  a  de legat ion ,  one o f  the  peop le  whose 

names you ment ioned in  the  le t te r  to  the  Secre ta ry  was  

Ms Malan i  Na idoo .    

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now i t  i s  a l so  sa id  tha t  the  l as t  g roup 

o f  a t to rneys who hand led  the  mat te r  fo r  PRASA when 10 

Mahara j (? )  A t to rneys.   A re  you aware  o f  tha t /  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   I  am not  aware .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Because she says then tha t  

they co inc identa l l y  were  the  a t to rneys o f  record  o f  

S t rawber ry  Worx .    

MR MONTANA :    A t to rneys o f  reco rd  fo r  –  on  wh ich  mat te r?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    In  the  Pr imed ia  mat te r.  

MR MONTANA :    I s  i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Can I  jus t  ask  you as  a  

genera l  p ropos i t ion  though?  And I  accept  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  

improper  fo r  PRASA where  th is  i s  a  d ispute  ra ised by  

Pr imed ia  aga ins t  PRASA and perhaps S t rawberry  Worx  to  

have the  same a t to rney as  S t rawberry  Worx .  
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MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   I t  wou ld  be  improper.   

Un less  i f  the  par t ies  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  I  unders tand.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .agree and there  is  no  con f l i c t  o f  

in te res t  there  bu t  genera l l y  you want  to  separa te  these 

th ings.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.    

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Paragraph 15.7 ,  she says:  

“A f te r  the  meet ing ,  In te rs i te  cont inued to  10 

manage the  por t fo l io  bu t  under  very  d i f f i cu l t  

c i rcumstances as  th rea ts  were  constant ly  

rece ived about  the  mandate  be ing  removed 

f rom In ters i te . . . ”  

 Now,  o f  cou rse ,  tha t  i s  no t  a  mat te r  tha t  

concerns you.   I  mean,  she is  no t  mak ing  an a l legat ion  tha t  

the  th rea ts  came f rom you.   She  says the  th rea ts  came 

f rom St rawberry  Worx .    

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  –  in  the  –  you see,  she 

makes tha t  po in t  and then she says:   But  we to ld  20 

Mr  Montana tha t  he  was requ i red  to  p rov ide  a  reso lu t ion  

f rom the  board .   No such reso lu t ion  was p rov ided to  

In te rs i te .   I  do  no t  know where  th is  d iscuss ion  took p lace,  

Cha i r.   And what  I  th ink  i s  happen ing  here ,  Cha i r,  i s  that  

Ms Ngoye maybe  –  because she  was a  member  o f  the 
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Execut ive .   She may be aware  o f  a  mat te r  tak ing  p lace  

there .   So she conven ien t ly  b rough t  these th ings.    

 So fo r  example ,  when she ta lks  about  the  issue  

o f  the  pane l  o r  when we had  the  d iscuss ion  about  

Pr imed ia ,  she then conf la tes  tha t  to  suppor t  the  v iew tha t  

she wants  to  advance.   So I  want  to  –  fo r  us  to  separa te (?)  

those issues.   I f  we dea l  w i th  S t rawber ry,  we dea l  w i th  

S t rawber ry.   I f  we dea l  w i th  Pr imed ia ,  we do so ,  so  tha t ,  

Cha i r,  we can separa te  fac t  f rom f i c t ion  because I  th ink  

tha t  i s  what  i s  happen ing  here .    10 

 So orphans are  pu t  in  there  and he re  is  a  he ro ,  a  

hero in .   I  to ld  Mr  Montana.   When the  meet ing  takes  p lace,  

I  am not  par t  o f  i t .   I  to ld  Mr  Montana.   And I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  

the  on ly  mat te r  tha t  she d i scussed w i th  me,  by  the  way,  

was when Ms Hope Z inde,  the  la te  –  Hope Z inde,  so  res t  in  

peace,  had gone to  her  o f f i ce  because they took some f i les  

f rom there  and she sa id  tha t  was done p roper l y  by  the  

two(?)  respect ive  peop le .  

 And she ra ised tha t  w i th  me.   She wanted to  

enqu i re  where  was the  –  they were  sent  by  me.   I  sa id  no  20 

and sha l l  exp la in .   Aga in ,  th is  mat te r  does not  re la te  to  th is  

contex t .   I t  i s  a  comple te l y  d i f fe ren t  contex t .   And I  

suppor ted  her  because I  sa id  tha t  i t  cannot  be  done tha t  

way.    

 So aga in ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  sa id  because we are  go ing  
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to  d iscuss the  mat te r.   Ms Z inde is  la te .   She cannot  even 

depose and I  wou ld  no t  want  to  d iscuss tha t  mat te r  o f  

someone who is  no  longer  no  there  and ab le  to  de fend 

herse l f .   Not  tha t  I  was go ing  to  speak i l l  o f  her.    

 No,  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  am say ing  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  

Ms Ngoye ’s  i s  scra t ch ing  a t  s t raws,  t ry ing  to  m ix  i ssues 

and I  want  to  separa te  them so tha t  th is  Commiss ion  has a  

c lea r  p ic tu re .   I  mean,  yes ,  she t r ied  to  chase Mr  Mood ley  

bu t  I  th ink  she is  do ing  i t  in  a  wrong way,  Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Le t  us  jus t  look  a t  the  pa r t  10 

you have dea l t  w i th  in  parag raph 15.7 ,  the  second 

sentence.   She  says she to ld  you tha t  you were  f i r s t  

requ i red  to  p rov ide  a  reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  bu t  there  was  

no reso lu t ion  tha t  was p rov ided.   Now I  am go ing  ask  you a 

d i rec t  quest ion  on  th is .   D id  she  ra ise  the  i ssue  o f  the  

th rea tened remova l  o f  the  overs igh t  o f  the  cont rac t  f rom 

In ters i te  to  PRASA wi th  you?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   Aga in ,  Cha i r.   Perhaps  

maybe le t  me see  th is  pa ragraph 15,  i t  i s  long and some o f  

the  issues tha t  I  need to  dea l  w i th .   I  th ink  I  want  to  20 

address them in  tha t  contex t .   Cha i r,  there  was no  such a  

th rea t .   I  th ink  tha t  Ms Ngoye is  confus ing  the  issue o f  us  

ge t t ing  a  new d iv is ion  wh ich  is  ca l led  PRASA Opera te  Rea l  

Esta te  So lu t ions.   In  shor t  ca l led  PRASA Cres(? ) .   Now th is  

i s  a  new d iv i s ion  tha t  hand les  our  p roper t ies .    
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 So  because In te rs i te ,  h is to r i ca l l y,  was what  we 

ca l l  In te rs i te  Proper t y  Management  Serv ices .   I t  changed 

i t s  ro le .   So tha t  i t  became In ters i te  Asset  Investment .   And 

the  new company  tha t  we created was then because i t  was 

then go ing  to  manage the  p roper t y  por t fo l io  w i th  every th ing  

tha t  goes w i th  i t  inc lud ing  adver t i s ing  on  those proper t ies .    

 Cha i r,  the  reason  why we took tha t  dec is ion  had 

to  do  w i th  the  –  i t  was a  tax  e f f i c i ency issue because what  

happened is  tha t  PRASA wou ld  pay  In te rs i te  a  management  

fee  tha t  because  In te rs i te  was a  subs id ia ry  i t  was  pay ing  10 

tax  when i t s  pa rent  company was  not  pay ing  tax .   So we 

pay them R 15 mi l l ion  to  manage our  p roper t ies  and  i t  pa id 

a lmost  18% to  20% of  tha t  money back to  SARS.  

 So we get  a  subs idy  f rom government  and we 

pass the  R 50 m i l l ion ,  R 100 mi l l ion  whatever  amount  in  

the  fo rm o f  a  management  fee  and i t  goes back to  

government  in  the  fo rm o f  a  tax .   So we wanted to  ensure  

tha t  we max im ise  our  revenues,  our  income.   So tha t  i s  

why I  am say ing  Ms Ngoye is  confus ing  a l l  these  issues  

in to  one to  say:   No,  no  these th ings were  happen ing ,  no t  20 

because o f  the  s t ra tegy o f  the  bus iness bu t  to  suppor t  

S t rawber ry  Worx .    

 In  fac t ,  Cha i r,  the  fac ts  w i l l  show ev idence tha t  I  

w i l l  pu t  be fo re  th is  Commiss ion  wh ich  i s  par t  o f  my th ing .   

The not ion  tha t  we managed the  por t fo l io  under  very  
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d i f f i cu l t  c i rcumstances is  ac tua l l y  so  fa lse  tha t  Ms Ngoye  

worked w i th  S t rawberry.   The agreement  to  see th is  

cont rac t  f rom St rawberry  f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Umjan j i   

MR MONTANA :    . . .Umjan j i  o r  P rovantage,  the  en t i t y  tha t  

won the  cont rac t ,  i t  was s igned by  Ms Ngoye.   So she says  

there  in  one o f  the  –  in  the  c los ing  paragraph –  I  wanted to  

go  back to  parag raph 15 po in t  –  I  th ink  i t  was 15.2 .   The  

conc lus ion  o f  tha t  paragraph says:  

“A t  tha t  t ime,  I  was a l ready the  CEO of  10 

In ters i te . . . ”  

 You see,  Cha i r,  here  –  tha t  i s  where  you f ind  the  

so lace(? ) .   I t  does not  say  a t  the  –  I  s igned th is  agreement  

to  see i t .   S ign  be tween her  and  S t rawberry  as  CEO of  

In te rs i te .   She says a t  the  t ime I  was a l ready the  CEO of  

In te rs i te .   Now the  Cha i r,  o f  cou rse ,  you look a t  tha t ,  i t  

does not  te l l  you  the  s to ry,  the  t ru th .   Par t  o f  my annexures 

I  p rov ide  where  she s igned.    

 Then I  have got ,  Cha i r,  i s  vo lumes o f  emai ls  

wh ich  shows,  fo r  example ,  the  na ture  o f  the  –  and between  20 

In te rs i te  under  Ms Ngoye ’s ,  okay?   And more  spec i f i ca l l y  

her  r igh t -hand person who was manag ing  th is  a t  In te rs i te  

was a  chap by  the  name o f  m is ter  –  h is  su rname is  

Chauke.   Mr  Chauke –  when i s  tha t?  

 The emai ls  tha t  exchange,  Cha i r,  i s  one where  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 119 of 371 
 

our  subs id ia ry  was ac tua l l y  work ing  and fo rg ing  th is  

re la t ionsh ip  because they had to  do  tha t .   Now she comes 

f i ve  years  la te r.   The count ry  has go t  Commiss ion  on  s ta te  

capture ,  cor rup t i on .   She changes tune.   She does not  

remember  the  fac ts .   I t  i s  par t  o f  my annexures,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Sor ry,  Mr  Montana.   And I  do  no t  

want  to .   You might  remember,  I  th ink  on  Fr iday,  what  we 

agreed on i s  when you have a  ve rs ion  wh ich  maybe  

conta ined in  your  a f f idav i t ,  you w i l l  se t  i t  ou t  here  so  we do  

not  have to  be  look ing  in  d i f fe ren t  p laces.   So I  am go ing  to  10 

suggest ,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  Mr  Montana re fers  o r  se ts  ou t  

h is  vers ion  on  these mat te rs  he re  as  ag reed on  Fr iday 

o therwise  we are  go ing  to  be  a l l  over  the  p lace.   I  do  no t  

want  to  s top  h im.   I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  we are  go ing  to  be  

back and fo r th  on  the  same quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am not  su re  tha t  I  fo l low.   What  I  do  

remember  i s  tha t  on  Fr iday one o f  the  th ings I  sa id  was  

tha t  he  cou ld  te l l  me what  i s  in  h is  a f f idav i t  w i thout  

re fe r r i ng  to  the  paragraphs.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  te l l  me . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .what  I  w i l l  la te r  f ind  in  the  a f f idav i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . .when h is  a f f idav i t  i s  sor ted  ou t .   I  am 

not  su re  whether  tha t  i s  what  you a re  ta lk ing  about .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  i s  exact ly  what  I  am say ing ,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  ins tead o f  now say ing :   I t  i s  

conta ined in  my a f f idav i t  bu t  no t  say ing  what  was  sa id  in  

the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  have got  no  –  in  fac t ,  I  want  to  hear  10 

what  Mr  Montana ’s  ve rs ion  is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So  we a l l  have i t .   We know what  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  the  reason he may be do ing  tha t  -  

bu t  he  is  here ,  he  can say -  maybe is  tha t ,  you remember  

in  regard  the  issues under  15  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  ar rangements  tha t  has been made  

is  tha t  when you are  done w i th  para  15 ,  he  then get  a  20 

chance to  g ive  a  substant ive  response to  what  Ms  Ngoye  

has sa id  under  para  15 .   I  take  i t  tha t  i s  why he has no t  

gone in to  de ta i l s  because tha t  i s  the  ar rangement .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    And tha t  i s  why I  even sa id ,  i t  seems 

paragraph 15 is  very  long.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Because I  rea l i se  tha t  Mr  Son i  was  then –  

he  wanted the  answers .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  want  to  –  and I  th ink  perhaps i t  i s  

be t te r,  Cha i r,  I  suggest  I  make tha t  input  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And so  then when Mr  Son i  then takes me 10 

on,  takes these issues in  the  paragraphs,  he  is  fu l l y  aware 

o f  what  my v iew is  on  th is  par t i cu la r  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You suggest ing  an  amendment  o f  the  

ear l ie r  a r rangement?  

MR MONTANA :    O f  the  ar rangement .   I f  I  do  i t  now 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  have got  no  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  f ine?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   That  i s  f ine .  20 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  thank you  very  much.   I  th ink  th is  

mat te r  i s  dea l t  w i th ,  o f  cou rse ,  in  de ta i l  in  my a f f idav i t  and  

I  th ink  i t  was done so  Cha i r  as  a  d i rec t  response to  

Ru le  3 .3 .   You sa id  the  t ime I  suggested  to  the 

Commiss ion ,  I  am go ing  to  dea l  –  I  am go ing  to  do  on ly  
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bu ts  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  w i l l  spec i f i ca l l y  ind ica te  where  I  am 

dea l ing  w i th  a  response to  a  par t i cu la r  a l legat ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  PRASA d id  i ssue a  tender  on  

adver t i s i ng .   I  th ink  i t  was in  February  2010.   Th is  tender  

wou ld  then la te r  awarded to  a  company  ca l led  

Provantage/Umjan j i  Consor t ium.   I f  you  look a t  the  –  one o f  

the  issues the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  ment ioned,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  10 

you have th is  Provantage wh ich  pu t  a  b id  and i t  does not  –  

the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  –  we do not  unders tand Umjan j i  as  a  

consor t ium,  comes in  there .   So I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  contex t  

tha t  the  mat te r  i s  ra ised in  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  repor t .    

 Cha i r,  the  -  what  has happened is  tha t  

P rovantage –  I  th ink  tha t  there  were  19  compan ies  tha t  

then responded to  the  PRASA tender.   PRASA then had a  

team tha t  eva lua ted th is  and the  head o f  tha t  team,  Cha i r,  

was none o ther  Mr  Ti ro  Ho le le .   So Mr  Ti ro  Ho le le  led  the  

team,  and then they se lec ted  Provantage/Umjan j i  Med ia  as  20 

a  company to  a l l  o f  tha t .    

 Th is  company –  th is  tender,  Cha i r,  was fo r  –  was 

main ly  no t  on ly  about  adver t i s i ng  bu t  i t  was fo r  med ia  and  

broadcast ing  se rv ices .   I t  was adver t i s i ng ,  med ia  and 

media  adver t i s i ng  and media  as  we l l  as  broadcast ing .   
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They were  a l l  in  one –  under  one tender.  

 Now what  happened Cha i r.   S t rawberry,  I  th ink  i t  

was one o f  the  compan ies  tha t  pu t  a  b id ,  i t  los t .   There  i s  a  

passage.   I t  los t  Cha i r.   I t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  Roy  

Mood ley.   They los t  the  b id  bu t  what  happened is  tha t  b ig  

as  they do ,  they then agreed to  themse lves –  among  

themse lves,  ra ther,  my s t rength  i s  on  th is ,  your  s t rength  i s  

on  tha t .   Le t  us  work  together.  

 So a f te r  we had s igned,  PRASA had s igned the  

cont rac t  w i th  P rovantage.   P rovantage came back to  10 

PRASA.   P rovantage/Umjan j i  came to  PRASA and say:   We 

want  to  see i t .   Par t  o f  the  work  was to  want  to  b r ing  a  

company tha t  w i l l  he lp  us  manage – because they have 

won the  tender  –  the  r igh t  on  broadcast ing ,  adver t i s ing  and  

media ,  they have won –  they go t  tha t  r igh t .   They were  

awarded . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

 So they say:   No,  we want  to  b r ing  S t rawber ry.   

So tha t  mat te r  i s  e leva ted because  when they want  to  b r ing  

a  company in  te rms o f  –  o r  to  see par t  o f  a  con t rac t  o r  

subcont rac t ,  our  SCM po l icy  p rov ides tha t  they must  then 20 

fo rmal ly  app ly  to  PRASA so tha t  PRASA can sa t is fy  i t se l f  

tha t  th is  company has the  capac i t y  to  meet  the  ob l iga t ions 

tha t  a re  there .   So Cha i r,  i t  was done,  they app l ied .    

 Then the  agreement ,  the  dra f t  agreement  was  

presented to  us  tha t  what  S t rawberry  wou ld  do ,  we w i l l  
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then make –  we w i l l  work  on  the  por t fo l io ,  pay Provantage 

and pay them –  Provantage to  pay to  PRASA.   I  sa id :   No,  

bu t  i f  you  love  tha t  mode l  i t  means,  there fo re ,  tha t  

P rovantage/Umjan j i  w i l l  take  a  cu t  be fore  pass ing  on  the  

money.  

 I f  they  want  to  s i t ,  then they must  ag ree tha t  

In te rs i te  was in  a  d i rec t  re la t ionsh ip  so  tha t  you  do not  

have a  m idd leman in  tha t  p rocess .   So when she says she 

spoke to  me,  Cha i r,  i t  was not  me ac t ive ly  go ing  as  the  

CEO.   I  am approached to  say:   Here  is  an  ar rangement  10 

and as  a  CEO ac ts  in  the  best  –  she says in  her  a f f idav i t  –  

we must  ac t  in  the  best  in te res t  o f  the  company.  

 There  is  one ins tance where  I  ac t  in  the  best  

in te res t  to  make sure  tha t  the  revenue fo r  ou tdoor  

adver t i s i ng  does not  go  anywhere  e lse  bu t  goes to  PRASA.   

Then I  say :   No,  tha t  i s  how she  s t ruc tured the  cont rac t .   

So I  th ink  the  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r,  shou ld  o f  cou rse  go to  

Provantage and ask them quest ions ra ther  than re ly ing  on  

the  a f f idav i t  o f  one conf l i c ted  ind iv idua l  who s igned and 

who want  today to  d issoc ia te  herse l f .   And ask  20 

Provantage/Umjan j i  under  what  c i r cumstances d id  you guys  

en ter  th is  ag reement?   Who in i t ia ted  i t?   And a l l  o f  those  

th ings,  Cha i r.  

 There  are  many  le t te rs .   They are  par t  o f  my  

annexures bu t  I  th ink  tha t  we had agreed tha t  she put  
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those th ings now.   Now Cha i r,  so  tha t  i s  the  one pa r t  o f  i t .   

P rovantage w ins  the  tender  and then la te r  on  to  dec ided to  

s i t .   I t  se lec t s  amongst  the  19  peop le  tha t  the  18  o the r  

compan ies ,  Cha i r,  and the  names,  I  have got  a l l  o f  them.   

Outdoor  ne twork .   I  do  no t  want  to  go  in to  de ta i l  about  th is  

company.  

 Who,  Cha i r,  tha t  w i l l  recommend tha t  th is  th ing  

shou ld  be  managed?  I t  i s  none o ther  than Ti ro  Ho le le  who  

recommended tha t :   No,  we have  gone th rough tha t .   We 

have se lec ted  th is  company.   Mr  Ho le le  was a lso  he re ,  10 

Cha i r,  and he d id  no t  remember  th is  th ing .   He spoke about  

o ther  th ings bu t  th is  fac t ,  she does not  te l l  the 

Commiss ion ,  Cha i r.  

 In  the  same way tha t  they  w i thhe ld  such 

in fo rmat ion  on  the  Swi fambo mat te r.   Now Cha i r,  why then  

d id  you go out  on  tender?   And I  know la te r  on  when we  

d iscuss j udgment . . .   A month  ago or  few weeks ago there  

was a  judgment  on  th is  dec is ion  on  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

 P r imed ia  succeeded,  Cha i r,  even though th is  

th ings comes n ine  years  la te r.   The cont rac t  had exp i red .   20 

So tha t  judgment  i s  o f  academic  –  i t  i s  academic  in  the  

sense tha t  i t  does not  have an impact  because I  th ink  tha t  

t ime has passed,  the  cont rac t  has exp i red ,  PRASA is  

dea l ing  w i th  the  mat te r  and they never  go t  i t  done.    

 The b ig  i ssue,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  and I  e labora te  on  
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th is .   What  i s  the  issue?  And why  w i l l  we be f igh t ing  over  

who represents  us  on  th is  mat te r?   And my lega l  adv isor  

was. . .?   Because  you ca lcu la ted  the  numbers ,  Cha i r.   And 

the  numbers  were  ve ry  c lear.   P r imed ia ,  Cont inenta l  were  

the  two lead ing  compan ies ,  Cha i r,  on to  the  PRASA 

network .  

 They were  mak ing  more  money  than PRASA 

i t se l f ,  Cha i r.   So  as  a  CEO of  PRASA I  am requ i red  and I  

never  accused Ms Ngoye tha t  you are  ac t ing  in  the  in te res t  

o f  those. . .   But  we are  a l ready see ing  ins tances o f  10 

co l lus ion ,  Cha i r.   And one o f  the  major  i ssues was  in  the 

recent  judgment  on  th is  Pr imed ia  i ssue.  

 I  th ink  tha t  the  cour t  no ted  the  fac t  tha t  PRASA 

d id  no t  oppose.   And why d id  i t  take  n ine  years ,  Cha i r?   

You know why?  Because i t  took  many years  p rec i se l y  

because the  rev iew app l ica t ion  is  on  the  tab le ,  the  

benef ic ia r i es ,  the  peop le  who had occup ied  PRASA’s  s i tes ,  

cont inue to  make more  money on the  s i tes  than  PRASA 

i t se l f .   So here  I  have got  an  ins tance o f  a  s ta te-owned  

enterpr i se  tha t  i s  be ing  robbed o f  much needed revenue.  20 

 I  come as you,  I  say :   No,  these guys have been 

here  fo r  long.   I ssue a  tender  and  le t  us  ge t  the  benef i t  fo r  

tha t .   I f  you  look a t  the  numbers  Cha i r  you w i l l  be  shocked  

because both  Pr imed ia  and Cont inenta l  –  Pr imed ia  

occup ied  29% of  the  s i tes  tha t  PRASA had.   Con t inenta l  
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was the  second b iggest  one,  Cha i r.   But  i f  you  look a t  the  

amount  they were  pay ing  –  the  smal les t  compan ies  were  

pay ing  the  h ighes t  amount ,  okay?  

 So they were  pay ing  us  –  some o f  the  compan ies  

were  pay ing  us  over  a  thousand per  s i te .   Cont inenta l  and 

Pr imed ia  were  pay ing  us  even two hundred per  s i te .   Yet  

they own the  proper ty.   There  was  no way as  CEO I  wou ld  

a l low tha t  s i tua t i on  to  pers is t  and  tha t  i s  why we saw fo r  

example  tha t  our  own peop le  co l lud ing  w i th  these 

compan ies  tha t  has made in  PRASA’s  th ings.  10 

 And tha t  i s  why our  –  when you look a t  some o f  

the  compan ies  tha t  were  there  and you look a t  the  ro le  of  

my lega l  adv i so r,  i t  i s  th ings l i ke  th is  because she  is  no t  

per fo rming the  funct ion .   She is  no t  manag ing  cases fo r  

PRASA.   I  choose a  CEO.   Here  is  the  d i rec t ion  tha t  you  

take .    

 Now these peop le ,  Cha i r,  w i l l  no t  come and  

tes t i f y  tha t  they go  and ta lk  abou t  St rawber ry,  okay?  And  

when we look a t  the  ar rangement  we had w i th  S t rawberry,  

i t  was g i v ing  us  more  money than  even the  compan ies  pe r  20 

s i te ,  Cha i r,  when you look a t  each s i te ,  okay?  

 But  i f  PRASA goes to  cour t  and say:   We are  no t  

go ing  to  oppose  the  Pr imed ia ’s  th ing  because they are  

f igh t ing .   I t  was  awarded under  Montana ’s  te rms.   Who 

dra f t  the  a f f idav i t s  and the  s ta tements?   Ms Ngoye and 
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Mr  Ho le le .   The very  same peop le  who were  a t  the  hear t  o f  

th is  th ing  and the  one wash the i r  hands and say:   No,  i t  

was an i r regu lar  cont rac t  awarded  by  –  under  Montana ’s  –  

dur ing  Mr  Montana ’s  tenure ,  okay?  

 They do not  take  accountab i l i t y  and say:   Th is  i s  

our  ro le .   What  i s  my ro le  as  CEO?  To ac t .   The  pr imary  

respons ib i l i t y  to  ac t  in  the  best  in te res t  o f  PRASA is  w i th  

me Cha i r.   Now when we c reated PRASA Cres  -  and  

Ms Ngoye does not  say  tha t  in  her  a f f idav i t  Cha i r,  ou r  

p roper ty  and we  changed the  mandate .   We changed the  10 

mandate  a  b i t  ear l ie r  bu t  we had to  then separa te  these  

funct ions.   And  Ms Ngoye then,  o f  course  she br ings 

susp ic ions.   She says a l l  o f  these th ings.    

 No,  Cha i r.   In  fac t ,  I  had mee t ings be tween  

PRASA Cres and In te rs i te ,  a  subs id ia ry  and a  new d iv is ion  

because they were  re fus ing  to  –  there  were  ins tances 

where  the i r  co l l abo ra t ion  was very  impor tan t  fo r  us  t o  

ach ieve our  goa ls  as  i t  were .   I t  has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  

Mr  Mood ley.   I t  has  to  do  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  we had the  

proper ty  por t fo l io  o r  ra ther  an  adver t i s i ng  por t fo l io  where  20 

PRASA was not  mak ing  money and two pr i va te  companies  

were  mak ing  money a t  the  expense . . .  

 Aga in ,  Mr  Son i ,  I  want  to  b r ing  to  your  a t ten t ion  

tha t  when you look a t  the  documents  because I  want  to  ask  

someone to  go  –  to  b r i ng  me the  en t i re  f i le  and they 
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b rought  the  f i le .   The f igures  are  ment ioned the re ,  they are  

shock ing  Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Somebody f rom PRASA? 

MR MONTANA :    What?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    D id  you ask  somebody f rom PRASA? 

MR MONTANA :    No,  no ,  no .   No  someone,  a  lawyer.   A 

lawyer  and say:   Can you  get  me tha t  f i l e?   I  want  to  look 

a t  tha t .   Cha i r,  the  numbers  there  are  shock ing .   We are  

look ing  a t  s ta te  capture .   We say  s ta te-owned enterp r ises  

do  not  work  bu t  here  b ig  p r iva te  compan ies  who are  hav ing  10 

a  feed ing  f renzy on  the  assets  o f  these compan ies .    

 And so  tha t  re la t ionsh ip ,  I  took  tha t  on  and I  d id  

no t  leave tha t  Cha i r.   I  th ink  i t  was a  r igh t  dec is ion .   When 

you look a t  the  papers  tha t  have  been f i led ,  you look a t  

some o f  the  numbers  you w i l l  ac tua l l y  see Cha i r  tha t  one o f  

the  papers  ment ion  the  numbers  and say Pr imed ia  and 

Cont inenta l  made  R 300 mi l l ion  ou t  o f  the  por t fo l io .    

 PRASA on ly  made jus t  a  mere  R 70 mi l l ion .   So 

the  owner  o f  the  asset  ge ts  R 70 mi l l ion ,  okay?   The  

pr iva te  compan ies  who had not  even invested  in  tha t  20 

assets  a l l  o f  them to  pu t  a  board(? ) .   They make a lmost  

R 300 mi l l ion .  

 And I  read in  the  judgment  tha t  par t i cu la r  fac t  

was not  even cha l lenged in  tha t  –  I  am not  say ing  you must  

accept  i t  here .   I  am s imply  ment ion ing  the  fac t  tha t  in  my 
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a f f idav i t  I  dea l  w i th  th is  i ssue . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  look .   Mr  Montana,  we have  

agreed tha t  whatever  i s  in  you r  a f f idav i t  you w i l l  p resent  

now.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no .   I  am not  chang ing  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no .   Ja ,  he  is  no t  chang ing  i t .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am jus t  s imp ly  say ing  tha t  I  am not  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    He is  jus t  ment ion ing  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    I  am not  u rg ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . I  am not  say ing  the  Commiss ion  shou ld  

accept  the  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led  –  the  cour t  judgment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  what  I  am re fer r ing  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  am e labora t ing  on  the  po in t  as  

agreed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  maybe to  c la r i f y  because I  th ink  I  

can see what  maybe caus ing  Mr  Son i  concern .   My  20 

unders tand ing  is  tha t  when you say in  your  a f f idav i t ,  you  

are  no t  say ing  tha t  where  you need to  s ta te  what  i s  in  your  

a f f idav i t ,  you a re  no t  s ta t ing  i t  because we w i l l  see  i t .   You 

are  no t  say ing  tha t?   You jus t  men t ion  tha t .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am dea l ing  w i th  i t  now.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am dea l ing  w i th  i t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .   That  i s  my unders tand ing .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am dea l ing  w i th  i t  now Cha i r  so  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  Mr  Son i  was concerned tha t  we  

had one agreement  ear l ie r  on  and  i f  you dev ia te  f rom i t ,  i t  

shou ld  no t  jus t  be  le f t  l i ke  tha t .   But  I  th ink  you have  10 

c la r i f ied .   Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  in  my a f f idav i t  Cha i r  and you w i l l  

remember  I  submi t ted  th is  to  the  Commiss ion  in  October  

las t  year.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  remember  when  in  las t  

year.   Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  bu t  i t  was in  October,  the  

15 t h  o f  October.   Th is  i s  a lmost  four  months  be fore  th i s  

cour t ’s  judgment .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  20 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  want  to  ind ica te  tha t  I  s ta te  in  my 

a f f idav i t  tha t  P r imed ia  and Cont inenta l  together  occup ied  

55% of  the  s i tes ,  adver t i s ing  s i tes  o f  PRASA but  they pa id  

on  3% of  ren ta l  income wh i ls t  compan ies  tha t  occup ied  

45% of  s i tes  pa id  a lmost  67% of  the  ren ta l .   So on  
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average,  these compan ies  Cha i r  w i l l  pay  1100 pe r  s i te  bu t  

when you look a t  P r imed ia  and  a l l  o f  –  and the  o ther  

compan ies ,  they wou ld  pay you,  Cha i r,  R  200,00.   So i t  i s  a  

huge. . .   Now –  and I  made the  ca lcu la t ion  tha t  i f  we were  

to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Now le t  me jus t  –  jus t  to  reco l lec t  the  

who le  contex t  about  th is .   Th i s  i s  a  t ransact ion  in  te rms o f  

wh ich  a  company tha t . . .   

[break in  recording]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .on  proper t y  be long ing  to  PRASA or  i t s  10 

subs id ia ry.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They put  up  whatever  they want  to  

adver t i se .   I t  i s  on  PRASA’s  proper ty  o r  on  the  subs id ia ry.  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And they –  as  long as  tha t  adver t  i s  

there ,  they pay per  month .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA :    They pay per  month ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .   So Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  tha t  there  –  20 

and I  say  tha t  i f  they  were  to  pay the  same amount ,  

S t rawber ry  –  Pr imed ia  and Con t inenta l  wou ld  bas i ca l l y  

increase the  revenue income fo r  PRASA on the  adver t i s ing  

por t fo l io  by  a lmost  122% Cha i r  and these numbers  

cor re la te  exact ly  w i th  what  i s  conta ined in  tha t  cour t  –  in  
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tha t  l i t i ga t ion  tha t  was unfo ld ing  Cha i r.  

 But  the  cour t ,  I  th ink ,  I  am not  say ing  made a 

wrong dec is ion  bu t  the  cour t  –  i f  PRASA does not  oppose 

and say PRASA –  Mr  Ho le le  i s  there ,  Ms Ngoye is  there .   

They a l low P r imed ia  to  go  to  cour t  and then PRASA 

u l t imate ly  does not  f i l e (?) .    

 And you see –  my lega l  adv isor  sa id  bu t  th is  law  

f i rm tha t  i s  represent ing  us  is  g iv ing  us  adv ice  tha t  we do  

not  –  tha t  we th ink  i s  ac tua l l y  no t  p ro tec t ing  our  own  

in te res t .   And we th ink  we shou ld  change.   We shou ld  10 

change tha t .  

 But  Cha i r  these  are  the  fac tua l  i ssues,  and I  

thought ,  in  some way,  i t  was fa i r.   L ike  Ms Ngoye who says  

you must  ac t  in  the  best  in te res t  o f  the  company,  shou ld  

ra ise  a l l  these issues.   And i f  she fee ls  tha t  St rawber ry  –  

Cha i r,  there  is  no  ev idence.   I  have l i s tened to  these 

th ings.    

 I  have never  heard  one ev idence tha t  says the  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween Provantage/Umjan j i  i s  b roken.   I f  

someone says:   Wel l ,  tha t  re la t ionsh ip  was s ta r ted  by  20 

Montana,  he  has go t  in te res t  in  i t .   They wou ld  be  hav ing  a  

d iscuss ion  he re .   Noth ing  o f  tha t  sor t .   What  we have are  

ins inuat ions.   You know,  tha t  a f te r  the  cont rac t  had been  

s igned,  a t  tha t  t ime we have a lso  now sh i f ted  the  por t fo l io  

to  PRASA Cres,  no t  to  PRASA Corpora te .  
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 Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  ongo ing  th ing .   Ms Ngoye was 

par t  o f  d i scuss ions on  –  when I  went  to  the  Board  o f  

PRASA in  2010,  I  sa id  th ree  th ings to  the  board ,  Cha i r,  

wh ich  is  re levant  to  th is .   I  sa id  we want  –  a f te r  the  Wor ld  

Cup we want  to  have a  d i f fe ren t  o rgan isa t ion .   So we need  

–  we a re  go ing  to  do  th ree  th ings.  

 One,  o f  course ,  as  to  recap i ta l i se  the  asset  o f  

th is  th ing .   The second th ing  was o f  course  to  susta in  ra i l  

ope ra t ions.   But  the  th i rd  one Cha i r  was to  ensure  tha t  we 

w i l l  max im ise  income f rom the  p roper t ies  and the  assets  10 

tha t  we have and tha t  we w i l l  then separa te  PRASA 

In ters i te  and crea te  a  new d i v is ion .  

 The o ther  one w i l l  con t inue be ing  a  subs id ia ry.   

Invest  in  assets .   For  example  the  assets  tha t  inc lude  

te lecoms l ines  so  tha t  we  can ren t  tha t  to  

te lecommunica t ion  compan ies  and  they pay a  fee  fo r  tha t  

to  access tha t .   But  the  proper t y  por t fo l io ,  our  land lord  w i l l  

become a  PRASA Cres and tha t  i s  why tha t . . .   To  th is  very  

day I  unders tand  tha t  tha t  po r t fo l io  i s  s t i l l  be ing  managed 

there  Cha i r.    20 

 But  a t  the  hear t  o f  th is  th ing  Cha i r  i s  the  fac t  

tha t  we have  peop le  who  pro jec t  themse lves as  

revo lu t ionar ies ,  an t i -cor rup t ion  buste rs  bu t  in  rea l  t imes 

are  ac tua l l y  p ro tec t ing  the  in te res t  o f  es tab l i shed 

compan ies  tha t  a re  mak ing  money a t  the  expense o f  
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PRASA.  

 S t rawber ry,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  even know who is  the 

shareho lder  there ,  Cha i r.   I  have never  –  the  on ly  t ime tha t  

Mr  Mood ley  wou ld  speak to  me and he  wanted to  ta lk  to  me  

about  secur i t y,  e i ther  what  work  you are  do ing  and a l l  o f  

those th ings.   Not  S t rawber ry,  Cha i r.   I t  was not  one o f  the  

compan ies .  

 And I  th ink  the  Commiss ion  is  ob l i ged to  go  and 

obta in  an  a f f idav i t  f rom the  CEO of  Provantage or  what  has  

–  the  consor t ium tha t  was ca l led  Umjan j i .   How d id  you 10 

come to  tha t?   But  the  documents  tha t  I  have Cha i r  

inc lud ing  the  main  emai ls ,  i t  shows tha t  Ms Ngoye is  

mak ing  a  major  U- tu rn ,  c rea t ing  a  s to ry  where  emai l  

ev idence a t  tha t  t ime suggested tha t  she was work ing . . .  

 That  i s  why she cannot  even te l l  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  the  agreement  to  s i t  and tha t  In te rs i te  

had to  en te r  in to  an  agreement  w i th  S t rawberry  as  a  resu l t  

o f  tha t  concess ion  tha t  PRASA approved and i t  was s igned  

by  me as the  CEO of  In te rs i te .   And she must  then  say:   I  

d id  no t  want  to  s ign  i t .   I  was fo rced by  Mr  Montana.  20 

 Cha i r,  a t  tha t  t ime,  there  was none.   Now she is  

t ry ing  to  th ink  about  i t  to  b r ing  –  and tha t  i s  why she can 

conc lude 15.2  Cha i r  by  say ing  I  was -  a t  the  t ime I  was 

a l ready the  CEO of  In te rs i te .   She does not  take  i t  to  i t s  

log ica l  conc lus ion .  
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 A t  the  t ime I  was a l ready the  CEO of  In te rs i te  

and I  cou ld  no t  s ign  the  ag reement  be tween In ters i te  and –  

so  i t  i s  about  Lucky Montana .   Lucky Montana was 

captured by  Roy  Mood ley  when the  fac t s  a re  very  c lear  

Cha i r  and tha t  i s  what  I  am out l in ing .  

 And she never  –  you know th is  a f f idav i t  Cha i r,  i t  

i s  so  d isappo in t i ng  because the  en t i re  a f f idav i t  does not  – 

i t  ta lks  about  a  law f i rm tha t  i s  removed but  the  most  

impor tan t  i ssue is .   I s  PRASA as  a  pub l i c  en t i t y  ge t t ing  

va lue  f rom the  por t fo l io  i t  owns?   I t  has  no t  even been 10 

dea l t  w i th  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  where  the  prob lem is  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  wou ld  be  –  tha t  i s  my 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .and o f  course  my submiss ion  and th i s  

submiss ion  Cha i r,  you w i l l  f ind  i t  –  i t  i s  –  when we dea l  

w i th  my a f f idav i t  la te r  on  I  e labora te  on  the  de ta i l s  in  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay a l r igh t .   So tha t  i s  what  you  20 

had to  say about  parag raph 15 and  i t s  sub-paragraphs?  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  i t  p leases .    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  see  tha t  we are  a t  twenty  past  one.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  d id  no t  wan t  to  in te r rup t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  bu t  i t  i s  f ine .   Maybe we  shou ld  

ad journ  now? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  ad jou rn  now and then  we w i l l  

resume a t  twenty  past  two.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson.   

Cha i rperson,  jus t  to  f ina l i se  Mr  Montana ’s  las t  po in t .   We 

were  no t  aware  o f  the  judgment  g iven in  the  Pr imed ia .   I  

have ra i sed w i th  Mr  Montana tha t  we wou ld  apprec ia te  a  

copy o f  the  judgment .   We can look a t  i t  and then dec ide  i f  

there  are  mat te rs  tha t  a r ise ,  tha t  wou ld  have  to be  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana,  can we go on w i th  what  20 

Ms Ngoye says and I  th ink  we were  a t  pa ragraph 15.8  on  

page 284.   She  says tha t  the  th rea ts  o f  remov ing  the  

por t fo l io ,  tha t  is  the  S t rawberry  Worx  por t fo l io ,  were  

car r ied  ou t  on  the  20  May by  Ms Na idoo,  I  th ink  th is  i s  I  

th ink  Ms Mal in i  Na idoo the  lega l  ass i s tan t  in  you r  o f f i ce .   
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Were  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  there  are  two separa te  

i ssues he re .   I  ear l ie r  on  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am so r ry,  le t  me f i rs t  es tab l i sh ,  wh ich  

parag raph are  you on?  

MR MONTANA:    Oh sor ry,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  15 .8  on  page  284.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  yes .   Yes,  Mr  

Montana?  Your  m ic?  

MR MONTANA:    My apo log ies  -  a f te r  lunch.   The lega l  

adv iser  in  my o f f i ce  d id  no t  have such author i t y,  Cha i r,  she 10 

wou ld  no t  have done anyth ing  o f  tha t  sor t .   We had the  

genera l  manager  who was runn ing  what  do  you ca l l  pub l i c  

a f fa i rs  and tha t  the  la te  Hope Z inde .  

She –  they d id  no t  take  –  move the  funct ion .   The  

movement  o f  a  funct ion ,  the  corpo ra te  funct ion  is  a  

s t ruc ture  o f  a  company.   They wou ld  no t  do  someth ing  l i ke  

tha t .    

But  there  was o f  cou rse  the  issue o f  the  f i les  in  

respect  o f  P r imed ia  and Cont inenta l  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  

what  I  conf i rmed  she ca l led  me –  she ca l led  me about  to  20 

say they came and they took some f i les  here  and I  sa id  

look ,  tha t  i s  no t  the  r igh t  way to  do  i t  when peop le  p i t ch  

and took and removed f i les  f rom a  subs id ia ry.   That  i s  no t  

how we shou ld  do  i t .    

Bu t  the  issue o f  the  movement  o f  the  funct ion  f rom 
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In te rs i te ,  i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  th is  f igh t ,  i t  has  to  

do  w i th  the  s t ra tegy o f  the  bus iness about  th is  por t fo l io  

and where  we a l loca te  some o f  these funct ions o f  wh ich  Ms  

Ngoye was par ty  to .    

So I  th ink  fo r  me she is  conf la t ing  those two in to  

one to  make the  argument  tha t  because she had taken a  

d i f fe ren t  pos i t ion  –  and,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  a l l  ev idence w i l l  

show tha t  a t  a  par t i cu la r  po in t  there  was not  even a  

d ispute  be tween In ters i te  under  he r  leadersh ip .    

I  th ink  a  guy by  the  name o f  Mr  Chauke,  Mr  Mar t in  10 

Chauke,  she had wr i t ten  a  lo t  o f  emai ls  on  her  own  beha l f ,  

on  beha l f  o f  In te rs i te  and the  CEO conf i rm ing how they 

were  go ing  to  work  w i th  S t rawberry.  

Now,  Cha i r,  remember  we are  d iscuss ing  adver t i s ing  

por t fo l io ,  Umjan j i  ceded,  i t  i s  no t  the  who le  por t fo l io ,  they 

have ceded the  ou tdoor  par t  o f  tha t  adver t i s ing  por t fo l io  

and I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  tha t  we emphas ise  tha t  

par t i cu la r  i ssue.    

So she i s  ta lk ing  about  Ms Ngoye ’s  a f f idav i t ,  she 

send adver t i s ing  por t fo l io  in  to ta l  bu t  I  do  no t  know i f  20 

tak ing  ou t  tha t  en t i re  adver t i s ing  por t fo l io ,  tha t  speaks to  

S t rawber r ies  because tha t  speaks on ly  one pa r t  o f  the  

en t i re  funct ion  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  want  to  unders tand,  Mr  

Montana,  i f  I  unders tand your  ev idence cor rec t l y,  you are  
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d rawing a  d is t inc t ion  be tween  remov ing  the  funct ion  

re la t ing  to  adver t i s ing  f rom the  f i les  concern ing  Pr imed ia ’s  

compla in t  about  the  un lawfu lness o f  the  award .   I s  tha t  the  

d is t inc t ion  you draw? 

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  I  am say ing  tha t  they are  re la ted  bu t  

they are  no t  one  and the  same th ink ,  Cha i r.   So I  th ink  in  

her  a f f idav i t ,  she is  bas i ca l l y  tak ing  a  pos i t ion  –  le t  say  we 

ta lk  about  Pr imed ia  or  we ta lk  about  S t rawberry  o r  we ta lk  

about  chang ing  o f  these funct ions.   She says the  funct ion  

was changed because i t  was a imed a t  benef i t ing  10 

S t rawber ry  and I  am say ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  incor rec t .    

 Her  s ta r t ing  po in t  i s  tha t  she is  l i s t ing  en t i t ies  tha t  

were  en t i t ies  tha t  be longed to  Mr  Mood ley.   Now we have  

not  been p resented w i th  ev idence tha t  who owns 

S t rawber ry,  who are  the  owners  o f  th is  company,  tha t  i s  

th is  par t i cu la r  company and I  th ink  those fac ts  a re  lack ing  

here ,  Cha i r.  

 So my v iew is  tha t  I  am say ing  some o f  the  th ings 

she is  say ing  may be t rue  bu t  they be long to  a  d i f fe ren t  

contex t  ye t  she has conf la ted  them to  suppor t  her  own 20 

argument  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  why I  am mak ing  a  d is t inc t ion  

in  those mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  the  –  so  you  sa id  tha t  she ca l led  you  

in  re la t ion  to  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    The f i les .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    The remova l  o f  the  f i les .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you to ld  her  tha t  what  they had  

done was wrong,  i t  was not  the  way to  …[ in tervenes ]  

MR MONTANA:    The remova l  o f  the  f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The remova l  o f  the  f i les .  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You were  w i th  he r  on  tha t .  

MR MONTANA:   Exact ly,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  am in  agreement  

w i th  her  on  tha t ,  I  s t i l l  do .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  she i s  now tak ing  tha t ,  Cha i r,  and you 

w i l l  see  tha t  there  has been ongo ing  conf l i c t  there ,  tha t  is  

conf i rmed in  even emai ls ,  f igh ts  tha t  were  there .   When  

peop le  have f igh ts  amongst  themse lves,  i t  i s  o f f i c ia l ,  

someone tha t  e leva tes  her  pos i t ion  and make i t  as  the  

abso lu te  t ru th ,  tha t  no ,  th is  i s  what  i s  r igh t ,  I  am mak ing  

the  best  in te res t  o f  the  bus iness,  the  o thers  are  no t .  

 And I  am say ing  no ,  i t  cannot  be ,  you have to  look  

a t  tha t ,  fo r  example  I  am say ing  i f  you  look  a t  the  20 

argument ,  Cha i r,  and ana lyse  th is  a f f idav i t  and I  look  and 

say what  was fac ing  PRASA a t  tha t  t ime,  i t  was the  fac t  

tha t  i t  was not  about  th is  lega l  f rame tha t  we sa id  i s  be ing  

changed.    

 The pr imary  i ssue f rom someone in  leadersh ip  
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pos i t ion  is  tha t  a re  we ach iev ing  our  s t ra tegy goa ls  o r  

ob jec t i ves  tha t  we se t  ourse l ves as  a  bus iness?  Are  we  

mak ing  money,  ge t t ing  –  max im iz ing  the  revenues f rom the  

adver t i s i ng  por t fo l io  tha t  we have?   

Throughout  in  th is  a f f idav i t  she is  so  p reoccup ied  

w i th  someth ing  e lse ,  tha t  the  pr imary  –  she lose  s igh t  o f  

the  much b igger  p ic tu re  tha t  we are  t ry ing  to  ach ieve and I  

th ink  tha t  i s  par t  o f  why we have some o f  th is  f i ve  issues,  

she is  conf i rm ing  tha t .   So she i s  t ry ing  to  pu t  i t  in  two 

cont ras t ing  l ines .   You are  dea l ing  w i th  good peop le  and 10 

she is  par t  o f  the  good peop le  and you are  dea l ing  w i th  

bad peop le  and Montana are  suppor t ing  Mood ley  and they 

were  suppor t ing  S t rawber ry  and I  am say ing  there  is  fa lse  

d ichotomy tha t  w i l l  no t  he lp  the  Commiss ion  because i t  

does not  p rov ide  the  fac ts .  

So what  I  was t ry ing  to  do  be fore  we went  on to  the  

break,  I  was t ry ing  to  say here  are  the  fac ts  o f  the  mat te r.   

D id  you go out  on  tender?   Who tendered fo r  tha t?   Who 

won tha t  tender?   Who s igned the  le t te rs  and those are  the  

fac ts  tha t  I  am p rov ing ,  Cha i r,  and  they do  not  suppor t  the  20 

l ine  tha t  she has taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Ms Ngoye says tha t  

Ms Na idoo sa id  she had been ins t ruc ted  –  I  th ink  I  saw 

someth ing  a long those l ines  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  she  says -  

she sa id  she was  ins t ruc ted  by  you.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  the  las t  sentence o f  tha t  

parag raph,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  she sa id  she had s t r i c t  ins t ruc t ions  

a l l  f rom Mr  Montana to  remove the  f i les .   So you say you 

were  in  agreement  w i th  Ms Ngoye  tha t  f i l es  shou ld  no t  be  

removed e i the r  –  o r  no t  be  removed in  the  manner  in  wh ich  

i t  was done.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  the  manner  i t  i s  been done,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    And I  th ink  the  f igh t  had to  do  w i th  how 10 

there  was a  d ispute  be tween the  lega l  adv i se r  and how 

In ters i te  was dea l ing  w i th  the  issue o f  the  l i t iga t ion ,  the  

Pr imed ia  l i t iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    

MR MONTANA:    So  I  am say ing  th is  spec i f i ca l l y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    And w i th in  one organ isa t ion ,  jus t  imag ine ,  

Cha i r ,  as  CEO I  g reed tha t  f i l es  a re  taken in  tha t  way,  

there  is  no  proper  handover ,  so  th ings –  go ing  have chaos  

and you are  c rea t ing  a  precedent  where  peop le  can  jus t  go 20 

in to  –  espec ia l l y  subs id ia ry ,  i t  was  subs id ia ry  though I  was  

the  Cha i r ,  i t  requ i red  board  reso lu t ion  to  make even  

dec is ions l i ke  those.   So,  Cha i r ,  I  agreed w i th  her  in  tha t  

spec i f i c  mat te r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:    Bu t  she is  now say ing  we cou ld  no t  

manage the  por t fo l io  because we were  now – we manage i t  

under  very  d i f f i cu l t  cond i t ions  and I  am say ing  tha t  i t  i s  no t  

cor rec t  because i f  you look a t  the  very  documents ,  emai ls  

tha t  a re  ava i lab le ,  ac tua l l y  show tha t  you managed the  

por t fo l io  and you in te rac ted  w i th  the  ve ry  S t rawberry  as  

In te rs i te ,  no t  a t  the  ins t iga t ion  o f  anyone.   You s igned a  

cont rac t ,  the  main  –  the  execut ive  a t  In te rs i te  was  

manag ing  th is  po r t fo l io ,  i t  i s  wr i t ten  where  they are  mak ing  

ar rangements  on  how they shou ld  imp lement  the  ou tdoor  –  10 

what  i s  ca l led  the  ou tdoor  o f  the  type ro le  tha t  i s  there .  

 Now i f  –  and I  was go ing  th rough those emai ls ,  

Cha i r ,  to  t ry  and  p ick  up  whethe r  there  was any area o f  

d isagreement  and d ispute .   There  was none,  Cha i r .   Okay?   

And i t  i s  a t  a  par t i cu la r  po in t  tha t  Ms Ngoye take the  th ing  

and tha t  i s  why I  kept  on  us ing  the  word  a f te r thought ,  tha t  

she wanted to  f ind  ou t  how do you suppor t  th is  s to ry  tha t  

Mood ley  was runn ing  the  show,  le t  us  br ing  S t rawberry .  

 Now does Roy  Mood ley  cont ro l  Umjan j i  and  

Provantage who won the  tender?   And i f  tha t  i s  –  Cha i r ,  the  20 

las t  po in t ,  i f  indeed he cont ro ls  those,  the  peop le  who 

made the  award  –  now who made an accusat ion  aga ins t  

Mood ley  tha t  he  i s  cont ro l l ing  th ings?  I t  i s  Mr  Ho le le .   Now 

Mr  Ho le le ,  i f  P rovantage works  w i th  S t rawber ry  a f te r  be ing  

awarded,  was he aware  o f  tha t?   A t  what  po in t  d id  he  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 145 of 371 
 

become aware  o f  tha t?   Was he cont ro l led  by  Mr  Mood ley?   

 So,  Cha i r ,  we need to  f ind  ou t .   I t  i s  e i ther  these  

peop le  were  g iven ins t ruc t ion  by  me to  say award  th is  to  

Provantage and Provantage then a f te r  be ing  awarded I  say  

work  w i th  S t rawber ry .   None o f  these peop le  a re  say ing  

tha t ,  tha t  we a re  see ing  a  s to ry  tha t  says Mood ley  was 

invo lved by  assoc ia t ion  and not  by  ev idence,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  now jus t  to  ge t  c la r i f i ca t ion .   You 

were  aga ins t  the  way in  wh ich  the  f i les  were  sought  to  be  

removed but  d id  you g ive  an  ins t ruc t ions tha t  they  shou ld  10 

be removed by  some peop le  jus t  d id  i t  the  wrong way o r  

you had not  g iven  any ins t ruc t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r ,  I  have not  g iven the  – I  

have not  g iven any ins t ruc t ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Fo r  the  remova l  o f  f i l es .  

MR MONTANA:    I t  d id  no t  requ i re ,  I  mean,  what  i s  ca l led  

even ins t ruc t ion  f rom me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    These are  an  in te rac t ion  be tween our  

teams on th is  pa r t i cu la r  mat te r  and I  do  no t  know whethe r  20 

i t  was requested,  the  o thers  removed and the  o thers  

dec ided to  use the i r  own s t r i c t  approach in  ge t t ing  these 

par t i cu la r  f i l es .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  funct ion  
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and i t  d id  no t  come f rom me because the  funct i on  issue 

about  where  and  how th i s  po r t fo l io  shou ld  be  managed,  i t  

i s  fa r  beyond S t rawber r ies  or  tha t  th ing  and tha t  i s  a  

dec is ion  tha t  we make as  a  company,  as  an  exco.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    As  we l l  as  a  board ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r .   Now i f  –  and I  

know you were  no t  there ,  i f  Ms Na idoo sa id  to  Ms  Ngoye  

tha t  she had ins t ruc t ions f rom you to  remove the  f i les  and I  10 

know the  d i s t inc t ion  you draw,  so  le t  us  no t  go  back to  

tha t ,  Mr  Montana.   She wou ld  no t  have been re f lec t ing  

what  you to ld  he r ,  Ms Na idoo.   I f  she  to ld  Ms Ngoye you  

had ins t ruc ted  to  remove the  f i les  because you  d id  no t  

ins t ruc t  [ inaudible – speaking simultaneously]  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  we l l  I  wou ld  say,  Ms Ngoye wou ld  

have a  leg i t imate  [ ind is t inc t ]  to  be l ieve  tha t  tha t  comes 

f rom me,  Cha i r ,  par t i cu la r l y  f rom a  lega l  adv iser  bu t  she  

wou ld  a l so  wou ld  want  to  conf i rm tha t  w i th  me and  i f  she  

has go t  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew,  she w i l l  do  exact ly  tha t  bu t  you  20 

w i l l  see  in  th is  submiss ion ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  in  her  a f f idav i t  the  

meet ing  where  a l l  these th ings  are  sa id  i s  a  meet ing  

a t tended by  th ree  representa t i ves  o f  S t rawberry ,  Mr  Ho le le  

and Ms Ngoye.   The lega l  adv iser  i s  no t  even there .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  Mr  Montana,  I  am sor ry  to  
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t roub le  you,  th is  is  a  very  separa te  meet ing ,  th is  i s  now the  

20  May 2013,  the  meet ing  tha t  we are  ta lk ing  about  i s  in  

2011.  

MR MONTANA:    What  page are  we,  sor ry /  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    23  Ju l y  2011 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  page 284,  paragraph 15.8 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am sor ry ,  I  am on page 22.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Go to  Ms Ngoye ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  s ta r ts  –  

you know,  these are  red  numbers  on ly ,  there  are  no  b lack  

numbers ,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  page 277 and then you go to  page 10 

284.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  I  am there .   Sor ry ,  Mr  Son i ,  I  am a t  

the  r igh t  page now.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   So I  am say ing  to  you  a t  15 .8  

Ms Ngoye is  ta lk ing  about  an  in te rac t ion  tha t  happened on 

the  20  May 2013 .   The meet ing  you are  ta lk ing  about  was 

in  Ju ly  2011.   So my quest ion  now is  d i rec ted  to  the  las t  

sentence in  th is  paragraph where  Ms Ngoye sa id  Ms 

Na idoo to ld  her  tha t  she had ins t ruc t ions f rom you.   I  jus t  

want  to  conf i rm,  you d id  no t  g ive  those ins t ruc t ions to  Ms  20 

Na idoo.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no t  a t  a l l ,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   She then says  a t  15 .9  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Be fore  you move,  counse l .   Cha i r ,  I  jus t  
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want  to  –  as  you can see 15.8 ,  the  po in t  I  was mak ing ,  tha t  

there  are  two issues there .   There  is  a  remova l  o f  the  f i les 

and there  is  a  th rea t  o f  the  remova l  o f  the  por t fo l io  and 

they are  be ing  used as  one th ing  and tha t  i s  the  po in t  I  

was t ry ing  to  c la r i f y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We have got  tha t ,  Mr  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t  then a t  15 .9  she says:  

“ I  immedia te l y  ca l led  Mr  Montana but  he  d id  no t  10 

respond. ”  

Then she ca l led  one o f  the  independent  d i rec tors .   That  

does not  concern  us .   I t  car r ies  on  though in  the  las t  

sentence,  she i s  say ing  tha t  Ms Na idoo removed the  f i les .   

Now when d id  you become aware  tha t  Ms Na idoo had 

removed the  f i les?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  i f  you  reca l l ,  I  sa id  ear l ie r  –  and I  

am surp r ised the  –  we are  ta lk ing  about  –  un less  we were  

ta lk ing  about  two d i f fe ren t  th ings.   I  spoke about  Ms  

Na idoo,  who was  the  lega l  adv ise r ,  and I  am ta lk ing  about  20 

the  la te  Ms Hope Z inde.   Now –  and I  was to ld  tha t  Ms 

Z inde accompanied by  Ms Na idoo  removed the  f i les .   Ms 

Z inde was a  genera l  manager  fo r  the  pub l i c  a f fa i rs  

por t fo l io .  

Now throughout ,  Cha i r ,  the  submiss ion ,  the re  i s  no t  
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even any re fe rence to  Ms Z inde in  the  f i le .   I  do  no t  know i f  

i t  i s  ou t  o f  respect  fo r  her  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  tha t  very  same 

day she d id  ca l l  me and we spoke and I  sa id  I  agree w i th  

you tha t  tha t  i s  no t  the  way to  go .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    So  when …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am ask ing  a  d i f fe ren t  –  because Ms 

Z inde is  ment ioned in  paragraph 15 .10.   

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You know,  Mr  Montana,  we  are  no t  10 

go ing  to  make  much prog ress  i f  we do not  answer  

quest ions.   The quest ion  I  asked  is  when d id  you  become 

aware  tha t  Ms Na idoo had removed  the  f i les?  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  an  issue o f  d ispute ,  i t  

i s  no t  a  fac tua l  i ssue.   I  am say ing  tha t  the  issue tha t  was  

there  –  and now tha t  i s  why the  peop le  who removed the  

f i les ,  I  am say ing  tha t  in  my unders tand ing  i t  i s  supposed 

to  Ms Z inde accompanied by  Ms Na idoo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay?  Now tha t  i s  a  fac tua l  i ssue and I  20 

am say ing  tha t  –  now I  was  not  aware  tha t  she is  

ment ioned in  the  next  page but  there  i t  i s  ment ioned in  a  

contex t  o f  a  meet ing ,  no t  in  the  contex t  o f  the  remova l  o f  

f i l es .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  take  th is  b i t  by  b i t .   To  your  
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knowledge were  the  f i les  ever  removed? 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  I  was to ld  –  when she ca l led  me,  

yes,  she conf i rmed they came to  remove the  f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  when she spoke to  you,  accord ing  to  

her  the  f i les  had a l ready been removed? 

MR MONTANA:    Had a l ready been  removed,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  i t  was l a te  in  the  even ing  when  

she ca l led  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MR MONTANA:    And sa id  look,  I  was t ry ing  to  reach you 

dur ing  the  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    And I  spoke to  the  meet ing  independent   

d i rec tor .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Th is  i s  what  happened.   So we spoke  

over  the  phone on tha t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  was on the  same day.  20 

MR MONTANA:    I t  was on the  same date ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  la te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  la te .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And when you say she ca l l ed  you,  

you are  ta l k ing  about  Ms Ngoye.  

MR MONTANA:    Ms Ngoye,  sor ry .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  she says  then –  and I  unders tand 

you are  drawing  a  d is t inc t ion  be tween who was present  

when the  f i les  were  removed.   I  unders tand you to  say you  

thought  Ms Hope  was a l so  the re  –  so r ry ,  Ms Z inde was  

there .   Can I  ask  you th is?   I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t ,  as  Ms Ngoye 

says,  a  board  meet ing  was schedu led  fo r  the  fo l low ing  

day?  I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    The board  meet ing  o f  what ,  o f  In te rs i te?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  what  i t  seems l i ke .   And she 

says she conf ron ted you w i th  t h is  i ssue a t  tha t  board  10 

meet ing .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r ,  I  cannot  reca l l  such a  

conversa t ion ,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   Okay,  le t  us  jus t  look  a t  

what  you agree w i th  and d isag ree w i th .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:     You do not  –  you cannot  reca l l  i f  

there  was a  mee t ing  on  the  fo l low ing day,  tha t  i s  the  21 

May.    

MR MONTANA:    O f  the  board ,  no .   I  assume th i s  i s  the  20 

board  o f  In te rs i te ,  Cha i r .   I  cannot  reca l l  i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   And then she says  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  there  seems to  be  a  prob lem,  Mr  

Son i ,  because ion  pa ragraph 15.8  Ms Ngoye says the  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The meet ing  took p lace on 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The remova l  o f  the  f i les  seems to  have 

happened on the  20  May and then in  paragraph 15.10 she  

says a  board  meet ing  was schedu led  fo r  the  fo l low ing day 

bu t  then she says  27  May 2018,  un less  i t  i s  an  er ror .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You w i l l  reca l l ,  Cha i rperson,  she 

cor rec ted  tha t  when she gave ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  so  i t  is  meant  to  be  21? 10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  meant  to  be  21 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Th i s  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  was 

f i led?  I t  i s  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    She cor rec ted  when she was here ,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  I  am say ing  even i f  they  cor rec t  

i t  here  i t  a lways conven ien t  i f  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  i s  

done.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  in  the  bund le  one can see oh,  20 

th is  was cor rec ted .   So tha t  cou ld  s t i l l  be  done.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  cou ld  s t i l l  be  done.   Ja ,  okay.   So 

tha t  i s  21 s t .   Okay,  you may proceed.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    She says a t  th is  meet ing  she asked 
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you  why you had  not  to ld  her  o f  the  ins t ruc t ion  to  remove 

the  f i le .   Now I  know you say  you d id  no t  g i ve  tha t  

ins t ruc t ion  to  her .   I  jus t  want  to  know whethe r  you reca l l  a  

conversa t ion  w i th  Ms Ngoye about  the  remova l  o f  the  f i le  

except  on  the  phone on the  prev ious mat te r .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r ,  on l y  tha t  n igh t  when we spoke 

about  i t  on  the  phone as  in  15 .9 ,  yes ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  can I  take  i t  tha t  as  regards the  

res t  o f  parag raph  15.10 you say e i ther  you cannot  reca l l  o r  

i t  d id  no t  happen.  10 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r ,  le t  me –  I  do  no t  reca l l  

hav ing  a  d i scuss ion  fo r  15  –  10 .15 .11 w i th  Ms Ngoye,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  she …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    In  the  meet ing  she is  re fe r r i ng  to .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   She says p resent  a t  the  

meet ing  where  Ms Hope Z inde,  Ms Na idoo,  Mr  Ho le le ,  

yourse l f  and he rse l f .   I  take  tha t  those wou ld  a l l  be  the  

board  members  o f  In te rs i te?  

MR MONTANA:    Those wou ld  be?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The  board  members  o f  In te rs i te ,  the  20 

peop le  whom she  names there .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  no ,  th is  –  she was the  CEO of  

In te rs i te ,  the  o ther  peop le  were  the  PRASA co rpora te  

o f f i ce .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  I  see,  okay,  a l r igh t .    
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MR MONTANA:    So  there  were  no  board  members  a t  a l l  

invo l ved in  tha t  d iscuss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  she  in  the  f i rs t  l i ne  o f  pa rag raph  

15.10 ta lks  about  a  board  meet ing  and now o f  course  she  

does not  spec i fy  whethe r  tha t  i s  PRASA board  or  In te rs i te  

bu t  one might  assume tha t  because a t  tha t  t ime she was 

CEO of  In te rs i te  tha t  she is  ta lk ing  about  the  board  o f  

In te rs i te .  

MR MONTANA:    And then she was  a lso  no t  par t i c ipa t ing  in  

the  board  o f  PRASA.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  agree,  Cha i r ,  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  must  be  In te rs i te .  

MR MONTANA:    In te rs i te ,  i t  shou ld  be  In te rs i te  board ,  

Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   But  wou ld  Ms Z inde,  Ms 

Na idoo,  Mr  Ho le le  normal ly  have  been ent i t led  to  a t tend 

board  meet ings o f  In te rs i te?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r ,  on ly  myse l f  as  –  because I  

was cha i r i ng  the  board  a t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  20 

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And Ms Ngoye.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Ngoye as  CEO.   I f  these were  to  

a t tend they wou ld  a t tend per  inv i ta t ion  or  someth ing? 
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry ,  Cha i rpe rson,  can I  in te rvene?   

I  am the  cause,  tha t  i s  why I  want  to  in te rvene.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You w i l l  see  on the  f i f th  l ine ,  th is  i s  

someth ing  I  –  because I  was t ry ing  to  use a  broad s t roke to  

dea l  w i th  15 .10 ,  she says:  

“A t  the  board  meet ing  he  asked  Mr  Montana to  

schedu le  a  meet ing  w i th  a l l  the  re levant  pa r t ies  so  

tha t  the  mat te r  cou ld  be  dea l t  w i th .   He schedu led  a  

meet ing  fo r  a  few  days la te r . ”  10 

So these are  two d i f fe ren t ,  I  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  these are  two d i f fe ren t  meet ings,  

okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am sor ry  about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay,  

you may proceed.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now can you reca l l  a  meet ing  –  now 

we know i t  i s  no t  the  board  meet ing ,  where  the  s ix  o f  you 

d iscussed o r  the  f i ve  o f  you d i scussed.  20 

MR MONTANA:    Not  a t  a l l ,  Cha i r ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    When one looks a t  the  contents  o f  

parag raph 15.10 is  i t  poss ib le  tha t  she i s  m is taken about  

the  day when tha t  d iscuss ion  took p lace?  Maybe  i t  took  

p lace ove r  the  phone on the  even ing  when she ca l led  you  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 156 of 371 
 

o r…? 

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  so ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  -  and tha t  re la tes  

to  15 .9 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    She d id  make a  ca l l  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    We spoke,  tha t  I  remember  v i v id ly .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    And she was,  she was unhappy about  

tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    The board  meet ing ,  o f  course ,  i f  she  

ra ised i t  a t  the  board  meet ing  o f  the  27 t h  –  o f  course  tha t  

shou ld  be  re f lec ted  in  the  m inutes  and the  o ther  meet ing ,  I  

cannot  reca l l  whether  there  was such a  –  tha t  the re  was a  

meet ing  to  d iscuss th is  spec i f i c  i ssue,  Cha i r ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  tha t  i s  the  po in t  I  am mak ing ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    That  some o f  these th ings are  m ixed and  20 

I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  b i t  o f  p rob lem tha t  I  have,  a lso  w i th  the  

sequenc ing  o f  what  you are  t ry ing  to  por t ray  bu t  I  th ink  le t  

us  dea l  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  as  i t  i s ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because she does say in  pa ragraph 

15.10 tha t  you r  response when she asked you why you had  
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no t  to ld  her  abou t  your  i ns t ruc t ion  tha t  the  f i les  shou ld  be  

removed f rom In ters i te ,  she does  say you responded by  

say ing  tha t  you had noth ing  to  do  w i th  tha t  ins t ruc t ion  and  

tha t  you d id  no t  know what  she was ta lk ing  about .   

 Now tha t  m ight  no t  be  exact ly  in  the  same way you  

put  i t  bu t  i t  re f lec ts  –  i t  i s  cons i s ten t  w i th  what  you sa id .  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You know,  you  say you had no t  g iven 

ins t ruc t ion  and tha t  i s  what  you to ld  her .  

MR MONTANA:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And then the  on ly  next  th ing  is  the  

quest ion  o f  the  suggest ion  o f  a  meet ing .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  the  peop le  she l i s ts  there  wou ld  

be  present .   You say you do not  reca l l  …[ in te rvenes ]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  do  no t  reca l l ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  par t .  

MR MONTANA:    I  am not  deny ing ,  i t  i s  poss ib le ,  bu t  I  do  

no t  reca l l  us  hav ing  tha t  meet ing ,  Cha i r,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Can I  jus t  pu t  to  you -  and I  

unders tand your  answer  –  I  jus t  pu t  to  you and we know 

what  your  answer  i s ,  so  tha t  you fu l l y  responded to  

every th ing  tha t  she has sa id  because she sa id  a t  the 

meet ing  and i t  have not  even gone on fo r  f i ve  m inutes  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 158 of 371 
 

when you accused Mr  Ho le le  and her  o f  no t  fo l low ing your  

ins t ruc t ions,  and I  w i l l  j us t  te l l  you  what  those ins t ruc t ions  

are .   

 That ,  so r ry  Mr  Ho le le  then sa id  you  had no author i t y  

to  jus t  remove the  mandate  o f  the  adver t i s ing  por t fo l io  

f rom In ters igh t  w i thout  a  p roper  board  reso lu t ion  and thus  

he  cou ld  no t  have car r ied  ou t  tha t  ins t ruc t ion .   Can you 

reca l l  tha t?    

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  no .   But  le t  me a lso  say tha t  th is  

very  po in t  i s  made ear l ie r  in  the  ear l ie r  pages,  where  she 10 

sa id  she sa id  to  me tha t  she  is  ask ing  fo r  a  board  

reso lu t ion  and none was prov ided.   La ter  on  in  the 

a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Ho le le  says tha t .  

 Cha i r,  the  I  am not  su re  i f  Mr  Ho le le  wou ld  d i sobey  

a  lawfu l  ins t ruc t ion  f rom me,  un less  i f  he  s ta ted  i t  and say  

tha t  I  cannot  c lea r ly,  bu t  th is  PRASA tha t  i s  descr ibed here  

Cha i r,  i t  rea l l y  shocks me tha t  th is  Mr  Montana was so  

haphazard ,  he  jus t  a r r i ved and sa id  move a  funct ion .  

 A funct ion  Cha i r,  le t  us  par t  the  f i les  a  b i t .   A 

funct ion  is  a  b ig  th ing .   I t  has  to  do  w i th  budge t  and a 20 

number  o f  Employees Cha i r.   They do not  jus t  come and 

say move the  s tu f f  there ,  and I  th ink  Ms Mboye because o f  

what  she is  t r y ing  to  po r t ray  or  p resent  to  the  commiss ion ,  

she is  dea l ing  w i th  the  issue o f  f i les  and e levat ing  tha t  to  

the  issue about  the  funct ion .   
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 I  th ink  here  poss ib ly  what  she was t ry ing  to  do  i s  

she was t ry ing  to  debate  how PRASA was dea l ing  w i th  the  

issue o f  l i t i ga t ion  o f  [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r.   So I ,  tha t  i s  what  

my th ink ing  is  and tha t  i s  why I  have a  prob lem wi th  a l l  o f  

those th ings there .   

 Mr  Ho le le  never  sa id  tha t  I  do  no t  remember  s i t t ing  

in  a  meet ing  where  he  sa id  tha t ,  I  mean i f  you look a t  i t  Mr  

Ho le le  was s t i l l  a t  PRASA corpora te  o f f i ce ,  no t  even a t  

In te rs igh t  and I  th ink  th i s  t ime Cha i r  you w i l l  see  even the  

s tu f f  tha t  he  was  wr i t ing ,  tha t  he  wou ld  no t  even express 10 

such a  c r i t i ca l  v iew Cha i r.   

 I t  on ly  became,  i t  became so  voca l  when I  have  

taken d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion  aga ins t  h im Cha i r,  fo r  o ther  wrong  

th ings tha t  he  has done.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease Cha i rperson.   Mr  

Montana,  I  do  no t  want  us  to  en ter  th is  debate ,  bu t  I  am 

say ing  to  you when one reads 1511,  the  one th ing  tha t  i s  

qu i te  c lear  because I  accepted the  d i s t inc t ion  you drew 

between remov ing  the  f i le  re la t ing  to  the  case tha t  Pr ime  20 

Med ia  was go ing  to  b r ing ,  and remov ing  the  adver t i s ing  

funct ion  in  re la t ion  to  S t rawberry  Walks .   

 But  i f  no th ing  e lse ,  1511 makes  tha t  qu i te  c lear,  

because Ms Ngoye says tha t  you sa id  they,  he  to ld  you you 

had no mandate  to  move the  adver t i s i ng  por t fo l io .   So I  
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accept  the  d is t inc t ion  you draw.   I  am say ing  tha t  they are  

no t  m is taken about  i t .   

 They know the  tune.   She says they removed the  

f i les  on  the  one  day and now she is  ta lk ing  about  the  

remova l  o f  the  adver t i s ing  por t fo l i o  as  we l l .   I  do  no t  want  

you to  react  to  i t ,  you  have g iven your  v iew.   I  am jus t  

say ing  to  you tha t  based on th i s ,  tha t  i s  no t  cons is ten t  w i th  

what  i s  conta ined  in  Ms Ngoye ’s  a f f idav i t .   

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r,  I  no te  tha t  bu t  I  do  no t  agree  

w i th  1511.   That  i s  the  po in t  tha t  I  made,  ja .   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes no ,  no ,  no  I  unders tand.   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  le t  me  say Mr  Son i  you keep on  

confus ing  I  th ink  probab ly  even the  Cha i r,  because you 

then say and I  th ink  you have cor rec ted  i t  now,  adver t i s ing  

por t fo l io  and then ear l ie r  on  you were  ta lk ing  about  

remov ing  the  S t rawberry  Por t fo l io .   

 So I  th ink  tha t  somet imes when  I  respond,  i t  i s  

because o f  . . .  I  do  no t  th ink   i t  happened consc ious ly,  bu t  I  

th ink  then when I  respond . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   20 

MR MONTANA:   I  jus t  wanted you to  no te  tha t  po in t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.   I  am jus t  aga in ,  sor ry  I  know 

you say tha t  you cannot  reca l l  tha t  th is  happened or  

p robab ly  i t  d id  no t  happen.   She says a t  1512:  
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 “ I  was taken aback by  th is  approach.   I  thought  

the  purpose o f  the  meet ing  was to  dea l  w i th  

the  a l leged ins t ruc t ion  wh ich  she  had den ied  

g iv ing  you. ”  

 Then she says Ms Na idoo accused her  o f  f raud and  

maladmin is t ra t ion  o f  the  por t fo l io  and tha t  she was 

pre fe r r ing  o ther  med ia  p layers  over  S t rawber ry  Wa lks .   Can 

you reca l l  whether  i t  happened a t  th is  meet ing  or  some 

o ther  meet ing?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  Cha i r,  my adv i sor  . . .  10 

my adv ice ,  my adv i sor  was not  per fo rmed o r  [ ind is t inc t ]  

Cha i r.   A t  tha t  t ime an adv i sor  does not  pe r fo rm execut ive  

funct ion .   She adv ises me.   She in te rac ts ,  pu l l  ou t  the  r igh t  

k ind  o f  in fo rmat ion  and she wou ld  no t  make,  she wou ld  no t  

make Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know but  I  th ink  the  re la t ionsh ip  

be tween Ms Ngoye and Ms Na idoo was not ,  i t  i s  c lea r  i t  

was not  a  good  one,  and you can see tha t  how she is  

pumping th i s  i ssue.   

 But  Cha i r,  i f  she  were  to  say tha t  to  an  execut ive ,  I  

wou ld  no t  she ra ther  say  tha t  to  me,  tha t  so  and so  I  th ink  20 

is  gu i l t y  and he re  are  the  fac ts ,  bu t  i f  I  s i t  w i th  my  

execut ives  and she says tha t ,  I  w i l l  never  accept  that  

Cha i r,  because i t  w i l l  be  a  d is respect  no t  o f  the  execut ives  

themse lves,  bu t  fo r  me as  the  CEO,  and I  w i l l  no t  accept  

tha t .    
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 So  I  do  no t  th ink ,  I  th ink  Ms Na idoo has a  great  

p ro fess iona l ,  a  sharp  lega l  m ind.   I  th ink  she d id  

t remendous work  fo r  us .   The fac t  tha t  on  th is  one w i th in  

the  bus iness,  there  was th is  b ig  conf ron ta t ion  and tha t  

there  was,  and I  th ink  th is  was in  fac t  un for tunate ly  her  

t ime l ines a re  no t  in  th is  a f f idav i t .   

 I t  w i l l  even make us  unders tand  a t  what  po in t  we 

were  Cha i r.   So yes,  th ings were  no t  smooth .   There  were  

those type o f  tens ions and conf l i c ts  be tween peop le ,  bu t  I  

th ink  Ms Ngoye had made a  cho ice  to  pu t  them to  say no  10 

th is  were  happen ing  to  S t rawberry,  S t rawberry  i s  supposed 

to  be  l inked to  Mr  Mood ley.   

 That  i s  the  po in t  she is  mak ing  Cha i r,  even i f  the  

fac ts  . . .  so  she  is  t ry ing  to  ha rness the  fac t s  o r  the  

par t i cu la r  exper ience to  suppor t  tha t  v iew,  and I  do  no t  

share  tha t  v iew Cha i r.   That  i s  wha t  I  am say ing  to  you,  to  

Mr  Son i .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t ,  bu t  she says someth ing  qu i te  

s ign i f i can t  therea f te r  a t  the  top  o f  page 286.   She says:  

 “ I  to ld  Mr  Montana he w i l l  have to  pu t  me on 20 

suspens ion  i f  he  be l ieved the  a l legat ions 

aga ins t  me,  so  tha t  he  cou ld  conduct  an  

invest iga t ion  [ ind is t inc t ] . ”  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  th is  d id  no t  happen.   I t  d id  no t  

happen.   The on ly  t ime tha t  Ms Ngoye get  me to  do  tha t  
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she knows tha t  she le f t  PRASA.   When I  t r ied  to  speak to  

her  and she shows,  she showed s igns o f  insubord ina t ion ,  

she d i s respected  in  fac t  the  mee t ing ,  the  fac t  tha t  I  was  

hav ing  peop le  the re .   

 I  sa id  look ,  I  hear  your  concerns and th is  re la ted  to  

Mr  D ing iswayo.   So i f  she  had dea l t  me in  tha t  way i f  there  

was such a  meet ing  Cha i r,  I  know tha t  I  wou ld  have  ac ted  

immedia te ly  w i thout  any hes i ta t ion .   I t  d id  no t  happen  

Cha i r.    

 So  I  th ink  tha t  for  me,  I  no te  tha t  i t  i s  in  l ine  w i th  10 

the  nar ra t i ve  tha t  she wants  to  p resent .   I  am say ing  i t  i s  

no t  the  t ru th  and the  commiss ion  w i l l  eva lua te  whethe r  

what  she is  say ing  and what  I  am say ing ,  once my a f f idav i t  

i s  p resented Cha i r,  what  ac tua l l y  cou ld  be  the  t ru th  in  

these mat te rs .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Then  she goes on in  re la t ion  

to  tha t  p ropos i t ion  to  you,  tha t  she be put  in  suspens ion .   

She says:  

 “However,  ins tead o f  tak ing  s teps  aga ins t  me,  

Mr  Montana out raged as   he  was ins t ruc ted  the  20 

manager  who  was respons ib le  fo r  the  

adver t i s i ng  por t f o l io  a t  In te rs igh t ,  and had 

recent ly  been moved to  repor t  to  Ms Z inde,  Mr  

Mar t in  Chauke be suspended w i th  immedia te  

e f fec t . ”  
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 Now she i s  dea l ing  w i th  a  lo t  o f  th ings he re .   She is  

ta lk ing  about  d i f fe ren t  peop le ,  bu t  the  essence as  I  

unders tand i t  she is  say ing  you  then ins t ruc ted  tha t  Mr  

Chauke be suspended.   Hav ing  regard  to  the  ca l l  on  you to 

suspend he r,  pend ing  an invest iga t ion  in to  the  a l legat ions 

Ms Na idoo made.   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  i t  i s  un for tunate  tha t  Ms Z inde i s  

no t  w i th  us ,  because I  know,  I  know the  reason why she 

wanted to  take  ac t ion  aga ins t  he r.   Mr  Chauke,  and  I  th ink  

a t  tha t  t ime i f  I  remember  he  had  repor ted  tha t  to  he r,  to  10 

the  ER depar tment  a t  PRASA on why there  shou ld  be  such 

an ac t ion .  

 Aga in  a  separa te  ac t i v i t y  wh ich  is  l inked to  suppor t  

the  nar ra t i ve  tha t  she wants  to  make.   I  th ink  tha t  Cha i r  I  

have never  made  such an ins t ruc t ion .   Mr  Mar t in  Chauke  

when he was a t  PRASA,  I  th ink  he  was a  sen ior  manager  

Cha i r.   

 He was not  even  a  genera l  manager.   I  on ly  dea l t  

w i th  g roup execu t ives  and genera l  managers .   So I  do  no t  

th ink  Cha i r,  i t  was r igh t  to  p resent  i t  in  tha t  way and Cha i r,  20 

a lso  I  do  no t  l i ke  the  way Ms Z inde comes to  the  p ic tu re .   

Remember,  be fore  I  saw these pa rag raphs,  I  spoke to  her  

in  a  d i f fe ren t  ro le .   

 Now she comes  out  there  and she is  ac t ing  in ,  

under  my ins t ruc t ions and I  was out raged.   That  i s  what  
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she  is  say ing .   Out raged as  he  was.   Cha i r,  i t  takes t ime 

to ,  fo r  me to  be  provoked and sure ly  I  do  no t  know what  Ms 

Ngoye is  descr ib ing  here  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  Mr  Son i  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  th is  may  

not  have been done or  i t  may be  necessary  to  ob ta in  the  

a f f idav i t s  o f  Mr  Ho le le  and Ms Na idoo to  g i ve  the i r  vers ion  

about  what  happened a t  th is  meet ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Obv ious l y  Ms  Z inde is  la te ,  there  is  

no th ing  we can do about  tha t ,  bu t  I  am su re  Ms Na idoo can  10 

be found somewhere  and Mr  Ho le le .   We do not  have an  

a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  Ho le le  about  th is?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Ho le le ,  you w i l l  reca l l  Cha i rperson.   

He was the  f i rs t  w i tness in  PRASA.   He made a  genera l  

s ta tement  bes ides dea l ing  w i th  what  Ms Mood ley  to ld  h im.   

He made a  genera l  s ta tement  tha t  he  had  read the  a f f idav i t  

o f  Ms Ngoye and Mr  D ing iswayo  and he conf i rmed the  

cor rec tness o f  those a l legat ions in  so  fa r  as  they  

concerned h im.  

 But  obv ious ly  th i s  i s  now a  d i f fe ren t  i ssue.   I t  i s  no t  20 

jus t  s imp ly  a  concern  f ree  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   We wi l l  have to  ge t  de ta i l s  about  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja  and a t tempts  can be made by  Ms  

Na idoo as  we l l .    
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  we l l  Mr  Montana I  am sure  w i l l  

he lp .    

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  assuming they a re  s t i l l  i n  touch.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l ,  you  w i l l  reca l l  Cha i rperson,  I  

asked ea r l ie r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I f  he  had asked is  Ms Na idoo can  

a t tend these p roceed ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay,  I  d id  no t  know tha t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  tha t  i s  the  Ms Na idoo  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Contex t  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  wanted to  inv i te  her  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Espec ia l l y  because there  were  mat te rs ,  I  

wou ld  ask  a  number  o f  peop le .   Some o f  them former  

PRASA Employees . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Wi l l  remember  t he  de ta i l s  and I  consu l t  

w i th  them on these issues,  so  I  w i l l  speak to  her  Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  tha t  i s  f ine  and then you can g ive 

her  number  to  Mr  Son i .  

MR MONTANA:   Son i ,  ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  somebody.   Ja .   Or  Ms Rangata  or,  ja  

okay.   A l r igh t ,  le t  us  cont inue.   
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Then  she goes on to  say,  th is  

i s  Ms Ngoye:  

 “Mr  Montana then ins t ruc ted  me to  ca l l  Mr  

Chauke and te l l  h im to  br ing  back a l l  PRASA 

proper ty  tha t  even ing  as  he  was suspended 

w i th  immedia te  e f fec t . ”   

 Which  i s  obv ious ly,  now th i s  i s  the  27 t h  because i t  

i s  a  few days la te r.   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  can I  see the  copy o f  the  le t te r?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   There  are  no  le t te rs .   Whatever  we 10 

have Mr  Montana ,  we have presented i t .   

MR MONTANA:   No,  I  am say ing  Mr  Chauke is  s t i l l  there  

Cha i r.   He rece ived a  le t te r  o f  suspens ion .   Can we have  

tha t  le t te r?   Was i t  a  le t te r  s igned by  me o r  who s igned the  

le t te r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can I  ask  you le t  us ,  and I  do  no t  

mean to  be  d is respect fu l  Mr  Montana.   Th i s  i s  an  

invest iga t ion  in to  a  who le  number  o f  a l legat ions.   I f  you  

want  to  deny i t ,  deny i t  and we w i l l  ta lk  to  Mr  Chauke,  bu t  20 

we cannot  keep say ing  can I  see th is  and can I  see  tha t .   

 I t  i s  no t  go ing  to  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  no  Mr  Son i .   No,  no ,  no .  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on,  hang on,  hang on.   Mr  Montana  
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i s  no t  a  lawyer.   He has den ied  some o f  the  th ings tha t  a re  

be ing  sa id  by  Ms  Ngoye.   I  suspect  tha t  i f  Ms Ngoye says 

Mr  Chauke was suspended in  the  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  he  is  

deny ing  some o f  the  th ings,  i f  he  w ishes to  see the  le t te r  

o f  suspens ion  I  th ink  tha t  i s  f ine .   

 But  i f  we do not  have i t ,  we do not  have i t .   So  i f  we  

can f ind  i t  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  i f  we cannot  f ind  i t ,  then tha t  i s  

what  we can jus t  have.   We do not  have i t  o r  we cannot  

f ind  i t  and then i t  may we l l  be  tha t  there  i s  someth ing  tha t  

he  wants  to  look  a t  there  wh ich  m ight  he lp  h i s  vers ion .  10 

 Or  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  there  i s  no th ing ,  bu t  le t  us  

see i f  we can f ind  the  le t te r  f rom Mr  Chauke.   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  the  reason  I  am ask ing  fo r  i t  i s  no t  

to  a rgue.   I  am say ing  I  jus t  want  to  remind  myse l f ,  

because here  and we are  dea l i ng  w i th  a  fac tua l  i ssue  

wh ich  is  very  impor tan t  Cha i r,  and because the  . . .  we are  

to ld  tha t  two peop le  handed the  le t te r  to  Mr  Chauke .   

 The le t te r,  so  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  i t  w i l l  he lp  me  

to  make even the  reco l lec t ion  and what  was the  contex t .   

Was the  le t te r  s igned by  me,  s igned by  somebody e l se .   20 

We are  to ld  i t  i s  be ing  handed over  bu t  we are  no t  t o ld  who 

s igned the  le t te r,  who suspended Mr  Chauke and what  was 

the  spec i f i c ,  wha t  was the  spec i f i c  t ransgress ion  tha t  he  

was suspended.   

 So I  jus t  wanted to  do  tha t  to  ass is t  the  commiss ion  
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Cha i r.   Not  to  a rgue aga ins t  what  Ms Ngoye is  say ing .   I t  i s  

poss ib le  bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  d isc la im tha t  Cha i r,  hence I  

was ask ing  fo r  the  le t te r.  

 But  I  w i l l  accept  i t  Cha i r  i f  the  commiss ion  does not  

have i t ,  bu t  no t i ng  tha t  Mr  Chauke i s  there  and he has 

deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  I  th ink  on  the  mat te r  o f  Mr  Mood ley,  

I  th ink  he  probab ly  has a  copy o f  tha t  le t te r  and he cou ld  

share  i t  to  the  commiss ion  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  th ink  Mr  Son i  le t  us  jus t ,  

somebody maybe  the  invest iga to r  can check and i f  i t  is  10 

there  i t  i s  there ,  i f  i t   no t  there  i t  i s  no t  there .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson,  I  was not  be ing  shor t  

w i th  Mr  Montana.   I  am t ry ing  to  ge t  a  vers ion  ou t  o f  h im 

and I  th ink  i f  you  d id  no t  do  i t ,  te l l  us .   Then we know tha t  

we need to  go  and look Cha i r,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  was not  in tended as  anyth ing  e lse  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  to  ex t rac t  f rom Mr  Mon tana an  20 

answer  to  the  a l legat ion  tha t  you ins t ruc ted  tha t  he  be  

d ismissed but  tha t  does not  p rove . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  we jus t  want  a  vers ion  on  record  

so  we can say tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  the  a l legat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  the  response.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  maybe i t  wou ld  have been more  

he lp fu l  i f  Mr  Montana had s tar ted  by  say ing  tha t  i s  no t  t rue 

and then he cou ld  enqu i re  about  the  le t te r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  no  no  I  unders tand.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   But  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Le t  us  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  we leave tha t  po in t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   We know we must  t ry  and  get  the  

le t te r  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Ja .   That  i s  f ine .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Montana,  and p lease I  am not  

be ing  d is respect fu l  o f  you.   As  I  say,  i f  you  cannot  

remember  or  you  say look,  I  do  no t  reca l l  i t ,  bu t  i f  I  am 

shown the  le t te r  I  do  no t  m ind,  bu t  a t  leas t  we know tha t  i s  20 

your  react ion .  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  I  was t ry ing  to  

say,  ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  can I  ask  you th is  jus t  as  a 

genera l  quest ion .   Do you know whethe r  you suspended 

h im or  no t ,  do  you know i f  Mr  Chauke was suspended? 

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know.   I  do  no t  know,  tha t  

i s  why I  need to  go  and ve r i f y  exac t ly  tha t  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Because  i t  i s  sa id  tha t  he  was 

suspended w i th  f u l l  pay  fo r  two years ,  bu t  he  was  brought  

back,  tha t  i s  a t  15 .15 .   But  obv ious ly  i f  you  do not  know 

tha t  he  was suspended,  you cannot  mean ing fu l l y  react  to  

tha t .   10 

 A t  15 .15 .    

MR MONTANA:   I  see  tha t  Cha i r,  I  see  tha t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   A l r igh t ,  now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wou ld  you know whether  he  was charged  

or  no t  charged?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have the  de ta i l s .   

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know.   Ja ,  okay.   

MR MONTANA:   The on ly  th ing  Cha i r  tha t  15 .15 ,  the  f i rs t  

par t  I  wou ld  no t ,  bu t  I  take  no te  o f  what  i s  sa id  in  the 

fo l low ing l ines .   He was one o f  the  Employees who was  20 

brought  back to  the  o f f i ce  a f te r  the  board  o f  Mr  Popo 

Mole fe  had ins t ruc ted  tha t  a l l  suspens ions o f  Employees be  

invest iga ted .   

 I  a lso  record  tha t  the  aud i to r  genera l  had noted tha t  

severa l  PRASA Employees were  on  suspens ion  fo r  very  
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long per iods w i thout  any charges and tha t  th i s  cou ld  

const i tu te  waste fu l  expend i tu re .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Now a t  15 .17  he makes the  

po in t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   No,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Sor ry  Mr  Son i ,  and Cha i r  jus t  to  why I  

read tha t  par t ,  is  because a t  tha t  t ime Ms Ngoye  herse l f  

was suspended.   The pa ragraph tha t  she is  descr ib ing  on  

how she came back and I  th ink  i t  was Nor ton  Rose  or  one 10 

o f  those law f i rms  wh ich  came back .  

 I  th ink  a f te r  I  had le f t  PRASA,  bu t  I  th ink  I  have 

seen where  a  lo t  o f  Employees who were  suspended Cha i r,  

no t  in  one cent re ,  in  d iv is ions everywhere .   Ms Ngoye  

reca l led  she was  suspended amongst  the  charges she was  

fac ing  was the  issue o f  the  regu la r  payment  o r  approva l  o f  

var ia t ion  o f  58  m i l l ion  to  SA Fence and Gate .   

 She was suspended by  me Cha i r  fo r  a  number  o f  

th ings,  inc lud ing  tha t  and immedia te ly  a f te r  I  have le f t ,  she 

is   one o f  those peop le  tha t  were  brought  back th rough the  20 

same process Cha i r  and a  lo t  o f  peop le  were  no t ,  d id  no t  

take  accountab i l i ty  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t .   

 So I  am read ing  i t  Cha i r,  because  i t  then te l l s  you 

tha t  we i f  the  board ,  I  am not  sure  i f  the  board  o f  PRASA 

had taken a  spec i f i c  dec is ion  and say tha t  spec i f i c  person,  
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bu t  peop le  were  brought  back and  some o f  them a re  issues 

tha t  I  am pursu ing  w i th  the  commiss ion  tha t  in  fac t  these  

peop le  shou ld  be  he ld  accountab le  fo r  some o f  the i r  

ac t ions Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   In  regard  to  15 .17  you have  

made th is  po in t  be fore  Mr  Mon tana,  tha t  the re  is  no  

ev idence tha t  you have seen l ink ing  Mr  Mood ley  to  

S t rawber ry  Walks .   That  i s  15 .17 .  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  w i th  what  we have d iscussed I  

agree w i th  you and Mr  Son i .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   Wi th  what  we have d iscussed about  these 

meet ings and every th ing .   I t  ac tua l l y  te l l s  us  about  the  

ongo ing  bat t les  w i th in  a  pub l i c  en t i t y  a t  a  par t i cu la r  po in t .   

I  thought  tha t  w i l l  be  shown,  i t  i s  on  the  same fence,  you  

know the  hand o f  the  one tha t  i s  man ipu la t ing  th is .   

 There  is  no  ev idence tha t  does tha t  and then the  

conc lus ion  is  d rawn . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember  to  t rans la te  tha t  Mr  Montana.    

MR MONTANA:   The hand,  what  i s  i t  ca l led  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So  I  am not  go ing  to  he lp  you.  

MR MONTANA:   I f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Son i  must  hear  what  you are  te l l ing  

me.   

MR MONTANA:   Man ipu la t ing  hand.   We a lways say i t  i s  a  
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monkey ’s  hand Cha i r.   That  i s  my,  ja  i t  i s  a  say ing  tha t  you  

cannot  t rans la te .   [ Ind is t inc t ]  chang ing  th is .   We have not  

Cha i r,  we have dea l t  w i th  f igh ts  be tween PRASA peop le ,  

okay.    

 We have dea l t  w i th  ups and downs and then a t  the  

end,  w i th  the  s t roke o f  a  pen,  th is  shows how Mr  Mood ley,  

sure ly  we can do bet te r  than th is  Cha i r  in  te rms o f  

ev idence.   I  thought  Cha i r  le t  us ,  because the  meet ing  

where  Mr  Mood ley  was sa id  and I  have seen the  a f f idav i t s ,  

where  Mr  Mood ley  was sa id  to  have in te rac ted  w i th  10 

PRASA.   

 Was 2017 a f te r  I  have le f t .   I  le f t  in  2015.   He is  

in te rac t ing  w i th  PRASA in  2017.   So maybe he became 

power fu l  Cha i r  in  2017 a f te r  I  have le f t  PRASA and when  

h im and the  Cha i rman o f  the  board  were  p lay ing  go l f  

together  o r  a r rang ing  go l f  t r ips  a l l  over  the  wor ld .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Son i ,  d id  you sk ip  15 .16  de l ibera te l y  

o r  was i t  ove rs igh t  o r  I  d id  no t  hear  you dea l  w i th  i t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson ,  I  in  my notes  I  d id  no t  

th ink  i t  was re levant .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay,  maybe  le t  me c la r i f y.   Le t  me 

c la r i f y.   You see a t  paragraph 15.16 Mr  Montana,  Ms Ngoye 

says:  

 “The e f fec t  o f  mov ing  the  adver t i s i ng  por t fo l io  

f rom In ters igh t  to  PRASA is  tha t  the 
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management  o f  the  por t fo l io  was not  in  the  

in te res t  o f  PRASA and PRASA benef i t ted 

lega l l y  i f  any th ing  f rom the  por t fo l io . ”  

 Now I  know tha t  you have sa id  a  lo t  about  the  

d is t inc t ion  be tween remov ing  the  por t fo l io  and remov ing  

the  f i les .   I t  i s  c lear  f rom th is  paragraph tha t  Ms Ngoye ’s  

vers ion  is  tha t  the  po r t fo l io  was moved.   Now I  wan t  to  ask  

the  quest ion  whe ther  wh i le  you were  there  as  group CEO,  

was the  por t fo l io  ever  moved f rom In ters igh t  to  PRASA? 

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  indeed.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was moved.  

MR MONTANA:   The por t fo l io  was  moved.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   A t  the  po in t ,  I  th ink  I  admi t ted  tha t  a t  the  

beg inn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  I  m issed tha t .   

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  I  sa id  the  reasons fo r  mov ing  the  

por t fo l io  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Has noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  f igh t  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  you sa id  i t  was about  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  the  po in t  I  am mak ing  Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was about  wha t  the  s t ra teg ic  ob jec t i ves  
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o f  the  company and whether  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   The company was mak ing  money out  o f  

th is  por t fo l io .  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  in  fac t  when I  was the re  I  th ink  the  

por t fo l io  was moved probab ly  tw ice .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  i t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  Ms Mood ley.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   As  she wants  to  comple te  in  15 .17 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   In  te rms o f  t im ing ,  i s  i t  poss ib le  

tha t  the  two o f  you are  ta lk ing  about  the  mov ing  o f  the  

por t fo l io  on  the  same occas ion?  You jus t  d i f fe r  on  the  

reason why i t  was moved.   I s ,  do  you th ink  tha t  m ight  be  

the  pos i t ion?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  I  th ink  there  are  two th ings f rom 

where  I  s i t .   The f i rs t  one is  tha t  we both  know the  

ob jec t i ve  reasons why the  por t fo l io  moved and why there  

were  changes and a l l  o f  tha t .   I  th ink  tha t  i s ,  and th is  was  

not  a  secre t .   20 

 I f  you  look a t  the ,  a t  PRASA’s  corpo ra te  p lan  in  

par t i cu la r,  fo r  the  years  tha t  we are  d i scuss ing  here ,  you 

w i l l  see  tha t  the re  is  a  lo t  o f  d i scuss ion  about  tha t  and 

what  we shou ld  ge t  f rom the  adver t i s i ng  por t fo l io ,  more  

spec i f i ca l l y.  
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 Now the ,  i t  i s  a lso  a  separa te  i ssue tha t  there  were  

f i les  and these f i les  d id  no t  s ta r t  a t  the  beg inn ing .   I t  i s  

jus t  as  I  sa id  the  emai l  show tha t  th is ,  we d id  no t  wake up 

in  the  beg inn ing  and there  was th is  b ig  f igh t .   Excuse me,  

th is  b ig  f igh t  about  adver t i s ing ,  o r  ra the r  le t  me put  th is  b ig  

f igh t  re la tes  to  how we dea l  w i th  the  l i t iga t ion  o f  P r ime 

Media  and wh ich  law f i rm shou ld  rep resent  PRASA and a l l  

o f  those th ings.   

 Now 15.6  Cha i r,  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   15 .16  or  6?  10 

MR MONTANA:   15 .16 ,  the  one tha t  we jus t  sa id  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   I  do  no t  share  the  v iew Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  

what  i s  the  in te res t  o f  PRASA in  tha t ,  except  to  max im ise  

revenues f rom por t fo l io  and i t  d id  no t  ge t  any o f  tha t  a t  

tha t  t ime,  and tha t  i s  why I  spoke  about  even the  judgment  

tha t  I  shared,  and shared some o f  the  numbers  tha t  I  dea l t  

w i th .  

 So Cha i r,  I  th ink  what  I  th ink  th is  cou ld  be  20 

happen ing ,  tha t  when Ms Ngoye was reco l lec t ing  some o f  

those th ings,  she may then have confused some o f  the  

da tes  and some o f  the  processes ,  bu t  I  th ink  fo r  me the 

b iggest  th ing  tha t  she is  t ry ing  to  dece ive  15 .17.  

 So she i s  t ry ing  to  harness these th ings towards 
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suppor t ing  the  po in t  she makes,  because tha t  i s  . . .  

remember  when we s ta r ted  Cha i r  on  the  o ther  s ide ,  she 

ment ioned compan ies  tha t  were  favoured and we got  in to 

S t rawber ry  and then he says I  submi t  tha t  what  I  have  

nar ra ted  you know jus t  how power fu l  Mr  Rory  Mood ley  was 

a t  PRASA,  and I  am say ing  bu t  Cha i r  we c lass i f ied  tha t  th is  

i s  a  f r iend and d idn ’ t  see a l l  in  th is  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now a t  some s tage when you were  

ta lk ing  about  the  issue o f  mov ing  the  por t fo l io  I  unders tood  

you to  say someth ing  a long the  l ines  tha t  Miss  Ngoye  10 

wou ld  have been par t  o f  a  d iscuss ion  o f  such a  mat te r.  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When the  dec i s ion  was taken to  move 

the  po r t fo l io ,  as  you say i t  was .  Was she par t  o f  tha t  

dec is ion?    

MR MONTANA:     Cha i r  Ms Ngoye  -  was par t  o f  a l l  

these meet ings,  these were  d iscuss ions a t  ou r  Exco,  they  

were  no t  secre t  meet ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:  H’m 

MR MONTANA:    And she had my –  you know she had  20 

my suppor t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:  H’m 

MR MONTANA:  And tha t  i s  why  when -  her  name 

came up to  be  appo in ted  as  CEO of  In te rs i te ,  f i rs t l y,  when 

she was appo in ted  the  CEO of  In te rs i te  a t  tha t  t ime spoke  
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to  me and sa id ,  

“ I  th ink  tha t  – when we t ransfer red  some o f  our  

bus inesses,  Met rora i l ,  Shosa loza f rom Transnet  to  

PRASA,  the  person on the  o ther  s ide  was  

negot ia t ing  w i th  us . . . ” ,  

You unders tand  the  por t fo l io .  I ’m  not  re fe r r ing  to  the  

por t fo l io ,  bu t  the  –  the  assets  o f  the  [ ind is t inc t ] .   

“And I  th ink  tha t  we shou ld  head hunt  her ” .  

I  suppor ted  tha t  Cha i r.  When he le f t  –  o r  he  went  to  

become a  CEO o f  a  d i f fe ren t  d i v is ion  w i th in  PRASA and –  10 

and he sa id  tha t ,  

“We th ink  tha t ,  we need to  b r ing  a  woman in to  tha t  

leadersh ip  pos i t ion” ,  

And Ms Ngoye was nominated.  I  suppor ted  he r  Cha i r.  The 

fac t  tha t  when Ms Ngoye was moved,  f rom In ters i te  and 

she came to  PRASA,  and le t  me say one th ing  –  one o ther  

th ing  Cha i r,  by  the  way.  When –  when there  were  these  

changes.  One o f  the  b iggest  f igh ts  was not  about  th is ,  was 

about  the  –  was about  the ,  the  crea t ion  o f  PRASA Cres.  I  

had  to  s i t  w i th  t he  team f rom In ters i te  and PRASA Cres 20 

who d idn ’ t  want  to  co -opera te  Cha i r,  to  imp lement  a  

dec is ion  tha t  was  now not  even a  –  a  dec i s ion  o f  the  CEO,  

bu t  was now a  PRASA body,  tha t  were  now go ing  to  have a  

d iv is ion  manger  o f  p roper ty  por t fo l io  and adver t i s ing ,  and  

they were  go ing  to  have an In te rs i te  focus ing  on  asset  
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investment .   

Cha i r  so  you can see,  fo r  me I  won ’ t  wr i te  and say i t  

shows tha t  Ms Ngoye was there ,  because CEO’s  and the i r  

managers  f igh t  for  the i r  bus inesses w i th in  a  group.  I  was a  

group CEO,  somet imes I  have to  manage and somet imes  

th is  one w in  over  th is  one,  somet imes v i sa  ve rsa .  I  had  to  

p lay  a  ba lanc ing  ro le .  But  what  she s  t r y ing  to  do  here  

Cha i r.  She –  you know i t ’s  one th ing  when she says,  

“ I  d idn ’ t  agree w i th  Mr  Montana ’s  s t ra tegy” ,  

And a l l  o f  those th ings,  she is  t ry ing  to  say th i s  was the  10 

lackey,  o f  Mr  Mood ley.  But  the  ev idence she prov ides o r  

the  events  –  he r  nar ra t i ve  doesn ’ t  even suppor t  –  haven ’ t  

had –  haven ’ t  seen the  hands o f  Mr  Mood ley.  I ’m  s t i l l  

wa i t ing  fo r  i t  Cha i r.  Maybe as  we proceed I ’ l l  come across  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  So,  shou ld  the re  be  minutes  o f  an  Exco 

meet ing  where  these dec is ions were  taken wh ich  wou ld  

show tha t  she  was p resent ,  you wou ld  expect  such 

meet ings to  ex is t  a t  PRASA? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  they  ex i s t ,  in  fac t  one o f  20 

the  th ings we d id ,  I  th ink  I  took  the  en t i re  In te rs i te  and 

PRASA Cres teams to ,  I  th ink  we  went  ou ts ide  because o f  

the  f igh t  I  sa id ,  guys maybe we need to  th ink ,  you know the  

b i t  o f  f resh  a i r  l e t ’s  go  and see,  we went  to  go  and  see 

together  and we cra f ted  what  became known as a  PRASA 
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rea l  es ta te  s t ra tegy,  wh ich  teams f rom both  s ides dra f ted ,  

p resented,  I  te l l  you  I  was happy w i th  i t ,  we took i t  to  the  

Board  and every th ing  so ,  Board  m inutes  and o the r  th ings 

w i l l  suppor t  a l l  o f  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  in  par t i cu la r,  because you sa id  

i t  wou ld  have been Exco wh ich  made th is  dec i s ion?  

MR MONTANA:    Exco d i scuss ion  Cha i r  wou ld  hear  a l l  o f  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  there  shou ld  be  minutes .  

MR MONTANA:    And Ms Ngoye wou ld  have par t i c i pa ted ,  I  10 

th ink  i f  we ca l l  fo r  those years ,  fo r  the  m inutes  Cha i r,  they  

w i l l  show tha t  these were  Exco  d iscuss ions espec ia l l y  

when we were  prepar ing  and dra f t ing  the  PRASA corpora te  

p lans.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We’ l l  t ry  and see i f  we can  secure  

tha t .   The par t  o f  the  prob lem o f  course ,  I ’m  not  say ing  we 

won ’ t  t ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  the  lockdown has crea ted a  20 

ser ious o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   . . . i ssue because many o f  the i r  sen io r  

employees s t i l l  work  f rom home,  in  respect  o f  mat te rs  tha t  
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we ’ve  been t r y ing  to  ge t  i t ’s  been a  b i t  d i f f i cu l t  bu t  in  

respect  o f  our  access to  PRASA i tse l f ,  un t i l  Ms H la tswayo 

was suspended he was one o f  the  cont rac ts  and then Ms  

Ngoye is  now under  suspens ion .   I ’m  not  ra is ing  d i f f i cu l t ies  

I ’m  on ly  exp la in ing  tha t  we may …[ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  tha t ’s  f ine  I  guess  tha t  in  

the i r  absence you ’ l l  jus t  have to  e i ther  approach the  

company secre ta ry  o r  the  CEO o r  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  

Board ,  ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana I  jus t  want  to  unders tand  10 

jus t  f ina l l y  on  the  issue o f  the  remova l  o f ,  e i ther  the  f i les 

or  the  po r t fo l io ,  the  adver t i s ing  por t fo l io  f rom In ters i te .   

Now,  there  were  d i f fe rences between you and Ms Ngoye 

wou ld  tha t  be  cor rec t ,  o r  am I  m iss ing  someth ing  tha t  she ’s  

invent ing  those d i f fe rences now,  in  th is  a f f idav i t?  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  w i th  what  she has submi t ted  

here ,  I ’m  not  su re  i f  –  when you  t rans la te  tha t  we have  

brought  s t ra teg ic  a rea I ’m  not  sure  i f  you ’ve  heard ,  we ’ve  

heard  a  th ing  on  the  b igger  i ssues,  we ’ve  debated  issues,  

peop le  have g iven the i r  v iews but  on  these spec i f i c  i ssues 20 

ra ised I  th ink ,  c lear ly,  Cha i r  we s tand on oppos i te  s ides.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t ’s  a lways been the  case f rom 

a t  leas t  2013 when she compla ined about  the  remova l  o f  

the  f i les  and you  say she d id  phone you so  a t  leas t  f rom 

tha t  t ime you knew tha t  she he ld  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew,  no t  
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necessar i l y  w i th  regard  to  the  movement  o f  the  adver t i s ing 

por t fo l io  bu t  in  re la t ion  to  the  movement  o f  the  Pr imed ia  or  

the  f i le  re la t ing  to  the  Pr imed ia  d i sc ip l inary.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes Cha i r,  Cha i r,  you know for  me  

remova l  w i l l  be  f ine ,  i f  somebody say,  I  wasn ’ t  happy,  

Mar tha  sa id  she was –  Ms Ngoye  ra ther,  sa id  she  wasn ’ t  

happy w i th  the  way th is  th ing  was done.  Now,  a  CEO 

manag ing  a  b ig  asset  may get  angry  w i th  tha t  and say  

we ’ve  go t  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew Cha i r  about…[ ind i s t inc t ] .   So,  

I ’m  say ing  Mr  Son i ,  tha t  – and you ’ l l  see  2015  10 

notw i ths tand ing  a l l  the  to  and f ro ’s  in  the  f i les  you ’ l l  see  –  

and in  fac t  I  th ink  she says i t  in  the  next  page about  the  

na ture  o f  our  re la t ionsh ip  and tha t  was tha t .   That  i s  why I  

v iew many o f  the  th ings tha t  she  wr i tes  as  manufac tu red  

l ies ,  Cha i r,  more  than anyth ing  e lse  and I  say  she even 

taken an event  and then she sub jec t  i t  to  15 .17 ,  tha t ’s  the  

po in t  I ’m  mak ing .   So –  bu t  i f  you  go to  parag raph 19 cha i r  

o r  ra ther  pa ragraph 18 and 19,  I  th ink  tha t  i t  te l l s  you tha t  I  

d idn ’ t  t rea t  Ms Ngoye in  the  manner  tha t  you saw,  I  don ’ t  

th ink  the  d i f fe rences were  p ro found unt i l  I  fo rmed a  v iew,  I  20 

exp la ined tha t  I  fo rmed a  v iew tha t  Ms Ngoye  and Mr  

D ing iswayo were  no t  work ing  in  the  in te res t  o f  the  company 

and tha t  was on ly  in  2015 a f te r  I  came back f rom Cape  

Town Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  th is  –  I  wanted to  ask  th is ,  the  
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remova l  o f  the  f i les ,  d id  i t  happen  pr io r  to  December  2015 

when you recommended tha t  she shou ld   -  2014 you 

recommended tha t  she shou ld  ac t  in  you r  absence when 

you are  on  leave? 

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  th is  happened,  two,  

th ree  years  ear l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    So ,  you can see ,  Cha i r,  tha t  we a l l  have 

our  own persona l  i r r i ta t ions  and every th ing  bu t  fo r  me i t  

d idn ’ t  –  i t  was not  a  mat te r  tha t  I  shou ld  be  fu r ious or  10 

angry  about .   I  asked her  to  ac t  because I  thought  –  and I  

exp la ined yesterday tha t  when somebody ac ts  in  a  pos i t ion  

i t  was an oppor tun i ty  fo r  them to  –  as  pa r t  o f  deve lop ing  

the i r  leadersh ip  sk i l l s  to  have an oppor tun i ty  o f  what  i t  

means because they ge t  submiss ions,  they ’ve  go t  the  fu l l  

powers  and author i t y  tha t  I  have as  Group CEO,  they have 

to  make those dec is ions in  my absence.   So,   Cha i r,  I  th ink  

to  answer  Mr  Son i ’s  quest ion ,  I  don ’ t  th ink ,  un t i l  tha t  t ime 

there  was th is  b ig  d i f fe rence and a t  tha t  t ime there  was not  

Mr  Mood ley ’s  hand in  on ly  came when now the  exp lanat ion  20 

why cer ta in  cont rac t s  shou ld  be  invest iga ted  and to  be  

l inked to  cer ta in  peop le  tha t ’s  wha t  th is  s to ry  i s  a l l  about .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  te rms o f  who wou ld  be  appo in ted  as  

Group CEO in  your  absence w i th  whom d id  tha t  power  l ie .   

D id  you make a  recommendat ion  to  the  Board  and the  
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Board  made the  dec is ion  or  wou ld  you make the  dec is ion  

yourse l f ,  d id  you have the  power  to  make the  dec is ion  

yourse l f?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  had –  we l l  I  th ink  I ’m  sor ry,  I  

th ink  I  have to  look  a t  the  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  

…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  your  reco l lec t ion .  

MR MONTANA:    My reco l lec t ion  and the  prac t ice ,  Cha i r,  

was tha t  i t  w i l l  be  my dec i s ion  bu t  I  w i l l  consu l t  the  Cha i r  

o f  the  Board  so  tha t  has been the  prac t ice  and  in  th is  10 

par t i cu la r  case I  d id  consu l t  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  because when 

we leave –  [ ind is t inc t ]  was leav ing  –  go ing  fo r  a  re la t i ve l y  

long per iod  o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So ,  I  had to  in form h im tha t  …[ ind is t inc t ]  

wou ld  be  ac t ing  in  tha t  pos i t ion  and i f  the  Cha i rman has  

got  a  p rob lem he  w i l l  say,  bu t  –  I  th ink  we agreed because 

we had one on one meet ings w i th  the  Cha i r  and then I ’ l l  

s ign  documents ,  inc lud ing  fo rms  tha t  I ’m  go ing  on leave  

and who autho r i sed the  leave,  i s  the  Cha i rman  o f  the 20 

Board  and then I  ind ica te  whose ac t ing  in  tha t  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess one o f  the  po in ts ,  e i ther,  tha t  

you are  mak ing  or  wou ld  be  ent i t led  to  make is  tha t ,  a t  

leas t  f rom your  po in t  o f  v iew as  a t  November /December  

2014 you d idn ’ t  –  your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  her  has been  
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negat ive  because i f  you v iewed i t  as  be ing  nega t ive ,  i t ’s  

un l i ke ly  you wou ld  recommend i t  tha t  she wou ld  ac t  in  your  

pos i t ion  or  tha t  you wou ld  ge t  he  to  ac t  in  your  pos i t ion ,  

because when you are  go ing  to  be  away you can ’ t  take  

your  enemy and put  them in  your  pos i t ion .  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r  la te r  on-  I  agree w i th  what  

you ’ve  sa id  Cha i r,  I  fu l l y  agree w i th  tha t  bu t  I  th ink  la te r  

events  w i l l  p rove  tha t  I ’ ve  ac tua l l y  taken an enemy  and 

put  i t  in  tha t  pos i t ion  Cha i r,  wh ich  then resu l ted  in  a  

s i tua t ion  tha t  cu lm inated on the  15 t h  o f  Ju ly  when I  le f t  10 

PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Cer ta in  th ings were  independent  

d i rec tors ,   he  d idn ’ t  d iscuss,  even w i thout  me,  Cha i r,  w i th  a  

seat  on  the i r  own so  tha t  where  they rea l i se  tha t  there  

m ight  be  i ssues between PRASA and In te rs i te  as  the  Group 

CEO,  you are  Cha i rman he re  you are  Group CEO,  you are  

conf l i c ted .   So,  tha t  re la t ionsh ip  was managed,  Cha i r,  so  

she ment ioned Mr  …[ Ind is t inc t ]  he re  and then a t  Autopage  

you had,  I  th ink  i t  was,  Ms . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  to  make sure ,  20 

Cha i r,  tha t  I  don ’ t  use  my pos i t ion ,  abuse my pos i t ion  and 

impose a  v iew on  a  subs id ia ry.   So,  there  was a  sys tem o f  

cont ro l  wh ich  is  in  l ine  –  gu ided by  what  the  Company ’s  Act  

o r  –  in  tha t  respect .   So,  we had tha t  in te rest  and Cha i r  the  

Board  was not  host i le  …[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropped vo i ce ]  bu t  
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they  were  say ing ,  you as  Cha i rman o f  the  Board  and as  

Group CEO have to  take  a  v iew because we th ink  there ’s  a  

–  and I  then sa t  w i th  them,  I  say,  -  and I  sa id ,  look  le t ’s  

take  i t  th rough a  process o f  non-per fo rmance I  d id  convey 

i t  in  a  meet ing  bu t  I  sa id  we do not  want  to  do  tha t ,  

cons ider ing  where  you are  coming f rom,  we headhunted  

you f rom In ters i te ,  f rom Transnet ,  b rought  you in to 

In te rs i te  you became CEO but  he  sa id ,  we see tha t  you are  

no t  ach iev ing  those goa ls ,  you are  no t  per fo rming  a t  tha t  

leve l  and I  sa id  to  he r,  I  adv i sed the  Board  o f  In te rs i te  10 

tha t ,  no  I  th ink  I  must  speak to  t he  Board  o f  PRASA tha t ,  

because we are  res t ruc tur ing  our  R isk  Compl iance and  

Lega l  Por t fo l io  tha t  she comes there .   So,  in  a  meet ing  she 

–  o f  course  she was not  happy,  Cha i r  because in  te rms o f  

p ro f i le  and every th ing ,  be ing  a  CEO is  more  impor tan t  than  

be ing  a  Group Execut ive  and Cha i r  she was,  I  don ’ t  know 

the  word ,  upset ,  no t  upset  bu t  –  and the re  were  tears  

Cha i r,  she cr ied  and I  know,  Cha i r,  then she then consu l ted  

the  Cha i rman o f  the  Board ,  o f  PRASA,  Mr  Buthe lez i  and 

sa id ,  look  I ’m  be ing  removed f rom my pos i t ion  and  20 

every th ing .   The  Cha i rman is  someone -  and I  exp la ined 

the  c i rcumstances,  looked a t  the  numbers  we th ink  tha t  we 

are  no t  w inn ing  w i th  her  bu t  we don ’ t  want  to  be  f i rm wi th  

her  and take  i t  –  and make an appra isa l  th ing  and then get  

r id  o f  he r,  I  suggest  –  so  she ’s  where  she i s ,  Cha i r,  there ,  
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because you know one o f  my weaknesses is  tha t  even  

when peop le  have made b ig  m is takes,  I ’ ve  a lways 

remained human,  th ink  o f  the i r  fami l ies  and say,  how do I  

suppor t  them and i f  Ms Ngoye i s  fa i r  she w i l l  te l l  th is  

Commiss ion  and  say,  look  indeed what  Mr  Montana is  

say ing  is  t rue ,  Cha i r.  Now,  a f te rwards,  a  few months la te r,  

Cha i r,  I  then –  br ings us  to  the  moment  you jus t  desc r ibed 

about  December  when I  had to  go  on  leave and  maybe  

Cha i r,  I  was t ry ing  to  c lose  the  br idges and I  sa id  Ms 

Ngoye shou ld  ac t  and Cha i r,  I  nea r ly  used a  word  wh ich  i s  10 

inappropr ia te  here  tha t  we use in  Mamelod i  bu t ,  

Cha i r…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  i s  no t  Mamelod i .  

MR MONTANA:    Th is  i s  no t  Mamelod i ,  Cha i r,  I  ag ree and 

then she showed me f lames Cha i r,  le t  me put  i t  in  tha t  way,  

she showed me f lames and they used tha t  t ime o f  act ing  

Cha i r,  and I  was  to  d iscover,  on l y  la te r,  no t  a t  the  t ime 

Cha i r,  and I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  the  po in t  you are  mak ing  i s  

suppor ted  by  paragraph 18 and pa ragraph 19.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Son i?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  i t  p leases.   I  jus t  want  to  

unders tand tha t .   Ms Ngoye says tha t  she d idn ’ t  want  lega l  

adv isor  in  regard  to  the  Pr imed ia  mat te r  tha t ’s  …[ ind is t inc t ]  

to  be  rep laced.   Was i t  your  v iew tha t  they shou ld  be  

rep laced?  
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MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  yes ,  I  th ink  tha t  when I  go t  the  

repor t  a t  tha t  t ime,  what  we were  be ing  to ld ,  i f  I  remember  

the  de ta i l s  very  we l l ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  the  –  my  b iggest  

ins t ruc t ion  was tha t ,  look ,  we are  no t  go ing  to  w in  th is  

mat te r  as  long as  Pr imed ia  and Cont inenta l  s t i l l  occupy the 

s i te ,  because they make money and f igh t  us  w i th  the  same 

money tha t  they make out  o f  the  por t fo l io ,  and they were  

t ry ing  to  suggest  a  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t  rou te  and I  need to  

th ink ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  the  course  o f  the  d iscuss ion  what  

they were  propos ing .   Cha i r,  i t  was presented to  me Cha i r,  10 

I  th ink  i t  was a t  the  t ime when the  dra f t  –  some dra f t  

a f f idav i t s  were  be ing  p repared fo r  Cour t .   I  th ink  tha t  some 

o f  the  scores  and eve ry th ing  and  I  th ink  they fe l t  tha t  my 

lega l  adv i so r  was tak ing  a  more  aggress i ve  approach in  

respect  o f ,  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  in  respect  o f  tha t  l i t i ga t ion .   I  

th ink ,  Cha i r,  they  had appo in ted  one o f  the  counse l lo rs  i t  

was Mr  [ ind is t inc t ]  Twala  who was  represent ing  us  in  tha t  

mat te r  wh ich  was  an ins t ruc t ing  a t to rney,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  the  

exact  de ta i l  Cha i r,  they  were  no t  appo in ted  by  me but  

Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  the  –  we d id  come to  a  de terminat ion  a t  20 

tha t  t ime,  tha t  In te rs i te ,  in  fac t ,  they  were  fo l low ing an  

approach on adver t i s ing ,  tha t  i s  no t  cons i s ten t  w i th  what  

we ’ re  t ry ing  to  ach ieve.   Now,  tha t  may have g iven  r i se  to  

th is  war  tha t  we are  ta lk ing  about  tha t  we are  

desc r ib ing…[ ind is t inc t  -  d ropped vo i ce ]  and tha t ,  I  w i l l  
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accept  tha t  bu t  Cha i r  I  th ink  when  peop le  go  and pu l l  f i l es 

and do a l l  o f  those th ings,  I ’m  not  par t  o f  tha t  f i l e  and tha t  

i s  why Ms Ngoye had to  ca l l  me fo r  …[ ind is t inc t ]  to  me,  

ra ise  w i th  me,  I ’m  say ing  she ca l led ,  she says o f  course  a t  

the  Board  meet ing  she ra ised tha t  mat te r  w i th  me.   So,  I  

th ink  –  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  tha t  we had d i f fe rences on tha t  i ssue  

but  d id  i t  a f fec t  our  re la t ionsh ip ,  no  Cha i r,  un t i l  p robab ly  

a round January  2015 I  th ink  we s t i l l  had  a  good 

re la t ionsh ip  and  I  bumped in to  her  numerous t imes,  we  

were  p leasant ,  we exchanged p leasant r ies  Cha i r,  we ta lked 10 

about  th ings and  we a lso  recogn ised,  we say,  hey  –  she 

says to  me,  you are  rea l l y  f igh t ing  me and I  sa id  the  same 

Cha i r  and th i s  th ing ,  Cha i r,  i s  l i ke  a  …[ ind is t inc t ]  i sn ’ t  i t  

Cha i r.   Maybe in  coming bat t les  we ’ l l  become great  f r iends 

aga in  Cha i r,  bu t  fo r  now we s tand on oppos i te  s ides  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.   I  jus t  want  to  

f ina l i se  th is  i ssue because I  want  to  unders tand .   Was  

Hogan Love l l  e f fec t i ve l y  less  f i rm on i t s  oppos i t ion  to  

Pr imed ia ’s  case than you and Ms Na idoo wou ld  want?  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  look ,  my v iew I  was very  –  I  had 

taken a  very  hard  l ine  s tance on  the  issue o f  P r imed ia ,  

22 .44 ] ,  they  had put  a  b id  they los t  the  b id  and I  sa id  to  

the  team,  the  one –  the  main  reason why they are  tak ing  

th is  i s  fo r  them to  cont inue to  remain  on  s i te  and  I  had 
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ac tua l l y  g iven a  spec i f i c  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  they shou ld  be  

th rown out  o f  the  s i te  because they are  un lawfu l l y  there  

okay,  and I  remember  th is  as  one o f  the  issues  tha t  we 

fought  about  in  th is  mat te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You and Ms Ngoye?  

MR MONTANA:    No I ’m re fer r ing  to  the  –  Me,  Ms  Ngoye  

and a l l  the  peop le  tha t  we descr ibe  he re  –  tha t  she  

desc r ibes in  he r  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  i s  i t  –  okay,  so  tha t  was the  

d i f fe rence tha t  you wanted a  more  aggress i ve  s tance to  10 

oppos ing  the  app l i ca t ion  by  Pr imed ia  as  opposed to  what  

Hogan Love l l ’s  and Ms Ngoye was?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  my v iew was very  c lear  those who  

los t  the  tender  and who were  be ing  dominat ing  th is  

por t fo l io  fo r  how many years ,  I  th ink  –  fo r  yea rs ,  must  be  

th rown out  o f  the  po r t fo l io  and  I  th ink  somewhere  Ms  

Ngoye says,  Mr  Montana,  says  we d idn ’ t  fo l low h i s  

ins t ruc t ions bu t  she does in  tha t  paragraph – I ’m  answer ing  

your  quest ion  tha t  – I  want  to  c la r i f y  th is  th ing ,  Cha i r,  Ms 

Ngoye l inks  i t  to  –  she l inks  i t  to  S t rawber ry,  whereas the  20 

ins t ruc t ion  tha t  we ’ re  ta lk ing  about  was tha t  the re  must  be  

–  there  must  be  an  order  where  these ent i t ies  are  ac tua l l y  

th rown out  o f  the  PRASA por t fo l io ,  and I  remember  tha t  

t ime both  In te rs i te  and the  law f i rm,  I  d idn ’ t  remember  the i r  

name…[ in te rvenes] .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Hogan Love l l .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  they were  no t  in  favour  o f  

tha t  approach and I  was unhappy w i th  tha t  bu t  tha t  was not  

on ly  the  reason Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  there  were  a  coup le  o f  

reasons in  th is  th ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  do  you  say tha t ,  tha t  d i f fe rence 

between you and  Ms Ngoye was not  the  reason fo r  what  

the  remova l  o f  the  f i le?  

MR MONTANA:    Ms Ngoye and I ,  even w i th  the  d i f fe rences 

tha t  we had,  we -   I  wou ldn ’ t  desc r ibe  a t  tha t  t ime,  tha t  our  10 

re la t ionsh ip  had co l lapsed where  I ’d  do  tha t ,  and I  was the  

Cha i rman o f  the  Board  and she had presented repor ts  to  

the  Board  and I  th ink  tha t ,  in  fac t ,  to  conf i rm what  I ’m 

say ing  an  assessment  o f  the  m inutes  or  the  Board  o f  

In te rs i te  where  she was  CEO,  you  ac tua l l y  

see…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  c iv i l  to  each o ther?  

MR MONTANA:    We were  c iv i l ,  bu t  I  was suppor t ing  he r,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA:    I  was suppor t ing  her  th roughout .    I t ’s  no t  

l i ke  we d i f fe r  on  th is  i ssue,  she ’s  say ing ,  we d i f fe r  on  th is  

i ssue because fo r  he r,  as  I  sa id ,  15 .17  I ’m  say ing  tha t  no ,  

there ’s  much more  dynamic  env i ronment ,  there  were  o ther  

i ssues invo lved,  le t ’s  dea l  w i th  the  issues fo r  what  they are  
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and not  t ry ing  to  f i t  them in to  what  I  ca l l ,  I sando ’s  In fe rno,  

wh ich  is  ac tua l l y  p lay ing  i t se l f  ou t  there .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Why then remove the  f i les ,  why don ’ t  

you jus t  ins t ruc t  her,  I ’m  te l l ing  you to  remove  Hogan  

Love l l  and i f  you  don ’ t  obey tha t  ins t ruc t ion  i t ’s  go ing  to  

const i tu te  insubord ina t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes I  cou ld  have  dea l t  w i th  i t  in  tha t  way 

Cha i r,  bu t  aga in  I  am say ing  she a l so  agrees w i th  me tha t  I  

sa id  I  have never  ins t ruc ted  fo r  any pe rson to  be  removed  

Cha i r,  the re  were  wars  be tween these peop le  Cha i r,  you  10 

can even see how she descr ibed Ms Na idoo in  these 

pages,  so  i t  i s  peop le  who are  a t  war  w i th  each o the r  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  no ,  no ,  no  they shou ld  have – they are  ac t ing  

w i th  the  au thor i t y  o f  the  Group CEO and when she ca l led  

me I  sa id  no ,  tha t  i s  no t  the  case.    Indeed Cha i r  one o f  the  

repor ts ,  and I  w i l l  check,  I  th ink  I  may s t i l l  have i t  tha t  way,  

when I  was g iven a  repor t  f rom the  Lega l  Adv iso r,  i t  i s  

ca l led  L i t iga t ion  Mat te r,  i t  dea ls  w i th  a  who le  range o f  

i ssues there  and . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and eva lua te  fo r  me the  

l i t iga t ion  s t ra tegy tha t  PRASA i s  fo l low ing to  respond to  20 

par t i cu la r  mat te rs  and I  don ’ t  th ink  Cha i r  tha t  there  a re  

probab ly  a  coup le  o f  th is  –  o f  these mat te rs  Cha i r  and she  

wou ld  a l so  fo r  example  t race  even cases tha t  a re  be fore  

cour ts  invo l v ing  PRASA,  so  I  don ’ t  th ink  Cha i r  tha t ’s  what  I  

had in tended.     
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 Yes,  i t  was an op t ion  bu t  I  then a t  tha t  t ime come to  

tha t  de terminat ion  as  i t  were ,  and Ms –  by  the  way the  la te  

Ms Z ind i  when she assumed her  pos i t ion  Cha i r  she was 

runn ing  and she o f  course  had sa id  tha t  –  and aga in  she i s  

no t  here  Cha i r  to  speak fo r  herse l f ,  bu t  she had  spoken 

about  her  own d i f f i cu l t ies  in  dea l ing  w i th  some o f  the  

th ings tha t  were  there ,  even the  Pub l ic  A f fa i rs  po r t fo l io  was  

a  re la t i ve ly  new pos i t ion  Cha i r.   

 We had a lso  crea ted a  new Ch ie f  S t ra tegy Off i ce r  to  

accommodate  a  coup le  o f  these,  so  th is  was an  10 

organ isa t ion  tha t  was evo lv ing  and  yes peop le  were  –  may 

have been unhappy about  some o f  the  dec i s ions bu t  you  

can ’ t  then put  i t  and say 15 .17,  tha t ’s  my main  ob jec t ion  

there  and I  am not  say ing  eve ry th ing  tha t  Ms Ngoye is  

say ing  is  fa lse ,  I  am say ing  tha t  what  she does she  crea tes  

a  mot ive  and she wants  to  f i t  and t ry  to  say Mon tana h i s  

par t  was work ing  fo r  th is ,  so  he  is  ves ted  in  th is  th ing  

because o f  tha t ,  and I  am say ing  tha t  i s  –  tha t  I  cannot  

agree w i th  her  Cha i r.   That  i s  bas ica l l y  what  I  am say ing .  

ADV VAS SONI:    May I  ask  you why d idn ’ t  you when she  20 

ra ised i t  w i th  you,  Ms Ngoye,  tha t  th is  i s  –  th is  was 

removed,  these f i les  were  removed,  you say you  d idn ’ t  

o rder  the  remova l ,  why d idn ’ t  you ask  Ms Na idoo to  re turn  

the  f i les  to  In te rs i te?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  I  th ink  th is  speaks to  even a  b igger  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 195 of 371 
 

i ssue about  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween Mr  Chauk in  and her  

boss,  no t  Ms Ngoye,  bu t  H inde,  and I  can te l l  you  Cha i r  we 

need to  check w i th  the  PRASA probab ly  in  the i r  own –  what  

do  you ca l l  i t ,  employee informat ion is then why she was 

suspended.  She says she was suspended for  the reasons 

that  – that  are stated there which I  then rejected Chai r  

ear l ier.  

 So yes I  do not  th ink we took a decision to – for 

those parts.   We spoke about i t  I  just  said we d id not  – we 

ended up there but  I  th ink that  they cont inued Chai r  in their  10 

own way what was happening there.  

 Was i t  in the interest  of  the business?  No but  I  th ink 

Chair  people in the – you have the kind of  dynamics where 

people undermine each other,  f ight  over th ings around that  

but  i t  was never an instruct ion f rom me Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  Mr Soni ’s quest ion is here you f ind that  

according to Ms Ngoye f i les that  should be at  Inters i te have 

been removed and she was to ld  according to her that  the 

instruct ion came from you and you know that  that  was not  

t rue,  you never  gave such an instruct ion.    Mr Soni ’s 20 

quest ion is the most  logical  th ing is  for you to say Ms Naidoo 

those f i les must  be taken back why did you not  say that?  

That  is what the quest ion is.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  explained ear l ier on so let  us br ing 

back what I  said.   I  hear Mr Soni ’s th ing but  two things here.   
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The f i rst  issue is  that  a fact  Ms Naidoo never removed the 

f i le.   Even that  her own version – in my own version when 

she spoke to me Ms Ngoye she sa id Mazinda removed her  

f i le supported by or accompanied by Ms Zinde – Ms Naidoo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Naidoo.  

MR MONTANA:   Ms Naidoo okay.   Then there was a 

discussion Chair  a separate discussion wi th Ms Zide – Zinde 

where she said she is t ry ing to get  what is cal led her own 

hold on the speci f ic matters that  she had deal  wi th but  

00:02:01 what is cal led on the – as a head of  publ ic –  publ ic  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Relat ions.  

MR MONTANA:   Publ ic Affai rs and that  Ms Muckend [?]  was 

being t ransferred to him who was responsible for some of  

those act iv i t ies was actual ly not  cooperat ing wi th him.  That  

was the explanat ion and that  is why Chai r  the reason why I  

ask for the let ter is because I  am trying to ver i fy exact ly how 

that  process in fact  – what was the reason why Mr Chauke 

was actual ly suspended – what  was stated in  there?  

Because that  wi l l  – that  wi l l  actual ly Chair  enable us to  

answer Mr Soni ’s quest ion Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  sure that  I  fo l low. Ms Ngoye cal ls  

you and says cer tain f i les which belonged at  Intersi te was 

removed and she says they were removed by Ms Naidoo and 

( inaudible).   Ms Zinde I  am not  sure or wi th Chauke.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ms Zinde.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Zinde in a manner that  you agree is  

unacceptable and she says to  you Ms Naidoo said i t  was you 

who gave instruct ions for the f i les.   You say to her that  is not  

t rue I  never gave those inst ruct ions.   You have said you 

could tel l  she was unhappy about th is so now I  am not  sure 

that  what you have to ld me in your  last  answer helps me to 

understand because Mr Soni  is in effect  saying you see your 

Intersi te CEO is unhappy she feels st rongly about something 

and you agree that  i t  should not  have happened.  The most  

natural  th ing to do is to say wel l  those people must  return 10 

those f i les maybe unt i l  you are given a proper explanat ion or  

something but  they must  return them.  So the quest ion is  

why did you not  do that ,  say that? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  th ink again maybe we are – maybe I  

am start ing in the middle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Let  me go back sl ight ly.   I  was saying Chai r  

that  there was a process I  said let  us not  complain two 

things.   Removal  of  the funct ion and the removal  of  the f ine 

and I  said these two things are re lated but  they cannot be 20 

explained in the way she explained them.  

 Now I  th ink at  that  t ime when we created the posi t ion 

that  Ms Zinde was responsible for Chair  the decis ion had 

been made… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was responsible for what? 
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MR MONTANA:   For Publ ic Affai rs  Chai r  involved – i t  was 

mainly our media side of  th ings.   I t  invo lved some part  of  

advert is ing.   So i t  was a number of  funct ions that  we cal led – 

we cal led Publ ic Affai rs and then i t  a lso deal t  wi th our  – our 

publ ic image and when we undertake some of  the publ ic 

campaigns l ike the Nelson Mandela events – so at  that  t ime 

Chair  there was no dispute.   We have made a decision those 

funct ions were there again.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Doing affai rs funct ions.  

MR MONTANA:   Publ ic Affai rs funct ions Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Were wi th – is i t  Ms Zinde? 

MR MONTANA:   Ms Zinde.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I f  you recal l  Chai r  I  said this port fo l io has 

moved a number of  t imes at  var ious stages she wi l l  take any 

decision around that .   Now Ms Zinde at  that  t ime… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Publ ic Affai rs did i t  include this advert is ing 

outside advert is ing? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  i t  included? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did i t  include the outside advert is ing? 20 

MR MONTANA:   I t  included – there were some – there were 

issues about signage, there were issues about some part  of  

advert is ing Chai r,  some part  of  the broadcast ing funct ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  involved – so there were a number of  
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funct ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   I  w i l l  have to ver i fy i t  Chairperson.   So that  

decision has been made.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And I  th ink that  was one of  the reasons 

why. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   To move the funct ion.  

MR MONTANA:   To move the funct ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  Publ ic Affa i rs.  10 

MR MONTANA:   Of  – to Publ ic  Affa i rs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To move the funct ion of  what to  Publ ic 

Affai rs? 

MR MONTANA:   Part  of  that  advert is ing and media.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR MONTANA:   And remember… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which had been – which had been si t t ing 

at  Intersi te? 

MR MONTANA:   A t  Intersi te Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight ,  a l r ight .  20 

MR MONTANA:   At  Intersi te.   That  is a separate – i t  has 

been made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So the new incumbent at  that  t ime says I  am 

having di ff icul t ies wi th th is.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Zinde? 

MR MONTANA:   Ms Zinde.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And Chair  that  is why I  apologise that  she is  

not  here to speak for hersel f .   She says here is a chai r  who 

is not  cooperat ing wi th me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Referr ing to who? 

MR MONTANA:   Mr Chauke. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Who is now repor t ing to her but  who insists  10 

on working wi th – on the other side wi th Intersi te.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With Ms Ngoye? 

MR MONTANA:   With Ms Ngoye.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Okay.   And that  decision Chair  – so i t  was 

not  about  we are not  moving funct ions to Ms Zinde so there 

is a t ransi t ion there.   Now… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Now you mean you were not  moving f i les 

you were moving a funct ion.  

MR MONTANA:   We are moving a funct ion Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now that  funct ion when i t  moved she then 

said – 

CHAIRPERSON:   Who is she now? 

MR MONTANA:   Ms Zinde.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   She is saying that  Mr Chauke is not  

cooperat ing which resul ted in her  taking the step that  she 

did Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which is? 

MR MONTANA:   Which is to go and col lect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Take the f i les.  

MR MONTANA:   Because she says Mr Chauke is not  

cooperat ing wi th me is not  – he is supposed to report  to me 

but  he is not  working wi th me and then went to the off ice to 10 

col lect  the f i les.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so she seeks to solve the problem of  

Mr Chauke’s cooperat ion by taking the f i les? 

MR MONTANA:   By taking the f i les indeed Chai r  that  is why I  

said I  d id  not  support .   So I  would not  then resolve that  issue 

in that  way.   Ms Ngoye was not  ra is ing the issue about 

funct ion at  that  t ime.  She was saying the manner of  th is 

th ing was bad even though she had her own views about 

these funct ions but  had taken a decision as a col lect ive.   So 

when the f i les were taken she says these people they just  20 

come barge into the off ice and sa id – and then she says 

when Ms Zinde was doing that  she was supported by Ms 

Naidoo.   Ms – and I  conf i rmed Chai r  Ms Naidoo never  

col lected any f i les there f rom Intersi te and in – in the later  

discussions and that  is why I  say I  want to see the le t ter and 
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part  of  the let ter say i t  wi l l  explain precisely  and I  th ink Mr 

Chauke should st i l l  have the let ter – precise ly the reason 

why Ms Zinde support  – sus – wanted her suspended or 

suspended her.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you – you th ink there is a possibi l i ty  

that  she suspended Ms – Mr Chauke because of  his  fa i lure 

to cooperate wi th her in re lat ion to these… 

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To this funct ion.  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Chai r  but  I  am saying those issues 10 

are conf lated in th is aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   That  is the point  I  am making Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay but  now then I  shi f t  Mr Soni ’s  

quest ion f rom – f rom Ms Naidoo then I  say why did you not  

ask her Ms Zinde to take the f i les back? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  would not  ask her to do that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Because I  – I  would not  ask – I  would 

cr i t ic ise – I  would cr i t ic ise and say no,  no but  that  is not  how 20 

we should be doing – we should be managing the t ransi t ion 

when you deal  wi th our funct ions.   But  I  would not  say return 

the funct ion because i f  they were doing something about the 

funct ion that  was not  there then that  was a completely 

di fferent  matter Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the story that  – I  mean what you have 

told me suggest  to me that  i t  may not  have been necessary 

at  least  in that  stage to change f i les i f  only Mr Chauke was 

cooperat ing wi th Ms Zinde.   I t  was because Ms Zinde seems 

to have sought to solve one problem by creat ing another  

problem in a sense that  she had a problem with Mr Chauke 

not  cooperat ing and then she thought wel l  i f  I  take the f i le  

f rom Intersi te then he wi l l  cooperate.   And maybe she did 

succeed maybe she did not  succeed.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  that  was the complaint  by Ms Ngoye I  10 

agree but  you would not  solve by then say return the f i le.   

That  is why the discussion and my thing that  the nature 

where we are going to get  the r ight  answer about whose is  

te l l ing the t ruth the answer would be in the reasons provided 

by Ms Zinde to suspend Mr Chauke.  Because – and secondly 

you wi l l  recal l  Chai r  what Ms – what Ms Ngoye says is that  

the inst ruct ion to suspend Mr Chauke comes f rom Mr 

Montana and she says that  the let ter  was del ivered by Ms 

Zinde and Mr – Ms Naidoo.   So she is saying that  Chai r.   I  

suspended Mr Chauke and i f  I  d id Chair  that  in i tsel f  would 20 

have been i rregular  because a senior  manager wi l l  not  be 

suspended by a Group CEO Chai r.   He is suspended or  

discipl ined by the immediate supervisor as i t  was – so I  do 

not  th ink Chai r  that  the r ight  approach would have been say 

to return them back when they were t ransi t ioning.  So the key 
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th ing was managing whatever changes that  were tak ing 

place at  ( inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  why would not  – why would that  not  be 

the r ight  th ing to do because you are agree what has been 

done is wrong.   The CEO of  Intersi te feels very st rongly 

about i t .   What would be wrong with saying Ms Zinde the way 

you have gone about th is is unacceptable.   The f i les must  go 

back.   I f  there needs to be a discussion then there can be a 

discussion.   I t  may wel l  be that  la ter on they can be taken 

but  then they must  be taken in the r ight  way but  let  us – let  10 

us r ight  th is wrong.   I t  was not  the r ight  way.    

MR MONTANA:   Chair  the discussions about  that  had taken 

place subsequent ly but  I  am simply saying that  – that  the 

answer about f i les and maybe Chair  – maybe to wi th 

hindsight  when you say you want to – to what is  i t  cal led – 

remove or reduce a tension and unhappiness maybe that  

would have been a r ight  way but  would i t  have been symbol ic  

to say oh I  am taking ser ious my concerns are being in the 

interest .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  – I  accept  that  in a s i tuat ion l ike 20 

that  i t  may be that  somebody who is supposed to resolve the 

matter might  decide look in the end the f i les were going to  

end up there.  

MR MONTANA:   There indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And maybe there is no point  in saying they 
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must  go back but  the manner in which they were taken is 

unacceptable.   Let  us address the unhappiness that  is  

associated wi th  the manner in which they taken.   Assuming 

for example that  Ms Ngoye might  not  have had an in 

pr inciple object ion to the f i les going but  she might  just  have 

had an object ion to the manner in which this was done.  

MR MONTANA:   No she did Chai r  I  th ink i t  was in the 

manner in which i t  was done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And that  is what she conveyed to me that  10 

people just  arr ive and enter then say we are coming to take 

the documents.   And she says is th is how we work Chair?  

Yes we have taken a decision but  is that  how we are going to 

do i t  Chair?  Of course at  that  t ime Chai r  I  d id not  th ink we 

should return there were engagements around those issues 

on how we deal t  wi th the – wi th the funct ion but  Chai r  I  th ink 

the answer to  our quest ion l ies in  th is  let ter of  suspension 

and that  is why I  th ink i t  would be bet ter i f  we get  i t .   So I  

would want to suggest  to park i t .   I  am given that  when I 

come back for my test imony I  deal  speci f ical ly having seen 20 

the let ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR MONTANA:   I f  i t  was signed by me I  wi l l  say Chai r  i t  was 

i rregular.   I f  i t  was signed by Ms Z inde and the reasons for 

that  Chai r  we do not  discuss i t  on that  basis Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay Mr Soni  I  took over your quest ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no I  was going to go in a simi lar 

di rect ion though not  as wel l  as you did i t  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay 

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Montana I  am not  going to deprive you of  

the opportuni ty of  revis i t ing this issue and I  know i t  is – I  do 

not  mean i t  – say that  you – you doing i t  to avoid i t  you 

doing i t  because you want the facts in f ront  of  you relat ing to 

a let ter.   But  I  have a related quest ion and i t  is  th is.   The 

contract  that  is s igned is between PRASA – I  mean between 10 

Intersi te and Umjanj i  okay.  

MR MONTANA:   No Chair  there are two cont racts there.   The 

f i rst  contract  is – i t  was in i t ia l ly s igned between PRASA and 

Umjunj i  00:15:56.   The second contract  is when Umjanj i  

appl ies to PRASA for the ceding of  part  of  that  funct ion 

which is – which is then – which is the outdoor – speci f ic 

outdoor funct ion.   Okay.   And therefore that  was between 

Intersi te and Strawberry.  

ADV SONI SC:   R ight  okay.   Now where was Ms Zinde based 

at  the t ime – around the t ime of  th is? 20 

MR MONTANA:   At  the – at  the – she was based at  the 

PRASA Corporate off ice.  

ADV SONI SC:   So the funct ion was now moved to PRASA.  

MR MONTANA:   The PRASA – the funct ion – no Chair  the 

funct ion that  funds the ful l  adver t is ing funct ion Chair  was 
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in i t ia l ly at  PRASA Corporate.   And when the tender was 

agreed Chai r  was done I  th ink i t  was in 2011 i t  then was then 

placed wi th Inters i te and then later  on i f  you recal l  Chair  I  

spoke to the funct ion moving a couple of  t imes to  be – and 

then i t  was – i t  was when the new port fo l io was created to 

say you must  manage part  of  that  advert is ing port fo l io more 

speci f ical ly – and in fact  I  th ink the advert is ing work – 

advert is ing is one part  of  a bigger port fo l io Chair  that  was 

there.   So I  th ink – I  th ink the – we then sat  wi th the Publ ic  

Affai rs under Group St rategy which was led by Mr  Holele.   10 

Yes so Ms Zinde was the Group – was a General  Manager 

report ing to Mr Holele   And I  th ink that  is when this issue 

about f i les Chair  happened in that  process.  

ADV SONI SC:   So – so on that  score there can only be two 

possibi l i t ies.   One is that  the f i les had to move because the 

funct ion was now at  PRASA not  at  Intersi te.   That  must  be 

correct  is i t  not? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no that  is correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   With the funct ion yes.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Now did you tel l  Ms Ngoye that  – that  look at  

the end of  the day I  accept  that  the f i les were removed 

wrongly but  at  the end of  the day they now belong to PRASA 

because the funct ion is now with PRASA.  

MR MONTANA:   But  Chair  I  – that  is why I  am saying we are 
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a lso – we are confusing ourselves because the issue  -  and 

that  is the point  I  have been making throughout of  the day.   

The issue of  the f i les and the decision about the movement 

of  funct ions did not  happen at  the same t ime that  the – today 

we are making a decision and people know there has been 

an on-going process Chai r  and that  is  why we need to f ind 

the t ime that  decision was made and I  th ink you ask an 

important  ear l ier was Ms Ngoye part  of  those decisions that  

were made about where this funct ion should be kept  and that  

is – I  th ink that  is a big issue around i t .   I t  c lar i f ies what  10 

needs to be done Chai r.   When the posi t ion was created and 

then somebody wi l l  say appointed to that  posi t ion Chai r  then 

that  is where the f ight  in fact  happened okay.   So I  th ink the 

– I  do not  th ink that  i t  is actual ly – there are more even more 

possibi l i t ies than actual ly only those two.    

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  am sorry Mr Soni .   I  th ink Mr Soni ’s  

quest ion requires that  I  know whether at  the t ime of  the 

removal  of  the f i les a decision to  move the funct ion f rom 

Intersi te to PRASA had been taken or not? 20 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  i t  had al ready been taken.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And that  is the point .   I t  has al ready been 

taken.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:   And Ms Ngoye was part  of  that  decision.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was part  of  that .  

MR MONTANA:   That  is  why – that  is  the point  I  am making 

and that  is  why when Mr Soni  asked the quest ion did not  the 

logical  th ing have been for you to say let  them be returned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   For me I  say but  that  is not  the solut ion 

because then you are returning – let  us rather manage this  

th ing in a proper discipl ined fashion as a company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  Mr Soni ’s  last  quest ion says or 10 

suggests that  because you knew that  the decision to  remove 

the funct ion f rom Intersi te to PRASA had been taken and 

because you knew that  on your version Ms Ngoye knew that  

as wel l .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   One would have expected you when Ms 

Ngoye was complaining about the removal  of  the f i les to – 

for – would expect  you to say to her yes I  def in i te ly agree 

wi th you Ms Ngoye that  the manner in which the f i les have 

been removed is unacceptable i t  is  wrong but  remember that  20 

you were party to the decision.   We al ready made the 

decision that  the funct ion must  go to PRASA.  They are 

where they are supposed to be or they are where they were 

meant to be ul t imately.   So he is asking whether you – you 

ra ised that  wi th her.  
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MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chai r  I  do not  th ink I  d id  in that  

discussion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Maybe I  took i t  as a matter of  common 

cause but  both of  us know about i t  but  that  – that  was a 

decision Chair  that  we made but  the speci f ic discussion is  

that  she raise i t  was that  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And you are qui te  clear that  the decision to  

remove the funct ion had to be made.  You are not  mistaken.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chai r  i t  was made much ear l ier.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Much ear l ier.  

MR MONTANA:   She was part  of  that  th ing – and we have 

made not  only th is decision Chair  we have made other  

decisions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Other decisions.  

MR MONTANA:   Which – that  is why I  explained that  there 

were other decisions that  related to how do we spl i t  the 

port fo l io for example and I  am referr ing to the property  

port fo l io between Intersi te and the newly created PRASA 

00:22:27.   Okay – and they were f i led Chair  they were big 20 

f i les because PRASA was being rest ructured as an 

organisat ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now the – i t  is  one thing to make the 

decision that  th is funct ion should move f rom Inters i te to 

PRASA you make the decision today but  there may be the 
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quest ion of  f rom when?  Had that  issue been also sorted out  

by the t ime of  the removal  in  terms of  when the funct ion 

would move or had i t  def in i te ly move in accordance with  

th is? 

MR MONTANA:   So the funct ions at  that  t ime were being 

performed in Publ ic Affai rs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes already? 

MR MONTANA:   A lready Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   That  – that  discussion and that  is why I  am 10 

saying the let ter that  I  am asking for wi l l  then help us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  c lar i fy  

MR MONTANA:   To 00:23:20 exact ly that  th ing – th is th ing 

Chair  so that  we do not  deal  wi th i t  that  Ms Ngoye did not  

know – she was party to i t  Chai r.   We have taken that  

decision.   Ms Zinde was employed as part  of  her dut ies and 

when she took that  decision Chair  about  Mr Chauke she was 

saying that  he was not  cooperat ing -   she was not  

cooperat ing in that  part icular matter.  

MR MONTANA:   Okay a lr ight .   Mr Soni  I  hope I  helped to – 20 

to have the c lar i f icat ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  no,  no i t  does but  what i t  i l lustrates 

Chairperson and I  wi l l  say this to Mr Montana is that  i t  

seems i f  you are correct  that  Ms Ngoye was not  being 

reasonable at  al l  so she had no reason to be unhappy 
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because that  as a lawyer she would know i t  is a  logical  

funct ion but  not  only must  the funct ion move for  logical  

conclusion but  not  only must  the funct ion move but  the f i le  

must  move because i t  is  being handled now at  PRASA no 

longer at  Intersi te .    

MR MONTANA:   But  Chai r  Ms Ngoye was not  00:24:33 she 

was saying the manner in which… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The manner in which i t  was done.  

MR MONTANA:   The f i les were moved was unacceptable to  

her.   And I  agreed with her in that  – in that  part icular issue.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight  I  just  refer  you to 15.6 but  we must 

leave this now because I  want to get  on.  

MR MONTANA:   15.6.  

ADV SONI SC:   15.16 sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Where she is saying even the removal  of  the 

funct ion was not  in PRASA’s ( inaudible)  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  –  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  reads:  

“The effect  of  moving the advert is ing 20 

port fo l io f rom Inters i te to PRASA is that  the 

management of  the port fo l io was not  in  the 

interest  of . ”  

I  am not  sure that  I  fo l low th is sentence properly but  she 

says the effect  is  that  the management of  the port fo l io was 
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not  in the interest  of  PRASA and PRASA benef i t ted l i t t le.   I f  

anything f rom the port fo l io  I  – f rom the way she starts  the 

sentence I  expect  her to be saying i t  served the interest  of  

PRASA bet ter to keep the f i les – the port fo l io at  Intersi te.   I t  

d id not  serve the interest  of  PRASA to bet ter to take them to 

PRASA.  

ADV SONI SC:   To PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  she uses the word management but  I  –  

maybe that  is what she intends I  am not  sure.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chai rperson as I  understood and I  have 10 

deal t  wi th th is aff idavi t  before but  there is  a  vagueness 

about i t .   As I  understood i t  she is making a dist inct ion 

between PRASA as opposed to Intersi te.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes 

ADV SONI SC:   Now i f  Intersi te holds the cont ract  then al l  

the benef i ts go to Inters i te and i t  would do as much as 

possible to secure the ful l  benef i t  whereas PRASA is not  

receiving any mater ia l  benef i ts  f rom the cont ract  and 

therefore may not  nurture the outcome as wel l  as somebody 

at  Intersi te as – as a complete – that  is how I  understand i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  guess what is also t rue is that  i f  th is  

is the view – i f  she held the same v iew at  the t ime then one 

would expect  that  she would not  have gone along wi th the 

decision to move the funct ion f rom Intersi te to PRASA.  So i t  

would therefore be interest ing i f  the minutes of  whatever 
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meet ing revealed di fferent ly.  

ADV SONI SC:   Absolutely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  fu l ly  agree wi th that  I  th ink you 

ra ised the issue ear l ier on in th is  – on this issue.  And my 

view Chai r  I  th ink my answer was very simple.   I  th ink the 

key issue about th is port fo l io advert is ing port fo l io had to do 

the – wi th the maximisat ion of  revenue for the company for 

PRASA as a group.   So I  th ink i t  is more of  a – not  PRASA 

Intersi te but  i t  is a group PRASA Group structure as against  10 

Intersi te and i t  suggest  Chai r  that  here you know i f  you look 

at  the previous – because they not  f low logical ly Chair.   In – 

in 15.15 she deal  wi th the issue of  the suspension of  Chauke 

and then she immediately  goes and make that  big point  and 

then conclude in 15.17.   Okay.   Now – so the issue of  the 

port fo l io moving and the issue of  Chauke are t reated 

interchangeably somehow and that  is why you – i t  ra ises the 

quest ion did she actual ly support  the decision?  What should 

we – let  us look at  the – what do we cal l  the – the EXCO 

minutes – let  us look at  the In tersi te board meet ing – 20 

minutes they wi l l  then – as wel l  as the let ter of  suspension of  

Mr Chauke.   Those documents Chai r  wi l l  be able to  help us 

to come to a determinat ion and say which version is  more 

probable than the argument that  we are having Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .    
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ADV SONI SC:   Just  one f inal  quest ion on that .   Where was 

Mr Chauke based?  Was he based at  Intersi te or at  PRASA? 

MR MONTANA:   At  some stage he was based at  Intersi te  

Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   No at  the t ime of  his  suspension.   At  the 

t ime of  th is incident .  

MR MONTANA:   He may – I  th ink Chai r  because the 

t ransi t ion was happening he was report ing to – he was now 

requi red to repor t  to Ms Zinde but  she may have been 

physical ly st i l l  at  Intersi te as part  of  that  process.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Would you have the power as the CEO of  the 

Group CEO of  PRASA would you have the power to suspend 

him al though he is based at  Intersi te and an employee of  

Intersi te? 

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  th ink the – unless i f  –  i f  he is 

based at  Intersi te – no Chai r  i t  would be di fferent  –  

completely di fferent…. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ent i ty.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  le t  us  make a  d is t inc t ion ,  s i r.   You say  

i f  i t  i s  based a t  In te rs i te?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    You mean in  the  s t ruc ture  i t  i s  repor t ing  

to  the  CEO of  In te rs i te?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r  i t  wou ld  be  regu la r  bu t  i f  he 
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i s  phys ica l l y  a t  In te rs i te  bu t  he  is  repor t ing  to ,  le t  us  say,  

Ms Z inde –  Cha i r,  the  dec i s ion  i s  a  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t  

one.   I  cannot  parachute  and come in to  In te rs i te  and 

suspend an employee when the re  is  a  CEO there .   I t  wou ld  

be  inappropr ia te .   But  i f  i t  i s  par t  o f  the  corpora te  o f f i ce  

i r respect ive  o f  where  phys i ca l l y  he  s i t s ,  i f  he  repor ts  to  the 

–  what  i s  i t  ca l led? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Z inde.  

MR MONTANA :    Ms Z inde.   And Cha i r,  i t  depends  on the  

na ture  o f  the  t ransgress ion  because the re  are  10 

t ransgress ions tha t  may be ser ious,  tha t  may be dea l t  w i th  

there  a t  the . . .   Th is  impacts  on  the  s tab i l i t y,  on  the  assets  

o f  the  company and I  take  a  dec i s ion  on  the  employees.    

 You know,  Johnny  S t r i ke(?)  ac t ions .   Some o f  the  

dec is ions a re  made by  me because a t  tha t  t ime the  

pro tec t ion  o f  the  assets  o f  the  bus iness i t  s i t s  w i th  me.   So 

aga in ,  i t  depends  on but  to  answer  in  sho r t  Cha i r.   I f  he  is  

an  employee o f  In te rs i te ,  I  cannot  suspend h im Cha i r.   I t  

w i l l  have to  be  the  CEO of  In te rs i te  tha t  makes tha t  

dec is ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And i f  she –  i f  he  was employee o f  

PRASA and accord ing  to  Ms Z inge(s ic )  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MR MONTANA :    Z inde.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .genera l l y  speak ing ,  even i f  you might  

ask  me to  have the  power  in  cer ta in  c i rcumstances,  you 
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suspend h im –  then you wou ld  no t  suspend h im.   You w i l l  

leave tha t  to  Ms Z inde.  

MR MONTANA :    Ms Z inde w i l l  have to  do  tha t  Cha i r.   That  

i s  why I  sa id  in  response.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I f  I  d id  –  and tha t  i s  why –  tha t  i s  the  

reason why I  am ask ing  fo r  the  le t te r  Cha i r  because i f  tha t  

le t te r  says Mon tana s igned and suspended a  sen ior  

manager,  i t  means Cha i r  tha t  I  w i l l  have to  say  to  th is  

Commiss ion  I  concede tha t  I  ac ted  a t  tha t  t ime i r regu lar ly  10 

Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.    

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  someth ing  te l l s  me tha t  you  wou ld  

no t  fo rge t  i f  you  suspended h im.   [ laughs]  

MR MONTANA :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  d id  you suspend too  many? [ laughs]  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  know where  you a re  coming f rom.   

Indeed Cha i r.   But  tha t  i s  why I  th ink  somet imes I  have 

been hammered by  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec to r  where  I  d id  no t  20 

s ign  bu t  I  may have sa id  bu t  you need to  take  ac t ion  

aga ins t  th is  chap.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may have au thor ised?  

MR MONTANA :    I  am –  we l l ,  no t  au thor i s ing  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  

say.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  mean,  I  wou ld  go  to  Park  S ta t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Cer ta in  compan ies  do  not  c lean the i r  

s ta t ion .   I  sa id  to  the  boss,  ac t  aga ins t  these peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Where  i f  indeed the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  sa id  

tha t  seven compan ies  were  f i red  by  Mr  Montana.   I  never  

f i red  them.   I  sa id  today,  Boards o f  PRASA Cres,  i f  you  do 

not  ac t  aga ins t  those who do not  c lean the  company,  I  am 10 

go ing  to  ac t  aga ins t  h im.   And the  f ind ing  o f  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  sa id  d i smissa l  o f  those compan ies  were  done by  

Mr  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    So  Cha i r,  you cou ld  have tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  i s  why in  th is  par t i cu la r  ins tance,  

the  reasons tha t  Ms Z inde –  they have advanced,  they 

have jus t i f ied  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led  –  tak ing  ac t ion  aga ins t  

Mr  Chauke.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Chauke,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And she may have sa id  th i s  i s  the  rou te 

tha t  I  take  and I  may have suppor ted  tha t  rou te  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  I  want  to  
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remind myse l f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    To  see tha t ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .and see the  le t te r  be fore  I  conf i rm or  

re jec t  and what  and so  on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .ask ing  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We may then tu rn  now to  –  I  take  i t  

un t i l  we get  those  documents  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .we w i l l  dea l  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . the  paragraph,  I  th ink 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  ven t i la te  some o f  the  aspects  

when we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have gone past  fou r.   We are  a t  ha l f -

past  four.   But  I  th ink  we need to  go  a t  leas t  a f te r  f i ve .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then I  w i l l  have the  even ing  sess ion .   
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So  we w i l l  have to . . .  [ laugh]   And  Mr  Montana,  he  sa id  to  

coopera te .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes-no . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . c lear ly  he  has been now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   A re  you go ing  to  deny tha t  you are  

ready to  coopera te ,  Mr  Montana?  

MR MONTANA :    Not  w i th  you,  Cha i r,  except  tha t  I  wou ld  

ra ise  the  issue o f  oppor tun i ty  because tha t  goes w i th  my  

tes t imony Cha i r.   I  was jok ing  w i th  your  team ear l i e r  on  to  10 

say . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .peop le  l i ke  us  who are  hust le rs  –  when  

I  s i t  in  the  Commiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . the  cost  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  make  money.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . you  do not  make money Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r  I  have  commi t ted  to  ass is t  the  20 

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And to  coopera te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  th ink  I  w i l l  con t inue do ing  tha t  
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Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   A t  f i ve  

o ’c lock  we w i l l  jus t  ta lk  about  when Mr  Montana  shou ld  

re turn .   But  le t  us  cont inue unt i l  f i ve .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease.   Mr  Montana,  le t  me 

express ou r  g ra t i tude to  you.  

MR MONTANA :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now paragraph 17.   We have dea l t  

w i th  some o f  these mat te rs  and you jus t  te l l  me where  you  

d isagree Mr  Montana.   She says:  10 

“ I  f i rs t  encountered Mr  Montana when I  jo ined  

In te rs i te  as  an  Execut ive  in  the  Off i ce  o f  

In te rs i te ’s  CEO in  January  2011. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  someth ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then she  says:  

“That  appo in tment  was made by  In te rs i te ’s  

Board  o f  wh ich  Mr  Montana  was the  

Cha i rperson. . . ”  

 That  i s  co r rec t?  20 

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    She says:  

“N ine  months  la te r,  on  the  

1 s t  o f  September  2011,  the  board  s t i l l  cha i red  

by  Mr  Montana appo in ted  me as In te rs i te ’s  
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CEO. . . ”  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then she  says:  

“ I  was t ransfer red  to  PRASA wi th  e f fec t  f rom 

the  1 s t  o f  September  2014. . . ”  

 Now Mr  Montana,  you have –  and I  –  because I  

jus t  want  us  to  c lose  tha t  gap.   As  I  unders tand i t .   You say 

i t  was e f fec t i ve ly  a  fo rced t ransfe r  because the  board  was  

unhappy w i th  her  o r  she was unhappy tha t  she was be ing  

removed as  a  CEO of  one o f  the  subs id ia r ies  and made – 10 

a l though she as  an  Execut ive  –  she was unhappy.   Does  

tha t  captu re  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r  she was unhappy Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

“Jus t  th ree  months  la te r,  Mr  Montana asked me 

to  ac t  in  h is  pos i t ion . . . ”  

 Wel l ,  you have conf i rmed th is  bu t  le t  me jus t  

f in ish  i t .  

“ . . . fo r  two months  in  December  2014 and  

2015. . . ”  20 

 That  i s  co r rec t . . .  

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  the  to ta l  days,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was  

about  28-days bu t  o f  course  i t  was du r ing  the  month  o f  

December  and January.   I t  was not  the  two fu l l  months .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Oh,  yes .   I  unders tand.  
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MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i t  was 28-days?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .wh ich  s t radd led .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja ,  i t  s t radd led .   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    I t  was in  m id  –  m id  –  la te  December.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And then I  th ink  I  went  a round the  22n d  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .o f  January.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .o f  January.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    She says:  

“These are  per iods fo r  the  l ong-d i s tance  

bus iness o f  PRASA. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And she says :  

“ . . .Ma in l ine  Cus tomer  Serv i ces  and U l t ra -20 

Packs(? )  and i t  was a t  the  t ime when the  board  

was cons ider ing  a  ve ry  impor tan t  tender  fo r  

the  const ruc t ion  o f  the  b igges t  depot  fo r  

PRASA. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  someth ing  you reca l l?  
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MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  reca l l  t ha t  very  we l l  because in  

November  the  board  had dea l t  w i th  the  Braamfonte in  bu t  I  

were  to  learn ,  o f  course ,  la te r  –  the  answer  i s  yes ,  Cha i r  –  

tha t  on  the  23 r d  o f  December,  the  board  met  to  d iscuss th is  

i ssue aga in  bu t  I  was on leave a t  tha t  t ime.   So i t  i s  

cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

“On h i s  re tu rn ,  Mr  Montana thanked me 

persona l l y  a t  the  Group Exco Meet ing  fo r  the 

hard  work  and hav ing  he ld  the  fo r t  fo r  h im. . . ”  10 

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .   You are  fu l l y  in  synced  w i th  each 

o the r.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  tha t  conf i rm what  the  k ind  o f  man I  

am Cha i r.   And I  th ink  tha t  i s  one o f  the  major  f ind ings tha t  

a  Cha i r. . .   [ laughs]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Then  she says:  

“On the  18 t h (? )  o f  May. . . ”  

 Now we have dea l t  w i th  th is  i ssue to  a  la rge  

ex ten t  yes te rday  and we can,  you know,  w i thout  avo id ing  20 

any issues,  th is  is  the  day on  wh ich  you sent  the  emai l  –  I  

mean –  yes,  the  emai l .   You remember  th is?   Th is  was in  

Mr  D ing iswayo . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    D ing iswayo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  a f f idav i t .  
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MR MONTANA :    That  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  the  emai l  about  the  campaign?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The emai l  about  the  campaign?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    P lease have a  look a t  i t  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja-no,  Cha i r  I  conf i rm but  th is  was a  

d i f fe ren t  mat te r.   The emai l  was on  the  18 t h  o f  Apr i l  bu t  the  

same –  the  mat te r  i s  the  same –  i t  i s  a lmost  the  same 

mat te r  Cha i r.   I  agree w i th  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now p lease have a  look a t  page 317.  10 

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  I  see 317,  316 and 318.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  the  same emai l  tha t  we looked a t  

yes terday in  the  contex t  o f  Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  a f f idav i t  where 

you were  ta l k ing  about  o the r  peop le  who you sa id  were  on  

the  campaign.    

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  remember  the  emai l ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So  what  I  am say ing  i s ,  i t  i s  the  

18 t h  o f  May,  no t  Apr i l .  

MR MONTANA :    Not  Apr i l .   Okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  le t  us  have i t  –  we l l ,  I  mean,  I  do 

no t  want  to  dea l  w i th  i t  anymore  but  I  jus t  want  to  say tha t  

i t  i s  the  same emai l  and I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  you to  be  
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comfor tab le  w i th  i t  tha t  tha t  i s  the  emai l  we a re  ta lk ing  

about .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now,  i t  says  the  contents  a re  se l f -

exp lanatory.   And can I  jus t  –  we l l ,  le t  us  jus t  f in ish  th i s  

par t :  

“ . . .because the  emai l  was sent  a f te r  the  lega l  

funct ion  o f  PRASA through Mr  D ing iswayo and 

me had ind i ca ted  tha t  we were  no t  in  a 

pos i t ion  to  dea l  w i th  the  Swi fambo cont rac t  10 

wh ich  requ i red  some amendments  to  be 

e f fec ted  to  the  main  agreement  tha t  was  

a l ready in  p lace . . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    Unfo r tunate ly,  I  th ink ,  in  fac t ,  yes terday –  

Mr  D ing iswayo says in  h is  a f f idav i t  tha t  the  reason why I  

took  ac t ion ,  he  says i t  was because I  was defend ing  

Prod igy.   In  th is  paragraph i t  i s  now say ing  i t  has  to  do  

w i th  Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   But  she comes to  tha t  issue in  20 

a  moment  bu t  you say th is  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the i r  

re fusa l  to  be  invo lved in  the  amendment  to  the  Swi fambo 

cont rac t  wh ich  wou ld  ex ten t  the  p r ice  o f  the  cont rac t  f rom 

R 3 ,5  b i l l i on  to  R 5  b i l l i on .   She sa id  th is  had noth ing  to  do  

w i th  i t .  
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MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  look ,  I  fee l  

tha t  Ms Ngoye is  confus ing  th ings ,  okay?  The – and th i s  

th ing  about  h im not  hav ing  –  as  a  lega l  funct ion  tha t  i t  had 

quest ions on  the  pr inc ip le  t ransact ion  th rough wh ich . . .   I t  

i s  –  Cha i r,  i t  i s  jus t  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  jus t  a  l ie  Cha i r.   You w i l l  

reca l l  tha t  I  sa id  tha t  Ms Ngoye was par t  o f  th is  p rocess,  

par t  o f  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  tha t  recommended  

th is  th ing  to  the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you sa id  tha t .  

MR MONTANA :    I  sa id  tha t  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Now the  issue o f  the  3 .5  and you w i l l  see  

aga in  in  my –  and le t  me exp la in  about  th is  th ing  –  i t  i s  in  

my annexure .   In  2014 Cha i r  –  no t  –  May 2014 w i th  the  

board  under  Mr  S f iso  Buthe lez i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Under  Mr  Buthe lez i?  

MR MONTANA :    Mr  Buthe lez i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Not  m is ter  –  th is  i s  2014,  no t  2015 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   The f i rs t  par t  o f  2014?  20 

MR MONTANA :    O f  2014 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Jus t  be fo re  the  new PRASA Board  o f  

Mr  Mole fe  was appo in ted .   We went  to  the  board  because 

we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  Euro  ra te  exchange.   And Cha i r,  I  
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th ink  the  suppor t ing  documents  are  prov ided there .   Then 

we took a  dec i s ion  as  the  board  tha t  the  cont rac t  i s  3 .5  bu t  

i t  i s  very  impor tan t  to  renegot ia te  some par t s  o f  tha t  

cont rac t  and pass the  r i sk  –  we shou ld  remember  the  r i sk .   

The r i sk  o f  –  the  exchange ra te  r i sk  was f i t t ing  w i th  

PRASA.    

 So we wanted to  pass tha t  to  Swi fambo but  tha t  

was on 201.   And I  th ink  the  documents  are  very  c lea r.   I t  

was in  –  tha t  dec i s ion  was made by  the  board  and the 

board  fu r ther  sa id :   Guys,  w i th  a l l  these f luc tua t ions wh i ls t  10 

th ings are  happen ing ,  we do not  want  th is  cont rac t  to  shoot  

o f f  the  roo f .   So i t  i s  go ing  –  you need to  p rac t ise  so  tha t  i t  

does not  exceed  R 5  b i l l i on .   So i t  does not  say  increase 

the  cont rac t  to  f i ve  b i l l i on .    

 We sa id  t r ied  to  do  tha t  bu t  manage th is  th ing  in  

such a  way when  the  –  a t  tha t  t ime,  I  th ink ,  the  Rand had  

los t  about  a lmost  40% of  i t s  va lue  to  the  Euro .   So fo r  the  

same amount  o f  money we cou ld  buy on ly  fewer  t ra ins  

Cha i r.   So tha t  i s  what  happened.   Now I  am say ing ,  

Ms Ngoye is  confus ing  th is  th ing .    20 

 I t  was in  2015,  May 2015.   I t  was the  board  o f  Mr  

Mole fe .   Mr  Mole fe  and the  new board  were  appo in ted  on  

the  1 s t  o f  August  2014.   So we d i scussed tha t  mat te r  th ree  

months  ea r l ie r.   And le t  me say Cha i r  tha t  –  le t  me say tha t  

a t  tha t  t ime she was not  in  tha t  same pos i t ion .   She was in  
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a t  In te rs i te  as  th ings s tood because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Now which  t ime is  tha t?   I s  tha t  th ree  

months  be fore  Mr  Mole fe ’s  board  came o r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Yes.   And you w i l l  reca l l  she  was on ly  

t ransfer red  –  Ms Ngoye was t ransfer red ,  I  th ink ,  in  

September  2014.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    2014,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Okay?   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  d iscuss ion  tha t  you are  ta lk ing  

about  wou ld  have  happened about  May . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    May 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    So  i t  i s  recorded Cha i r.   The documents ,  

the  ev idence is  t here  to  suppor t  tha t .   So i t  wou ld  no t  have 

been the  reason .   The Swi fambo  mat te r  wou ld  no t  have  

been the  reason  a t  th is  t ime because there  was  a  new 

board  and we knew tha t  the  board  o f  Mr  Mole fe ,  when he  

comes to  th is  i ssue,  had even take a  more  . . .  approach.    20 

 And la te r,  I  th ink  f rom December  –  f rom 

December  o r  ra ther  in  2015.   And these reasons,  Cha i r,  

tha t  she is  say ing  tha t  we were  no t  p repared to  do  tha t  

because we were  wor r ied  about  the  pr inc ip le  and  we d id  

no t  ge t  the  . . .  responses Cha i r.   I  thought  Ms Ngoye was  
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go ing  to  say Annexure  MN-10 o r  whatever  conta ined a  

document  tha t  was sent  to  the  . . .   Th is  –  Cha i r,  th is  i s  

c rea ted –  she i s  ac tua l l y  c rea t ing  a  reason Cha i r  and 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  par t  o f  wha t  you are  say ing  is  tha t  

she says and they sent  on  the  –  we l l ,  they  or  you sent  your  

emai l  tha t  we have re fer red  to  on  the  18 t h  o f  May 2015 

where  you ta lk  about  the  campaign ,  okay?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then she i s  say ing  tha t  emai l  was 10 

sent  –  you sent  i t  –  tha t  emai l  a f te r  the  lega l  funct ion  o f  

PRASA,  I  guess  tha t  i s  the  Lega l  Depar tment ,  th rough 

Mr  D ing iswayo and he r,  had ind i ca ted  tha t  you when they 

were  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  dea l  w i th  the  Swi fambo cont rac t  

wh ich  requ i red  some amendments  to  be  e f fec t ,  the  main  

agreement  tha t  was a l ready in  p lace .    

 So what  you are  say ing  is .   The – your  emai l  to  –  

about  the  campaign cou ld  no t  have been prompted –  cou ld  

no t  have been p rompted by  the i r  re fusa l ,  i f  there  was a  

re fusa l ,  to  dea l  w i th  the  Swi fambo cont rac t  because they  20 

are  ta l k ing  abou t  May 2015 but  th is  was du r ing  Mr  Pop  

Mole fe ’s  board  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    In  2015.   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  2015.   And  you say the  two do not  

go  togethe r.  
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MR MONTANA :    Even in  te rms o f  the  t ime l ines there  is  no 

cor re la t ion .   So Cha i r,  i t  te l l s  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  the  reason  she is  advanc ing ,  she is  

ac tua l l y  advanc ing  a  reason  wh ich  she had created  

thereaf te r  and th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR MONTANA :    . . .and th is  soc ia l (? )  deed(? )  you must  

look  a t  Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  th ing .   He sa id  me and  

Mr  D ing iswayo.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Mr  D ing iswayo is  say ing  a  d i f fe ren t  th ing .   

He does not  ta lk  about  Swi fambo.   And i f  –  even i f  the  two  

o f  them were  to  –  were  in  agreement  tha t  th is  –  i t  i s  about  

Swi fambo,  I  w i l l  say  Cha i r  i t  i s  fa lse  because a t  tha t  t ime 

in  May we never  d iscussed –  un less  i f  she  wants  to  be 

b l inded and put  i t  fo r  what  i t  i s  Cha i r.   But  a t  tha t  t ime,  she 

says we d id  no t  ge t  sa t is fac tory  responses.   You know what  

tha t  suggests  to  me Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR MONTANA :    That  I  sa id  –  i t  con f i rms my emai l ,  in  fac t .   

For  me i t  b r ings to  my emai l  tha t  there  is  now th is  

campaign.   Mr  De l l (? )  sa id  to  the  Commiss ion  they have 

ident i f ied  cont rac ts .   When I  came in  January,  a  ca l l  f rom 

Cape Town,  a  meet ing  w i th  the  cha i rman and sor t ing  ou t  
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the  ANC’s  t ranspor t  p lans,  they  were  invest iga t ing .   So 

Cha i r,  th is  has no th ing  to  do  w i th  what  she is  say ing  here .  

 In  fac t ,  fo r  me,  i f  I  were  to  p rov ide  the  l i s t  o f  the  

compan ies  to  be  invest iga ted ,  i t  suggests  to  me tha t  

ac tua l l y  she i s  t ry ing  to  go  a round tha t  because th is  i ssue  

was not  there  in  2015 un less  i f  there  was an inves t iga t ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Whi le  you were  there  as  Group CEO,  to  

your  reco l lec t ion ,  was the re  a  t ime when the  Lega l  

Depar tment  re fused to  dea l  w i th  the  Swi fambo cont rac t?  10 

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   No t  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    D id  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .accord ing  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Not  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

[Speakers  in te rven ing  each o ther  –  unc lear ]  

MR MONTANA :    And I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  they d id  re fuse to  dea l  w i th  o ther  

cont rac ts ,  ce r ta in  o ther  cont rac ts  t ha t  you know o f?  20 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  why  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  i s  why I  wro te  and tha t  i s  why I  

ca l led  by  even Mr  D ing iswayo ’ vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA :    When I  request  h im to  come to  my o f f i ce  

tha t :   No,  you are  now work ing  aga ins t  the  bus iness.   And I  

sa id  the  reason why he ac ted  in  tha t  way is  because he(? )  

was pa r t  o f  th is  b roader  campaign.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Now h i s  . . .  Cha i r  –  I  do  no t  th ink  she had 

in tended to  say tha t ,  okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And she t r ied  to  f ind  a  reason tha t  d id  no t  

ex i s t  and she b rought  the  Swi fambo.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    And noth ing(?)  i s  fa lse  Cha i r.   I t  is  fa lse ,  

i t  i s  m is lead ing  the  Commiss ion .   I t  i s  no t  the  t ru th ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Now I  do  remember  tha t  you d id  

say yeste rday tha t  there  were  ce r ta in  cont rac ts  tha t  they 

ident i f ied  and you ta lked about  them be ing  incons is ten t  in  

the i r  approach.   Some cont rac ts  maybe cou ld  be  hav ing  the  

same perce ived prob lem or  a l leged prob lem but  one gets  

invest iga ted ,  ano ther  one does not  ge t  invest iga ted  and  

tha t  i t  i s  par t  o f  what  you had a  prob lem wi th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MONTANA :    Indeed . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  the i r  approach.   But  –  you are  

say ing  tha t  –  bu t  you are  a l so  say ing  tha t  there  was  a  t ime 

when there  was a  dec is ion  in  te rms o f  wh ich  the  board  sa id  

we do not  want  to  f ind  a f te r  some t ime tha t  the  costs  
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re la t ing  to  th is  Swi fambo cont rac t  had a  shor t  ou t (? ) .   They  

must  be  kept  and  tha t  i s  where  the  issue o f  f i ve  b i l l i on  was  

ment ioned.  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    That  was in  May . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    . . .2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now tha t  wou ld  have been the  Board  o f  

PRASA? 10 

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Ms Ngoye wou ld  no t  have taken pa r t  

in  tha t  one?  

MR MONTANA :    She was s t i l l  the  CEO of  In te rs i te ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  I  thought  ear l ie r  on  you sa id  

she wou ld  have been par t  o f  tha t  d iscuss ion  about  f i ve  

b i l l i on  or  someth ing .  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    She wou ld  no t?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   Maybe I  m ixed up a  number  20 

o f  th ings in  one –  in  my exp lanat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am say ing ,  where  she says we d id  no t  

unders tand the  pr inc ip le .   We had severa l  quest ions  on  the  

pr inc ip le  t ransact ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I  am say ing  Ms Ngoye was par t  o f  the  B id  

Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    So  i f  the  lega l  funct ion ,  wh ich  was  

repor t ing  to  her  ra ises  quest ions -  she wr i tes  here  tha t  I  

d id  no t  have.   So  she is  te l l ing  us  Cha i r  tha t  she was par t  

o f  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  tha t  recommended 

someth ing  she d id  no t  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA :    Maybe tha t  i s  why she is  f igh t ing  i t ,  she  

rea l i sed:   Oh,  my  God.   What  have I  been pa r ty  to?   What  

have I  done?  Bu t  th is  cannot  be  the  reason Cha i r  t ha t  she  

s ta r ts  danc ing  here  because th is  happened a  year  ear l i e r  

in  May 2014.   She was s t i l l  a t  In te rs i te  by  tha t  t ime.   She  

wou ld  no t  have been par t  o f  tha t  d iscuss ion .   And my 

ev idence,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  w i l l  submi t  w i l l  p rov ide  even the  

memorandum tha t  was prepared  by  one Mr  S iph iwe(? )  

Matyoben i (? ) .   I t  shows the  movement  o f  the  Rand in  

re la t ion  to  the  Euro .   And the  huge  r i sk  tha t  we were  fac ing  20 

as  PRASA a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   What  i s  tha t  you say happened in  

2014?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  in  2014 there  was a  board  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  about  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MONTANA :    The Rand/Euro  exchange.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  capp ing  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    And the  board  sa id ,  number,  one,  go  and  

renegot ia te  some par ts  o f  th is  cont rac t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Because i f  the  Rand,  the  va lue  o f  the  

Rand cont inues to  de ter io ra te ,  we  are  go ing  to  be  in  a  b ig  

p rob lem because  the  amount  can  shoot  beyond.   So they 

say,  cont inue do ing  tha t  bu t  cap th is  th ing  so  tha t  i t  does  

not  even exceed R 5  b i l l i on .   They were  no t  say ing  10 

increase i t  to  R 5  b i l l i on .   They sa id  go  and negot ia te .   But  

they do  not  want  –  when he comes  back to  us  and say the  

Rand/Euro  has changed to  such  an ex ten t  tha t  th is  i s  

R 10 b i l l i on ,  as  an  example .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  i s  what  was happen ing .   You 

remember  Cha i r,  there  i s  a  fo rmula t ion  in  the  cont rac t  

where  i f  the  Rand is  a t  a  pa r t i cu la r  leve l ,  we s i t  w i th  the  

r i sk  bu t  i f  i t  goes –  I  th ink  there  is  an  en t ry  and ex i t  leve l .    

 So  the  ex i t  leve l ,  Cha i r  -  the  mater ia l  cond i t ions  20 

have change so  much and tha t  i s  why we had to  d i scuss i t  

in  May.   So we are  no t  chang ing  the  cont rac t  bu t  we  

wanted to  make  sure  tha t  we s t i l l  ge t  under  the  new 

economy cond i t ions  or  market  cond i t ions ,  we s t i l l  ge t  the 

same va lue  fo r  money tha t  we have in tended.   So tha t  was 
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the  d iscuss ion  in  May 2014 about  the  Swi fambo cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And then to  comple te  the  po in t .   

D id  the  Lega l  Depar tment  and in  par t i cu la r  Ms Ngoye and 

Mr  D ing iswayo get  invo lved in  the  negot ia t ions  wh ich  were  

–  wh ich  wou ld  have been pursued fo l low ing tha t  dec is ion  

by  the  board  and  d id  they re fuse to  do  anyth ing  in  regard  

to  tha t?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    As  fa r  as  you reca l l .  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r  the  –  you remember  when the  10 

cont rac t  was done –  i t  was s igned in  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Ms Ngoye  was par t  o f  the  B id  

Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  recommended.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  in  te rms o f  our  SCM po l icy  and the  

compos i t ion  o f  the  commi t tees,  i t  requ i res  o f  course  tha t  –  

cons ider  these b ids  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led  –  the  -  your  f inance  20 

and lega l . . .   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  p ro  –  i t  spec i f ies  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    So  I  wou ld  no t  know,  fo r  example ,  who a t  

the  t ime.   Ms Ngoye was s i t t ing ,  no t  even coming f rom the  

Lega l  Depar tmen t . . .   Because she was appo in ted  even 
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though she was a t  In te rs i te .   And I  th ink  she may have 

been even appo in ted  befo re  she was CEO,  when she was 

the  Head o f  the  CEO’s  Off i ce  a t  In te rs i te .    

 Because th is  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  was fo r  the  

en t i re  g roup.   I t  invo lved a  number  o f  peop le  who were  a t  

tha t  leve l .   So Cha i r,  somebody f rom lega l  cou ld  have been  

invo lved in  the  –  bo th  in  the  ad jud ica t ion  process bu t  I  

wou ld  no t  know,  as  I  s i t  here ,  who  i t  was a t  tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   What  I  am t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  i s ,  

whethe r  she migh t  have made a  m is take by  dea l ing  w i th  an  10 

issue,  namely  t he i r  re fusa l  to  dea l  w i th  the  Swi fambo 

cont rac t .   She may have made a  m is take by  say ing  tha t  

i ssue –  the i r  re fusa l  happened in  2015 when maybe i t  

happened in  2014 i f  the  d iscuss ion  tha t  you are  ta lk ing  

about  happened in  2014.  So I  was t ry ing  to  see whethe r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r  –  no ,  Cha i r.   Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Le t  me be honest  –  le t  me be d i rec t  on  

th is  i ssue.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    There  was no con fus ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    There  is  no  confus ion  when I  am the  CEO 

of  a  subs id ia ry.   I  am not  a t  PRASA,  okay?  There  is  no  
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con fus ion  tha t  the  new Board  o f  PRASA d id  no t  d iscuss -  

and where  the  Board  o f  PRASA even in  2015,  Cha i r,  in  

2015 d i scussed the  Swi fambo con t rac t ,  tha t  was done by  

me a t  the  board  and we were  no t  ask ing  fo r  money or  

changes to  the  cont rac t  because the  new board  had asked 

to  d iscuss the  Sw i fambo cont rac t  in  l igh t  o f  what  was be ing  

repor ted  in  the  med ia .    

 And I  went  there .   I  took  the  CEO of  the  Ra i l  

D iv i s ion  and I  took  some o f  our  own eng ineers ,  Cha i r,  and  

tha t  i s  the  day we had qu i te  a  lo t  o f  –  even f igh ts  about  10 

th is  par t i cu la r  cont rac t .   Th is  one,  Cha i r,  does not  re la te  to  

any o f  tha t .   Mar tha  was not  –  Mar tha  was not  par t  o f  –  o r  

was not  a t  PRASA Corpora te  o f f i ce .   She was s t i l l  a t  the 

In te rs i te  –  she was an In te rs i te  CEO.    

 But  Mar tha  knew about  th is  pa r t i cu la r  cont rac t  

because she was a  member  o f  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  

Commi t tee  tha t  recommended i t  to  the  board .   And I  am 

say ing  the  reason she is  advanc ing ,  Cha i r,  where  she says  

I  sent  th is  par t i cu la r  emai l  because o f  the  Sw i fambo 

mat te r.    20 

 I  want  to  a rgue tha t  w i th  a l l  the  fac ts  cons idered  

tha t  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  fa lse .   I t  i s  a  m isrepresenta t ion .   I t  was  

not  –  i t  cannot  be  a  m is take Cha i r.   I  know tha t  you want  to  

g ive  her  the  benef i t  o f  the  doubt  bu t  a l l  c i rcumstances  

show Cha i r  tha t  she l ied .   And i f  she says in  th is  a f f idav i t  
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tha t  me and she -  th rough Mr  Fan i  D ing iswayo and me had 

ind ica ted  tha t  we are  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  dea l  w i th  the  

Swi fambo cont rac t  wh ich  –  no ,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Yes-no,  bu t  the  reason why I  am 

ask ing  is  s imp ly  to  make sure  tha t  I  unders tand i t  f rom your  

po in t  o f  v iew.   You are  say ing ,  th is  cannot  be  a  s i tua t ion  o f  

her  be ing  m is taken or  tak ing  someth ing  tha t  happened in  

2014,  th ink ing  i t  happened in  2015.   You say she d id  th is  

de l ibe ra te ly.   She knows the  two have no connect ion .   Or 

whethe r  there  is  room tha t  she might  have . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  as  10 

to  when what  happened,  bu t  you are  say ing  there  is  no  –  

as  fa r  as  you a re  concerned,  the re  is  no  room fo r  her  to  

have made a  m is take?  She …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  in  the  ea r l ie r  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    In  the  ear l ie r  one where  we were  

d iscuss ing  adver t i s ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    You reca l l  I  sa id  th is  may have happened  

but  she is  confus ing  the  –  tha t  I  accept .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    In  th is  par t i cu la r  one,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  no t  confus ion .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t  and in  fac t  i f  she  

meant  what  she had wr i t ten  here ,  Cha i r,  one o f  the  th ings 
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she  wou ld  have sa id ,  I  annexure  and emai l  he re  to  suppor t  

what  I  am say ing .   Who d id  she ra i se  th i s  th ing  w i th ,  

Cha i r?   And can you see i t  i s  com ing out  tha t  we were  no t  

p repared.   We had asked quest ions,  severa l  quest ions on  

the  pr inc ipa l  t ransact ion  to  wh ich  no  sa t is fac tory  response  

were  prov ided.   Who d id  she ask ,  Cha i r?   Because  now i t  i s  

a  genera l  s ta tement .   D id  they ask  Lucky Montana?  

Because,  Cha i r,  a l l  she  found was,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  –  and I  

th ink  Mr  Son i  knows,  I  ac tua l l y  be l ieve  tha t  the  cour t  

judgment  i s  even  wrong on th i s  i ssue,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  the  10 

po in t  he re .  

 They never  asked me,  Cha i r,  they  never  sought  my  

gu idance.   I  am say ing ,  Cha i r,  the  on ly  p robab le  

exp lanat ion  is  tha t  they were  dea l ing  w i th  Swi fambo as  

par t  o f  the i r  l i s t  o f  cont rac ts  tha t  they have now ident i f ied  

wh ich  led  to  me wr i t ing  th is  pa r t i cu la r  emai l  on  the  18  May,  

Cha i r.   But  tha t  i s  the  on ly  exp lana t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and I  see tha t  in  the  sentence you  

had wr i t ten  there  she does not  say  w i th  whom they  ra ised  

those quest ions.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  one o f  the  po in ts  you 20 

make.  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Char i ,  because i f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess because i f  she sa id  they ra i sed  

them wi th  you,  you wou ld  then be ab le  to  say yes,  they d id  

or  no ,  they d id  no t ,  and she does not  say  they ra ised them 
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w i th  Ms Z inde or  whoever,  she  jus t  says they  ra ised  

quest ions.  

MR MONTANA:    Exact ly,  Cha i r,  and i f  le t  us  assume tha t  

the  teams who were  dea l ing  w i th  t h is  mat te r  w i l l  no t  be  in  a  

pos i t ion  to  answer,  Cha i r,  the  most  log ica l  th ing  wou ld  be  

to  say hey,  we th ink  there  is  a  r i sk ,  there  is  a  b ig  cont rac t  

fo r  the  bus iness,  we want  to  e leva te  th is  th ing  to  the  Group 

CEO to  dea l  w i th  tha t .  

 Cha i r,  the  i n ten t ion  o f  th is  en t i re  pa ragraph i s  

ac tua l l y  fo r  Ms  Ngoye to  d issoc ia te  he rse l f  f rom the  10 

Swi fambo cont rac t  so  tha t  she can put  i t  as  i f  i t  i s  o ther  

peop le  who d id  someth ing  wrong .   So she is  p ro jec t ing  

herse l f ,  I  am th is  hero ,  I  asked quest ions.  

 Now th is  cont rac t  was recommended by  Ms Ngoye,  

Ti ro  Ho le le  and  h is  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee ,  no t  fo r  

approva l  by  Mr  Montana but  by  the  board  o f  PRASA.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So  when i t  i s  sa id  tha t  th is  cont rac t  was 

i r regu la r,  was un lawfu l ,  you wou ld  say the  peop le  who 

recommended tha t  i t  be  granted must  share  whatever  

b lame in  re la t ion  to  tha t ,  i f  tha t  i s  the  pos i t ion?  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  you seem to  have read my 

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  read your  a f f idav i t  las t  yea r.  

MR MONTANA:    Las t  yea r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  I  to ld  you tha t  on  Fr iday,  I  read i t  
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bu t  I  cannot  remember  every th ing  bu t  I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  the  reason why I  am say ing  

tha t ,  Cha i r,  i s  because PRASA under  Mr  Nath i  Khena who  

was the  Act ing  Group CEO af te r  I  had le f t  PRASA,  when 

they were  busy  do ing  th is  invest iga t ion  they s ta r ted  

crea t ing  new grounds o f  why they shou ld  cha l lenge the  

Swi fambo cont rac t .   These were  no t ,  as  I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  they  

were  never  ra i sed by  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  e i ther  

to  me or  to  the  board  tha t  approved th is  th ing .   They  

s ta r ted  coming new th ings,  oh  there  was no  proper  10 

agreement  be tween Swi fambo and  Voss loh .   They crea ted 

–  a l l  o f  those are  c rea ted,  Cha i r.   I  de ta i led  them the re .  

 But  the  most  impor tan t  th ing  and here  is  the  issue ,  

Cha i r,  Mr  Nath i  Khena prepared …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do not  go  too  fa r  f rom the  mic .  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Nath i  Khena,  the  Act ing  CEO of  

PRASA who was appo in ted  by  the  board  to  ac t  there  

immedia te ly  a f te r  I  have le f t ,  i ssues le t te rs  to  a l l  members  

o f  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  and the  B id  Eva lua t ion  

Commi t tee  and the  B id  Ad jud ica t i on  Commi t tee  and asked 20 

them p lease wr i te  to  me and exp la in  why I  shou ld  no t  take  

ac t ion  i f  those reasons are  t rue .   You know what  happened,  

Cha i r?    

Nath i  gave an emai l  wr i t ten  by  Mrs  Erasmus o f  Mr  

Bernard  Hotz  and say ing  tak ing  ac t ion  and say ing  tak ing  
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ac t ion  aga ins t  these peop le .   So these are  cor rup t ion  

busters ,  nè?  Peop le  who have been brought  to  f igh t  to  

f igh t  cor rup t ion ,  the  tendency o f  PRASA,  tha t  someth ing  

tha t  v io la tes  the  law,  the  v io la tes  the  PFMA,  i f  those 

reasons are  t rue .    

 You cannot  take  tha t ,  Cha i r,  because i t  w i l l  

undermine our  s t ra tegy when we f igh t  th is  [ ind is t inc t ]  and  

the  reason why PRASA d id  no t  ac t  aga ins t  peop le  l i ke  Ti ro  

Ho le le ,  i t  i s  because i t  was an in te rvent ion  o f  Werksmans  

[ indist inct  – dropping voice] .   The same Werksmans ,  Cha i r,  10 

tha t  chases o ther  peop le  on  o ther  i r regu lar  cont rac t s ,  as  i t  

were .  

 So I  am say ing  tha t  i f  we look a t  19 ,  Cha i r,  th is  was  

an a f te r thought ,  i t  i s  manufac tured  to  d r ive  –  fo r  Ms  Ngoye 

to  d issoc ia te  herse l f ,  Cha i r,  f rom the  Swi fambo cont rac t  

and she is  an  in tegra l  par t  o f  i t ,  Cha i r,  and she must  take  

ownersh ip  fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now you re fer red  to  two peop le .  I  th ink  

they may be f rom Werksmans tha t  you say wro te  and sa id  

ac t ion  shou ld  no t  be  taken aga ins t  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MR MONTANA:    Aga ins t  a l l  those peop le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l l  those peop le ,  wh ich  inc luded Ms 

Ngoye?  

MR MONTANA:    That  inc luded Ms Ngoye because  a l ready  

Ms Ngoye,  Mr  Ho le le  and o the rs  had a l ready rece ived  
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le t te rs  f rom Mr  Khena.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    And Mr  Bernard  Hotz  ins t ruc ts  –  I  th ink  i t  

i s  h is  PA to  say no ,  no ,  no ,  send th is  emai l ,  so  I  th ink  i t  i s  

d ic ta ted  to  her.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  an  a t to rney f rom Werksmans?  

MR MONTANA:    From Werksmans,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  on  whose ins t ruc t ions wou ld  he  have 

been wr i t ing  to  do  tha t?   To  issue those ins t ruc t ions to  say  

do  not  –  I  mean,  how PRASA or  the  Act ing  CEO d isc ip l ines  10 

i t s  employees,  tha t  i s  an  in te rna l  mat te r.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  p rov ide  th is  Commiss ion  w i th  an  

annexure .   So th is  I  am say ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  these  peop le  

are  so  t ru th fu l  to  th is  Commiss ion ,  they are  t ru ly  cor rup t ion  

busters ,  they te l l  us  who they are .   The f i rs t  th ing ,  Cha i r,  

they  w i l l  app ly  the  same ru le  to  themse lves.   So i t  i s  qu i te  

c lea r  tha t  –  and I  th ink  when Werksmans –  tha t  i s  why I  

sa id  I  we lcome the  oppor tun i ty  to  be  cross-examined by  

Werksmans because I  am go ing  to  read to  the i r  counse l  

th is  emai l  and ask  exact ly  the  quest ion ,  Cha i r.   Somebody 20 

lobb ied  and  because the i r  own peop le ,  Cha i r,  peop le  l i ke  

D ing iswayo or  peop le  l i ke  Mar tha ,  Ho le le  a re  par t  o f  th is  

g roup they fe l t  oh ,  we cannot  d isc ip l ine  here .    

Yet  they were  runn ing  a  mass ive  campaign a t  

PRASA to  d isc ip l ine  peop le  fo r  even th ings tha t  a re  no t  
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even mater ia l  and th rew them out ,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  par t  o f  the  

l i s t  o f  cont rac ts  they were  invest iga t ing  and I  th ink  Ms 

Ngoye,  she le t  -  w i th  th is  paragraph,  Cha i r,  fo r  me and  

when I  b r ing  sen ior  counse l  to  c ross-examine,  there  w i l l  

never  be  any o ther  exp lanat ion ,  Cha i r.   She le t  the  ca t  ou t  

o f  the  bag.   When you look a t  the  t ime,  Cha i r,  you  ask  an  

impor tan t  quest ion ,  the  cont rac t  had a l ready been in  p lace  

and I  th ink  i t  was  negot ia ted  in  2012,  i t  was s igned in  2013  

and th i s  i s  2015,  Cha i r.  

So th is  i s  –  i t  has  no th ing  to  do  w i th  Swi fambo,  i t  10 

has no th ing  to  do  w i th  P rod igy,  i t  had to  do  w i th  the  fac t  

tha t  they were  imp lement ing  a  mandate ,  they had th is  

par t i cu la r  th ing .   But ,  fo r  me,  when I  saw th is  emai l  g iven  

to  me by even Werksmans ’ own employees and say look a t  

what  our  company is  do ing .   Cha i r,  I  p rov ided a  lo t  and you 

asked the  quest ion ,  I  d id  no t  ob ta in  anyth ing  un lawfu l l y  bu t  

I  want  to  sa lu te  those many employees a t  Werksmans who 

work  fo r  th is  company but  who were  unhappy,  we have 

seen the re  a re  many wrong th ings tha t  they are  do ing .   

Th is  i s  one o f  them,  Cha i r.    20 

So Werksmans,  Cha i r,  they  are  te l l ing  us  about  the  

i r regu lar  appo in tment  o f  o ther  peop le ,  bu t  no t  the i rs ,  Cha i r.   

They are  d isc ip l in ing  o thers  fo r  o thers  and they are  

in te rven ing ,  tha t  o thers  shou ld  no t  be  in te rvened,  Cha i r.    

So tha t  i s  why the  PRASA tha t  has been c reated o f  
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cor rup t  peop le  and when Mar tha  was he re  aga in ,  Cha i r,  

she sa id  I  am be ing  suspended  because I  am f igh t ing 

aga ins t  co r rup t ion .   I t  i s  so  fa lse .   I t  i s  no t  t rue ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  

no t  even suppor ted  by  fac t .   That  i s  why I  o f fe red  th is  

Commiss ion  to  p resent  as  much in fo rmat ion  inc lud ing  th is  

emai l  w r i t ten  by  Ms –  i t  i s  coded,  Cha i r,  th is  th ing  bu t  the  

essence o f  i t  i s  te l l ing  Mr  Nath i  Khena.   You cannot  

p roceed w i th  i t ,  Cha i r,  and tha t  i s  why Mr  Khena s igned a  

le t te r  o f  engagement  w i th  Werksmans,  tha t  i s  on  the i r  

le t te rhead on the i r  own te rms wh ich ,  Cha i r  -   i f  Mr  Son i ,  10 

yesterday we had  a  huge debate  about  v io la t ion  o f  Sect ion  

217 o f  the  Const i tu t ion .    

Cha i r,  there  is  no  be t te r  i l l us t ra t ion  o f  a  v io la t ion  o f  

Sect ion  217 o f  the  Const i tu t ion  than what  Werksmans d id  

in  th is  par t i cu la r  cont rac t .   I  w i l l  come back,  Cha i r,  to  

tes t i f y  about  i t ,  so  I  am s imply  say ing  i f  we do 19,  wr i t ten  

by  Ms Ngoye under  oa th ,  Cha i r  –  she deposed  to  th is  

a f f idav i t  to  th is  –  and th is  i ssue was not  there  o ther  than 

the  invest iga t ions tha t  they crea ted w i th  the i r  l i s t  o f  

cont rac ts ,  Cha i r,  o f  cont rac t s .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  go  back  to  the  Act ing  CEO who 

came a f te r  you.   So are  you say ing  in  the  end –  okay,  

maybe I  shou ld  no t  say  tha t  –  to  your  knowledge  d id  the  

persons whom he had wr i t ten  le t te rs  to  say te l l  me why I  

shou ld  no t  take  ac t ion  aga ins t  you i f  these reasons are  
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t rue ,  d id  they respond,  as  fa r  as  you know,  or  you  do not  

know? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  know.  

MR MONTANA:    What  I  know,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No ac t ion  was taken.  

MR MONTANA:    No ac t ion  was taken and tha t  was a t  the  

ins t ruc t ions o f  Werksmans A t to rneys,  Cha i r,  in  b lack  and 

wh i te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  10 

MR MONTANA:    And I  hope when Mr  Khena comes here  he  

w i l l  be  ab le  to  say I  wro te  back to  Bernard  Hotz  and to ld  

h im tha t  what  he  is  say ing  is  comp le te ly  ou t  o f  o rde r,  I  am 

proceed ing .    

Even a f te r  the  mat te r  been f ina l i sed in  2017 -  the  

judgment  on  th is  i ssue happened in  2017,  Cha i r,  and most  

o f  those peop le  were  s t i l l  employed w i th  PRASA inc lud ing  

Ms Ngoye,  inc lud ing  Mr  Ho le le  and o ther  peop le  are  s t i l l  

there  tha t  I  know,  who served on the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  

Commi t tee ,  Cha i r.    20 

 Yet  the  lega l  depar tment ,  when Mr  Mole fe  f i rs t  la id  

a  charge on Swi fambo,  they even sa id  Swi fambo and 

S iyangena were  approved by  Mr  Montana when they know 

tha t  they recommended to  the  board  and these were  

approved by  the  board .   So they w i l l  te l l  even v i ta l  
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in fo rmat ion  f rom the  board  o f  Mr  Mole fe ,  as  i t  were .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  speak ing  about  the  Swi fambo,  on l y  

leav ing  ou t  o thers  tha t  you dea l  w i th ,  you are  say ing  yes,  I  

app roved the  Swi fambo cont rac t  bu t  I  d id  no t  jus t  approve 

i t ,  there  was a  recommendat ion  coming f rom –  is  i t  the  B id 

Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  am not  say ing  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  no t  say ing  tha t .  

MR MONTANA:    I  am say ing  I  d id  no t  approve the  

Swi fambo cont rac t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  you d id  no t ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I t  was approved by  the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON :    By  the  board .  

MR MONTANA:    A t  the  recommendat ion  o f  the  B id  

Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  inc luded… 

MR MONTANA:    Which  was checked by  Mr  Ho le le  and i t  

invo l ves o ther  peop le  inc lud ing  Ms  Ngoye.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    And so  you can see,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  when you say tha t ,  you cannot  then 

say we had asked severa l  quest ions on  the  p r inc ipa l  

t ransact ion  to  wh ich  no  sa t is fac to ry  responses were  

prov ided.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  you a re  say ing  is  –  par t  o f  what  

you are  say ing  is  how – inso fa r  as  the  quest ions tha t  she  

is  ta lk ing  about ,  tha t  she says they ra ised,  may have  

re la ted  to  how PRASA awarded  the  Swi fambo cont rac t .   

She cou ld  no t  have ra ised those  quest ions because she  

had been par t  o f  the  peop le  who recommended tha t  

Swi fambo be awarded the  cont rac t .   That  i s  pa r t  o f  what  

you are  say ing .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   I f  –  le t  us  assume,  Cha i r,  

they  were  no t  invo l ved in  the  negot ia t ions ,  okay,  bu t  here  10 

she is  say ing ,  she i s  ta lk ing  about  the  pr inc ipa l  

t ransact ion .   The  board  approved the  pr inc ipa l  t ransact ion  

wh ich  –  le t  us  assume she does not  even a t tend the  le t  us  

say the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  bu t  when documents  

are  served,  they are  served to  members  o f  the  commi t tee  

as  a  commi t tee  and they quora te ,  they present  tha t  to  the  

board .  

 So,  Cha i r,  I  am s imply  say ing  th is  19  is  a  

manufac tured s to ry  and i t  a lso  te l l s  you there ,  Cha i r,  tha t  

i s  does not  –  i t  is  no t  Montana aga ins t  Ngoye,  in  fac t  you  20 

cou ld  take  i t  as  –  i t  i s  Ngoye aga ins t  D ing i swayo ,  Cha i r,  

because they prov ide  d i f fe ren t  reasons fo r  tha t  bu t  I  am 

say ing  tha t  w i th  19  cou ld  no t  have been because the  

d iscuss ion  on  Swi fambo –  and I  know the  de ta i l s  on  th i s  

th ing  a t  the  back o f  my hand,  Cha i r,  the  de ta i l s  on  th is  
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th ing  was d i scussed in  2014.   May 2014 the  Cha i rman was  

s t i l l  Mr  S f iso  Buthe lez i     

In  2015 i t  was Mr  –  so  th is  was par t  o f  –  and fo r  

me,  Cha i r,  there  is  on l y  one conc lus ion .   That  i s  why I  am 

b lun t  on  th is  Cha i r,  I  say  Ms Ngoye l ied  to  th is  

Commiss ion ,  she  needs to  be  asked to  exp la in  th i s  and I  

am hop ing  tha t  my f r iend f rom Werksmans,  when they  

come,  Cha i r,  they  w i l l  be  ab le  to  exp la in  s imp ly  th ings.   On  

what  bas i s  do  they wr i te  a  le t te r  ins t ruc t ing  the  CEO not  to  

d isc ip l ine  peop le  because we sa id  when the  cu l tu re  o f  10 

accountab i l i t y,  we want  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led  now,  in to  the  

consequence management .   Okay?   

So tha t  i t  does not  app ly  to  the  peop le  we love ,  i t  

must  app ly  to  Montana.   We even te l l  the  board  to  go  to  

cour t  to  say Montana approved a  cont rac t  o f  3 .5  b i l l i on  

wh ich  is  beyond –  beyond i t s  –  so  they manufac tu red the  

reasons,  Cha i r.   When you look a t  the  –  and I  exp la ined on 

Fr iday,  I  went  to  a  lega l  f i rm,  I  asked …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  want  to  s top  you because o f  t ime.  

MR MONTANA:    Okay,  okay,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i ,  I  know you may have s t i l l  

wanted to  ask  someth ing  bu t  I  see  we are  way beyond f i ve .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  no  we a re  way beyond.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  ta lk  about  –  i f  I  were  to  be  

ava i lab le  –  Mr  Montana laughs –  i f  I  were  to  ava i lab le  th is  

coming Saturday  –  jus t  tha t  I  do  no t  know i f  I  w i l l  be  

ava i lab le ,  i f  I  were  to  be  ava i lab le  th is  Saturday,  i s  there  a  

chance tha t  we cou ld  cont inue s ta r t ing  in  the  morn ing ,  

maybe we see how fa r  we go,  maybe up to  lunch t ime or  

so?  From your  s ide ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   From your  s ide ,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  be  gu ided  by  you.   I  10 

wou ld  be  ava i lab le .   I  know – I  jus t  have to  conf i rm,  

though,  Cha i r,  because I  know tha t  th is  weekend i t  i s  my 

tu rn  to  look  a f te r  the  k ids ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  th ink  tha t  may be an issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  m ight  be  an  issue,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  can qu ick ly  negot ia te  tha t  in  case,  i f  

I  can  come and honour,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  tha t  20 

we conc lude th is  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t  i s  very  impor tan t .   Okay,  I  am 

go ing  to  ind i ca te  and you w i l l  be  in fo rmed i f  I  am ava i lab le  

fo r  Saturday.  

MR MONTANA:    Sa turday.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i f  I  am not  ava i lab le  fo r  th is  

Saturday,  un less  someth ing  un foreseen happens,  I  wou ld  

be  ava i lab le  Satu rday o f  next  week .   So maybe i f  we  do not  

s i t  th is  Saturday we cou ld  s i t  Saturday o f  next  week .   Does  

tha t  sound …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  because I  have 

been los ing  money as  a  [ ind i s t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  th ink  f rom a  na t iona l  in te res t  po in t  

o f  v iew i t  i s  my pr io r i t y ,  Cha i r ,  so  I  w i l l  come.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   As  fo r  next  week,  I  

w i l l  check what  the  s i tua t ion  is  about  even ing  sess ions.   

My impress ion  is  tha t  i t  i s  fu l l  a l ready but  i f  I  do  have a  

space,  so  we might  exp lore  even s i t t ing  dur ing  the  

even ing .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   But  thank you to  everybody,  we  

w i l l  then ad journ  fo r  – we w i l l  ad journ  the  hear ing  o f  Mr  

Montana ’s  ev idence and then ar rangements  w i l l  be  made 

fo r  h im to  cont inue on another  day.   I  w i l l  ad journ  th is  to  20 

a l low the  even ing  sess ion  team to  ge t  ready so  tha t  we can 

then s tar t  w i th  the  even ing  sess ion .   Thank  you ve ry  much,  

Mr  Montana,  you are  now excused.  

MR MONTANA:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad journ .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  can we f rom the  

PRASA’s  team be  excused?  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  excused  as  we l l ,  yes ,  thank you.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES:  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good a f te rnoon Mr  Pre tor ius ,  good 

a f te rnoon everybody.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A f te rnoon Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   A re  you ready?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   We a re .    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good a f te rnoon Dr  D in twe.   Your  m ic  i s  

no t  on .    

MR DINTWE:   Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  the  oa th  you took yesterday w i l l  

con t inue to  app ly  today,  okay.   A l r igh t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Before  we  

cont inue w i th  quest ion ing ,  may  I  p lace  someth ing  on  

record?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   We rece ived a  communica t ion  f rom 20 

Shaun P i l lay  A t to rneys on  beha l f  o f  a  par ty  tha t  i s  

imp l ica ted  in  the  ev idence o f  Dr  D in twe.   They have  

prov ided us  w i th  a  s ta tement  a t tes ted  to  by  the i r  c l ien t  on  

beha l f  o f  a  company,  bo th  o f  wh ich  are  ident i f ied  in  the  

s ta tement  under  pseudonyms.    
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 They say in  the  l e t te r :  

 “We a t tach  here to  a  s ta tement  by  our  c l ien ts  

wh ich  must  be  ca re fu l l y  s tud ied ,  as  we are  no t  

cer ta in  whether  any o f  the  in fo rmat ion  

conta ined in  th is  s ta tement  fa l l s  in  the  

ca tegory  o f  be ing  c lass i f ied . ”  

 Then they cont inue to  say:  

 “We take no respons ib i l i t y  in  tha t  regard . ”  

 The f i rs t  th ing  tha t  we need to  p lace  on record  

Cha i r,  i s  tha t  the  fac t  tha t  they pu rpor t  to  abso lve  10 

themse lves f rom any respons ib i l i t y,  i s  no t  a  s ta tement  tha t  

we accept  tha t  respons ib i l i t y,  i t  remains  w i th  them.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Bu t  never  the  less ,  we are  check ing  

the  s ta tement  ca re fu l l y.   We wi l l  check i t  w i th  the  SSA so 

tha t  we do not  inadver ten t ly  re lease any conf ident ia l  o r  

c lass i f ied  in fo rmat ion .   For  tha t  reason,  desp i te  the 

inv i ta t ion  to  pu t  the  s ta tement  to  Dr  D in twe in  ev idence,  we  

w i l l  no t  pu t  i t  a t  th is  s tage,  bu t  a t  a  la te r  s tage.   

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Dr  D in twe,  a re  you a t  page  789 o f  

Exh ib i t  YY15 where  we le f t  o f f  yes terday?  

MR DINTWE:   Yes,  I  am on tha t  page.   
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you dea l  in  paragraph 52 w i th  

the  top ic  as  you desc r ibe  i t ,  execu t ive  over  reach.   

MR DINTWE:   Yes,  I  do .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Ev idence  has been g iven  on the  

top ic  o f  execut ive  over  reach by  more  than one w i tness to  

da te ,  and the re  is  an  op in ion  tha t  has been expressed tha t  

i t  i s  undes i rab le  fo r  a  m in is te r  to  become invo lved in  the  

opera t ions o f  the  SSA.   

 Another  v iew tha t  has been put  i s  tha t  there  is  

no th ing  tha t  makes such invo lvement  and opera t iona l  10 

a f fa i rs  un lawfu l  o r  improper  bu t  tha t  such prac t ice  has  

been avo ided by  a t  leas t  one min is te r  who has tes t i f ied  or  

by  the  m in is te r  who has tes t i f ied ,  o r  the  p rev ious m in is te r  

who has tes t i f ied .    

 What  i s  your  v iew in  tha t  regard?   

MR DINTWE:   And Cha i rperson,  my v iew wi l l  be  f i rs t l y  be  

conf ined to  our  ro le  as  an  ove rs igh t  body and what  p rob lem 

is  imposed by  tha t  k ind  o f  invo lvement  o r  the  execut ive  

over  reach genera l .   The f i rs t  po in t  i s  tha t  you have a  

s i tua t ion  where  the  m in is te rs  b r ing  themse lves i n to  our  20 

overs igh t  space.   

 So ord inar i l y  we  w i l l  no t  invest iga te  the  m in is te rs .   

We wi l l  no t  even make f ind ings as  fa r  as  they are  

concerned.   But  an  example  o f  what  the  leg is la t ion  

prov ides,  i s  tha t  the  m in is te r  o f  s ta te  secur i t y  sha l l  have 
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super  re tendence [? ]  over  the  agency,  over  the  i n te l l igent  

serv i ce .   

 Now tha t  super  re tendence,  the  examples  the reof  i s  

tha t  the  m in is te r  ge ts  invo lved in  i ssues such as  

purchas ing  and leas ing  o f  p roper ty  and I  am jus t  go ing  to  

take  tha t  example  and t ry  to  demonst ra te  our  p rob lem as 

the  overs igh t .   

 Now,  now tha t  we dea l  w i th  maladmin is t ra t ion ,  le t  

us  say fo r  i ns tance the  proper ty  i s  be ing  l eased in  KZN,  

and they d id  no t  fo l low the  procurement  p rocess  and so  10 

fo r th  and so  fo r th ,  i t  means tha t  as  and when we conduct  

our  mon i to r ing  or  our  rev iew,  i f  we f ind  tha t  tha t  par t i cu la r  

p rocess,  I  mean the  procurement  p rocess was not  p roper ly  

fo l lowed,  i t  w i l l  mean tha t  we w i l l  have to  make a  f ind ing  

aga ins t  the  m in i s te r.    

 Because i t  w i l l  be  the  m in is te r  who wou ld  have  

made tha t  k ind  o f  a  dec i s ion .   So  tha t  i s  a  p rob lem as fa r  

as  we are  concerned o f  tha t  execut ive  over  reach or  the  

invo l vement  in  opera t ions,  because we oversee opera t ions  

in  genera l .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes,  we w i l l  in  due course  p lace 

before  the  Cha i r  an  ana lys is  o f  the  leg is la t i ve  prov i s ions 

dea l ing  w i th  the  powers  and du t ies  o f  the  m in is te r  in  

re la t ion  to  the  opera t ions o f  the  SSA.   We are  no t  go ing  to  

dea l  in  de ta i l  w i th  i t  here  Cha i r,  bu t  maybe to  g ive  th is  
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ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Because  the  leg i s la t ion  does a t  

leas t  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  the  m in is te r  d i rec t  ove rs igh t  powers  

and respons ib i l i t i es  in  re la t ion  to  mat te rs  fa l l ing  w i th in  the 

purv iew o f  the  admin is t ra t ion  and opera t ion  o f  the  SSA.   A t  

leas t  a t  an  overs igh t  leve l .   How tha t  i s  app l ied  o f  course  

is  a  mat te r  o f  cont roversy  and cer ta in ly  one  o f  our  

submiss ions may  be to  you Cha i r,  in  due course  tha t  these  

issues shou ld  be  c la r i f ied  one way or  the  o the r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  le t  me ask th is  

quest ion  Dr  D in twe.   Why wou ld  i t  be  a  prob lem fo r  you as  

an  overs igh t  body  to  make a  f ind ing  aga ins t  the  m in is te r?  

MR DINTWE:   I t  i s  because Cha i r,  the  Overs igh t  Act  says 

tha t  we sha l l  mon i to r,  rev iew and invest iga te  compla in t s  

wh ich  invo l ves the  heads o f  se rv ices .   So the  heads o f  

serv i ces  are  de f i ned as  a  d i rec to r  genera l  in  the  case o f  

SSA,  as  the  d iv is iona l  commiss ion  o f  sub CI ,  c r ime 

in te l l igence and a lso  the  o thers .   

 So there  is  no  p rov i s ion  bas ica l l y  wh ich  says tha t  20 

we can invest iga te ,  mon i to r  o r  even rev iew the i r  ac t ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   No,  then I  unders tand,  bu t  

obv ious ly  i f  the ,  i f  a  m in is te r  does what  the  head  o f  the  

depar tment  i s  supposed to  do  and in  do ing  i t  he  or  she 

ac ts  improper ly  o r  b reaches the  law,  then obv ious ly  you 
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can  say tha t  wha t  you were  invest iga t ing  was mat te rs  tha t  

fa l l  w i th in  your  ju r i sd i c t ion .  

 I t  so  happens tha t  one o f  the  p layers  i s  somebody  

who shou ld  no t  have ventured in to  tha t  k ind  o f  i ssue and  

then you venture  in to  i t  and you have to  p ronounce tha t  

you d id  no t  go  ou t  o f  your  sphere  o f  opera t ion  to  dea l  w i th  

mat te rs  tha t  were  ou ts ide  o f  you r  ju r i sd ic t ion .  

 So the  sub jec t  mat te r  wou ld  s t i l l  be  w i th in  your  

ju r i sd i c t ion ,  bu t  the  person who wou ld  have ac ted  in  

b reach o f  the  law o r  improper ly,  wou ld  be  the  m in is te r,  o r  10 

are  you say ing  your  unders tand ing  is  tha t  the  moment  you 

hear  tha t  in  th is  opera t ion  the  m in is te r  was invo lved,  you 

have to  leave i t ,  because you do not  have ju r isd ic t ion  over  

a  m in is te r,  even i f  the  sub jec t  fa l l s  w i th in  your  ju r i sd i c t ion  

sub jec t  mat te r?  

MR DINTWE:   I  know tha t  I  wou ld  have prov ided  the  

Cha i rperson w i th  a  pedant ic  v iew . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   As  fa r  as  the  p rov is ions are  concerned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   20 

MR DINTWE:   Bu t  we have dea l t  w i th  tha t  i ssue.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   I  have rece ived compla in t s  aga ins t  the  

m in is te rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MR DINTWE:   P rev ious ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   And I  have worked on them.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   The pos i t ion  o f  the  o f f i ce  i s  tha t  we do not  

fo l low the  rank . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   Or  a  person . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   Or  an  o f f i c ia l .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR DINTWE:   We fo l low the  ac t iv i t y.   

CHAIRPERSON:   The ac t iv i t y,  yes .   

MR DINTWE:   Yes,  and tha t  i s  the  adv ice  tha t  has been 

pre fe r red  to  myse l f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   The [ ind i s t inc t ]  a lso  asked our  o f f i ce  

whethe r  they cou ld  re fer  cer ta in  mat te rs  tha t  invo lves the  

m in is te rs ,  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  the  read ing  o f  the  leg is la t ion  and  

I  th ink  the  lega l  team here  w i l l  ass is t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR DINTWE:   I s  to  say tha t  we look a t  in te l l igence and  

counter  in te l l igence ac t iv i t ies .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR DINTWE:   So  i t  does not  mat te r  who is  do ing  i t .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   In  fac t ,  I  th ink  tha t  even in  the  sp i r i t  o f  the 

leg is la t ion ,  i f  you  l i ke ,  i t  even goes beyond because there  

is  a  p rov i s ion  he re  wh ich  says tha t  I  may a lso  invoke the  

prov is ions o f  the  Cr im ina l  P rocedure  Act ,  i f  there  i s  any  

o ther  o rgan isa t ion  wh ich  is  no t  the  th ree  tha t  I  have 

ment ioned tha t  ge ts  i t se l f  invo l ved  in  in te l l igence.   

 So we can see tha t  the  in ten t ion  o f  the  leg is la tu re  

i s  to  make the  scope a  l i t t le  b i t  b roader.   We have dea l t  

w i th  the  issue and I  th ink  tha t  i s  our  pos i t ion  Cha i rperson,  10 

is  tha t  we fo l low the  ac t iv i t y  and no t  the  person.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So  i f  a  m in is te r  by  the i r  ac t ion  

br ings h imse l f  o r  herse l f  w i th in  the  purv iew o f  the  IGI ’s  

o f f i ce ,  you w i l l  invest iga te  as  I  unders tand i t .  

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  exact ly  what  I  am say ing .   The 

example  tha t  I  was g iv ing  Cha i rpe rson,  was to  say tha t  le t  

us  say a  lease  o f  a  p roper ty.   So there  I  am not  concerned 

who is  do ing  i t .   I f  i t  i s  done by  even a  p r iva te  c i t i zen ,  as  

long as  i t  i s  one o f  the  resources tha t  be longs to  20 

in te l l igence serv ices ,  i t  w i l l  be  an  ac t iv i t y  tha t  I  can 

invest iga te  i f  there  i s  any maladm in is t ra t ion  coming out  o f  

i t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Bu t  tha t  does not  mean to  say tha t  

the  leg is la t ion  cou ld  a t  the  ve ry  least  be  t id ied  up .   
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MR DINTWE:   I  have never  eve r  had a  cha l lenge.   I  w ish  

fo r  a  s tage where  there  w i l l  be  f ind ings aga ins t  a  pa r t i cu la r  

m in is te r  and maybe they take  us  you know,  on  rev iew,  bu t  

f rom where  we a re  seated,  because I  th ink  tha t  a  person  

s i t t ing  somewhere  may th ink  tha t  now tha t  the  leg is la t ion  

does not  say  tha t  you can invest iga te  a  m in is te r,  tha t  then  

i t  means tha t  you  cannot  invest iga te .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   We wi l l  leave tha t  to  a  la te r  s tage.   

MR DINTWE:   A l r igh t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wou ld  you then dea l  w i th  the  10 

examples  you g ive  in  parag raphs 53 and 54 o f  your  

a f f idav i t?    

MR DINTWE:   A l r igh t .   Now accord ing  to  the  In te l l igence  

Serv i ce  Act ,  as  we l l  as  the  regu la t ions o f  the  SSA 

spec i f i ca l l y  here ,  i s  tha t  when a  member  ge ts  d ismissed fo r  

example ,  and th i s  i s  the  case tha t  I  wou ld  have worked on.   

I t  was jus t  bas ica l l y  [ ind is t inc t ] .    

 Then tha t  member  can appea l  to  the  m in is te r  and  

our  v iew has a lways been but  the  d i rec tor  genera l ,  the 

moment  you see tha t  the  m in is te r  has super  re tendence,  i t  20 

means tha t  a  d ismissa l  tha t  i s  me tered out  by  the  d i rec tor  

genera l ,  i s  tan tamount  to  a  dec i s ion  o f  the  m in is te r.   

 I f  they  have super  re tendence.   So i t  c rea tes  a  

prob lem,  because then the  m in i s te r  becomes a  p layer  and  

a  re feree a t  the  same t ime,  because i t  says  tha t  then tha t  
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member  wou ld  have to  lodge an appea l  w i th  the  m in is te r.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The SSA member  so  d ismissed may  

lodge a  compla in t  then w i th  your  o f f i ce ,  and tha t  m in is te r ’s  

dec is ion  may then be sub jec t  to  your  ove rs igh t  as  I  

unders tand is  what  you a re  say ing  in  paragraph 53.  

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  exact ly  a lso  what  I  am re fer r ing  to  

Cha i rperson.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And what  i f  a  m in is te r  were  to  

invo l ve  h imse l f  o r  herse l f  in  the  opera t iona l  mat te rs  o f  the 

serv i ces  tha t  fa l l  under  the i r  super in tendence.   Would  you 10 

invest iga te  such a  mat te r  i f  the  compla in t  a rose?  

MR DINTWE:   I  do  no t  have a  cho ice .   I  w i l l  i nvest i ga te  i t ,  

bu t  then you can  unders tand the  [ ind is t inc t ]  tha t  I  w i l l  f ind  

myse l f  in  because i t  w i l l  be  a lmost  l i ke  doub le  jeopardy.   

The min i s te r  wou ld  have commi t ted  an  e r ror  the  f i r s t  t ime 

around and the  second t ime around.   

 In  any event ,  the  end resu l t  i s  tha t  I  have to  

recommend to  the  same min i s te r  aga in  fo r  rec t i f y ing .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Now you dea l  in  the  next  sec t ion  o f  

your  a f f idav i t ,  Dr  D in twe,  w i th  the  m in is te r ia l  de legat ion  o f  20 

powers  and d i rec t ion  o f  payments ,  and you make out  the  

case tha t  th is  document  o r  th is  d i rec t ion  o f  payments  

document  has been used or  even abused to  undermine the  

prov is ions o f  the  Overs igh t  Act  and the  In te l l igence 

Serv i ces  Act ,  and to  undermine the  ove rs igh t  ro le  o f  the  
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IG I .  

 Would  you exp la in  p lease,  as  succ inc t l y  as  poss ib le  

to  the  Cha i r  how th is  comes abou t  and you dea l  w i th  i t  in  

parag raph 55 onwards.   

MR DINTWE:   A l r igh t .   Now submiss ion  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  

tha t  these MPD’s  have been manipu la ted  and used to  

undermine p r imary  leg is la t ion .   Because th is  i s  a  document  

deve loped by  the  m in is te r  and i t s  ma in  purpose is  to  

de legate  cer ta in  powers  to  the  d i rec to r  genera l .   

 So wh ich  means tha t  bas ica l l y  the  d i rec tor  genera l  10 

does not  have any powers  to  run  tha t  ins t i tu t ion .   So the  

MPD’s  are  used to  de legate .   So i t  w i l l  be  wr i t ten  there  to  

say tha t  fo r  ins tance any p rocu rement  wh ich  is  less  than  

f i ve  hundred thousand,  the  d i rec tor  genera l  can make a  

dec is ion .   

 P rocurement  o f  bu i ld ings fo r  the  prov inces w i l l  

res ide  w i th  the  d i rec tor  genera l .   We do not  have a  prob lem 

wi th  tha t .   I t  i s  a  good ins t rument  o f  pun ishment ,  a  good  

one.   But  now i t  has  been used over  and ove r  aga in  to  

undermine and to  b lend the  l ines  be tween what  the  road o f  20 

the  d i rec tor  genera l  i s  and what  the  ro le  o f  the  m in i s te r  i s .   

 I t  i s  c rea t ing  a  ser ious p rob lem for  us  as  an  

overs igh t ,  because then we cannot  rea l l y  te l l  whose  

dec is ion  is  i t ,  because i f  you de legate  a  power,  the  power 

s t i l l  remains  w i th  myse l f .   I f  I  de legate  a  power  to  a  
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manager  in  my o f f i ce ,  I  am s t i l l  a  dec i s ion  maker  in  tha t  

ins tance.   

 I  do  no t  know i f  you wanted me to  go  a  l i t t le  b i t  

deeper  than tha t?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l ,  do  you have any examples  o f  

how th is  de legat ion  has been used?  As I  unders tand i t ,  

parag raph 57 you  say tha t  paragraph 1 .1  o f  the  MPD reads:  

 “De legat ion  re fers  to  an  ins t i tu t iona l i sed 

ac t iv i t y  whereby cer ta in  ac t i v i t ies  and  

author i t y  a re  handed down f rom the  min is te r  to  10 

the  d i rec tor  genera l  and by  the  d i rec tor  

genera l  to  subord ina te  members  o f  the  

agency. ”  

 Do I  unders tand you to  be  say ing  when the  m in is te r  

hands down one o f  h is  o r  her  powers ,  in  re la t ion  to  the i r  

au thor i t y  over  you,  you might  f ind  the  d i rec to r  genera l  o r  

the  d i rec tor  genera l ’s  subord ina tes  exe rc i s ing  tha t  

au thor i t y  over  you.   

MR DINTWE:   Exact ly  my po in t .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  I  unders tand you to  say is  20 

undes i rab le  because in  fac t  you have overs igh t  over  those  

persons who may  be exerc is ing  au thor i t y  over  you.   

MR DINTWE:   Yes,  tha t  i s  our  submiss ion  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you say tha t  tha t  has ac tua l l y  

happened in  your  s ta tement .    
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MR DINTWE:   I t  has  happened.   There  is  a  spec i f i c  

inc ident  o f  December  2017.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   December  2017?  

MR DINTWE:   Yes.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What  happened?  

MR DINTWE:   A l r igh t .   Now in  December  2017 we had a  

m in is te r  who se rved fo r  a  ve ry  shor t  [ ind is t inc t ]  there .   

Cour t  Advocate  Bongan i  Bongo.   When he got  there ,  he  

c lea r ly  had an ins t ruc t ion  Cha i rpe rson.   I  wou ld  have had 

some engagements  w i th  h im wh ich  were  no t  recorded  10 

unfor tunate ly,  bu t  tha t  was the  [ ind is t inc t ]  tha t  they wanted 

to  remove me f rom the  o f f i ce .   

 That  they d id  no t  want  overs igh t .   What  happened is  

tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Sor ry.  

MR DINTWE:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  I  may jus t  in te r rup t .   That  i s  your  

op in ion  and in fe rence you d raw f rom what  happened.   

MR DINTWE:   I t  is  an  in fe rence tha t  I  d raw f rom tha t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes,  okay.  20 

MR DINTWE:   Yes,  i t  i s  an  in fe rence.   Okay,  now what  he  

d id  i s  tha t  he  then amended the  MPD’s  and they never  to ld  

anybody what  was wrong w i th  the  MPD’s  wh ich  were  in  

p lace ,  and there  were  few amendments  there  and I  am 

go ing  to  g ive  an  example  o f  one.    
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 Where  they sa id  tha t  the  inspecto r  genera l  o f  

in te l l igence sha l l  be  c lo thed w i th  the  powers  s im i la r  to  

those o f  a  deputy  d i rec tor  genera l .   Yes,  so  le t  us  pu t  tha t  

in  mot ion .   L ike  they s ta r ted  by  demot ing  myse l f ,  to  say  

tha t  now I  am a  DDG and in  tha t  MPD,  obv ious l y  the  po in t  

tha t  I  th ink  tha t  we a t tempt  to  d r ive  home here ,  i s  tha t  the  

MPD is  secondary  to  the  Overs igh t  Act ,  wh ich  does  not  pu t  

me a t  tha t  leve l .   

 So tha t  was the  f i rs t  p rob lem.   The second prob lem 

wi th  the  then MPD’s  was to  say tha t  in  my absence  and in  10 

the  absence was not  qua l i f ied .   So I  cou ld  be  s i ck ,  I  cou ld  

be  on leave,  I  cou ld  be  on suspens ion  and whatever.   They 

sa id  tha t  the  d i rec to r  genera l  o f  the  SSA sha l l  have the  

power  to  appo in t  an  ac t ing  inspector  genera l  o f  

in te l l igence.   

 So they are  r igh t  there ,  because  they have been  

s t rugg l ing .   The Overs igh t  Act  does not  and i t  i s  a  po in t  

tha t  we conversed yeste rday,  to  say tha t  in  my absence no 

one can even appo in t  somebody to  ac t  in  my pos i t ion .   I  

am the  on ly  pe rson who can do tha t .   20 

 So I  do  no t  know i f  the  commiss ion  w i l l  see  i t  as  an  

in fe rence,  because I  mean i t  was s t ra igh t  fo rward  tha t  

these are  the  peop le  who want  to  ac t ion  someth ing ,   bu t  

they a re  prepar ing  the  ground,  so  tha t  when I  am no t  there ,  

there  w i l l  be  MPD’s  i n  p lace  wh ich  w i l l  then say tha t  Mr  
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A r thur  Fraser  a t  tha t  t ime w i l l  then appo in t  an  ac t ing  

inspector  genera l  o f  in te l l igence,  as  tha t  I  am actua l l y  

subord ina ted  to  h im,  because now I  have been demoted to  

a  leve l  o f  a  deputy  d i rec tor  genera l  o r  a  head  o f f  a  

spend ing  cent re  as  they ca l led  i t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l ,  le t  us  jus t  summar ise  tha t  

then to  show how the  MPD was  used or  even abused.   

Depend ing  on wh ich  way one looks a t  i t .   You say in  

parag raph 62 tha t  the  MPD prov ided tha t  you r  powers  

wou ld  be  such tha t  you wou ld  have the  admin i s t ra t i ve  10 

author i t y  and f inanc ia l  l im i ts  o f  a  deputy  d i rec tor  genera l  o f  

the  agency.    

 That  wou ld  in  e f fec t  make you subord ina te  to  the  

d i rec tor  genera l  o f  the  agency.   Do I  unders tand tha t  

cor rec t l y?  

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Over  whom you exerc ise  overs igh t .   

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Because  he wou ld  then  be the  

account ing  o f f i cer  and he wou ld  be  sen ior  to  you.    20 

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And in  re la t ion  to  your  appo in tment  

and your  s tand ing ,  you a re  appo in ted  by  the  pres ident .   

You are  accountab le  to  the  JSCI  and your  appo in tment  and 

the  appo in tment  o f  the  o f f i ce  or  the  pe rson who occup ies  
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the  o f f i ce ,  i s  approved by  pa r l iament .   

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The e f fec t  o f  the  amendment  to  the  

MPD,  you have notes  is  tha t  in  your  absence the  pe rson  

be ing  mon i to red  appo in ts  your  rep lacement .   On a  

temporary  bas i s .   

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  co r rec t .   That  i s  exact ly  what  

happened Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you have drawn the  in fe rence  

f rom those fac ts  tha t  these e f fo r t s  o r  these amendments  to  10 

the  MPD were  d i rec ted  a t  undermin ing  your  au thor i t y.   Do I  

unders tand your  op in ion  cor rec t l y?  

MR DINTWE:   You unders tand my op in ion  cor rec t l y.   Maybe 

a lso  to  add,  to  say tha t  as  we get  deeper  then towards the 

end o f  my ev idence,  you w i l l  see  tha t  there  were  o ther  

ac t i v i t ies  tha t  were  be ing  ca r r ied  ou t  by  the  d i rec to r  

genera l  and the  m in is te r  wh ich  were  so r t  o f  supp lementary  

to  th is  par t i cu la r  tak ing  or  amendment  to  the  MPD’s .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t .   You make the  po in t  in  

parag raph 63 tha t  the  MPD is  subord ina te  leg is la t i on .   You 20 

ca l l  i t  secondary  leg is la t ion  and you make the  po in t  tha t  fo r  

i t  to  be  va l id ,  i t  must  be  cons is ten t  w i th  the  enab l ing  

leg is la t ion ,  the  Overs igh t  Act  and indeed the  const i tu t ion .  

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  my submiss ion  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t .    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  one second  Mr  Pre tor ius .   You sa id  

yesterday in  answer  to  one o f  my quest ions Dr  D in twe,  tha t  

the  IGI  i s  ranked  a t  the  leve l  o f  deputy  m in is te r.   What  i s  

the  bas is  fo r  say ing  tha t?   I s  i t  the  remunera t ion  or  i s  there  

some document  tha t  says tha t?  

MR DINTWE:   I t  w i l l  be  the  remunera t ion .   That  i s  how they 

de termine tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR DINTWE:   Bu t  as  I  sa id  i s  tha t  then we w i l l  deve lop  

someth ing  wh ich  looks l i ke  an  agreement .   So 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   Because I  am not  appo in ted  in  te rms  o f  the 

Pub l ic  Serv i ce  Ac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   We wi l l  have a  document  wh ich  is  ac tua l l y  

an  agreement  be tween myse l f  and the  employer.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   And in  tha t  document  i t  w i l l  te l l  me exact ly  

what  leve l  am I  and so  fo r th .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DINTWE:   Now the  Act  on ly  says the  cond i t ions  o f  

serv i ce  sha l l  be  de termined by  the  pres ident  in  con junct ion  

w i th  the  jo in t  s tand ing  commi t tee  on  in te l l igence and they  

sha l l  no t  be  down va r ia ted ,  I  have to  read but  they do  not  
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rea l l y  use  tha t  word ,  by  anybody dur ing  the  tenure  o f  the 

IGI .  

 Maybe every  t ime I  cou ld  be  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  thank  

you.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You deta i l  your  in fe rence in  

parag raph 64 o f  your  a f f idav i t  on  page 792 and 793 and  

you say in  shor t  tha t  the  amendment  to  the  MPD was par t  

and parce l  o f  concer ted  e f fo r ts  by  Mr Fraser  and la te r  

Min is te r  Bongo to  remove you f rom your  pos i t ion .  10 

 Now,  o r  and i f  th is  ta i l  to  negate  your  overs igh t  

powers .   That  i s  qu i te  a  s t rong in fe rence to  make f rom the  

fac ts .   Why do you draw tha t  in fe rence?  

MR DINTWE:   I t  i s  because i t  i s  based on the  f i rs t  

sentence,  wh ich  says tha t  the  ment ioned MPD was  issued  

by  Min is te r  Bongo fo l low ing a  f lu r ry  o f  [ ind is t inc t ]  

cor respondence rece ived by  the  OIGI  f rom Mr  Fraser,  

regard ing  the  compla in t s  lodged aga ins t  h im.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R igh t ,  now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE:   And then tha t  fo rmed the  bas is  o f  tha t ,  20 

because you cou ld  fo l low the  le t te rs .   The le t te rs  wou ld  

have s tar ted  ea r l ie r,  where  they  w i l l  say  tha t  I  am not  

competent  to  possess s ta te  secre ts ,  tha t  they have got  

some in ten t ions  to  reve r t  myse l f ,  tha t  I  was  spot ted  

somewhere  s i t t ing  w i th  the  members  o f  the  oppos i t ion .  
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 So  you cou ld  see where  these peop le  are  go ing ,  

and the  le t te rs  in  my bund les ,  I  mean in  my ev idence w i l l  

show you exact l y  tha t  there  was a  concer ted  e f fo r t  to  

remove me f rom my pos i t ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So  you re l y  on  what  you have to ld  

the  Cha i r,  together  w i th  o ther  ev idence wh ich  prov ides the  

contex t  fo r  what  you have to ld  t he  Cha i r,  inc lud ing  o ther  

ev idence wh ich ,  f rom which  you conc lude d i rec t l y  tha t  

there  was an a t tempt  to  remove you f rom your  pos i t i on .    

 Do I  unders tand you cor rec t l y?  10 

MR DINTWE:   I  am unders tood the re ,  tha t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You re fer  fo r  example  in  parag raph 

64 to  co r respondence marked SD4.   You do not  by  any 

chance have tha t  le t te r  w i th  you there  or  must  we wa i t  fo r  

the  bund le  to  be  prepared before  we p lace tha t  le t te r  on  

record?   

 You see,  i f  you  look a t  pa ragraph 64,  you annex  

cop ies  o f  the  re levant  cor respondence marked SD4.   Do 

you see tha t?    

MR DINTWE:   I  see  tha t  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  cor respondence w i l l  be  in  the 

bund le  tha t  you were  go ing  to  hand up to  the  Cha i r  in  due 

course .   

MR DINTWE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You do not  have i t  w i th  you there?  
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MR DINTWE:   I  a lways keep those le t te rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   No,  no  bu t  as  you s i t  there  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE:   No ,  I  do  no t  have he re .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Can you  jus t  summar ise  fo r  the 

Cha i r  what  tha t  cor respondence says?  

MR DINTWE:   A l r igh t .   Now in  tha t  cor respondence Cha i r,  

the  Mr  Ar thu r  F raser  was te l l ing  me tha t  he  is  go ing  to  

rever t  me and i t  was fo l lowed by  a  le t te r  wh ich  then sa id  

tha t  my secur i t y  c lea rance has been w i thdrawn.   I  pu t  them 10 

in  a  s ing le  annexure ,  because i t  i s  th ree  le t te rs  wh ich  

fo l lows each o the r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Perhaps you shou ld  exp la in  to  the 

Cha i r  was preceded these ac t iv i t ies  on  the  pa r t  o f  Mr  

Fraser.   The fac t  tha t  you were  invest iga t ing  compla in ts  in  

regard  to  h im.    

MR DINTWE:   Yes.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  you  cou ld  jus t  exp la in  tha t  to  the  

Cha i r.   

MR DINTWE:   Okay.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  i s  an  impor tan t  contex tua l  

fac t .   

MR DINTWE:   Thank you very  much.   I t  s ta r ted  in  a  

meet ing  Cha i rperson,  where  I  me t  w i th  Mr  Ar thu r  Fraser,  

h is  o f f i ce  manager  and o f f i ce  manager  f rom my o f f i ce  and  
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myse l f ,  and in  tha t  meet ing  Mr  Ar thur  Fraser  to ld  me tha t  

the  caucus o f  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress in  Par l iament  

had to ld  h im tha t  he  shou ld  te l l  me to  w i thdraw or  to  s top  

the  invest iga t ion ,  because he sa id  the  invest iga t ion  tha t  I  

was busy w i th  was now becoming persona l  because  i t  was 

a  repet i t ion  o f  what  was invest iga ted ,  so  I  unders tood h im 

to  re fer  to  tha t  pane l  wh ich  yes o f  course  was inves t iga ted ,  

bu t  he   m isunders tood what  –  wh ich  compla in t  I  was 

invest iga t ing .   The compla in t  tha t  I  was invest iga t ing  was 

f rom a  leader  o f  the  DA in  the  Par l iament ,  who sa id  tha t  10 

th is  i ssue was never  f o l lowed th rough,  may you  p lease  

invest iga te  what  happened,  because the re  were  

recommendat ions  wh ich  were  made,  so  what  happened.  

 So in  tha t  meet ing  I  d isagreed w i th  Mr  Fraser  on  the  

bas is  tha t  you are  no t  my messenger,  you are  no t  even my  

superv i so r,  I  am repor t ing  d i rec t l y  to  Par l iament  and i f  the  

commi t tee  rea l l y  wanted me to  s top  th is  invest iga t ion  they 

must  te l l  me d i rec t l y  so  I  am not  go ing  to  s top  any  

invest iga t ion  and my due a t  tha t  t ime the  commi t tee  

members  were  no t  there ,  so  tha t  i s  where  the  prob lems 20 

s ta r ted ,  because I  make h im aware  tha t  I  am inves t iga t ing 

th is  par t i cu la r  compla in t  and when  I  went  back to  the  o f f i ce  

I  wro te  a  le t te r  because he had m isunders tood what  I  was  

invest iga t ing ,  so  i t  was a  cour teous le t te r  to  say th i s  i s  the  

compla in t  as  rece ived f rom I  th ink  I  can men t ion  Mr  
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S teenhu izen here ,  as  rece ived f rom Mr  S teenhu izen.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  then you can go  back to  

the  s tage where  you dea l  w i th  your  conc lus ion  tha t  ac t ion  

was be ing  taken and the  a im o f  tha t  ac t ion  was to  e i ther  

undermine your  invest iga t ive  capab i l i t ies ,  scope,  o r  to  

remove you f rom o f f i ce .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That ’s  the  conc lus ion  you d rew? 

DR DINTWE:    Ja ,  the  conc lus ion  tha t  I  then ar r i ved  a t  was 

to  say tha t  i t  i s  e i ther  I  shou ld  g ive  in  and say tha t  I  am not  10 

go ing  to  conc lude th is  invest iga t ion  or  tha t  I  was go ing  to  

be  removed but  then the  la t te r  ac tua l l y  mate r ia l i sed  

because then I  s ta r ted  rece iv ing  then a  f lu r ry  o f  

cor respondence and they were  say ing  on ly  one th ing ,  to  

say tha t  I  am not  competent ,  because i f  I  do  no t  have  

secur i t y  c lea rance then I  cannot  cont inue to  occupy the  

pos i t ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  we l l  we w i l l  come to  the 

secur i t y  c learance issue in  due course .    Le t ’s  jus t  

comple te  the  fa te  o f  the  amended MPD.    You ment ion  in  20 

paragraph 65 tha t  you made a  presenta t ion  to  the  next  

Min is te r,  Min is te r  Le tsa tse  Duba,  on  the  6 t h  o f  Apr i l  2018.   

What  d id  you say  to  her?    

DR DINTWE:    I  to ld  her  tha t  the  –  there  was a  f requent  

change o f  m in is te rs  in  tha t  per iod ,  so  you had a  m in is te r  in  
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December  and then you had the  o ther  Min is te r  in  Apr i l ,  so  

when I  was s t i l l  busy dea l ing  w i th  th is  i ssue there  was a  

new Min is te r,  so  I  in fo rmed,  I  wen t  to  make a  presenta t ion  

in  fac t ,  to  say  tha t  these are  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  m in is te rs  and we 

have ser ious reserva t ions about  th is  pos i t ion  and tha t  

par t i cu la r  pos i t ion  and I  a lso  in fo rmed her  tha t  we were  

in tend ing  to  boycot t ,  because tha t  was the  adv ice  tha t  I  

had rece ived,  to  say tha t  we are  ready to  go  and cha l lenge  

these MPD’s  because they were  ou ts ide  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  

they were  a lso  incons is ten t  w i th  the  Nat iona l  Leg is la t ion .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The pr imary  leg i s la t ion ,  the  

empower ing  leg i s la t ion?  

DR DINTWE:    The empower ing  leg is la t ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And what  d id  the  m in i s te r  then 

dec ide  to  do?  

DR DINTWE:  A day or  th ree  la te r  there  was a  message 

wh ich  jus t  c i r cu la ted  on  our  in te rne t ,  because I  w i l l  be  on  

the  same in te rnet ,  to  say tha t  those MPD’s  have been 

w i thdrawn and tha t  we are  re la t ing  back to  the  ones  before  

the  ar r i va l  o f  Min is te r  Bongo.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So the  MPD to  wh ich  you ob jec ted  

or  the  amendment  to  the  MPD to  wh ich  you ob jec ted  was  

w i thdrawn?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   Le t ’s  then go to  the  next  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 277 of 371 
 

top ic ,  the  weapon isa t ion  o f  ve t t ing  or  secur i t y  c learance,  

what  do  you mean by  tha t?   You dea l  w i th  tha t  in  paragraph  

66.     

DR DINTWE:   The Cha i rperson wou ld  have heard  ev idence 

where  they sa id  tha t  there  were  para l le l  s t ruc tures  in  the  

S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency.   One o f  the  pa ra l le l  s t ruc tu res  was  

a  s t ruc ture  tha t  was used to  ve t  d i f fe ren t  ca tegor ies  o f  

peop le ,  le t ’s  say  two.    Now you w i l l  have tha t  g roup tha t  

was seen as  opponents  o f  S ta te  Capture ,  I  am express ing  

an  op in ion  here  Cha i rperson,  and  then you w i l l  have the  10 

o ther  g roup tha t  w i l l  fac i l i ta te  i t ,  so  we wou ldn ’ t  be  ve t ted  

by  the  same team,  or  the  same s t ruc ture ,  you w i l l  have 

o ther  s t ruc ture  wh ich  w i l l  dea l  w i th  Dav id  because Dav id  i s  

no t  l i ked ,  and then you w i l l  have  the  o ther  one wh ich  w i l l  

dea l  w i th  Joseph  because Joseph  is  l i ked ,  so  they were  

us ing  ve t t ing  or  the  secur i t y  c lea rance as  a  weapon to  f igh t  

aga ins t  those who were  opposed to  cor rup t ion  and  

mal feasance in  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Was th is  occur rence  a  ra re  

occur rence,  was i t  a  more  f requent  occur rence,  was there  a  20 

pat te rn ,  what  do  you conc lude f rom what  you learn t  in  an  

o f f i ce?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  was a  pa t te rn ,  in  fac t  we –  when we 

wanted some in fo rmat ion  we got  to  the  o ther  o f f i ce  and  

there  were  no  less  than twe lve  f i les  tha t  were  never  seen 
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by  the  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee ,  so  they w i l l  have an 

ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee ,  they use the  o the r  te rm there ,  bu t  

a f te r  the  invest iga tor,  tha t  invest iga tor  and the  po lygraph 

and a l l  those o ther  th ings,  they wou ld  then take  i t  to  th is  

m in i  commi t tee  to  then so r t  o f  you know make  a  f ina l  

dec is ion  be fo re  i t  ge ts  s igned,  so  we had f i les  wh ich  were  

no  less  than 12,  wh ich  were  never  seen by  anybody and  

they were  be ing  dea l t  w i th  by  th is  o ther  s t ruc ture  t ha t  we 

say was para l le l ,  para l le l  to  the  o ther  main  s t ruc ture .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  you then in  your  s ta tement  10 

in  tha t  paragraphs wh ich  fo l low g i ve  th ree  examples ,  and  

we w i l l  dea l  w i th  those now because those examples  have  

been ra i sed in  o ther  ev idence before  you Cha i r.     

 In  paragraph 67 you make re fe rence and you c i te  

the  In te l l igence Serv i ces  Act  a t  Sect ion  14 ,  tha t  i s  a  

Sect ion  wh ich  prov ides fo r  the  ve t t ing  o f  SSA members  by  

the  D i rec tor  Genera l  o f  the  SSA,  am I  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE:    You ’ re  cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t  and  because the re  is  a  

p rov is ion  in  the  leg is la t ion  tha t  says tha t  you must  a lso  20 

have a  secur i t y  c learance s im i la r  to  the  secur i t y  c learance 

tha t  a  member  o f  the  SSA must  have are  you sub jec t  to  

these pa r t i cu la r  p rov i s ions tha t  you  quote  here?  

DR DINTWE:    Yes I  am.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  who per fo rms your  secur i t y  
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c lea rance,  o r  who is  respons ib le  fo r  your  own secur i t y  

c lea rance?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  i s  the  same person tha t  I  oversee,  the  

D i rec tor  Genera l  o f  the  SSA.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   A l r igh t ,  and then you dea l  in  

parag raph 69 w i th  another  sect ion ,  14 [8 ] [a ]  o f  the 

In te l l igent  Serv i ces  Act  wh ich  dea ls  w i th  the  fac i l i ty  o f  an  

appea l  to  the  Min is te r  in  re la t ion  to  anyth ing  tha t  happens  

to  your  own secur i t y  c learance,  fo r  example  i f  i t ’s  been 

degraded,  w i thdrawn or  re fused,  you see tha t?  10 

DR DINTWE:    I  see  tha t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you re fer  in  paragraph 70 to  a  

re la ted  regu la t ion  under  Chapte r  26  o f  the  In te l l igent  

Serv i ces  Act  wh ich  a l so  dea ls  w i th  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  a  

secur i t y  c lea rance,  inc lud ing  your  secur i t y  c lea rance be ing  

w i thdrawn or  downgraded.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes I  am a lso  sub jec t  to  those regu la t ions.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  i f  the  D i rec tor  Genera l  dec ides 

to  w i thdraw your  secur i t y  c learance tha t  i s  in  e f fec t  

remov ing  you f rom o f f i ce ,  i s  tha t  no t  so?  20 

DR DINTWE:    I t  is ,  i t  amounts  to  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   And we w i l l  come to  what  

happened in  tha t  regard  in  your  case in  due course .  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  may I  p lease a lso  impress upon the  

Cha i rperson tha t  i t  shou ld  no t  have been the  case,  
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because the re  i s  a  d i f fe rence between the  regu la t ions 

wh ich  dea ls  w i th  the  members  o f  the  serv ice .    I  am not  a  

member  o f  the  serv i ce  myse l f ,  so  the  pos i t ion  wh ich  dea ls  

w i th  the  regu la t i ons is  found in  the  Overs igh t  Act  Sect ion  

78 ,  wh ich  says i f  these were  the  regu la t ions . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Sect ion  74 .  

DR DINTWE:    74 ,  yes ,  i t  says  a  Min i s te r  ac t ing  w i th  the  

concur rence  o f  the  commi t tee  may make regu la t ions  

regard ing ,  and then you have got  parag raphs A ,  B ,  C,  I  

want  to  go  to  F,  wh ich  says secur i t y  c learance  fo r  the  10 

Inspecto r  Genera l  and members  o f  the  commi t tee ,  so  these 

regu la t ions were  never  p romulgated,  th is  1994.   Yesterday 

I  was count ing  the  number  o f  m in is te rs  there ,  we don ’ t  

have these powers  bu t  we have dra f ted  them more  than 

once,  and because they dea l  w i th  impor tan t  i ssues they 

a lso  dea l  w i th  the  per fo rmance o f  the  funct ions  by  the  

Inspecto r  Genera l ,  the  repor ts  submi t ted  by  the  Inspecto r  

Genera l ,  the  suspens ion  or  remova l  f rom o f f i ce  o f  the  

Inspecto r  Genera l  and the  te rm inat ion  o f  employment  o f  

the  Inspector  Genera l .  20 

 So in  the  absence o f  these regu la t ions wh ich  were  

never  p romulgated they then rever t  to  the  regu la t ions 

wh ich  dea ls  w i th  the  employees o f  the  serv ice  as  i f  I  am an 

employee o f  the  serv i ce .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  as  I  unders tand what  you are  
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say ing  to  the  Cha i r  i s  tha t  p roper l y  regarded there  is  

leg is la t ion  wh ich  wou ld  a l low the  D i rec tor  Genera l  ac t i ve ly  

to  remove you f rom o f f i ce  by  w i thdrawing your  secur i t y  

c lea rance.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    O r  the re  i s  no  va l id  leg i s la t i ve  or  

regu la tory  p rov is ion  to  tha t  e f fec t .  

DR DINTWE:    There  is  no t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  and we w i l l  la te r  dea l  w i th  

an  example  where  as  I  unders tand your  ev idence an  10 

a t tempt  was made to  do  prec i se l y  tha t .  

DR DINTWE:    Exact ly  and they invoked the  same 

regu la t ions wh ich  dea ls  w i th  somebody e lse  o ther  than th is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Okay,  we w i l l  come to  tha t  in  due  

course ,  bu t  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  p lace  on reco rd  Cha i r  

Sect ion  74  o f  the  Overs igh t  Act ,  wh ich  reads:  

“The Inspector  Genera l  may be removed f rom o f f i ce  

by  the  Pres ident  . . . ”  

That  i s  the  body tha t  appo in t s  you,  bu t  on ly  on  the  g rounds  20 

o f  m isconduct ,  incapac i ty,  w i thdrawal  o f  h is  o r  her  secur i t y  

c lea rance,  poor  per fo rmance  or  incompetence as  

prescr ibed.  

DR DINTWE:    That ’s  what  the  ag reement  i s .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So i f  your  secur i t y  c lea rance i s  
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w i thdrawn i t  remains  the  pre roga t ive  o f  the  Pres ident  to  

remove you f rom o f f i ce ,  as  I  unders tand tha t  sec t ion .  

DR DINTWE:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  tha t  you r  v iew as we l l?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  my v iew as we l l  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t  le t ’s  dea l  w i th  paragraph 72 

and fo l low ing,  and tha t  i s  the  issues sur round ing  the  

secur i t y  c learance o f  Rober t  McBr ide ,  what  happened 

there?   You dea l  w i th  tha t  a t  parag raph 72 and fo l low ing? 

DR DINTWE:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  the  no tor ious fac t  tha t  the  10 

tenure  o f  Mr  Rober t  McBr ide  as  the  Execut ive  D i rec to r  o f  

the  IP ID was not  renewed a f te r  the  exp i ry  o f  h is  con t rac t  in  

2017,  and i f  you  fo l low the  reasons tha t  was p rov ided by  

Min is te r  Bhek i  Ce le  was to  say tha t  Mr  Rober t  McBr ide  d id  

no t  have a  renewed secur i t y  c learance,  o r  he  was not  re -

ve t ted .  

 In  the  meant ime Cha i rperson he had app l ied  in  t ime  

fo r  the  renewal ,  he  d id  no t  have cont ro l  over  tha t  because 

the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency is  hav ing  tha t  mandate  to  a lso  

dea l  w i th  what  we ca l l  ex terna l  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  i t  invo l ves  20 

ve t t ing  o f  o the r  o f f i c ia ls  ou ts ide  the  agency.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Inc lud ing  IP ID?  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And inc lud ing  you in  fac t .   

DR DINTWE:    Wel l  o f  course  yes I  w i l l  be  fa l l ing  under  
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ex te rna l  space.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We have made tha t  po in t .    D id  the  

mat te r  then a r r i ve  on  your  desk?    

DR DINTWE:    And then before  i t  a r r i ved on my desk  is  tha t  

a  dec is ion  was made in  Par l iament  and i t  was g iven tha t  

reason and so  fo r th  and I  th ink  tha t  he  was contempla t ing  

go ing  to  cha l lenge tha t  dec i s ion ,  bu t  then he compla ined to  

me on someth ing  e lse .   H is  compla in t  to  us  was to  say tha t  

there  was a  team tha t  went  to  th is  fo re ign  count ry  tha t  I  

want  to  ca l l  Jup i te r,  I  don ’ t  know how i t  was ca l led  there ,  10 

ja ,  bu t  tha t  count ry,  so  they went  there  and the  a l legat ions 

were  tha t  Mr  McBr ide  was in  cahoo ts  w i th  some peop le  who 

res ided in  tha t  par t i cu la r  count ry  o r  in  Jup i te r,  wh ich  is  no t  

a  p rob lem,  the  prob lem is  tha t  you cannot  go  and  

invest iga te  an  i nd iv idua l  w i thou t  hav ing  a  reg is te red 

pro jec t  to  say tha t  we suspect  tha t  D in twe –  ja  I  th ink  i t  i s  

in  the  pub l i c  domain ,  peop le  have been accused o f  be ing  

hand led  by  fo re ign  in te l l igence agenc ies ,  so  the  moment  

there  i s  tha t  a l legat ion  they must  reg i s te r  a  p ro jec t ,  they  

must  fo l low the i r  opera t iona l  d i rec t i ves  and i t  must  be  20 

approved by  the  h ighest  pe rson in  the  SSA who happens to 

the  be  a  D i rec tor  Genera l  o r  h is  de legate ,  bu t  in  th is  

ins tance noth ing  o f  tha t  so r t  was done,  bu t  the re  was a  

second prob lem,  the  second p rob lem is  t ha t  the re  a re  

peop le  who were  sent  there  were  then accompanied by  a  
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cer ta in  gent leman . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Don ’ t  ment ion  the  name,  don ’ t  

ment ion  the  name or  the  company.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  we are  us ing  a  pseudo name there ,  I  

th ink  we ca l l  h im Mr  Ivanhoe.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Now Mr  Ivanhoe is  a  d i rec tor  o f  a  company  

ca l led  Icebox Incorpora ted .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bo th  are  pseudonyms.  

DR DINTWE:    I t  is  a lso  a  pseudonym.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  very  impor tan t  to  ment ion  i f  i t  i s  a  

pseudonym,  o the rwise  peop le  accuse the  Commiss ion  o f  

no t  be ing  respons ib le  and ment ion ing  names.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We wi l l  ge t  a  compla in t  f rom the  

rea l  Mr  Ivanhoe.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  cont inue.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  who is  th is  Mr  Ivanhoe?   Mr  Ivanhoe  

and h is  company  were  be ing  invest iga ted  by  the  O IGI ,  my 

o f f i ce  and they were  a lso  be ing  invest iga ted  by  IP ID,  by  Mr  

Rober t  McBr ide .    He had prov ided some equ ipment  to  the 20 

In te l l igence and the  procedure  was not  fo l lowed.   There  

were  a lso  f ind ings by  Treasury  tha t  there  was  

cont ravent ion  o f  some o f  the i r  d i rec t i ves  and so  fo r th ,  so  

tha t  b rought  about  tha t  p rob lem because obv ious ly  then i t  

was Mr  Ivanhoe who in fo rmed the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency 
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tha t  Mr  McBr ide  was not  upr igh t ,  so  in  the  meant ime Mr  

McBr ide  d id  no t  ge t  secur i t y  c lea rance,  h i s  tenure  cou ld  

no t  be  ex tended a t  IP ID because he was f igh t ing  aga ins t  

th is  person who is  connected,  there  is  ev idence la te r  wh ich  

shoes h is  po l i t i ca l  connect ions and to  what  ex ten t  was he  

invo l ved a lso  in  f leec ing  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  reg ions.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    As  in  many spy s tor ies  they get  

qu i te  compl ica ted  and i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  o f ten  to  fo l low the  p lo t ,  

bu t  as  I  unders tand i t  Mr  McBr ide  was invest iga t ing  th is  

company.  10 

DR DINTWE:    That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Th is  company or  the  d i rec to r  o f  

th is  company,  Mr  Ivanhoe,  then lodged a  compla in t  aga ins t  

Mr  McBr ide  wh ich  accused h im o f  ne far ious dea l ings in  a  

fo re ign  count ry.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So the  very  company tha t  was 

be ing ,  and the  person tha t  was be ing  invest iga ted  by  IP ID  

under  Mr  McBr ide  was a t  the  same t ime repor t ing  to  Cr ime 

In te l l igence I  th ink  i t  was,  tha t  Mr  McBr ide  was not  20 

behav ing  appropr ia te ly  o r  p roper l y  o r  lawfu l l y  in  re la t ion  to  

ac t i v i t ies  in  a  fo re ign  count ry,  do  I  unders tand tha t  

cor rec t l y?  

DR DINTWE:   But  we shou ld  add tha t  i t  was not  on ly  a  

compla in t ,  he  then becomes a  source  or  an  in fo rmer  who  
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then even accompany the  team tha t  i s  go ing  to  invest iga te  

in  Jup i te r.     

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  the  company or  the  d i rec tor  

be ing  invest iga ted  by  IP ID and  Mr  McBr ide  is  now a  

source ,  p ro tec ted  as  a  source ,  and accompanies  the  

invest iga to rs  o f  Cr ime In te l l igence to  th is  fo re ign  count ry,  

do  I  unders tand tha t  co r rec t l y?  

DR DINTWE:    You unders tand cor rec t l y.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  i s  the  add i t iona l  par t  o f  the 

p lo t  tha t  you de l ineate .  10 

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  wha t  happened?  

DR DINTWE:    And when he ge ts  to  tha t  count ry  a t  the 

cost ,  fu l l  expend i tu re  be ing  car r i ed  by  the  SSA and they  

ge t  to  Jup i te r,  they  meet  w i th  the  peop le  tha t  had in fo rmed 

the  invest iga to rs  here  tha t  they  have ev idence o f  even  

o f fsho re  accounts  tha t  be longs to  Mr  McBr ide ,  bu t  they 

re turned empty-handed because tha t  was never  –  i t  was 

never  a  rea l i t y,  i t  was never  the  t ru th .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  there  is  a  fu r ther  tw is t  and tha t  20 

is  tha t  th is  d i rec tor  and th is  company are  ac tua l  serv i ce  

prov iders  and potent ia l  se rv i ce  p rov ide rs  or  b idders  to  the  

ex ten t  o f  tens o f  m i l l i ons  o f  Rands to  the  secur i t y  

es tab l i shment ,  am I  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE:    Fo r  Cr ime In te l l igence to  be  spec i f i c .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Fo r  Cr ime In te l l igence and tha t  you 

w i l l  dea l  w i th  in  due course .  

DR DINTWE:    We wi l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  due course .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  there  anyth ing  you w ish  to  add 

then in  re la t ion  to  tha t?  

DR DINTWE:    . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  they  come back and they say 

tha t  no  the  in fo rmat ion  was negat ive  bu t  by  tha t  t ime there  

is  somebody a l ready appo in ted  to  ac t  a t  IP ID,  Mr  McBr ide  

is  ou t  a l ready,  so  they have done tha t  and i t  i s  one o f  what  

we can ca l l  a  modus operand i  they  jus t  d ismiss  you and  10 

they jus t  de lay  th ings and they know tha t  there  is  no  t ru th  

in  what  they are  a l leg ing ,  bu t  the  pre jud ice  was s t i l l  

su f fe red .  

 Maybe not  even ca l l  i t  p re jud i ce  to  Mr  McBr ide  bu t  

maybe some pre jud i ce  to  the  c i t i zens o f  th is  count ry  

because a t  tha t  t ime he was f igh t ing  too th  and na i l  to  make 

sure  tha t  he  reverses the  damaged caused by  S ta te 

Capture ,  cor rup t i on ,  po l i ce  bru ta l i t y  and a l l  those issues.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We have summar ised these  events  

bu t  they are  de ta i led  in  your  s ta tement  and the  Cha i r  has 20 

the  repor t .   Le t  us  move on then  to  the  facts  sur round ing  

the  secur i t y  c lea rance o f  Mr  Nqasana,  you dea l  w i th  tha t  in  

parag raph 82 and  fo l low ing.   What  happened there?  

DR DINTWE:    In  Mr  Nqasana ’s  case Mr  Nqasana gets  

appo in ted ,  they opened the  f i les  to  ve t  h im,  he  s igns,  he  
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consents  to  eve ry th ing  and then they go  th rough a l l  the 

processes and a t  the  end he then they qua l i f y  h im,  he  

d idn ’ t  ge t  awarded top  secre t .   There  i s  communica t ion  to  

the  Min is te r,  the  then Min is te r  o f  Jus t ice  to  say tha t  no  th is  

cand ida te  i s  now okay and then he  resumes h is  du t ies  and 

then someth ing  happens between  h imse l f  and the  fo rmer  

Pres ident ,  there  is  a  d isagreement ,  there  is  a  m is t rus t  tha t  

he  cou ld  charge the  fo rmer  Pres ident .     

 They d id  no t  come back to  h im and w i thd raw the  

secur i t y  c lea rance,  what  they do  is  tha t  they then request  10 

h is  f i l e ,  because  then the  f i le  wou ld  be  s to red fo r  the  

coming f i ve  years  or  un t i l  such  t ime tha t  you want  to  

re invest iga te  o r  w i thdraw.  

 They go . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    When you say  they you mean  peop le  

w i th in  SSA? 

DR DINTWE:   Ja,  I  jus t  want  to  see i f  they  maybe d idn ’ t  

use  the  o the r  two  names tha t  I  ment ioned but  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh pseudo names obv ious ly.  

DR DINTWE:   No,  those wou ld  no t  be  pseudo names.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh those wou ld  be  rea l  names? 

DR DINTWE:   Oh no,  they a re  pseudo names.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cha i r  Mr  Nqasana may have  named 

those pe rsons,  o r  those pe rsons may have been named,  

the  persons who  dea l t  w i th  h is  secur i t y  c learance,  they 
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were  no t  opera t ives ,  bu t  I  am not  sure  whether  ru le  33 ’s  

have been issued  in  tha t  regard .   Wel l  they  are  no t  named 

here  anyway.  

DR DINTWE:    87.2 ,  no  87 .2  the  l as t  bu t  one sentence on 

page 801.  

CHAIRPERSON:    801.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    87 .2?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  w i l l  be  one,  I  mean tha t  f i rs t  sentence on 

tha t  page.   So i t  w i l l  be  parag raph  872 wh ich  s ta r t s  on  800.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The name in  paragraph 87.2  can 

be ment ioned,  he  has rece ived an 33 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay tha t  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  anyway you te l l  the  s to ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say ins tead o f  the  pseudonym,  you 

say . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   No,  there ’s  no  pseudonym here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On mine there  is  a  pseudonym on 

paragraph . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    There  is  a  pseudonym for  t he  f i rs t  20 

person ment ioned in  paragraph  87.2 ,  tha t  pseudonym 

shou ld  remain .    The second pe rson ment ioned in  

parag raph 87.2  has rece ived a  Ru le  33  and you can 

ment ion  tha t  name and they are  two d i f fe ren t  peop le  

a l though they –  ja ,  they are  two d i f fe ren t  peop le ,  we l l  they  
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a re  ment ioned . . . [ in te rvenes]  he  same contex t .  

DR DINTWE:    A l r igh t .   So Cha i r  a f te r  tha t  s ix  –  I  mean 

a f te r  the  6 t h  o f  March 2014,  wh ich  was the  da te  tha t  the  

cer t i f i ca te  was issued o f  top  secre t  to  Mr  Nqasana they two 

days la te r  and unbeknown to  Mr  Nqasana the  then genera l  

manager,  we ca l l  h im Danny,  in  the  SSA gave ins t ruc t ions 

tha t  fu r ther  i nvest iga t ions shou ld  be  conducted on Mr  

Nqasana.   The f i le  was then a l loca ted  to  a  d i f fe ren t  ve t t ing  

invest iga to r  who  in te rv iewed cer ta in  un ident i f ied  re ferees  

in  KwaZulu  Nata l  and those re ferees can be ident i f ied  by  10 

Mr  Thu lan i  D lomo,  who was then the  Deputy  D i rec tor  

Genera l  in  the  Domest ic  Branch o f  the  SSA.  

 Now vet t ing  is  in t rus ive ,  they  even ask funny  

quest ions,  somet imes they ask  a re  you . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  a re  

you,  have you ever  had a  p rob lem o f  d rugs and so  fo r th ,  so  

i t  i s  an  in t rus i ve  k ind  o f  a  method .    Now the  reason why  

you got  in fo rmed  tha t  you s ign ,  you are  consent ing ,  tha t  

you can go to  the  banks and check  my ac t ions,  you can do  

th is ,  you can go  even ta lk  to  my  re ferees.    Here  in  th is  

ins tance Mr  Nqasana ’s  consent  ends on the  6 t h  o f  March 20 

when th is  cer t i f i ca te  i s  i ssued,  bu t  then th is  Genera l  

Manager  ca l led  Danny then takes the  f i le  aga in ,  he  speaks  

to  a  d i f fe ren t  ve t t ing  invest iga tor  and g i ve  tha t  ins t ruct ions 

tha t  Mr  Thu lan i  D lomo wi l l  g ive  you names,  you must  go  

and ta l k  to  these peop le  in  KwaZulu  Nata l .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  you invest iga te  th is  ve t t ing  

process or  th is  re -ve t t ing  p rocess?  

DR DINTWE:    I  invest iga ted  tha t  and I  ca l led  fo r  some 

documents  dur ing  the  course  o f  our  mon i to r ing .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes and d id  you look fo r  the  f i le?  

DR DINTWE:    We cou ld  no t  loca te  the  f i le ,  we cou ld  on l y  

ge t  some o ther  documents  wh ich  were  then g iven to  us .    

Some o f  those documents  suspec t ing  me were  no t  even  

s igned,  I  th ink  there  is  one le f t  tha t  was s t i l l  s igned.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  the  ev idence wh ich  wou ld  have 10 

ass is ted  you in  your  invest iga t ing  to  what  you regard  as  an  

improper  o r  un lawfu l  re -ve t t ing  process qu i te  f rank ly  

d isappeared?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  do  you say in  pa ragraph 87.6  

then?  

DR DINTWE:    R igh t ,  now what  we  found to  be  very  s t range  

was tha t  when we looked a t  the  d ig i ta l  ve t t ing  f i les ,  so  

remember  tha t  we cou ld  no t  ge t  the  phys ica l  f i l e ,  bu t  we 

cou ld  be  ass i s ted  to  ge t  on to  the  sys tem and check what  20 

they ca l l  d ig i ta l ,  so  –  because they cannot  de le te  tha t ,  

there  w i l l  a lways  be an aud i tab le  t race  there .    What  we  

found was  a  le t te r  wh ich  was up loaded there  wh ich  sa id  

tha t  Mr  Nqasana ’s  ve t t ing  p rocess was not  comple te .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  tha t  a  cor rec t  s ta tement  o f  the  
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fac ts ,  was tha t  a  cor rec t  s ta tement  o f  the  fac ts?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  cannot  be  a  co r rec t  s ta tement  because  

there  was a  cer t i f i ca te  i ssued and s igned on the  6 t h  o f  

March  2014.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cor rec t ,  and was tha t  le t te r  ever  

s igned?  

DR DINTWE:   The le t te r,  th is  le t te r  was not  even s igned.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  someone put  tha t  le t te r  in  a  f i le  

p resumably  in tend ing  i t  to  be  s igned a t  some s tage but  i t  

never  go t  to  be  s igned,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

DR DINTWE:   I t  never  go t  to  be  s igned and the  Ch ie f  

D i rec tora te  dea l i ng  w i th  tha t  adv i sed or  i n fo rmed us  tha t  

they had no know ledge o f  the  au thor  o f  the  a l leged le t te r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:     Yes,  you say in  paragraph 87.6 :  

“The  management  o f  the  Ch ie f  D i rec to ra te  s ta ted  

tha t  the  issue  o f  the  den ia l  le t te r  remains  

quest ionab le . ”  

That  means the  den ia l  o f  the  ce r t i f ica te ,  does i t?  

DR DINTWE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    There  was no le t te r  o f  den ia l  20 

wr i t ten  by  the  Ch ie f  D i rec to ra te  Externa l  Vet t ing  and 

Adv is ing ,  tha t  does not  mean to  say o f  course  tha t  some 

para l le l  ve t t ing  process m ight  have  dra f ted  tha t  le t te r.  

DR DINTWE:   Look cer ta in  le t te rs ,  l i ke  in  my o f f i ce  you 

w i l l  have . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  may be an unfa i r  in fe rence on  

my par t  so  . . . [ in tervenes]   

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  I  unders tand what made i t  more st range 

was that  i f  an off ic ia l  in my off ice wri tes a let ter they wi l l  

wr i te on top the reference or  an inqui ry at  least  even i f  I  s ign 

that  let ter.   Th is one d id not  indicate who at  least  the draf ter 

is in the bare minimum. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   The conclusion you drew 

af ter al l  your own invest igat ions in relat ion to whether Mr 

Nxasana had a val id secur i ty  c learance or not  what was 10 

that? 

DR DINTWE:   I  w i l l  have to read that  one because I  – ja on 

paragraph 87.7 I  th ink you are referr ing to that .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    

“ I t  is not  worth that  Mr Thulani  Dlomo’s name 

featured prominent ly in the f indings of  the 

HLRP the panel  concerning the rogue 

intel l igence uni t  wi thin the SSA and 20 

reportedly took instruct ions f rom and 

report ing di rect ly  to the then President  Mr 

Zuma.  President  Zuma…” 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Just  before you go on.   What  is your 

source for that  conclusion? 
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DR DINTWE:   I t  is  the high level  rev iew panel  i t  is .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l  i t  may not  be stated in the high 

lever review panel  in so many words but  we can always 

check i t .   But  what you are saying is you rely ing on what you 

stated in that  HLRP report?  Is that  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Of  course we do not  have the ful l  

report  certain por t ions of  that  report  remain classi f ied even 

to the commission but  I  am concerned that  – that  conclusion 

that  you draw may not  be accurate ly ref lected in the report .   10 

Were you sat isf ied that  i t  is? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  is  f ine Chai rperson I  am always amenable to 

us put t ing i t  on hold unt i l  you have checked those facts and 

then you are rais ing i t  Advocate because i t  is rais ing a very 

important  issue so I  am si t t ing wi th  an unredacted version of  

the HLRP and I  th ink that  everyone else may be having a 

redacted version.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight .   The second sentence how 

does that  read or what does i t  read? 

DR DINTWE:   The second statement? 20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In 87.7.  

DR DINTWE:   A lr ight .    

“President  Zuma rel ied upon the al leged lack 

of  secur i ty c learance of  Mr Nxasana as a 

basis for inst igat ing an inquiry  into his  
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f i tness to hold off ice not i fy ing Mr Nxasana of  

his intent ion or to suspend him.”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So your understanding of  the facts 

which you invest igated is that  Mr Nxasana was issued with a 

val id Top Secret  Securi ty c learance.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Subsequent  to that  a  further 

invest igat ion into his securi ty status was conducted you say 

that  that  was improper or not  – or properly author ised,  am I 

correct? 10 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So that  his or ig inal  securi ty  

c learance remained in place? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  remained in place as far as my invest igators 

– as far as my invest igators could establ ish.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   Notwi thstanding that  you say 

that  the issue of  the securi ty c learance,  i ts status,  i ts  val id i ty  

and quest ion marks around an a l leged lack of  securi ty  

c learance were used as one of  the reasons for quest ion ing 

Mr Nxasana’s f i tness to cont inue to hold off ice as NDPP 20 

Nat ional  Director of  Publ ic Prosecut ions,  am I  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   Yes that  is correct .   Would not  maybe the 

commission wants the Chai rperson al low me to just  ment ion 

that  there is  an abstract  that  I  would have taken f rom an 

opinion piece but  i t  says here:  
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“ I t  is absurd to suggest  that  a murder charge 

which resul ted in an acqui t ta l  could 

conceivably affect  a person’s securi ty  

competence. ”  

 So the second round of  vet t ing then revealed this  

charge of  Mr Nxasana f rom which he was acqui t ted.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes that  has been canvassed in 

evidence in fact  thank you Mr Dlomo but  you say as I  

understand i t  in your… 

DR DINTWE:   I  am not  Mr Dlomo Chairperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In your statement that… - sorry 

CHAIRPERSON:   Dr Dintwe you said Mr Dlomo.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I  am very sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  even say Mr Nxasana.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight  let  me repeat al l  that .   I t  is 

noteworthy that  the grounds on which the subsequent 

invest igat ion into whether Mr Nxasana should retain his 

securi ty c learance or not  was based on grounds that  you say 

are ent i rely fa l lacious.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you detai l  that  in these 

paragraphs of  hearsay? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where were you reading just  before Mr 

Pretor ius asked you where you say i t  – you started wi th I t  is  
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– I  am not  sure what you ( talk ing over one another).  

DR DINTWE:   No al r ight  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Charge of  murder.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes i t  wi l l  be paragraph 85 where I  re fer to a 

statement made by Mr Paul  Ngobene of  the Progressive 

Professionals Forum Western Cape.  And then I  had just  

went – i t  says a lot  there but  I  had turned to the next  page 

which wi l l  be page 800 and i t  wi l l  be l ine – not  even a 

sentence 123456.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh now I  can see where i t  says i t  is  10 

absurd.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In the middle of  a sentence.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes perhaps – perhaps for the sake 

of  completeness that  comment should be placed on record 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In paragraph 85 you say Dr Dintwe:  

“That  i t  is my submission that  the vet t ing and 

securi ty c learance of  Nxasana was not  20 

properly handled. : ”  

And you referr ing there to the cont inuat ion of  the 

invest igat ion af ter  the issue of  a cer t i f icate I  presume? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    
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“The statement by Mr Paul  Ngobene of  

Progressive Professionals Forum Western 

Cape elucidates my submission – that  is your  

submission as he wri tes and I  quote – or you 

quote “ i t  is  disconcert ing that  just ice minist ry  

off ic ia ls appear to conf late the issue of  

whether an NDPP is f i t  and proper  wi th the 

issue of  his secur i ty c learance” there – these 

are not  the same.  Securi ty c learance is  

simply an off ic ia l  document indicat ing the 10 

degree of  securi ty competence of  a person.   

This ref lects a person’s abi l i ty to act  in such 

a manner that  he does not  cause classi f ied 

informat ion or  mater ia l  to  fa l l  into 

unauthor ised hands thereby harming or 

endangering the securi ty or interests of  the 

state.   Securi ty  competence is  normal ly  

measured against  certa in  cr i ter ia focussing 

on his suscept ib i l i ty to extort ion or blackmai l ,  

amenabi l i ty to br ibes,  suscept ib i l i ty  to being 20 

compromised due to compromising behaviour 

and loyal ty to  the state or  inst i tut ion.   

Measured against  these standards i t  is  

absurd to suggest  that  a murder charge 

which resul ted in an acqui t ta l  could 
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conceivably affect  a person’s securi ty  

competence.   In simi lar vein a ki l l ing 

commit ted when Nxasana was a teenager 

long before he qual i f ied to be a lawyer and 

before he was declared f i t  and proper by a 

court  dur ing the at torney admission process 

cannot  be grounds for quest ioning his f i tness 

now.”  

 As I  understand i t  you endorse those comments? 

DR DINTWE:   I  endorse those comments.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight .   I  hope that  c lar i f ies that  

issue Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no,  no I  understand the issue ja.   I  

just  – I  just  had not  seen where he was reading f rom. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  have – he has to ld me.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   Then you deal  in paragraph 

88 and fo l lowing wi th your own secur i ty  c learance.   Would 

you tel l  the Chair  about  that  please.  

DR DINTWE:   Ja.    20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Before we do that  you have made i t  

c lear to the invest igators and the legal  team al l  a long that  

you are not  here to raise personal  gr ievances.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.   But  before I  go 

there i f  you al low me Chai rperson can we… 
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes sure.  

DR DINTWE:   Can we go back to 87.7 to say that  the – the 

issue of  Mr Nxasana took the other turn and i t  ended up by 

thinking the highest  court  of  the land.   I  th ink that  dur ing my 

invest igat ion I  would have also made some reference 

because by that  t ime when I  was doing this aff idavi t  and 

when I  was doing that  moni tor ing that  decision was then 

made and – and the involvement of  – of  the SSA and the 

endorsement to say that  i t  is so surpr is ing that  why would 

you go for the second round of  vet t ing invest igat ion wi thout  10 

even informing the subject .   I t  could also be part  of  that  and 

I  wi l l  request  the – Advocate Paul  Pretor ius but  maybe we 

need to look at  those decisions and just  check what were 

some of  the facts that  could have in f luenced my submissions 

there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  to the extent  that  you may be 

referr ing to the judgments of  the const i tut ional  courts we 

have deal t  wi th i t .   Mr Pretor ius led the – was the evidence 

leader.   He had deal t  wi th i t  in relat ion to Mr Nxasana. So Mr 

Nxasana himsel f  gave extensive evidence but  obviously he 20 

would not  have known some of  the things that  you 

discovered I  th ink in your invest igat ion.   But  he has given 

extensive evidence and – and we have looked at  that  

judgment so – so we are qui te fami l iar wi th i t .  

DR DINTWE:   Thank you Chai r.   So an ear l ier quest ion… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe I  should just  say also not  only are 

we fami l iar wi th the judgment we are fami l iar even wi th the 

aff idavi ts that  were f i led in that  mat ter and the record of  the 

const i tut ional  court  – the commission has got  al l  o f  those 

aff idavi ts that  were before the courts  in relat ion to these 

matters.  

DR DINTWE:   Thank you very much Chai r.   So Advocate 

Pretor ius the Chai rperson had prefaced his quest ion – h is 

next  quest ion by saying that  again this should not  be taken 

as a personal  gr ievance.   What I  have done here I  have 10 

taken examples of .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   D i fferent  people that  in my opin ion were 

opposed to f raud in government,  malfeasance,  state capture,  

corrupt ion i f  you l ike.   So I  have taken them and I  am try ing 

to create a pat tern here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   So that  the Chair  can see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   How did this para l le l  st ructure operate.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  I  would say whi le there is – 

there is certainly  something to be said for the view that  i t  

should not  be not  seen as personal  gr ievances on the other 

hand i t  is important  to make sure that  you do not  end up not  

put t ing before the commission what  should be put  before the 
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commission in the interest  of  the off ice as opposed to in the 

interest  of  a part icular incumbent but  in the interest  of  the 

off ice because you are now too apologet ic that  you may be 

seen as vent i lat ing personal  gr ievances.   So i t  is a st r ik ing 

of  the balance.   Okay.  

DR DINTWE:   Thank you Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   And of  course these matters do 

deal  wi th the off ice of  the Inspector  Genera l  in Intel l igence 

and the vulnerabi l i t ies related to that  off ice.    

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Would you then tel l  the Chai r  what 

happened in th is regard as you deal  wi th i t  in paragraph 88 

and fol lowing? 

DR DINTWE:   So my – my securi ty vet t ing was done and i t  

was completed.   There was in fact  I  th ink some threats f rom 

the other pol i t ical  part ies who were saying that  the ir  

President  was taking too long to appoint  me because the 

Parl iament had al ready – had already voted in  November of  

2016 and here we are talk ing around January/February of 

2017.    20 

 So my secur i ty c learance was done in  an 

extraord inary kind of  speed i f  you l ike.   I  th ink that  he had a 

l i t t le t r im just  to deal  wi th that  so I  got  a cert i f icate yes of  

course there were some issues there but  they were not  

worr isome so I  got  the cert i f icate.    
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 The problem only arose at  a later stage.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So you were duly vet ted before you 

assumed dut ies as IGI and you were given a top secret  

securi ty c learance,  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What is the per iod of  val id i ty  

ordinar i ly of  a secur i ty c learance cert i f icate? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  is not  legislated but  they wri te in there they 

wi l l  say that  th is wi l l  be val id for the f ive years.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you ra ise the issue of  the 10 

exercise of  a power or an al leged power to re-vet  you and 

that  occurred dur ing 2017 and 2018, correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight .   What is the background… 

DR DINTWE:   A few months af ter –  af ter the al l  depends on 

the off ice.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Oh you suddenly f ind yoursel f  subject  

to a re-vet t ing process,  is that  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What were the ci rcumstances 20 

surrounding this?  You deal  wi th that  in paragraph 90 and 

fol lowing.  

DR DINTWE:   90 and then fo l lowing yes.    May I  p lease just 

ref resh my memory?  So I  th ink that  I  would have deal t  wi th 

paragraph 90 where I  said that  Mr Fraser was aware of  the 
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invest igat ion that  I  was busy wi th.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So you were invest igat ing Mr  Fraser 

based on a complaint  received by your off ice,  is that  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .  

DR DINTWE:   And he was aware of  that  because I  would 

have wri t ten a let ter to him saying h im that  th is courtesy.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .  

DR DINTWE:   I  am in receipt  of  a complaint  which impl icates 

you.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right  did he make any requirement of  

you in regard to the source of  your informat ion? 

DR DINTWE:   Yes then he wrote to mysel f  saying that  he has 

a counter intel l igence mandate and his interpretat ion thereof  

was to say that  i f  somebody comes to my off ice and reports I  

must  te l l  h im i f  they happen to be in possession of  c lassi f ied 

informat ion.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So he says wel l  I  have a counter 

intel l igence mandate you must  give me al l  the informat ion 

concerning the complaint  against  me.  20 

DR DINTWE:   Exact ly and the reason why he was saying that  

he knew that  that  matter had to deal  wi th the pen 

invest igat ion.   So the t ime invest igat ion had lots and lots of  

documents that  were classi f ied.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   Just  maybe at  i t  – ment ion i t  
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now but  I  understand i t  f rom a source in the publ ic domain 

that  the – at  least  one of  the PAN reports or part  of  the PAN 

reports was leaked to the Ama Bhungani  news service,  is 

that  correct ,  am I  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .  

DR DINTWE:   But  there would have been a leak in  2014 

before I  came to that  off ice in the Ci ty Press in that  instance.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   Did you accede to Mr Fraser.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second Mr Pretor ius – just  one 10 

second Mr Pretor ius for  the t ranscr ibers reference to pan 

report  and pan invest igat ion is  pan – just  for the – for  the – 

when they do the t ranscr ipts.  

DR DINTWE:   And they cal l  is a Pr inciple Agent Network.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight .   Did you accede to Mr 

Fraser ’s requirement that  you disc losed this informat ion to  

him? 

DR DINTWE:   No I  refused and then I  wrote to him tel l ing 

him that  his bel ief  was erroneous that  I  should report  receipt  20 

of  al l  c lassi f ied in format ion to his off ice and that  that  would 

defeat  the purpose for which IGI was created.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What happened af ter the lodging of  

the complaint  that  you were invest igat ing in respect  of  Mr 

Fraser – what had happened thereaf ter? 
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DR DINTWE:   He then wrote a let ter to me saying that  he 

inst i tut ing what he cal led – okay he inst i tuted – he launched 

a counter invest igat ion against  me.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   On what grounds or on what  al leged 

grounds? 

DR DINTWE:   In the f i rst  let ter that  I  received on the 8t h of  

November 2017 I  am taking an extract  out  of  that  let ter he 

said that :  

“The Inspector General  had met  representat ives of  pol i t ical  

part ies in Parl iament and had on that  occasion received 10 

classi f ied informat ion which informat ion relates to the state 

securi ty agency and i ts act iv i t ies.   So that  was the 

accusat ion.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So let  us just  put  that  in context  so 

we understand the plot  here.   The off ice of  the Inspector  

General  of  Intel l igence receives a complaint .  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Inc luded in that  complaint  is the 

disclosure to you of  a classi f ied document or documents? 

DR DINTWE:   There was not  in fact .   His moles got  i t  wrong.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   Wel l  that  is an incorrect  fact  

upon which Mr Fraser appears to have acted.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   But  there is  an al legat ion then let  us 

get  i t  step by step.  
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DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson i t  is an al legat ion 

that  he is making against  me.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The off ice of  the IGI receives a 

complaint .   I t  is al leged or bel ieved incorrect ly that  as part  of  

that  complaint  you received classi f ied documentat ion.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You are then requested by Mr Fraser  

to g ive that  c lassi f ied informat ion which he incorrect ly 

received? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You refused.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   He says then immediately  af ter that  

that  he is launching a counter invest igat ion against  you for  

receiving classi f ied informat ion as part  of  the complaint  

which you invest igat ing against  him.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight  I  th ink we understand that .   

What happened then? 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is af ter  he had launched the counter 20 

invest igat ion against  you – what happened? 

DR DINTWE:   Oh alr ight  but  I  would have wanted to deal  

wi th the lat ter par t  of  the same let ter.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes so please do so you deal  wi th 

that  in paragraph 91.  
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DR DINTWE:   Yes of  the 8 t h of  November.   That  paragraph 

further said:  

“Sect ion 26 of  the Intel l igence Services Act  

2002 65 of  2002 and Sect ion 4 of  the 

Protect ion of  Informat ion Act  1982 Act  84 of  

1982 and I  th ink i t  is a SIC there but  that  is  

how the let ter was and undermines the 

agency’s abi l i ty to f i l l  i ts counter intel l igence 

responsibi l i t ies as def ined and set  out  in  

Sect ion 21(b) of  the Nat ional  St rategic Act  10 

1994 which includes informat ion secur i ty. ”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right  wel l  let  us just  br ief ly examine 

the logic of  Mr Fraser ’s stance here.   The off ice of  the IGI 

must  invest igate the act iv i t ies of  the securi ty serv ices 

including the SSA, correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Does that  mean that  you would 

inevi tably i t  seems logical  to me f rom the outside that  you 

would inevi tably  have to have to access to classi f ied 

informat ion? 20 

DR DINTWE:   A lways i t  is a dai ly th ing.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And there could be no reasonable 

interpretat ion of  your powers and dut ies to say that  you can 

do – or you can invest igate the procurement of  s tat ionery 

and leasing of  bui ld ings but  you cannot deal  wi th the 
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c lassi f ied act iv i t ies.  

DR DINTWE:   There would not  be that  is why you can see 

that  Chairperson on paragraph 91 that  he is st ruggl ing – he 

is br inging in the laws that  are not  even empowering that  are 

not  even establ ishing the off ice of  the Inspector General  of  

Inte l l igence that  does not  even deal  wi th  the appointment  of  

the incumbent and so forth.   So those laws they not  be 

appl icable to mysel f  in any event .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So – but  i t  seems that  they 

interpreted and appl ied in such a way as to say that  i f  you 10 

receive classi f ied informat ion in th is – in the course of  a 

complaint  being made to your off ice you are somehow 

transgressing the law.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes that  is  exact ly  what the purpose of  that  

let ter was.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight  wel l  I  am sure that  the Chai r  

wi l l  wi th our assis tance deal  wi th the legal i t ies there.   Right  

what happened then?  You refer in  paragraph 92 that  there 

were further – let ters sent  to you.  

DR DINTWE:   Now on the 13t h of  November 2017 remember 20 

the f i rst  one is the 8t h of  November.  On the 13t h he then 

wri tes a fol low up let ter in which he rei terates that  I  was in  

receipt  of  unlawful ly obta ined classi f ied informat ion f rom 

representat ives of  pol i t ical  part ies in Parl iament.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   And you at  the top of  the or at  
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the end of  paragraph 92 what did the Director General  state 

in addi t ion? 

DR DINTWE:   He then refers to Sect ion 7 10 of  the Overs ight  

Act  and only that  l ine which says that :  

“The Inspector General  shal l  comply wi th a l l  

securi ty requirements appl icable to the 

employees of  the agency.”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So he was saying that  the fact  that  

someone had a classi f ied document you must  now report  to  

someone e lse? 10 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  and fai lure to do so wi l l  be in  

contravent ion of  7  10.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   Now what was the culminat ion 

of  th is ser ies of  events?  You deal  wi th that  in paragraph 93.  

DR DINTWE:   Okay then – and Chairperson I  mean they 

were fol lowing each other that  is why I  said ear l ier that  I  

th ink the commission would decide i f  i t  was inference that  I  

was drawing wi th regard to the MPD’s.   Because you can see 

the f requencies of  the let ters there.   One message and one 

message only.   Then on the 15t h of  November again he 20 

wri tes in which I  get  informed that  SSA wi l l  be re-vet t ing me 

because I  had not  reported or disclosed to the Di rector  

General  the fact  that  I  was in receipt  of  un lawful ly  obtained 

classi f ied informat ion.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .  
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DR DINTWE:   But  there is something very interest ing about 

that  let ter.   This let ter gets del ivered by the DG himsel f .   We 

are not  in Pretor ia we are in Cape Town so we have got  

off ices on the 18t h Floor.   Mine wi l l  be on the smal ler 

passage his wi l l  be at  the corner.   And his secretary or PA 

then tel ls me – knocks at  my door and says that  the DG wi l l  

l ike to see you.   And I  said no,  no i t  is okay maybe in ten 

minutes I  wi l l  be done with what I  am doing because I  was 

doing some preparat ion.   Then he comes there wi th that  

let ter he puts i t  on the table.   Somehow v iolent ly  and he 10 

says that  Sir  I  have decided to re-vet  you and he observes 

me, he was looking at  me and I  00:26:53 making me very 

angry because I  then l ike took that  let ter  and I  demonst rat ing 

Chairperson I  just  put  i t  aside and said okay I  wi l l  see that  

when I  get  back to Pretor ia.   So I  d id not  show him any signs 

of  f rust rat ion or off  here and whatever.   He actual ly lef t  my 

off ice an angry man on that  day.    

CHAIRPERSON:   But  he – so he did not  want  any delay in  

you receiving this let ter.  

DR DINTWE:   There was no reason our head quarters are in 20 

Pretor ia.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   When we are in 00:2;7:36 even smal ler in our 

off ices.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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DR DINTWE:   Just  for administ rat ion to go to the commit tee 

make your reports and come back here.   In fact  our t r ips 

were not  even arranged col lect ively.   He went there and I  

happened to be there.   I   th ink that  ear l ier then he said oh 

this man is around let  us t ie th is  matter and sort  of  spoi l  

00:27:56.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So just  to summarise then Dr DIntwe.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You receive a complaint  f rom a 

member of  Parl iament.  10 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  complaint  deals wi th the 

Principle Agent Network.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   We know f rom other evidence at  least  

in pr inciple that  impl icated in the PAN report  was Mr Fraser.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Mr Fraser then says I  want c lassi f ied 

documents that  you have received as part  of  the report ,  

correct? 20 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   He then – you say you are not  going 

to disclose the contents of  the report  to him at  th is s tage or 

whatever you say to h im.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .   In fact  i f  th is was not  a leader 
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in Parl iament who is a wel l  known prominent  person i f  i t  is  

other complainants I  do not  even d isclose the complainants 

beforehand to the impl icated part ies.   I  assure them 

conf ident ia l i ty.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Anyway i t  seems that  Mr Fraser is 

concerned to put  i t  at  i ts l ightest  that  you are invest igat ing 

this complaint  wi thout  disclosing in format ion relat ing to the 

complaint  to him.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   He then decides to re-vet  you.  10 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And the grounds for  the re-vet t ing are 

exact ly your handl ing of  the complaint  against  him.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And then what happened on the – 

wel l  what  happened short ly thereaf ter you refer to a 

te lephone cal l  you received in paragraph 94? 

DR DINTWE:   Yes so when I  was about  to  leave and  I  –  we 

–  I  was a l ready  in  the  a i r c ra f t  coming back to  Pre tor ia .   

Then I  rece ived th is  te lephone ca l l .   The person  in fo rms  20 

tha t  he  was ins t ruc ted  tha t  I  shou ld  be  re -ve t ted .   So he i s  

in t roduc ing  h imse l f  as  a  ve t t ing  invest iga tor  and he is  

ask ing  me . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE :    . . .ab i l i t y.   How soon can you get  to  Pre tor ia  
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so  tha t  we can f i l l  i n  the  fo rm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And what  happened on the  

3 r d  o f  December  2017?  

MR DINTWE :    No,  he  wr i tes  aga in  on  the  

3 r d  o f  December  2017 and he adv ises me o f  an  pend ing  

invest iga t ion  by  the  SSA regard ing  the  leak ing  o f  a  

c lass i f ied  OIGI  repor t .   A copy o f  wh ich  le t te r  i s  annexed.   

So I  annexed tha t ,  okay.   But  I  do  no t  have  i t  here ,  

Cha i rperson.  

 He ment ioned tha t  he  was in fo rmed tha t  I  had  10 

been uncoopera t ive  w i th  these ve t t ing  e f fo r ts  o f  the  SSA.   

So in  o ther  words,  tha t  was jus t  another  fo l low-up  le t te r  

w i thout  g iv ing  me fu r the r  reasons but  here  i t  i s  t ry ing  to  

b r ing  someth ing  –  the  OIGI  repor t  was leaked.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You then dea l  w i th  the  app l i cab le  

leg is la t ion .  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    D id  Mr  Fraser  g i ve  you an  

ins t ruc t ion  o r  d id  he  ought  to  g ive  you an ins t ruc t ion  tha t  i s  

re fe r red  to  in  pa ragraph 98?  20 

MR DINTWE :    Yes,  i t  was.   I  saw i t  as  an  ins t ruc t ion .   May  

I  cont inue and jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes,  p lease.   You te l l  your  s to ry.  

MR DINTWE :    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SCA :    And i f  you need to  re fe r  to  the  
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leg is la t ion  and i t s  impor t ,  p lease do so .  

MR DINTWE :    No,  a l r igh t .   I  do  no t  know d id  –  by  the  

ev idence leader  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  I  submi t ted  ear l ie r  to  say  

tha t  in  fac t  there  are  no  regu la t ions wh ich  dea ls  w i th  my  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  what  I  am say ing ,  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.   So I  was ins t ruc ted  by  Mr  Fraser  to  

coopera te  w i th  the  SSA in  the  p rocess o f  my ev i c t ion(?)  10 

and the  emai l  invest iga t ion  in to  my a l leged conduct .   And 

in  the  le t te r  tha t  was la te r  sent  to  me,  I  wou ld  have  to read 

tha t  in to  record ,  i t  i s  a t  the  paragraph.   Cha i rperson,  i f  you 

a l low me? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR DINTWE :    I t  w i l l  be  on  paragraph 98.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

“The above,  no tw i ths tand ing ,  your  a t ten t ion  is  

b rought  to  the  med ia  repor ts  o f  today,  20 

3  December  2017  in  the  Sunday Times,  

concern ing  c lass i f ied  repor ts  o f  the  Off i ce  o f  

Inspecto r  Genera l  o f  In te l l igence,  IGI .  

I t  has  now become,  as  a  cause  o f  concern ,  

tha t  c lass i f ied  repor ts  o f  the  IG have been  
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leaked some four  yea rs  a f te r  i t s  f ina l i sa t ion .  

You are  he reby adv i sed tha t  the  mat te r  o f  the  

leakage(?)  w i l l  be  invest iga ted  and  as  such the  

corpo ra t ion  o f  the  Inspector  Genera l  o f  

In te l l igence is  requ i red . . . ”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   And then in  pa rag raph 99,  

you rece ived fu r ther  in fo rmat ion .  

MR DINTWE :    And then I  was in fo rmed by  h im aga in  tha t  I  

was to  be  re -ve t ted  because now i t  i s  even someth ing  

nob le(? )  there .   He says because he was in  rece ip t  o f  10 

d is tu rb ing  in fo rmat ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    . . .d is tu rb ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE :    I  have gone and I  shou ld  cons ider  t ha t  bu t  

he  never  to ld  me what  i s  tha t  in fo rmat ion .   To  da te  I  do  no t  

know.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    D id  you la te r  f ind  ou t  what  the 

d is tu rb ing  in fo rmat ion  was?  

MR DINTWE :    No,  I  have never  to  da te  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You re fer  in  the  second sentence,  

parag raph 99 to  d is tu rb ing  in fo rmat ion .   What  i s  tha t?  20 

MR DINTWE :    I t  i s  a  reco l lec t ion  tha t  I  make because the  

f i rs t  le t te r  was see ing  i f  I  was in  rece ip t .   So I  am say ing  

tha t  the  on ly  in fe rence tha t  I  cou ld  draw f rom tha t  i s  tha t  

th is  d is tu rb ing  in fo rmat ion  i s  abou t  me rece iv ing ,  because  

there  was no in te rven ing  issue  where  he  wou ld  have  
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amended to  changed the  in i t ia l  accusat ion  or  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  th is  was a  susp ic ion  tha t  you 

had tha t  th is  was what  he  was re fer r ing  to?  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    He never  to ld  you what  he  was  

d is tu rbed by?  

MR DINTWE :    No,  he  never  to ld  me.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You drew the  conc lus ion  tha t  i t  was 

–  tha t  you have met  members  o f  Par l iament .   You assumed 10 

tha t  o r  suspected  tha t?  

MR DINTWE :    I  ac tua l l y  jus t  assumed tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.   And you do say tha t .  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And say:   Some c redence fo r  my  

susp ic ions was conf i rmed in  the  repor t  o f  the  H igh- leve l  

Rev iew Pane l .  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Where  i t  i s  reco rded tha t  Mr  Fraser  

had a l leged tha t  I  was “spot ted ”  meet ing  members  o f  the  20 

oppos i t ion .   What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR DINTWE :    Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  a  d is tu rb ing  th ing .   I  hope 

tha t  one day,  even i f  i t  i s  no t  myse l f ,  tha t  somebody  in  tha t  

o f f i ce  or  tha t  o f f ice  w i l l  say  tha t  we have been ve ry  m i ld  

about  what  happened here .   And,  l i ke ,  aga in ,  genera l l y  
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what  i s  happen ing  in  the  count ry.   How do you fo l low a  

head o f  a  const i tu t iona l  body survey(? )  them,  in te rcept  

them and even spot  them and then even conf i rm?   

 I  th ink ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  may be t reasonab le  to ,  

you know,  to  say  the  least .   I  th ink  i t  i s  jus t  pure  c r im ina l .   

And I  am a l so  ab le  to  re fe r  to  some o f  the  o ther  occas ions  

where  he  wou ld  even wr i te  a  le t te r  to  me and make me 

aware  tha t  we a re  –  whether  you  have been meet ing  th is  

and o ther  pe rsons.   I  am in  possess ion  o f  those le t te rs .   

The team is  in  possess ion  o f  those  le t te rs .    10 

 I  th ink  i t  i s  a  ser ious th ing .   I  rea l l y  go t  d is tu rbed  

here  to  say tha t  how do you spot  a  person who is  do ing  h is  

job?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  qu i te  someth ing .   Qu i te  ser ious.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   So you say and you 

s t ress ,  in  fac t ,  in  the  las t  paragraph o f  99  tha t ,  o f  course ,  

i t  i s  your  respons ib i l i t y  to  meet  w i th  members  o f  the  pub l i c  

o r  you r  respons ib i l i t y  o f  members  o f  your  s ta f f  to  meet  w i th  

peop le  who are  ra is ing  comp la in ts  and to  rece ive  

in fo rmat ion  f rom them,  whether  c lass i f ied  o r  no t .  20 

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You have g iven tha t  ev idence.  

MR DINTWE :    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And you  a lso  re fer  in  pa rag raph  

101 to  Sect ion  7 (8)  o f  the  Overs igh t  Act  tha t  where  you  
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rece ive  in fo rmat ion ,  the  d isc lose  o f  tha t  in fo rmat ion  is  

cont ro l led  by  the  prov i s ions o f  Sect ion  7 .   You cannot  jus t  

w i l l y -n i l l y  g ive  i t  to  anybody.  

MR DINTWE :    I f  I  had to  fo l low tha t  p rocess be fo re  I  come 

to  the  Commiss ion . . .   Cha i r,  you can jus t  imag ine  the  

accusat ions tha t  I  was go ing  to  ge t  i f  I  d isc lose  to  

Mr  Ar thu r  Fraser.   I t  means tha t  be fore  tha t  d isc losure ,  I  

am en jo ined by  tha t  p rov is ion  tha t  I  shou ld  fo l low.   I  shou ld  

in fo rm the  Min is te r  o f  S ta te Secur i t y  and I  shou ld  a lso  

in fo rm the  Pres ident .    10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   But  as  I  unders tand i t ,  

D i rec tor  Genera l s  ta lked to  your  pos i t ion  was tha t  h is  

power  over rode any o ther  p rov is ions.  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  what  he  was te l l ing  me.   And i t  was 

in  the  le t te r  a lso .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .    

MR DINTWE :    Cha i rperson,  may I  say  tha t  these le t te rs  

were  par t  and parce l  o f  my app l i ca t ion  tha t  I  wou ld  have 

p laced before  the  Nor th  Gauteng.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR DINTWE :    So  they are  –  a  major i t y  o f  them are  

dec lass i f ied  so  tha t  we jus t  wanted  to  c lean our  house.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR DINTWE :    And t igh ten  a  few sc rews.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 320 of 371 
 

MR DINTWE :    But  you can see tha t  I  am quot ing  

ex t ravagant ly  f rom them.   I t  i s  because they are  ac tua l l y  

dec lass i f ied .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    In  paragraph 103 and fo l low ing,  

you dea l  w i th  the  lega l  p rov is ions and you g ive  your  

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  how they shou ld  be  app l i ed  to  the 

par t i cu la r  fac ts  tha t  you have re la ted  to  the  Cha i r.   You see  

tha t?  

MR DINTWE :    I  see  tha t .   And those are  the  In te l l igence  10 

Serv i ces  Regu la t ions.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And in  pa ragraph 106,  you say:  

“Beyond the  c lea r  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  apparent  

in  Mr  Fraser ’s  c la im to  in fo rmat ion  in  th is  

ins tance. . . ”  

 Of  course ,  he  was c la im ing  in fo rmat ion  re levant  

to  your  invest iga t ion  o f  h im.  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    “ I t  i s  s t ressed tha t  the  IP I  does not   

repor t  to  the  D i rec to r  Genera l  o r  any o f  the  

Min is te rs  respons ib le  fo r  In te l l igence Serv i ces .  

He/she is  accoun tab le  to  the  JSCI .  

There  is  no  lega l  p rov i s ion  requ i r ing  me to  
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account  to  the  D i rec to r  Genera l  on  any 

in fo rmat ion  requ i red  in  the  course  o f  the  

d ischarge o f  my dut ies . . . ”  

 Cor rec t?  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And h is  p lan  to  have 

counter in te l l igence respons ib i l i t i es ,  in  you r  v iew,  does not  

supersede tha t?  

MR DINTWE :    Not  a t  a l l ,  Cha i rperson.   He does not  

supersede me.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Bu t  in  any  event ,  a r is ing  ou t  o f  a l l  

th is .   I f  Mr  Fraser  then in i t ia ted  a  process regard ing  your  

secur i t y  c learance.    

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   I  am dea l ing  

w i th  tha t ,  I  th ink ,  on  paragraph 108 .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  happened in  paragraph –  

what  happened on 28 March 2018? 

MR DINTWE :    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    As  you descr ibed in  paragraph 108.  

MR DINTWE :    On the  28 t h ,  then,  o f  March,  Cha i rperson,  I  20 

was se rved w i th  a  le t te r  f rom the  D i rec tor  Genera l  sent  by  

h im,  in fo rming me tha t  the  secur i t y  c learance had been 

w i thdrawn wi th  immedia te  e f fec t  based on the  fo l low ing  

reasons.   Very  in te res t ing .   The f i rs t  one was to  say tha t :  

“Fa i lu re  to  exerc ise  my duty  to  repor t  and 
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ac t ion  breaches  o f  d isc losure  o f  c lass i f ied  

in fo rmat ion  in  o r  f rom the  Of f i ce  o f  the  

Inspecto r  Genera l  o f  In te l l igence. . . ”  

 That  was the  f i rs t  reason prov ided fo r  the  

w i thdrawal .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  every  t ime you rece ived a  

compla in t  wh ich  m ight  inc lude  c lass i f ied  in fo rmat ion ,  

acco rd ing  to  th is ,  you must  go  and repor t  immedia te ly  to  

the  SSA Di rec tor  Genera l  whom you might  be  invest iga t ion  

in  tha t  very  contex t .  10 

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR DINTWE :    And i t  was now becoming a  harassment  

Cha i rperson.   You can see.   I t  i s  d i f fe ren t  le t te rs ,  one 

accusat ion .   I  am t ry ing  to  wr i te  back to  h im.   I  am t ry ing  to  

educate  h im,  bas ica l l y,  because a t  a  par t i cu la r  po in t  I  sa id  

tha t  maybe I  shou ld  s i t  down and ass is t  th is  gen t leman.   

Ad tha t  was one o f  the  reasons.   The second reason was  

tha t :  

“You fa i led  to  execute  my f iduc ia ry  du ty  as  20 

Inspecto r  Genera l  o f  In te l l igence towards the  

In te l l igence Serv ices  by  obst ruc t ing  the  due 

admin is t ra t ion  o f  jus t i ce . . . ”  

 The th i rd  one was:  

“You defeated . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   That  second one.  

MR DINTWE :    Yes?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The a l legat ion  was tha t  you had fa i led  to  

your  du ty  o r  f iduc ia ry  du ty  as  the  Inspecto r  Genera l  o f  

In te l l igence towards the  In te l l igence Serv ices  by  

obst ruc t ing  due admin is t ra t ion  o f  jus t i ce .   What  d id  you  

unders tand tha t  to  mean or  d id  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE :    I  never  even bothered to  unders tand tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR DINTWE :    Because I  was ta lk ing  to  my co l leagues and  10 

I  was say ing  tha t  now he is  even accus ing  me o f  c r im ina l  

o f fences.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  ac tua l l y  a  c r im ina l  o f fence.   So I  

was te l l ing  somebody,  my lega l  rep ,  to  say tha t  i f  Mr  Fraser  

was my employer  o r  my superv i so r,  he  wou ld  no t  even then  

be ab le  to  charge  me wi th  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR DINTWE :    So  the  reason why I  dec ided not  even to  

want  to  unders tand tha t  today,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR DINTWE :    I t  i s  because i t  was c lear  tha t  he  was  

c lu tch ing  a t  s t raws and he was jus t  ac t ing  ou t . . .   He cou ld  

no t  f ind  any p iece o f  leg is la t ion  tha t  he  cou ld  use  to  dea l  

w i th  me.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    And everyone was defeat ing  o r  

obst ruc t ing  the  end o f  jus t i ce  by  such fa i lu re .   And the  

four th  one:   Fa i l ing  to  comply  w i th  a  request  to  submi t  to  

re -ve t .   Those were  the  fou r.  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.   The four th  one ,  a t  leas t ,  I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR DINTWE :    The four th  one I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR DINTWE :    I  ge t  i t .   The  f i f th  one:   Defeat  and  

obst ruc t ing  the  ends o f  jus t i ce .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR DINTWE :    Th is  was a  s ign  o f  a  person tha t  wanted to  

harass me,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR DINTWE :    He went  beyond.   That  was jus t  a  pure  

harassment .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   So to  summar i se  the  fac ts ,  

a t  leas t ,  up  to  th i s  s tage.   You rece ived a  compla in t  f rom a  

member  o f  Par l iament .  20 

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    That  compla in t  concerns Mr  Fraser,  

the  D i rec tor  Genera l  o f  the  SSA.  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Par t  o r  i nvo lved in  the  compla in t  i s  
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the  PAN,  Pr inc ipa l  Agent  Network  Repor t .  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You  immedia te l y  then are  

ins t ruc ted  or  requ i red  by  Mr  Fraser  to  d i sc lose  what  he  

says is  c lass i f ied  in fo rmat ion  to  h im.  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And he g i ves  the  reasons tha t  he  

has g iven but  the  cu lm inat ion  o f  th is  exchange between 

you,  the  Invest i ga to r,  and Mr  Fraser,  the  person be ing  

invest iga ted .   As  I  unders tand,  the  t ra in  o f  fac ts  tha t  you  10 

are  g i v ing  now is  the  w i thdrawal  o f  your  secur i t y  c lea rance.  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   These fac t s ,  o f  course ,  

may be contes ted  by  Mr  Fraser  bu t  he  w i l l  have  eve ry  

oppor tun i ty  to  come and do so .   But  as  I  unders tand your  

ev idence,  i t  i s  based or  cor robora ted  by  documenta t ion  in  

your  possess ion  wh ich  you w i l l  a t tach ,  the  bund le  to  the  

Cha i r.  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   What  happened  on the  20 

5 t h  o f  Apr i l  2018?  

MR DINTWE :    Now tha t  i s  what  ac tua l l y  b roke the  

channe ls ,  Cha i rperson.   On the  5 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  then I  rece ived 

a  le t te r  wh ich  bugged(?)  me f rom my own o f f i ce ,  f rom my 

own premises,  Cha i rperson.   An ex t rac t  f rom tha t  le t te r,  i t  
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sa id :   You a re  he re  by  adv ised tha t  your  secur i t y  c learance  

has been w i thdrawn.   You are  no  longer  au thor ised to  

access c lass i f ied  in fo rmat ion  and res t r i c ted  premises.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Wou ld  tha t  inc lude your  o f f i ce?  

MR DINTWE :    I t  w i l l  i nc lude my o f f i ce  because I  am in  a 

res t r i c ted  area.   I  am s i t t ing  in  the  same o f f i ce  w i th  the  

Min is te r,  w i th  the  Deputy  Min is te r,  w i th  Head o f  Nat iona l  

In te l l igence Commi t tee ,  w i th  the  Head o f  the  ICCS.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   What  i s  the  e f fec t  o f  tha t  

communica t ion  o r  the  occupat ion  o f  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  IGI?   I  10 

am ta lk ing  about  the  o f f i ce  he re  in  the  o f f i c ia l  sense.  

MR DINTWE :    I t  was brought  to  i t s  knees.   There  I  was 

Cha i rperson -  and o f  cou rse ,  I  d id  no t  go  to  the  o f f i ce  

because I  was sca t te red(? )  -  d is tanced o f f .   Maybe a  

phys i ca l  f igh t  be tween my pro tec to rs  and h i s  and  the  

secur i t y  o f f i c ia ls .   So I  wanted to  ac t  as  a  respons ib le  

person and I  dec ided then to  take  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Le t  us  unders tand the  impor t  o f  

these communica t ions to  you.   I t  was e f fec t i ve ly  to  remove  

you,  bo th  f rom your  phys ica l  o f f i ce  and f rom your  o f f i ces  as  20 

Inspecto r  Genera l .  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  bu t  my o ther  impor t  i s  tha t ,  

even go beyond tha t  end.   C lose tha t  o f f i ce  because tha t  

w i l l  be  the  u l t imate  impact  i f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  cou ld  no t  opera te  w i thout  you.  
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MR DINTWE :    Wi thout  –  w i thout .   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  there  is ,  in  fac t ,  no t  on ly  you  

tha t  were  removed f rom the  o f f i ce  bu t  the  o f f i ce  i s  

e f fec t i ve l y  shut  down.  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And o f  course ,  the  compla in t  aga ins t  h im  

cou ld  no t  be  invest iga ted  fu r ther  once you were  no t  there .  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because even i f ,  I  guess,  even  i f  you 

cou ld  au thor i se  somebody in  your  o f f i ce  to  conduct  the  10 

invest iga t ion ,  they w i l l  on l y  conduct  i t  on  your  beha l f .   And 

i f  you are  no t  there ,  you have been removed,  they  cannot  

conduct  –  nobody  can conduct  any invest iga t ion  lawfu l l y.  

MR DINTWE :    I  have been warned Cha i rperson  wh ich  

shou ld  –  what  wou ld  deve lop  a t  tha t  event (?) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR DINTWE :    And le t  me a l so  ment ion  tha t  there  was an  

emai l ,  an  Out look emai l  wh ich  go t  sent  to  the  Exco –  my 

Exco –  now my managers . . .  in fo rm ing them tha t  they 

shou ld  no t  p rov ide  me wi th  anyth ing .   They shou ld  no t  even 20 

communica te  w i th  myse l f  because my secur i t y  c learance  

has been w i thdrawn.   That  Out look  is  ava i lab le  a lso .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m,  h ’m.  

MR DINTWE :    So  I  th ink  tha t  the  po in t  you are  ra is ing  to  

say tha t  I  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  de legate  bu t  aga in ,  i t  i s  
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cu t t ing  the  communica t ion  be tween myse l f  and the  o ther  

members  who cou ld  then cont inue  w i th  the  invest iga t ion  in  

my absence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m,  h ’m.   Yes,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A f te r  the  ser ies  o f  events ,  d id  you 

approach the  cour ts?  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  re l ie f  d id  you seek?  

MR DINTWE :    I t  was a  Par t  A and a  Par t  B .   And Par t  A 

was on an urgen t  bas is .   Par t  A was jus t  to  say tha t  my  10 

secur i t y  c learance shou ld  be  re ins ta ted .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .  

MR DINTWE :    And a long w i th  tha t ,  there  were  some issues  

o f  secur i t y.   So you wou ld  have worked on my secur i t y.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.   D id  the  then Min is te r  

in te rvene?  

MR DINTWE :    The then Min i s te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  d id  she do?  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  d id  she do?  20 

MR DINTWE :    She re ins ta ted  tha t  –  on  the  e leven th  hour.   

So we ar r i ved a t  cou r t  because the  mat te r  was se t -down 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

MR DINTWE :    Yes,  there  was an oppos i t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    From Mr  Fraser?  

MR DINTWE :    . . . f rom Mr  Ar thur  Fraser.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  he opposed your  app l i ca t ion  to ,  

amongst  o ther  th ings,  to  res tore  your  secur i t y  c learance? 

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  d id  the  Min i s te r  do?  Was th is  

a t  the  doors  o f  cour t?  

MR DINTWE :    Le t  us  say tha t  because when I  was there ,  

then they ca l led  and my lega l  representa t i ve  was say ing  

and th ink  tha t  Par t  A o f  your  app l i ca t ion  may have  10 

tempt (?) ,  you know,  moot ,  i f  you  l i ke .   I  do  no t  know i f  they  

used tha t  word  bu t  then they sa id  tha t  there  is  no  need fo r  

us  because they  have g iven you  exact ly  what  you are  

c la im ing(? )  fo r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  the  Min is te r  then in te rvened,  

re ins ta ted  your  c learance cer t i f i ca te?  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Or  s ta tus?  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  me jus t  go  back.   You launched 20 

your  app l i ca t ion  in  the  h igh  cour ts .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR DINTWE :    Yes,  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  Mr  Fraser  launch any a f f idav i t  to  

oppose tha t  app l i ca t ion?  

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    And was he the  on ly  one who was 

oppos ing  –  who lodged the  oppose? 

MR DINTWE :    Cha i rperson,  I  cannot  –  rea l l y  cannot  

remember.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot .  

MR DINTWE :    My app l i ca t ion  –  my cour t  app l i ca t ion  is  par t  

o f  the  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  the  bund le .   We do not  have 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR DINTWE :    . . .bu t  i f  –  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  he  was the  on ly  

respondent .  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o ther  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  bu t  we do not  need to  check.   

I  jus t  want  to  ge t  tha t .  

MR DINTWE :    A l r igh t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you had not  f i l ed  a  rep ly ing  

a f f idav i t .   You had f i led  a  rep ly ing  a f f idav i t  by  the  t ime 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE :    I  had.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You had?  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  mat te r  was to  be  a rgued? 

MR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And then,  the  Min is te r  in te rvened.   
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I  assume the  Min i s te r  was one o f  the  respondents .  

MR DINTWE :    The Min is te r  was one o f  the  respondents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  she had  not  f i l ed  any papers?  

MR DINTWE :    The lega l  rep resenta t i ve ,  as  when  he was  

communica t ing  w i th  m ine,  he  was  ind ica t ing  tha t  he  was 

rep resent ing  bo th  the  Min i s te r  and Mr  Ar thu r  Fraser.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   But  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE :    Bu t  there  was  s t i l l  a f f idav i t  f rom the  10 

Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    From the  Min i s te r.   Okay a l r igh t .  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  e f fec t  o f  the  in te rvent ion  o f  the  

Min is te r,  was i t  tha t  your  secur i t y  c learance wou ld  be 

re ins ta ted .   There fore ,  there  shou ld  be  a  se t t lement  and  

w i thdrawal  o f  the  app l i ca t ion  or  was i t  tha t  an  order  was 

granted by  concerned?  

MR DINTWE :    There  was no orde r.   They were  ve ry  

a l le rg i c  to  tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR DINTWE :    Because there  was o ther  i ssue o f  secur i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR DINTWE :    That  I  was ve ry  much worr ied  about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR DINTWE :    So  they d id  tha t  bu t  we jus t  fe l t  tha t  there  

was su f f i c ien t  in te rvent ion .   I  was sa t is f ied  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR DINTWE :    Maybe a lso  to  ment ion  tha t  i t  was on the  

same day tha t  I  then get  ca l led  by  the  then Cha i rpe rson o f  

the  Johannesburg  D ip lomat  on  In te l l igence,  Mr  Char les  

Ngqu la  and I  am not  imp l ica t ing  h im here .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR DINTWE :    Who then sa id  tha t  there  i s  a  dec is ion  to  

move Mr  Ar thur  Fraser  f rom the  s ta te  o r  ou t  o f  the  S ta te  10 

Secur i t y  Agency.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR DINTWE :    So  those th ings happened . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Those th ings happened  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINTWE :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR DINTWE :    I  thought  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR DINTWE :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  u l t imate ly  you w i thdrew the  

app l i ca t ion  or  i t  was jus t  postponed s ine  d ie .   I t  was not  

pursued.  

MR DINTWE :    I t  was postponed.   I  remember  tha t  I  sa id  

tha t  no ,  fo r  now we wi l l  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR DINTWE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR DINTWE :    Bu t  we have never  ever  rea l l y  pursued even 

the . . .  o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Mr  Pre tor ius ,  I  

th ink  le t  us  take  some ad journment .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  ta lk  about  how fa r  we wou ld  go  so  

tha t  we are  a l l  on  the  same page .   Otherwise ,  I  jus t  push  10 

everybody [ laughs]  to  m idn igh t .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know,  Mr  Pre tor ius ,  what  own  

assessment  i s?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Cha i r,  we can go as  fa r  as  we can.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    To  whatever  t ime you deem 

necessary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You know my v iews on th is .   They  20 

have not  changed .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Bu t  we w i l l  no t  f in ish  ton igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-  no ,  I  th ink  we w i l l  no t  f in ish  ton igh t .   

Maybe we go up to  ha l f -past  e igh t  o r  n ine .   [ laughs]  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    [ laughs]  I . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I  w i l l  take  your  main  praye r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    . . .up  to  your. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Okay a l r igh t .   Okay le t  us  take  

a  ten  m inutes  ad jou rnment  and then a f te r  tha t ,  we w i l l  

come back and go up to  ha l f -past  e igh t  and take  i t  f rom 

there .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may be seated.   Yes,  le t  us  proceed.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   In  pa rag raph  

111,  Dr  D in twe,  you summar i se  the  impor t  o f  th is  sec t ion  o f  

ev idence tha t  you have jus t  g i ven .   Perhaps because i t  i s  

we l l  se t  ou t  there  you w i l l  read tha t  paragraph onto  the  

record?  20 

DR DINTWE:    Pa rag raph 111,  I  am say ing  tha t :  

“ I  am requ i red  by  law to  serve  impar t ia l l y  and  

independent ly  and per fo rm my funct ions in  good 

fa i th  and w i thout  fear,  favour  o r  p re jud ice .   Th i s  

requ i res  the  pro tec t ion  o f  the  bas ic  tenets  o f  an  
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independent  ins t i tu t ion  namely  the  manner  o f  my  

appo in tment ,  my secur i t y  o f  tenure  (and due to  the  

na ture  o f  my work ,  my secur i t y  o f  person. )   The  

budget  o f  my o f f i ce  and the  manner  o f  and the  

grounds fo r  my  remova l ,  the  impor tance o f  the  

independent  and  autonomous funct ion ing  o f  an  

overs igh t  body is  underp inned by  the  In te rnat iona l  

Best  Prac t ice  and  has been app l ied  by  our  cour t s  to  

cor rup t ion  f igh t ing  ins t i tu t ion ,  as  in  the  G len is te r  

case,  and ove rs igh t  bod ies  o f  o ther  s ta te  10 

ins t i tu t ions ,  as  in  the  case o f  McBr ide .   In  v iew o f  

th is ,  the  power  o f  ve t t ing  de termin ing  secur i t y  

competence g iven to  the  SSA shou ld  no t  be  

permi t ted  to  be  used in  o rder  to  undermine the  

independence o f  the  OIGI  o r  s t i f le  i t s  

invest iga t ions. "  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You dea l  in  the  next  sec t ion ,  Dr  

D in twe,  w i th  what  you te rm quest ionab le  in te l l igence  

repor ts  and you say in  paragraph 112:  

“Myster ious in te l l igence repor ts  have been used  20 

repeated ly  to  dea l  w i th  o r  ta rge t  those who are  

regarded as  opponents“  

And you se t  ou t  in  the  fo l low ing pa ragraphs some examples  

o f  th is .   Perhaps you cou ld  summar ise  these fo r  the  Cha i r.  

DR DINTWE:    I  w i l l  summar ise ,  Cha i r.   The f i rs t  example  
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i s  what  happened in  2017.   2017  I  rece ived a  compla in t ,  

th is  t ime f rom the  Democra t ic  A l l iance,  and i t  was fo l lowed  

by  the  o ther  one  f rom the  South  A f r i can Communis t  Par ty  

and the  th i rd  one was f rom a  pr iva te  c i t i zen  res id ing  

somewhere  in  Gauteng and in  tha t  compla in t  I  was 

requested to  i nvest iga te  the  verac i t y  o f  a  repor t  tha t  was  

used by  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma to  reca l l  Min is te r  

Prav in  Gordhan and h i s  then deputy,  Mr  Mceb is i  Jonas.   

And I  was jus t  quote  what  i t  sa id  because i t  i s  very  

impor tan t  la te r,  i t  becomes very  impor tan t  la t te r.   I t  says :  10 

“An invest iga t ion  in to  a l legat ions  sur round ing  an 

in te l l igence repor t  a l leged ly  used  as  a  p re tex t  fo r  

the  reca l l  o f  the  F inance Min is te r. ”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  was the  a l legat ion?  You can 

summar ise  i t  because there  has  been ev idence  before ,  

be fore  the  Commiss ion .   You dea l  w i th  tha t  in  paragraph 

114.  

DR DINTWE:    The a l legat ions were  –  and i t  was open 

because South  A f r i can Communis t  Par ty  went  on to  the  

med ia  to  repor t  –  they repor ted  the  mat te r  to  the  OIGI  and 20 

the  person who was speak ing  on beha l f  o f  the  organ isa t ion  

was the  now Deputy  Secre tary,  f i rs t  Deputy  Secre tary,  Mr  

Mapa i la .   And he  had sa id  tha t  in  one o f  the  meet ings o f  

the  top  s ix  a t  Lu thu l i  House they were  b r ie fed  ve rba l l y  by  

the  fo rmer  Pres ident  tha t  he  is  in  possess ion  o f  an  
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in te l l igence repor t  wh ich  a l leges tha t  Min is te r  Prav in  

Gordhan and Mr  Jonas were  overseas and were  go ing  to  

meet  w i th  some fo re ign  agents  who were  ca l l ing  fo r  reg ime 

change in  South  A f r i ca  and he a l so  in fo rmed them tha t  he 

was go ing  to  reca l l  them f rom tha t  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  no t  the  

reca l l  f rom the i r  pos i t ions ,  they use the  same words .  

But  yes ,  o f  course ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  mat te r  o f  pub l i c  

knowledge tha t  they were  then reca l led .  

He never  to ld  them what  was the  source  o f  tha t  

repor t  because I  th ink  tha t  when  we say tha t ,  tha t  the  10 

expecta t ion  w i l l  be  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  coming f rom one o f  the  

th ree  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agenc ies .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  we were  no t  c lear  in  knowledge  o f  who 

exact ly  wou ld  have br ie fed  the  Pres ident  on  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I t  was re fe r red  to  o r  assumed to  be  

an in te l l igence repor t  o f  sor t s .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  accord ing  to  the  w i tnesses tha t  I  ta lked 

to  and –  ja  and in  h igh  p lace.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  in  any event  you were  asked to 20 

invest iga te  the  source  o f  th is  repor t .  

DR DINTWE:    I  was,  yes ,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And d id  you invest iga te?  

DR DINTWE:    I  invest iga ted  the  mat te r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you say in  parag raph 115:  
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“The core  issues tha t  needed to  be  invest iga ted  

were  the  or ig in ,  au thent ic i t y  and verac i t y  o f  th is  

a l leged in te l l igence repor t . ”  

Who to  your  knowledge was the  person o r  you were  the  

persons in  possess ion  o f  th is  repor t?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  was on ly  Pres ident  Zuma who sa id  tha t  I  

am in  possess ion  o f  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  you ask h im fo r  the  repor t?  

DR DINTWE:    I  then –  because a t  a  meet ing  and  

requested fo r  tha t  repor t .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And what  happened a t  tha t  meet ing  

and what  was i t s  conc lus ion?  

DR DINTWE:    In  tha t  meet ing  he  –  and he was we lcoming,  

jus t  a  very,  ve ry,  very  n ice  meet ing  tha t  I  had w i th  the 

Pres ident  and he  exp la ined to  me  tha t  when t ime is  r igh t  

he  w i l l  then wr i te  to  me and he w i l l  –  he  d id  no t  say  he  w i l l  

send me the  repor t ,  in  fac t  maybe le t  me paraphrase what  

he  sa id .    He sa id  tha t  he  i s  hear ing  peop le  say ing  

[ ind is t inc t ]  repor t  and so  fo r th  and so  fo r th  and so  fo r th  

and tha t  repor t  may not  be  ex is ten t  because he  is  no t  20 

go ing   to  be  dependent  on  wr i t ten  repor t s  and he sa id  tha t  

I  saw someth ing  on  the  webs i te ,  somebody was wav ing  a  

repor t .   I  remember  the  inc ident  where  somebody was  

wav ing  the  repor t ,  i t  was Min is te r  Prav in  Gordhan who was  

hav ing  a  one pager  t yped in  very,  very,  very  b ig  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  a lso  seem to  th ink  I  have seen on 

te lev is ion  somebody say ing… 

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  yes .   So the  Pres ident  in  tha t  meet ing  

never  sa id  tha t  there  i s  a  repor t  tha t  he  w i l l  send to  myse l f ,  

he  on ly  sa id  tha t  when the  t ime is  r igh t  he  w i l l  exp la in  th is  

so  tha t  I  unders tand tha t  mat te r  and tha t  i s  how I  le f t  h is  

o f f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you went  to  h im as par t  o f  your  

invest iga t ion?  10 

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And d id  you ask  h im whether  there  was 

such a  repor t  and you asked h im  to  g ive  i t  to  you  but  d id  

he  commi t  h imse l f  to  whether  i t  ex is ted  o r  no t  o r  what  was  

the  pos i t ion?  

DR DINTWE:    I  d id  tha t  bu t  ou r  engagement  was fo l lowed  

by  a  le t te r.   So  in  a  le t te r  where  I  was request ing  a  

meet ing  I  had a l ready put  a  pa ragraph there  wh ich  says  

th is  i s  the  purpose o f  the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

DR DINTWE:    And I  request  the  Pres ident  to  favour  me  

wi th  tha t  repor t  so  tha t  I  can check i t s  au thent ic .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   So tha t  was befo re  you  

ac tua l l y  met  h im,  tha t  was a  le t te r  tha t  was request ing  a  

meet ing .  
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DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and subsequent ly  you met  w i th  h im.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  in  the  meet ing  he  d id  no t  commi t  

h imse l f  to  whethe r  such a  repor t  was in  ex is tence o r  no t ,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

DR DINTWE:    He d id  no t  commi t  h imse l f  to  tha t ,  save to  

say tha t  he  is  aware  tha t  peop le  a re  say ing  there  a  repor t  

somewhere .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   And then he sa id  when the  10 

t ime is  r igh t  he  wou ld  wr i te  to  you and exp la in  o r  he  wou ld  

exp la in  to  you.  

DR DINTWE:    He sa id  he  w i l l  exp la in  to  me so  I  jus t  took 

tha t  maybe they w i l l  inv i te  by  way  o f  a  le t te r  to  come the re  

or  I  w i l l  ge t  a  le t te r  wh ich  exp la ins  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And d id  he  g ive  an  ind ica t ion  o f  the 

t imef rame how long i t  m igh t  take  fo r  h im to  –  fo r  the  t ime 

to  be  r igh t?  

DR DINTWE:    He d id  no t ,  Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  the  reason  

when I  go t  to  –  when I  go t  to  the  o f f i ce  I  rea l i sed tha t  I  d id  20 

no t  unders tand h im.   The nat ion  w i l l  fo rg ive  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    I  rea l i se  tha t .   But  what  I  d id  i s  tha t  I  then 

wro te  another  le t te r  when our  d iscuss ion  was s t i l l  f resh  in  

my mind.   Bas ica l l y  because no minutes  were  taken  o f  tha t  
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meet ing  so  I  wanted to  pu t  i t  in  my own records to  say tha t  

Mr  Pres ident  we met  on  th is  par t i cu la r  day and th is  i s  the 

d iscuss ion  and le t  me a lso  remind you tha t  I  w i l l  be  wa i t ing  

fo r  tha t  engagement  and I  have a lso  ind i ca ted  tha t  I  

wanted to  conc lude  tha t  invest iga t ion  as  soon as  i t  i s  

poss ib le  and so  tha t  i s  how I  dea l t  w i th  i t  bu t  there  was 

never  a  commi tment  in  te rms o f  the  t imef rame as to  when 

he was go ing  to  exp la in  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    And wh ich  year  was  i t  when you were  hav ing  10 

th is  engagement  w i th  h im?  Was i t  2017?  Wel l ,  the  

compla in t  was g i ven to  you in  Apr i l  2017 so  i t  must  have 

been in  2017.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes i t  was in  2017,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  and say ac tua l l y  in  paragraph 114 – 

oh  no,  no ,  you ta lk  about  a  mee t ing .   No,  i t  i s  no t  you r  

meet ing  w i th  the  pres ident .  

DR DINTWE:    No ,  i t  i s  no t  tha t  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i t  must  somet ime in  2017.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Pre tor ius?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Two issues,  Mr  D in twe.   F i rs t l y,  

th is  cor respondence to  wh ich  your  re fe r,  do  you s t i l l  have 

i t?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And i t  cou ld  be  prov ided?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  i s  I  th ink  in  the  documents  tha t  I  have 

prov ided a l ready.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    No re ference is  made to  i t  bu t  

perhaps we w i l l  check.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  I  do  have tha t  le t te r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    I  am sure ,  I  am very,  very  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Do you want  to  check?  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  I  am very,  ve ry  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ac tua l l y,  bo th  le t te rs ,  the  one tha t  went  

when you requested the  meet ing  and the  one tha t  you 

wro te  a f te r  the  meet ing .  

DR DINTWE:    I t  w i l l  be  two le t te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE:    Because the  o ther  one –  I  cannot  remember  

i f  i t  was the  one ,  I  was get t ing  wor r ied  whether  -  tha t  I  

cannot  jus t  keep  i t  open.   So we can even see i t  as  a  

fo l low up,  as  a  fo l low up le t te r.   So  I  w i l l  a lways keep those  

k inds o f  le t te rs .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Then in  paragraph 115 and  I  need 

to  ask  whether  th is  i s  accura te  or  no t ,  l i ne  th ree ,  sentence 

beg ins :  

“Desp i te  numerous requests  inc lud ing  one a t  a  
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meet ing  w i th  the  fo rmer  Pres iden t  and desp i te  h is  

p romise  to  p rov ide  a  copy o f  the  repor t ,  no th ing  was  

fo r thcoming. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t  o r  does i t  need co r rec t ion?  

DR DINTWE:    Le t  us  qua l i f y  i t .   I  am s i t t ing  w i th  the  

Pres ident ,  he  says when t ime I  r igh t  I  w i l l  exp la in  to  

yourse l f .   I  hear  peop le  say ing  there  is  a  repor t  

somewhere ,  tha t  repor t  may not  be  ex is ten t  because  as  the  

Pres ident  somet imes I  ge t  ve rba l .   But  I  never  wanted to  

conc lude tha t  the  repor t  was non-ex i s ten t  because  he sa id  10 

i t  may not  be  ex is ten t .   So I  was s t i l l  harbour ing  under  

tha t ,  I  w i l l  j us t  as  and when i t  happens what  comes to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Pre tor ius ,  we have an a f f idav i t ,  

we have a f f idav i t s  f rom Mr  Mantashe,  Dr  Zwel i  Mkh ize ,  i f  I  

reca l l  cor rec t l y  and Ms Jess ie  Duar te .   I f  I  am not  

m is taken,  a l l  th ree  o f  them have  deposed to  a f f idav i t s  a t  

the  request  o f  –  a t  my request  maybe las t  year  somet ime  

or  maybe 2019 where  they were  asked to  g ive  the i r  account  

o f  what  Mr  Zuma sa id  to  them a t  a  meet ing  o f  the  top  s ix  

the  day be fo re  he  –  he ,  I  th ink ,  he  reca l led  o r  the  day he  20 

f i red  Mr  Gordhan .   They have put  up  a f f idav i t s .   I  may be  

wrong,  we need to  check whether  i n  the i r  a f f idav i t  they  ta lk  

about  h im hav ing  a  wr i t ten  repor t  in  the i r  hands-  in  h is  

hand wh ich  he  d id  no t  g ive  to  them or  whether  they s imp ly  

sa id  he  sa id  he  had a  repor t  bu t  d id  no t  make i t  ava i lab le  
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to  them because I  do  reca l l  tha t  i t  was not  g i ven to  them.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  do  no t  reca l l  whether  they  sa id  he  

had i t  in  h is  hand  or  whether  they jus t  sa id  he  sa id  he  had 

a  repor t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    My own reco l lec t ion ,  Cha i r,  i s  that  

there  has been ev idence o f  the  ex is tence o f  a  wr i t ten  

repor t .   Yes.   Opera t ion  Checkmate  i t  i s  ca l led .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and I  seem to  th ink  tha t  the  cur ren t  

Pres ident ,  there  was –  he  gave an in te rv iew to  one o f  the  10 

TV channe ls  a round the  t ime o f  the  d ismissa l  o f  Mr  

Gordhan because  you might  reca l l  he  went  pub l i c  to  say he  

was opposed to  i t .   I  may be wrong ,  I  seem to  th ink  he  may  

have spoken as  i f  he  had seen the  repor t  o r  had s igh t  o f  

some par ts  o f  i t ,  I  am not  su re .   So there  is  tha t  c l ip ,  so  

one can check.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

DR DINTWE:    I  can  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion  fu r ther  than 

maybe tak ing  the  tow f rom what  the  Cha i rperson jus t  sa id .  

So the  cu r ren t  Pres ident ,  a t  tha t  t ime the  Deputy  20 

Pres ident ,  was a lso  in te rv iewed fo r  th is  invest iga t ion  and  

they wro te  to  myse l f  th rough he r  lega l  adv iser  bu t  the  

repor t  was never  p rov ided to  myse l f .   So tha t  one I  s t i l l  

remember  succ inc t l y.   H is  responses w i l l  be  in  the  f i le  

because i t  w i l l  be  the  f i le  f rom di f fe ren t  w i tnesses tha t  I  
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wou ld  have spoken to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  do  you reca l l  whether  he  sa id  he  

d id  no t  have i t ,  because tha t  wou ld  be  one th ing ,  o r  

whethe r  he  sa id  he  d id  no t  have i t  and had never  had s igh t  

o f  i t  o r  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t  because I  am jus t  no t  sure ,  

somebody has spoken about  –  as  ment ioned,  I  th ink ,  on  

te lev is ion ,  fea tu res  o f  i t .   Featu res  o f  i t ,  so  –  bu t  i t  i s  okay,  

we can check.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  and i t  does appear  in  

cer ta in  med ia  repor t s  o r  no t  the  repor t  i t se l f  bu t  cop ies  o f  10 

a  person ho ld ing  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  or  ho ld ing  an  a l leged repor t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l leged ly  ho ld ing  the  repor t .   An 

a l leged repor t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l leged ly  ho ld ing  the  repor ts .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  le t  us  jus t  summar ise  i t  then.   

You were  asked to  invest iga te  the  or ig ins  and authent ic i t y  

o f  th is  repor t .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You in te rv iewed var ious  peop le  20 

inc lud ing  the  fo rmer  Pres ident .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  the  

fo rmer  Pres ident  about  the  ex is tence o r  o the rw ise  o f  a  

repor t .  
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DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A repor t  wh ich  you were  

invest iga t ing .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  you ask  h im fo r  a  copy o f  the  

repor t?  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  I  asked h im.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  he  eve r  g ive  you a  copy  o f  the 

repor t?  

DR DINTWE:    Not  a t  a l l  un t i l  he  le f t  the o f f i ce ,  10 

Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  anyone ever  g i ve  you a  copy o f  

the  repor t?  

DR DINTWE:    No,  no  one,  the re  was on ly  tha t  bad ly  

wr i t ten  document  wh ich  was on soc ia l  med ia .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you say a t  the  end o f  

parag raph 115:  

“We were  o f  the  v iew tha t  we cou ld  no t  s imp ly  re ly  20 

on  the  repor t  leaked to  the  med ia  in  o rde r  to  

au thent ica te  the  verac i t y  o f  the  repor t  a l leged ly  

p rov ided to  the  fo rmer  Pres ident . ”  

Was tha t  the  ou tcome o f  your  inves t iga t ion?  

DR DINTWE:    That  was the  ou tcome o f  the  inves t iga t ion  
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and tha t  s ta tement ,  I  mean tha t  when we had then was 

what  we downloaded l i ke  anybody e lse .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .  

DR DINTWE:    And the  P res ident  had not  taken ownersh ip  

o f  i t .   So  I  say  tha t  you canno t  dea l  w i th  o r ig in  o f  a  

document ,  you cannot  dea l  w i th  the  verac i t y  i f  i t  i s  un-

owned a t  a l l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  your  v iew d id  you eve r  ge t  a  fu l l  

and sa t is fac tory  repor t  f rom the  fo rmer  Pres ident?  

DR DINTWE:    Not  a t  a l l ,  Cha i rperson,  un t i l  he  le f t  the 10 

o f f i ce .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Paragraph 116 you re fer  to  another  

so-ca l led  in te l l igence repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you go  tha t  one,  Mr  Pre tor ius ,  

you re fe r red  Dr  D in twe to  h i s  depar tu re  f rom o f f i ce .   Do 

you know o f  anyth ing  tha t  wou ld  have prevented h im f rom 

mak ing  a r rangements  to  ensure  tha t  he  prov ided you w i th  

the  exp lanat ion  o r  the  repor t  even a f te r  he  had le f t  o f f i ce  i f  

he  wanted to  ass i s t  on  the  invest iga t ion?  

DR DINTWE:    No,  I  am not  aware  o f  anyth ing  tha t  we have  20 

presented [ ind i s t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

DR DINTWE:    Maybe th i s  po in t  i s  a lso  appo in tment  tha t  

amongst  the  peop le  tha t  I  wou ld  have ta l ked to  aga in ,  I  

wro te  to  the  th ree  in te l l igence serv i ces  and I  in fo rmed 
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them,  I  mean i t  was in  the i r  knowledge and so  fo r th  and a l l  

o f  them sa id  tha t  tha t  repor t  was –  the  repor t  and the  

br ie f ing  was not  g iven by  any o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  a l l  the  in te l l igence serv ices  in  the  

count ry  sa id  they  never  gave such  a  repor t  o r  [ ind i s t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  to  the  fo rmer  Pres ident .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   In  fac t  the  

head o f  de fence,  they ca l l  them CDI ,  Ch ie f  Defence  

In te l l igence,  he  even requested tha t  shou ld  I  come up w i th  

tha t  k ind  o f  in fo rmat ion  I  shou ld  dec ide  to  pu t  them in  the  10 

loop because I  th ink  tha t  i t  cou ld  be  to  embarrassment  i f  

somebody had to  p rov ide  the  repor t  and none  o f  the 

in te l l igence serv i ces  in  the  count ry  was aware  o f  such.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  do I  unders tand i t  co r rec t l y  you  

cou ld  conc lude a f te r  you r  invest iga t ions tha t  i t  was  not  an  

au thent ic  repor t  emanat ing  f rom any o f  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  

Agenc ies?  

DR DINTWE:    No,  my f ind ing  was  tha t  I  cou ld  no t  reach a  

f ind ing  because I  d id  no t  have any document  tha t  I  cou ld  

ver i f y  i t s  au thent ic i t y  and i t s  o r ig in .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  never the less  the  i n fo rmat ion  

you rece ived dur ing  the  course  o f  your  invest iga t ions f rom 

the  in te l l igence agenc ies  under  your  watch  was tha t  i t  d id  

no t  come f rom them,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  unders tand.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  remember,  tha t  cou ld  no t  be  a  f ind ing  

because I  wou ld  have deve loped  a  hypothes is  o r,  i f  you  

l i ke ,  a  quest ion  tha t  I  want  to  answer  and the  ques t ion  tha t  

I  want  to  answer  was,  i s  th is  repor t  o r ig ina t ing  f rom any o f  

the  th ree?  I s  i t  an  au thent ic  repor t?   And are  we  ab le  to  

ver i f y  i t ,  l i ke  the  verac i t y  thereof .   So the  f ind ing ,  I  w i l l  

on ly  ment ion  those po in ts  in  the  ana lys is  o f  the  ev idence 

tha t  I  go t ,  the  w i tness and so  fo r th ,  bu t  i t  w i l l  no t  come 

there  because I  wanted to  answer  a  spec i f i c  quest ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  there  was the  quest ion  o f  the  

au thent ic  o f  the  repor t ,  there  was the  quest ion  o f  the  

a l legat ions made aga ins t  the  Min is te r  o f  F inance,  Mr  

Gordhan.   I  guess the  a l legat ion  o r  a l legat ions wou ld  be  – 

ja ,  wou ld  have been what  those who were  in  the  meet ing  

w i th  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  save he sa id  namely  tha t  he  had  

an in te l l igence repor t  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  Min is te r  Gordhan  

and Deputy  Min i s te r  Jonas,  wh i le  they were  ou ts ide  o f  the  

count ry,  they were  go ing  to  meet  w i th  –  they were  go ing  to  

a t tend cer ta in  meet ings wh ich  he  v iewed as  unacceptab le ,  20 

th rea ten ing  the  secur i t y  o r  whatever.   I  guess tha t  is  the  

a l legat ion  tha t  you wou ld  be  look ing  a t  and in  the  course  o f  

invest iga t ing  tha t  a l legat ion ,  obv ious ly  you wou ld  want  to  

see the  repor t  on  wh ich  the  a l legat ion  was made or  in  

wh ich  the  a l legat ion  was made.   I s  tha t  r igh t?    



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 350 of 371 
 

DR DINTWE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Inso far  as  the  a l legat ion  is  concerned,  

you had in te rv iewed the  person who had sa id  –  who had  

made tha t  a l lega t ion  and sa id  i t  was based on the  repor t ,  

tha t  person be ing  Mr  Zuma and  he had not  g iven you  

anyth ing  to  substant ia te  the  a l lega t ion ,  you had –  I  do  no t  

know i f  you had  in te rv iewed Mr  Gordhan and Mr  Jonas  

because i t  seems to  me tha t  you ought  to  be  ab le  to  say –  

you ought  to  have been ab le  to  say,  i f  you  had in te rv iewed  

a l l  the  peop le  tha t  you ident i f ied ,  to  say has th is  a l legat ion  10 

been substant ia ted  or  no t  and i f  i t  has  no t  been 

substant ia ted  then you say the  a l legat ion  has no t  been 

substant ia ted  and pa r t  o f  the  reason why i t  has  no t  been 

substant ia ted  is  because those who cou ld  have fu rn ished  

you w i th  the  repor t  tha t  wou ld  have had in fo rmat ion  about  

tha t  had fa i led  to  do  so .  

DR DINTWE:    I  d id  no t  go  there ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    And I  remember  the  reasons.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

DR DINTWE:    Not  tha t  we are  no t  care fu l  w i th  o the r  

compla in t s  bu t  th is  one,  I  remember  tha t  we were  –  I  had 

severa l  meet ings w i th  my team and  we b ra ins tormed .    The 

f i rs t  reason why  we cou ld  no t  look  a t  the  a l legat ions i s  

because the  compla in t  was not  even coming f rom Mr  
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Gordhan or  Mr  Jonas so  I  dec la red them v ic t ims,  i f  you  

l i ke ,  bu t  they were  never  my comp la inants .  The compla in t s 

came f rom somebody e lse .  

 But  the  second reason why we cou ld  no t  invest iga te  

the  a l legat ions was because Mr  Gordhan h imse l f  and Mr  

Jonas cannot  be  v iewed a  say members  o f  an  in te l l igence  

serv i ce  o f  they cannot  be  seen as  a  head o f  a  serv ice  and 

our  invest iga t ion  w i l l  be  about  the  in te l l igence and counter-

in te l l igence mat te rs .   So there  is  tha t  l i t t le  b i t  o f  

conf inement  and we jus t  d id  no t  want  to  go  ou t  o f  tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am not  sure  whether  i t  was r igh t  

to  approach i t  tha t  way,  you know?  I  can unders tand when  

you say I  cou ld  no t  make any f ind ing  or  make any 

pronouncement  on  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  the  repor t  because I  

d id  no t  ge t  the  repor t .   That  I  can unders tand.   The fac t  

tha t  I  go t  some a l leged –  the  repor t  f rom whatever  source  

tha t  you downloaded,  you know,  wou ld  no t  he lp  in  te rms o f  

the  au thent ic i t y  o f  the  repor t .    

But  in  te rms o f  the  a l legat ion ,  I  wou ld  have thought  

tha t  you wou ld  need ta l k  to  Mr  Gordhan and Mr  Jonas to  20 

say I  am invest iga t ing  th is  a l legat ion  tha t  when you  peop le  

were  ove rsees,  o f f i c ia l  t r ip ,  you were  go ing  to  meet  w i th  

cer ta in  peop le  fo r  whatever,  whatever  purpose.    

They might  say  –  i f  you  te l l  them,  they m ight  say  

tha t  i s  nonsense  or  they m ight  say  yes,  we were  go ing  to  
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meet  such peop le  bu t  we were  go ing  to  d iscuss leg i t imate  

issues re la t ing  to  our  m in i s t r ies  or  government ,  you  know?  

And you cou ld  have in fo rmat ion  f rom them say ing  there  

was no such th ing  as  was a l leged,  you have noth ing  

coming f rom Mr  Zuma who had made the  a l legat ion ,  and I  

wou ld  th ink  tha t  they shou ld  be  ent i t led  to  be ing  c lea red  

because Mr  Zuma has prov ided no ev idence to  substant ia te  

the  a l legat ion .    

But  I  accept  tha t  you –  you may have looked a t  i t  in  

a  cer ta in  way,  bu t  I  am jus t  say ing ,  you know,  i t  jus t  seems 10 

tha t  m ight  be  un for tunate  i f  some a l legat ion  tha t  i s  no t  

be ing  substant ia ted  by  anybody seems to  be  le f t  hang ing  

ins tead o f  be ing  d ismissed i f  there  i s  no  ev idence to  

substant ia te  i t  in  c i rcumstances where  those who a re  in  a  

pos i t ion  to  p rov ide  ev idence have been g i ven an 

oppor tun i ty   to  do  so  and they fa i led .  

DR DINTWE:    Cha i rperson,  I  may have omi t ted  someth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    And I  do  no t  want  to  do  th is  when I  am 

g iv ing  ev idence.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

DR DINTWE:    Go ing  back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  I  was on ly  say ing  tha t  I  dec la red them 

as v i c t ims o ther  compla inants .  



21 APRIL 2021 – DAY 379 
 

Page 353 of 371 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  I  have met  w i th  Gordhan . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes 

DR DINTWE:    And he was even in  the  company o f  h is  lega l  

rep resenta t i ves  in  Pre tor ia ,  we were  a l so  in  possess ion  o f  

a  t ranscr ip t  bo th  a  reco rd ing  and a  t ranscr ip t  tha t  was 

done by  h is  lawyers ,  where  he  den ied  those a l lega t ions.   I  

had ex tended the  same inv i ta t ion  to  Mr  Jonas,  bu t  i t  was a t  

a  pe r iod  I  th ink  he  was appo in ted  fo r  and dea l  w i th  

someth ing  tha t ’s  maybe someth ing ,  so  he  was jus t  no t  10 

ava i lab le ,  bu t  I  t r ied  tha t  and I  a lso  used a  ce l l  phone,  

because I  don ’ t  unders tand the  record  to  say tha t ,  bu t  I  

have g iven you some t ime o f  an  aud i  you know even i f  you 

are  no t  an  imp l ica ted  person.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

DR DINTWE:    So  we have those records,  I  don ’ t  know why 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o r  need tha t  bu t  par t  o f  my – and I  accept  

c r i t i c i sm you know eas i l y,  par t  o f  my f ind ings d id  no t  rea l l y  

dea l  w i th  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  to  the  mer i t s  o f  the  a l legat ions.  20 

DR DINTWE:    I f  there  i s  any in fo rmat ion  then you w i l l  f ind 

i t  somewhere  in  my repor t ,  bu t  no t  under  f ind ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes ,  okay,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  i t  i s  

f ine .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  paragraph 116 Dr  D in twe you  
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g ive  two fu r the r  examples  o f  the  use o f  so-ca l led  

in te l l igence repor t  whether  genu ine  or  fake ,  wou ld  you te l l  

the  Cha i r  about  those br ie f l y  p lease?  

DR DINTWE:   Yes,  le t  me pre face  jus t  by  say ing  tha t  I  am 

a lso  observ ing  a  modus operand i  here ,  I  th ink  the  

Cha i rperson remembers  when I  sa id  tha t  th is  means you 

su f fe r  the  consequences and then there  is  no th ing ,  bu t  

they sha l l  imp l ica te ,  they even go the  ex ten t  o f  say ing  ag  i t  

was a  wrong . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  bu t  by  tha t  t ime the  two peop le  

tha t  I  have re fe r red  to  were  ou t  o f  the i r  pos i t ions .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   Now the  same th ing  here  the re  were  

a l legat ions,  the re  was a  repor t  and in  tha t  repor t  there  

were  a l legat ions  tha t  Cr ime In te l l igence in  th i s  ins tance  

dur ing  the i r  cou rse  o f  mon i to r ing  they came ac ross an  

a l leged p lo t  by  the  fo l low ing members ,  Genera l  Shadrack  

S ib iya ,  Mr  Rober t  McBr ide  and Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  and  

o thers  tha t  they were  in tend ing  to  over th row government .   

Th is  repor t  purpor ted  to  be  –  I  mean,  no ,  no ,  tha t  repor t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  fu r ther  repor t  in to  the  a l leged un lawfu l  20 

rend i t ion  o f  fo re ign  na t iona ls  invo lv ing  Genera ls  Dramat  

and S ib iya  were  quest ionab le  and have recent ly  been 

proven to  un t rue .  

 The f i rs t  one tha t  I  dea l t  w i th  sa id  tha t  there  was a  

meet ing  somewhere  in  the  East  Rand where  these peop le  
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tha t  I  am ment ion ing  here  met  and tha t  they were  p lo t t ing  

to  ove r th row the  government .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  bund le  o f  documents  w i l l  

inc lude examples  o f  these repor ts?  

DR DINTWE:    Th is  one w i l l  inc lude the  example  o f  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Perhaps  the  conc lus ion  tha t  you  

reach in  pa ragraph 117 o f  the  ex is tence o f  these repor ts  

and the i r  use  and outcome i s  summar ised in  pa rag raph  

117,  pe rhaps you  shou ld  read tha t  on  the  record  i f  you  w i l l ,  

parag raph 117.  10 

DR DINTWE:    These repor ts ,  and i t  i s  very  s t range,  i t  i s  

on ly  these repor t s  tha t  ra ise  a  susp ic ion ,  they a re  o f ten  

prepared in  a  very  c lumsy manner,  w i th  lo t  o f  spe l l ing  

er rors  and somet imes they are  even incoherent ,  and I  am 

a lso  us ing  a  word  there  to  say tha t  they a re  a lso  

un in te l l ig ib le  when you read i t ,  tha t  becomes a  common 

denominato r,  i t  does not  even mat te r  whether  they were  

coming f rom Sta te  Secur i t y  Agency or  f rom Cr ime 

In te l l igence.   So you w i l l  no t  have those repor ts  wh ich  

dea ls  w i th  the  Domest ic  In te l l igence as  the i r  de fence is  20 

concerned,  and there  is  a  reason fo r  tha t .    They fa l l  under  

a  par t i cu la r  reg ime,  bu t  tha t  i s  how these repor ts  a re ,  you 

are  ask ing  yourse l f  who is  wr i t ing  them and i f  they  are  

submi t ted  to  anybody what  a re  those sen io r  o f f i c ia ls  say ing  

about  these repor ts .  
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 Not  tha t  I  want  them to  be  coherent  and so  fo r th  

and so  fo r th ,  bu t  I  am seek ing  a  s tandard  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  

they  a re  dea l ing  w i th  l i ves  and r igh ts  o f  ind iv idua ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No but  they must  be  coherent .   They 

must  be  coheren t  and they must ,  when you look a t  them,  

when you read them they must  show some ser iousness  

because they dea l  w i th  ser ious i ssues and as  you say 

peop le ’s  l i ves  and i f  they  are  to  be  taken se r ious ly  I  wou ld  

have thought  tha t  any repor t  tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  sen t  to  the 

Pres ident  o f  the  count ry  wou ld  be  a  proper  repor t  and not  10 

someth ing  tha t  rea l l y  looks someth ing  tha t  has no t  been 

prepared by  peop le  who are  ser ious.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  add i t ion  to  the  fea tu res  you  

ment ioned,  you ment ion  here  i n  parag raph 117 tha t  the  

ident i t y  o f  the  compi le r  o f  the  repor t  i s  more  o f ten  than  

not ,  no t  s ta ted  or  ev ident .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  i t  i s  no t  s ta ted  in  those repor t s .   I  

unders tand the  secur i t y  requ i rements  bu t  you cannot  jus t  

have a  repor t  tha t  you do not  l ink  to  anybody,  there  shou ld  

a t  leas t  be  a  code name or  even  a  number,  these  peop le  20 

they w i l l  have numbers ,  so  tha t  they can know when they  

pay me,  when they grade my repor t ,  they  know tha t  I  am 

the  one who compi led  tha t  repor t ,  bu t  th is  one the  one tha t  

was dea l ing  w i th  Genera l  S ib iya  and Mr  Rober t  McBr ide   in  

fac t  i t  was wr i t ten  a  compi le r  bu t  i t  was le f t  b lank,  no t  
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knowing tha t  when i t  was g iven to  me maybe they wou ld  

have t ippexed tha t  bu t  I  was expect ing  tha t  the  bare  

m in imum at  leas t  I  cou ld  f ind  a t  l eas t  a  code name or  a  

number  l inked to  the  compi le r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  Cha i r  has po in ted  out  

someth ing  wh ich  is  ve ry  impor tan t  and the re  is  repeat ing  

tha t  what  i s  s ign i f i can t  i s  no t  on ly  who compi les  the  repor t  

and how the  repor t  comes about  bu t  the  fac t  tha t  peop le  in  

sen ior  pos i t ion  a re  prepared to  make use o f  such repor ts ,  

to  take  ac t ion  aga ins t  peop le .  10 

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Perhaps you can go on f rom l ine  3  

o f  paragraph 117,  and jus t  pu t  tha t  on  reco rd  p lease.  

DR DINTWE:    You wanted me to  read f rom? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes p lease,  l ine  3 ,  you have dea l t  

w i th  the  f i rs t  th ree  l ines  o f  117.  

DR DINTWE:     

“There  seems to  be  no recourse  fo r  the  c i t i zens  

whose in tegr i t y  and ca reers  are  dest royed by  these  

repor ts .    Even in  cases where  the  compi le rs  a re  20 

known.    I t  i s  my v iew tha t  these repor ts  a re  re l ied  

upon fu l l y  knowing tha t  they w i l l  no t  s tand up in  

cour t  as  they ach ieve and they may not  ach ieve the  

des i red  e f fec t  o f  remov ing  key persons who s tand in  

the i r  way. ”  
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Maybe I  must  jus t  repeat  tha t ,  I  made a  m is take.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Read tha t  sentence aga in  yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

“ I t  i s  my v iew tha t  these repor t s  a re  re l ied  upon fu l l  

knowing tha t  they  w i l l  no t  s tand up  in  cour t  as  they  

ach ieve the i r  des i red  e f fec t  o f  remov ing  key  

persons who s tand in  the  way o f  S ta te  Capture  f rom 

the i r  pos i t ions .    The de le te r ious  e f fec t  o f  th is  i s  

tha t  the  names o f  these persons are  i r reparab ly  

damaged by  these repor ts  as  by  the  t ime the  cases  10 

are  w i thd rawn aga ins t  them i t  is  too  la te ,  the i r  

caree rs  have been damaged. ”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you,  in  parag raph  118 Dr  

D in twe you dea l  w i th  a  new top ic  and tha t  i s  i r regu lar  

appo in tments  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  be fore  you proceed Mr  Pre tor ius  

can I  ask  th is  quest ion ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  du r ing  your  t ime  

you may have had the  exper ience  o f  invest iga t ing  repor ts  

tha t  a re  leg i t imate ,  tha t  leg i t imate ly  come f rom the  

In te l l igence Serv ices ,  a re  you  ab le  to  say genera l l y  20 

speak ing  those tha t  a le r t  you to  make do not  have these  

fea tures  tha t  you  have ident i f ied  in  regard  to  the  repor ts  

tha t  seem not  to  be  leg i t imate?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r,  the  o ther  repor ts  w i l l  

go  th rough a  v igorous –  a  v igorous process tha t  I  do  no t  
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want  to  d ivu lge  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

DR DINTWE:   But  i t  w i l l  no t  move f rom person A to  person  

B  and end the re ,  there  w i l l  be  checks and ba lances 

th roughout  the  sys tem to  an  ex ten t  tha t  some o f  them I  

th ink  tha t  they w i l l  be  d isca rded and i f  there  were  compi led  

by  somebody who was expect ing  some k ind  o f  

remunera t ion  they w i l l  no t  then be remunera ted  because  

they w i l l  be  “use less” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  10 

DR DINTWE:   And you can see  tha t  –  you can see the  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r,  i t  i s  on ly  in  th is  ins tance you want  to  

look  a t  those repor ts  tha t  a re  suspect ,  those repor ts  tha t  

you cou ld  have  some a l legat ions tha t  i t  was  used  

knowing ly  to  rea l l y  w i th  somebody who was s tand ing  

aga ins t  ma l feasance or  cor rup t ion ,  so  there  is  a  c lea r  

d is t inc t ion  be tween tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you say  genera l l y  they w i l l ,  the 

leg i t imate  ones,  w i l l  have a  comp i le r  even i f  jus t  a  code 

tha t  i s  g iven in  te rms o f  the  compi le r  o r  the  au thor  and 20 

then you say even in  te rms o f  the  qua l i t y  o f  the  repor t  i t  i s  

d i f fe ren t  f rom these o the r  ones in  te rms o f  how 

pro fess iona l  they  look.    

DR DINTWE:   I t  i s  fa r  be t te r,  in  fac t  Cha i rpe rson they  

made a  presenta t ion  to  me wi th  regard  to  an  issue wh ich  
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came in to  the  pub l i c  domain  abou t  the  in ten t ion  o f  some 

group in  B loemfonte in  who wanted  to  a t tend the  con ference  

in  2012,  very  p ro fess iona l ,  even inc lud ing  the  s l ides ,  

where  i t  s ta r ted ,  where  they reg is te red the  pro jec t  and so  

fo r th ,  I  was so  much impressed and  when you  take  tha t  

repor t  and compare  i t  to  these ones tha t  I  have been  

ment ion ing  he re  you can jus t  see  tha t  no ,  no ,  no  th is  one  

d id  no t  rea l l y  go  th rough the  o rd inary  process o f  p roduc ing  

any gr ievance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cha i r  in  re la t ion  to  a  query  tha t  

you ra i sed and comments  made ear l ie r  about  the  so-ca l led  

check-mate  repor t ,  tha t  was used a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  Top 

S ix  o r  re fe r red  to  a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  Top S ix ,  i f  I  can  jus t  

p lace  on reco rd  and i t  i s  perhaps apt  to  do  so  in  th is  

contex t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I  have in  f ron t  o f  me the  a f f idav i t  

o f  Ms Duar te  and a t  paragraph 10 o f  tha t  a ff idav i t  she 

says:  20 

“A t  a  meet ing  o f  the  o f f i c ia ls  on  27  March 2017  

fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma in fo rmed the  o f f i c ia ls  o f  an  

in te l l igence repor t  wh ich  made  re ference to  a  

meet ing  tha t  Min is te r  Gordhan had a t tended in  

London.   He d id  no t  p roduce the  repor t  bu t  sa id  tha t  
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the  contents  gave  h im great  d i scomfor t . ”  

That  ev idence is  conf i rmed by  Mr  Mantashe who says in  

parag raph 10 o f  h is  a f f idav i t ,  and  I  w i l l  pu t  the  re ferences 

on the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:     

“A t  a  meet ing  o f  the  o f f i c ia ls  on  27  March 2017  

fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma in fo rmed the  o f f i c ia ls  o f  an  

in te l l igence repor t  wh ich  made  re ference to  a  

meet ing  tha t  Min is te r  Gordhan had a t tended in  10 

London.    He d id  no t  p roduce the  repor t  bu t  sa id  i t  

gave h im g reat  d iscomfor t . ”  

And then i t  goes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And those are  in  Exh ib i t  JGZ and I  

am not  sure  tha t  these pages cons is t ,  I  w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  those  a f f idav i t s  have not  been  

as  fa r  as  I  know have not  been admi t ted  as  ye t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  we l l  perhaps they shou ld  be ,  

bu t  I  sha l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  they  shou ld  in  due course  but  my 

reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  they have –  there  has no t  been an  

occas ion  fo r  them to  be  admi t ted ,  bu t  we have obta ined  

them.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  we w i l l  see  to  tha t  o r  d iscuss 
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tha t  w i th  you in  due course .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  paragraph 118 you dea l  w i th  a  

new top ic  and tha t  i s  ins tances o f  i r regu lar  appo in tments 

w i th in  the  In te l l i gence Serv ices ,  wou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i r  

about  those p lease.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  the  prob lem about  i r regu la r  

appo in tments  Cha i r  i s  tha t  they crea te  ins tab i l i t y,  f i rs t l y,  

bu t  they a l so  c rea te  a  fe r t i le  env i ronment  fo r  S ta te  Capture  

i t se l f  because somet imes i t  i s  no t  on ly  about  th is  i r regu la r  10 

appo in tment  bu t  i t  i s  about  the  pe rson tha t  i s  be ing  pu t  in  

tha t  par t i cu la r  pos i t ion .   So we have made severa l  adverse  

f ind ings w i th  regard  to  bo th  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency but  

a lso  w i th  the  Cr ime In te l l igence w i th  –  where  rec ru i tment  

p rocedures were  no t  fo l lowed.   In  ce r ta in  ins tances the re  

w i l l  be  no  cr i te r ia  a t  a l l ,  you  w i l l  ask  wh ich  cr i te r ia  do  you  

use  to  recru i t  these peop le ,  they w i l l  jus t  say  tha t  no  i t  i s  

no t  there .   Some o f  the  pos i t ions  w i l l  no t  be  adver t i sed,  

and those are  the  examples ,  bu t  I  have got  a  spec i f i c  

example  here  because i t  i s  o f  a  sen ior  person who was 20 

appo in ted .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  you g ive  severa l  examples  

bu t  as  I  unders tand the  po in t  you make in  the  paragraphs  

tha t  fo l low ing,  parag raph 118,  i s  tha t  where  proper  

p rocedures  aren ’ t  fo l lowed i t  does  open the  door  to  undue 
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in f luence be ing  exerc ised and o ther  i r regu lar i t ies ,  do  I  

unders tand you cor rec t l y.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  my submiss ion  and my argument .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you g ive  those examples  in  

parag raphs 119,  120,  r i gh t  th rough to  pa ragraph 124,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE:   That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.     

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  i s  there  anyth ing  you w ish  

to  emphas ize  the re  fo r  the  Cha i r?  

DR DINTWE:    Le t  me emphas ize  th is  o the r  one because i t  10 

is  done by  Min i s te r  Bongan i  Bongo,  the  fo rmer  Min is te r,  so  

there  is  th is  pos i t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  tha t  paragraph 119?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  w i l l  be  paragraph 119,  so  there  is  th is  

pos i t ion  a t  NICOC so NICOC,  Nat iona l  In te l l igence  

Coord ina t ing  Commi t tee  is  led  by  a  D i rec to r  Genera l ,  bu t  i t  

i s  seen as  par t  o f  the  In te l l igence  Serv ice ,  ja ,  the  D i rec tor  

Genera l  o f  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency i s  the  accountab le  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  fo r  NICOC,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That ’s  the  Nat iona l  In te l l igence 20 

Coord ina t ing  Commi t tee .  

DR DINTWE:    Ja ,  the  In te l l igence Coord ina t ing  

Commi t tee ,  so  in  tha t  they had –  there  was a  vacancy,  bu t  

they d id  no t  adver t i se  tha t  par t i cu la r  vacancy and what  

happened is  tha t  Min is te r  Bongo on h is  th i rd  o r  four th  day,  
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we can check because I  have the  fu l l  repor t  in  the  bund le  

there  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you invest iga ted  th is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]      

DR DINTWE:    I  invest iga ted  and I  p roduced tha t  repor t .   

So what  happened is  tha t  he  met  then w i th  the  head o f  

NICOC and he ins t ruc ted  the  head  o f  NICOC to  produce a  

submiss ion  wh ich  then w i l l  come to  h im fo r  approva l  bu t  

obv ious ly  i t  w i l l  go  th rough the  o ther  s ignator ies  l i ke  a 

recommender,  i t  w i l l  be  a  compi le r / recommender  and I  10 

th ink  maybe somet imes a  second recommender  maybe f rom 

H R and then i t  w i l l  be  approved.  

 Appo in t ing  th is  par t i cu la r  member  to  a  leve l  o f  a  

p rogramme manager  and the  reason tha t  he  prov ided to  the 

head o f  NICOC was on ly  to  say tha t  he  knows th is  

gent leman and he  a lso  knows tha t  th is  gent leman is  ra is ing  

h is  k ids  a lone because he los t  h is  w i fe ,  so  h is  a rgument  I  

th ink  tha t  i t  was jus t  to  say tha t  pu t  h im somewhere  

because he does  not  have a  secondary  you know income 

l i ke  o ther  fami l ies  w i l l  have,  tha t  was the  reason tha t  was  20 

prov ided to  the  head o f  NICOC.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now however  k ind -hear ted  the  

gesture  may have been what  a re  the  dangers  tha t  a re  

a t tached to  tha t  sor t  o f  conduct?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  i s  tha t  obv ious ly  those peop le  w i l l  be 
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g ra t i f ied  to  the  appo in t ing  o f f i ce rs  so  they can be to ld  to  do  

anyth ing  and they w i l l  rea l l y,  rea l l y  do  tha t  because I  mean 

th is  was unexpec ted and i t  c rea ted  a  lo t  o f  p rob lems a l so  

because there  were  then gr ievances f rom the  o ther  peop le  

who sa id  tha t  we cou ld  have contes ted  fo r  th is  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was th is  pe rson  who was the  benef ic ia ry  

o f  th is  dec is ion ,  was i t  somebody tha t  was a  member  o f  

SSA a l ready or  was i t  somebody f rom outs ide?  

DR DINTWE:    No a  member  o f  SSA a l ready Cha i rperson,  

bu t  they were  p laced a t  NICOC.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  was a  quest ion  o f  them be ing  put  

in to  NICOC? 

DR DINTWE:   No,  no ,  no  i t  i s  in  NICOC and then they are  

tak ing  f rom le t ’s  leve l  2  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    P romoted?  

DR DINTWE:   . . . to  leve l  3  w i th in  NICOC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  they can  earn  h igher?  

DR DINTWE:   Exact ly  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  d id  you make any  20 

recommendat ion  as  a  consequence o f  you r  invest iga t ion?  

DR DINTWE:    I  made recommendat ions bu t  I  shou ld  have  

ment ioned tha t  he  on ly  spent  a  week in  tha t  p romoted  

pos i t ion ,  the  pos i t ion  tha t  he  was  promoted and then he  

was then appo in ted  to  become somebody h igher  than an 
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ac t ing  deputy  coord ina tor.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  he rece ived two promot ions?  

DR DINTWE:    Two promot ions in  a  space o f  a  month  and  

yes o f  course  I  sent  the  recommendat ions to  the  M in is te r  o f  

S ta te  Secur i t y.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:     You sent  a  recommendat ion  to  

remedy the  pos i t ion  or  the  s i tua t ion?   

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson,  our  

recommendat ions  was tha t  the  appo in tment  fo r  tha t  leve l  

shou ld  be  w i thd rawn,  second ly  tha t  i t  shou ld  be  adver t i sed,  10 

so  tha t  everyone can take  par t  on  tha t ,  bu t  there  was 

someth ing  where  we a lso  recommended somet ime o f  

d isc ip l ina ry  measures to  be  taken.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .  

DR DINTWE:    Because one o f  the  jun io r  members  who 

works  a t  HR in  tha t  en t i t y  h is  s ignature  was then fo rged in  

tha t  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  recommend?  

DR DINTWE:    I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  a  compi le r  bu t  somewhere  i t  

w i l l  be  a  l ine  o f  s ignatu res  and as  I  am say ing  tha t  he  20 

doesn ’ t  make dec is ions bu t  no rmal ly  i t  w i l l  go  to  h im to 

check whether  the  rec ru i tment  p rocess,  the  se lec t ion  

process was so  when he a f f i xes  h is  s ignatu re  i t  is  to  say  

tha t  I  have ass is ted  my pr inc ipa ls  to  ensure  tha t  a l l  

p rocesses are  fo l lowed,  bu t  dur ing  tha t  t ime he cou ld  
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remember  very  we l l  tha t  he  was in  Cape Town,  he  was not  

in  Pre tor ia  so  h is  s ignature  was fo rged.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And how long ago d id  you submi t  you r  

repor t  to  the  Min is te r,  more  or  less?  Or  wh ich  year  were  

you invest iga t ing  th is  mat te r?  

DR DINTWE:    I  do  have a  f i le  o f  120,  I  have got  some few 

dates  there ,  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  w i l l  need .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  i t  must  have been la t te r  par t  o f  

2019 and 2020,  the  ear ly  par t  o f  2020? 

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  so  Cha i rpe rson I  invest iga ted  tha t  10 

mat te r,  I  made recommendat ions bu t  a t  the  t ime tha t  I  was  

wr i t ing  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  recommendat ion  –  those  

recommendat ions  were  no t  ye t  imp lemented.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And as  fa r  as  you know as you s i t  there  

have they been compl ied  w i th?  

DR DINTWE:    No ,  no ,  no t  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you been to ld  tha t  maybe the  

Min is te r  doesn ’ t  agree w i th  your  recommendat ion  fo r  the 

fo l low ing reasons ,  a ,  b ,  c ,  d?   Has she to ld  you anyth ing  20 

a long those l ines? 

DR DINTWE:    Ja ,  no  Min is te r  then a f te r  I  th ink  severa l  

fo l low ups she wro te  to  me agree ing  w i th  our  f ind ings and 

our  recommendat ions.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  i s  on  the  22n d  o f  February  
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2020?  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Those recommendat ions have not  

ye t  been imp lemented.  

DR DINTWE:    No t  ye t  imp lemented .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  she has agreed w i th  your  

recommendat ion  bu t  the  imp lementa t ion  has no t  taken  

p lace a lmost  a  year  a f te r  she ind ica ted  tha t  she  agreed  

w i th  them? 

DR DINTWE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So there  were  two prob lems as I  

unders tand i t ,  one was your  f ind ing  tha t  a  m in is te r  had  

exerc ised what  I  p resume you regard  as  undue in f luence,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?    

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  the  process o f  appo in tment ,  bu t  

second ly  tha t  the  process i t se l f  was i r regu la r?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And your  recommendat ions have  20 

not  been imp lemented ye t?  

DR DINTWE:    The recommendat ions are  no t  ye t  

imp lemented.   But  there  was a  ser ies  o f  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  

m in is te rs  dur ing  tha t  pe r iod  ye t  the  appo in tment  i s  done by  

Min is te r  Bongan i  Bongo and then we had Min is te r  Le tsa tse  
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Duba,  she wasn ’ t  there  fo r  long,  c lear l y  I  cannot  reca l l  

whethe r  I  wou ld  have wr i t ten  to  her  bu t  then she was jus t  

rep laced by  Min is te r  Ayanda D lod lo  who I  am cer ta in  tha t  I  

wou ld  have wr i t ten  to  her,  no t  once  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And then in  pa rag raph  121  you  

re fer  to  anothe r  example .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  Mr  Pre tor ius  i t  m igh t  be  

appropr ia te  to  es tab l i sh  f rom Min is te r  D lod lo  what  the  

pos i t ion  is  because I  th ink  tha t  when these overs igh t  

bod ies  make recommendat ions  the  re levant  au thor i t y  10 

shou ld  app ly  the i r  m inds,  take  a  v iew whethe r  they have  a  

p rob lem wi th  comply ing  and i f  they  th ink  they have  a 

p rob lem a t  leas t  they shou ld  say so  and g i ve  the i r  reasons  

and i t  may we l l  be  tha t  in  regard  to  some o f  these maybe  

they m ight  have to  go  to  cour t  to  se t  as ide ,  I  am not  sure ,  

bu t  one shou ldn ’ t  have a  s i tua t ion  where  there  is  abso lu te  

s i lence or  there ’s  agreement  w i th  the  recommendat ion  bu t  

fo r  a  long t ime no th ing  happens.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We wi l l  do  a  request  fo r  

in fo rmat ion  Cha i r,  I  am sure  we w i l l  ge t  a  response.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A s im i la r  c i r cumstance ar ises  in  

parag raph 121 bu t  I  see we are  over  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  was th ink ing  now maybe I  shou ldn ’ t  say  

anyth ing  bu t  as  l ong as  you a re  po in t ing  . . .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l  Cha i r  I  am in  your  hands.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ]  no  because I  th ink  I  p romised  

tha t  we wou ld  ad journ  a t  ha l f  past  le t  us  ad journ  bu t  there  

are  go ing  to  be  days when I  am go ing  to  ask  eve rybody 

tha t  we a l l  be  s t rong and move much –  move beyond e igh t ,  

go  to  n ine  and so  on ,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I  w i l l  i n fo rm those accord ing ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  f ine ,  le t  us  s top  now.   

I  th ink  we shou ld  ta lk  Mr  Pre tor ius  to  a r range another  

even ing  sess ion  fo r  Dr  D in twe  to  t ry  and f in ish  h i s  10 

ev idence.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes Cha i r  i f  we are  ab le  to  s ta r t  

a round four  we w i l l  f in ish  in  one las t  sess ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  so  –  bu t  there  is  a  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  

my even ings nex t  week are  fu l l ,  there  i s  tha t  poss ib i l i t y,  

and i f  they  a re  fu l l  I  was th ink ing  whethe r  i t  m igh t  no t  be  a  

good idea to  look  a t  a  morn ing  in  te rms o f  wh ich  we cou ld  

say le t ’s  s ta r t  a t  e igh t ,  so  by  ten  o ’c lock  we might  be  done  

and then I  cont inue w i th  the  w i tness fo r  the  day i f  we  

ar range tha t ,  how does tha t  sound to  you?  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes Cha i r  tha t  i s  f ine ,  as  long as  i t  

i s  a f te r  P res ident  tes t i f ies .   We are  ob ta in ing  the  

s ta tements  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  okay,  a l r igh t .    Okay,  thank  

you very  much to  everybody,  we w i l l  ad journ  and then fo r  
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the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  I  must  jus t  po in t  ou t  tha t  tomorrow 

I  w i l l  hear  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Ano j  S ingh under  the  

Transnet  work  s t ream,  as  we l l  as  on  Fr iday dur ing  the  day  

sess ions and tomorrow even ing  I  w i l l  be  hear ing  the  

ev idence o f  the  fo rmer  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses ,  Ms 

Lynne Brown,  tha t  i s  jus t  to  in fo rm the  pub l i c .  

 Thank you ve ry  much,  we ad jou rn .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 22 APRIL 2021  10 


